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CASES AT LAW

ARGUED AND DETERMINED
IN THE

SUPREME COURT

F

NORTH CAROLINA

DECEMBER TERM, 1843 (o)

WILLTIAM LLEA. ADMINISTRATOR OF JoHXN Harris, v. BRYANT GAUZE,
ADMINISTRATOR, ETC.*

1. The application to revive a suit in the name of the administrator of a de-
ceased plaintiff must be made within two terms after his death.

2. Affidavits will he received to show when: the plaintiff died.

. If the death of a plaintiff occurs after the commencement of the term of
this Court. at which the appeal in his case is regularly entered, although
the judgment be not rendered at that term, the Court may enter a jude-
ment nunc pro tunc as of a day previous to his death, but they cannot do
<0 when he died previous to the commencement of such term.

o

Tars was au appeal to June Term, 1842, of this Court, which term
began on 13 June. The defendant was the appellant, and filed the tran-
seript on 29 Max. Although the opinion of the Court was delivered at
that term (24 N. (., 440), the judgment was not entered, and it was
afterwards ascertained that the plaintiff Lea, the administrator of Ilar-
ris, died 7T June, 1842, The county court of Brunswick, on 1 December,
1842, granted administration of ITarrg’ cstate to Hartford Jones, and
he at this term moved for leave to revive the suit in s name, which was
opposed by the defendant, who offered atflidavits as to the period
of Lea’s death, which were not disputed on the other side. (10)

John . Bryan for plaintiff.
Strange for defendant.

Rerrix, C. J. Without having regard to the circumstance that the
letters of administration to Jones are gencral, and not de bonis non, his
motion must be dénied as not having been made in due time. Rev. Stat.,

*The opinion on the motion in this case was delivered at June Term, 1843.

226 15



IN THE SUPREME COURT. ’ |26

TricE ©. YARBOROUGH.

ch. 2, sec. 6, allows a suit brought by an administrator to be revived by
an administrator de bonis non as it might be revived hy an executor
upon the death of his testator. Now, by the preceding sections of the
act taken from the \ets of 1789 and 1799, according to this settled con-
struction, the executor of a deceased plaintiff must apply to carry on
the suit within two terms after the day of the testator’s death, except
in the cases of contests about a will or the administration, of which
there 1 no suggestion here. Rule of Court, 1 N. ., 83; Anon., 3 N. C.,
66. This is the third term since the death of the original plaintiff, and,
therefore, the application 1s pot in time to prevent the action from
abating.

The death of the plaintiff had occurred while the case was held under
advisar: here.  'We might enter the judgment nune pro tune as of a day
previous to the death, but i fact that event occurred before the case
was constituted in this Court, or at least before the first ferm, so that
there 1s no day of which a judgment could be entered in this Court in
the life of the party.

Per Crriane Motion disallowed.

Cited: Islev v. Brown. 66 N. C.. 560.

(11)

ZACHARTIAH TRICE v. YARBOROUGH axp RAY.

Where a judgment was rendered against a party in the Superior Court of a
county which is distant from that in which he resides and in which he has
few acquaintances, where he had been induced to helieve the verdict of the
jury would he in hix favor, when the court did not decide on his motion
for a new trial until the last day of the term. when he had prayved an ap-
peal to the Supreme Court and it was granted. but he wax unable after all
his exertion to obtain sureties for the appeal in the county where the suit
wax tried. and he moreover set forth in his affidavit that he had merits on
hix side. the court granted a certiorari.

vLe for a certiorart to bring up the proceedings in a suit determined
at the last term of Craprrraxp, wherein Yarborough and Ray were
plaintiffs and Zachariah Trice, who obtained the rule, was a defendant,
Trice’s aflidavit stated that e was an inhabitant of Orange County and
resided about 70 miles distant from Favetteville, the conuty-seat of Cum-
berland, and had very little acquaintance in the latter county. That on
the appeal in the suit from the county court he gave good sureties, both
inhabitants of Cumberland County, whont he had indemnified ; that he
was always advised by his counsel that the plaintifls could not recover,
and entertained no doubt of a judgment in his favor, but he calculated,
however, if a judgment should be rendered againust him coutrary to his

16



N. C.] DECEMBER TERM, 1843,

JoxEs v. THOMAS,

own expectation and that of his counsel, he should be enabled, with the
assistance of those who had been sureties for his appeal from the county
court, to give the necessary surctics for an appeal to the Supreme Conrt;
that in this expectation lie was disappointed after he had prayed the
appeal to this Court, although he made every exerrion to procure such
sureties. Ilis affidavit further stated that he was advised the judgment
against him was not according to law, and he annexed a statement of
the case as made out by the presiding judge.

On the return of the rule several counter affidavits were filed, (12 )
made by citizens of Favetteville, who stated they were well ac-
quainted with Trice and had done business for him. Some stated they
_had been applied to to become his sureties to the appeal, and had refused,
others that they had not been called on, and would have refused if they
had been applied to.

Strange and Tredell for Trice.
Henry for defendants.

Per Curiant. Let the certiorari be granted on the party’s giving bond
and surety as required by law.

Cited: DBritt v. Patterson, 31 N. C., 201,

JOHN JONES v. ROBERT THOMAR,

A, held a mortgage on a tract of land which wax subject to the lien of an exe-
cution against the mortgagor. At the sale under the execution, the land
brought more than the amount of the execution. Held. that the mortga-
gee was entitled at law to recover the surplus.

Arprar from Dick, .J., at Fall Term, 15843, of HexprrRsox.

On the trial the case was submitted to the court upon the following
facts; and it was agreed that if the law thereon was for the plaintiff,
he should have judgment for $414.23 and costs; otherwize he should be
nonsuited.

Elijah W. Kinsey was indebted to Jones, the plaintiff, in the sum of
$611, payable in six annual installments, with interest from 23 June,
1843 ; and on that day he exccuted to the plaintift a mortgage of a tract
of land in fee to secure the debt. The land was situate in Henderson
County, and the deed was excented there during the term of the county
court, in which a judgment was expected to be rendered in an action
therein pending against Kinsey. Of the suit Kinsey informed Jones at
the time he made the deed, and the latter undertook to payv the judg-

17



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

JOoNES . THOMAS,

(13 ) ment, should it be obtained. The judgment was rendered at that
term, and a fiert facias issued thereon, under which the sheriff
offered the land for sale. A bid was made by a person for it, and the
plaintiff then offered to pav the money in discharge of the execution,
but the bidder insisting on his bid, the sheriff refused to receive the
money and proceeded to sell the land, when, after opposing bids by the
first bidder and the plaintiff, the former became the purchaser at the
price of %4635, which exceeded the amount of the execution debt. The
plaintiff, before and at the sale, gave notice to the sheriff and to the
other bidder of his mortgage, and exhibited it publicly and claimed the
land; and after the sale, he demanded the surplus of the money after
satisfving the execution; but the sheriff refused to pay it to him, and,
bx agreement between Kinsey, the sheriff, and the purchaser, the surplus
was retained by the latter in satisfaction of debts which Kinsey owed
to him and others. Thercupon this action was instituted against the
sheriff to recover the surplus as belonging to the plaintiff.
The court gave judgment for the plaintiff, and the defendant appealed.

" Hoke for plaintiff.
Dadger for defendant.

Revriy, €. J. The Court affirms the judgment. The case is gov-
erned by Teaylor v. Williams, 23 N, C., 249. It is even stronger than
that case, for the good faith of the plaintiff’s mortgage is not questioned.
It passed the title to the land perfectly to the plaintiff, subject, indeed,
to the encumbrance of a judgment, or, rather, the lien of an exccution
that might be issued on the judgment. The effect of that was that the
land, although the property of the plaintiff, might be taken if necessary
to pay that debt, but it could be taken for no further purpose. The
sherift might have sold an aliquot part of the land, so many acres, as
would paxv the debt; and in that case it is plain the part unsold would

Lave been vested in the plaintiff under his deed. It follows that
{ 14 ) the surplus of the procecds belongs to him, for the sheriff cannot,

by the mode of his proceeding, essentially vary the rights of the
party. It is not material that the plaintiff has only a mortgage. That
vests 1n him the legal title, with which only we have to deal in this
action.  Any equities between him and the mortgagor, or the assignee
of the latter, if there be such under the circumstances, must be settled
elsewhere,

Per Crrran. Affirmed.

Cited: Alevander v. Springs, 27 N, C., 479 Williwns ¢, Avent, 40
N.CL00.
18



N.C] DECEMBER TERM, 1843.

WHIT v. RAY.

MERRITT WHIT, ADMINISTRATOR, ETc., v. SOLOMON M. RAY.

Where a man dies intestate, and, there being no administration on his estate.
the next of kin take possession of it, no legal title vests in them. however
long they may possess it; but if an administrator he appointed. even ten
years afterwards, the legal title then vests in him and relates back to the
death of the intestate. The possession of the next of kin in the meantime,
though claiming it as their own, is no bar to his recovery of the property.

Appresr from Pearson, J., at the extra term in August, 1843, of
YancEry.

The following was the case reported by the presiding judge: This
was an action of trover for a bay mare. The plaintiff proved that,
about 1831 or 1832, one Pierce Roberts died intestate, leaving a wife
and several young children, who continued to live together and carry
on the farm and keep possession of all the personal estate of the intes-
tate, without any division, for several years, when the widow married
one Oliver, who after that lived with them and assisted in managing
the farm, and, together with Roberts’ children, used the horses, stoek,
ete., as a man would use his own property; that among other articles of
property owned by IRoberts at his death was a mare; that after his
marriage, Oliver put the mare to a horse; that she brought a colt
(the bay mare sued for), and the colt was raised on the plantation ( 15)
together with the inerease of the other stock left by Roberts—all
of which was used by Oliver and his wife and step-children as if it was
their own property; that in January, 1842, the defendaut seized and
converted to his own use, by selling, the bay mare—then about 4 vears
old and worth about $40 or $50; that in February, 1842, the plaintiff
was duly appointed the administrator of Pierce Roberts, there having
been before that time no administrator; that the plaintiff then notified
the defendant of his appointment as administrator and required him to
give up the mare or pay her value, which he declined doing. The de-
fendant proved that, as constable, he had a judgment and execution
against Oliver and had levied upon the mare as the property of Oliver.

The court charged that where a man died intestate, although no ad-
ministrator was appointed and the property went into the possession of
the mnext of kin, still the legal title did mnot vest in them, and they
acquired no such interest as wus liable to execution; and if, after the
expiration of ten or twelve years, an administrator was appointed, the
legal title was then in him and related back to the death of the intes-
tate, whom he represented, and he had a right to require the next of kin
to deliver to him such of the property us they had in possession. though
they had been in possession, claiming it as their own, during all the in-
termediate time; that they could not acquire title by the statute of
limitations because their possession was not adverse and there was no

19



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

WHIT v. Ray.

person to sue; that after the administrator had taken the property and
paid the debts, 1f any, he was then to deliver it to the next of kin in
the due course of his administration, when the legal title would vest in
them.

The court further charged that, in this case, the mare in question
being a colt of the mare belonging to Roberts, though foaled several
vears after his death, was subject to the same rule, for in legal contem-
plation the ownership of the mother at the time she had the colt was in
the administrator; that Oliver marrving the widow suecceeded to her

rights and took her place as one of the distributees, and was sub-
(16 } ject to the same rule that would have applied to the widow if

she had not married; that the defendant, as coustable, repre-
sented the rights of the creditor, and was entitled to the interest of
Oliver, provided it was subject to execution; but Oliver's interest was
not subjeet to execution, and the constable was placed in the same situ-
ation in regard to the legal title of the administrator as Oliver would
have been. or as the widow would have been had she remained single.

The defendant’s counsel moved the court to charge the jury that
Oliver's being in possession and using the property as his own, so as to
give him a false eredit, was a fraud upon his creditors and made the
property liable. The court refused so to charge, because there was
nothing to divert the legal title of the administrator or to prevent him
from asserting it.

There was a verdict for the plaintiff, and a new trial having been
refused, the defendant appealed.

No.counsel for either party.

Daxter, J. We have examined the opinion given in this case by his
Honor in the court below, and it seems to us that it is correct in law.
We therefore adopt it az the opinion of this Court. The judgment
must be

Per Crrriaw. Affirmed.

Cited: Grant o. Welllams, 28 N. C., 345; Craig v. Miller, 34 N.
3765 Plummer r. Brandon, 40 N. C., 195; Brittain v. Dickson, 104
N. C., 532 James r. Withers, 114 N, C., 479 Nedll v. Wilson, 146 N. C.,
245 Tart . Tart, 154 X, C., 505,
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STATE v. MONTREVILLE PATTON ETr ALS.

1. The Buncombe Turnpike Company arc bound by their charter to keep their
road in good repair, and are indictable if the road is suffered to become
ruinous.

[S-]

. The president and directors of the company are bound to exert all their
powers and apply all their means, as such officers, to the keeping of the
road in order, and for a default in the performance of this public duty are
liable to indictment.

o)

. Where a particular class of persons, other than the public overscers of
roads, are indicted for not keeping a road in order. the indictment should
contain an averment “that it was their duty. and of right they ought to
have kept the said road in repair,” otherwise judgment will be arrested.

Arpearn by the defendants from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 1843, ( 17)
of HEXDERSON.

The defendants were tried upon the following indictment, to wit:

“Norti. Carorina—Henderson County.
Superior Court of Law, Fall Term, 1843,

“The jurors for the State, upon their oath, present: That Mont. Pat-
ton, president, and James W. Patton and William W. Davie, directors
of the Buncombe Turnpike Road, lately of the county of Henderson, on
the first day of March, in the year of our Lord oue thousand eight hun-
dred and forty-two, and for®a long time both before and since that day,
to wit, for six months, being president and directors of that part of the
public Buncombe Turnpike Road, leading from the Tennessce line by
Asheville and llendersonville to the South Carolina line, which lies
between Big Mud Creck and the South Carolina line, in the county
aforesaid, negligently did permit the said public road of which they
were president and directors as aforesaid, in the county aforesaid, to
become ruinous, miry, broken, and in great decay for want of due
reparation thereof, and the same so to be and remain during all the
time aforesaid negligently did permit, and still do permit, to the great
damage and common. nuisance of all the citizens of the State and
others the same road passing, against the form of the statute in such
case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the
State.”

The defendants pleaded not guilty. On the trial the State proved the
road to be out of proper order, and it remained so for a considerable
time. The defendants’ counsel contended that the president and direct-
ors were not liable to indictment for suffering their road to be out of
repair; that they were only amenable to the Legislature for any omis-
sion of the duties imposed on them by their charter, and prayed the

court 80 to instruct the jury. The court declined to give the instruction
21



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

STATE v. PATTON.

prayed for, but charged the jury that the defendants were subject to
indictment; and if they believed tlie evidence, the defendants were guilty

as charged. The jury found the defendants guilty, and a new
( 18 ) trial having been moved for and refused, they appealed.

The Attorney-General for the State.
Alexander and John II. Bryan for defendant.

Daxien, J. The defendants ave charged in the indictment that they,
being the president and directors of that part of the public Buncombe
Turnpike Road, leading from the Tennessee line to the South Carolina
line, which lies between Big Mud Creek and the South Carolina line, in
the county of Henderson, did negligently permit the said public road of
which they were president and divectors, in the county aforesaid, to be-
come ruinous, ete., against the form of the statute, etc.

There is a statute (2 Rev. Stat., p. 418) incorporating a company
under the name and style of the “Buncombe Turnpike Company,” for
the purpose of making a turnpike road from the Saluda Gap to the
Tennessce line. Section 9 of the act declaves that the road shall be a
public highway. Secction 13 directs that all hands liable to work on
the roads residing within two miles on either side of the said turnpike
road shall be liable to do six days work in each and every year on the
said turnpike road, under the direction of “the president and directors
of the said company; and the hands as aforesaid, when warned to work

on the said road, shall be liable to the same fines and penalties
(19 ) for meglect as persons failing to work on public roads in this
State.

Ve think it was the duty of the Buncomhe Turnpike Company to
keep up the road, and that, therefore, the corporation is liable to an
indictment if the road be suffered to become ruinous. Any default in
those bound to repair public highways may be redressed by criminal
prosecution. 3 Chit. Crim. Law, 566; Hawkins P. C. B. 1, ch. 76, sec. 1.
We also think that the individuals who have been indicted were bound,
by virtue of their offices, faithfully to exert all their powers and apply
all their means, as such officers, to the keeping of the road in order, and
that for a default in this public duty they were liable to indictment.
But as they were not absolutely bound to keep up the road, they cannot
be charged merely because the road has become ruinous. Besides, if they
were so liable, the indictment ought to have shown how that liability
was thrown upon them. In England, we see that where a public statute
changes the common-law duty of the parish to a particular class of
persons to keep in repair a public highway, where that particular class
of persons are indicted for neglect of duty. the indictment contains an
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averment that it was “their duty and of right they ought to have kept
the said road in repair,” ete. 3 Chit. Crim. Law, 384, Note . There
is no such averment in the present indictment.

Per Curian. Judgment arrested.

Cited: S. v. R. R.,44 N. C., 236; S, r. Fishplaie, 83 N. C.. 636; 5. ¢.
MeDowell, 834 N. C.; 801.

THE STATE, to THE USE oF SAMUEL BAILEY, v. GABRIEL
WASHBURN ET ALs.

1. The county court is the proper judge of the return of the election of a con-
stable, and its adjudication thereon, while it remains in force, cannot be
questioned.

2. In such a case parol evidence cannot be received to show that in fact no
election took place.

Arpran from Dick, J., at IFall Term, 1843, of Ruruerroxrp. (20)

Debt on the bond of Gabriel Washburn as a constable for the
county of Rutherford for the vear 1839. The following is a copy of
the bond declared on:

Nozrrr Caroriva—Rutherford County—ss.

Know all men by these presents, that we, Gabriel Washburn (naming
the sureties), are held and firmly bound unto the State of North Caro-
lina in the sum of $4,000, for the which payment, well and truly to be
made and done, we bind ourselves, our heirs, cte.

Given under our hands and seals, this 15 January, 1839.

The condition of the above obligation is such that, whereas the above
bounden Gabriel Washburn is the day of the date appointed to act as
constable for the county aforesaid. Now if the said Gabriel Washburn
shall well and truly execute his office agreeably to law and will dili-
gently endeavor to collect all claims put into his hands for collection,
and faithfully pay over all sums thercon received, with or without suit,
unto the person entitled to receive them, then the above obligation to be
void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

(Signed and sealed by G. Washburn and his sureties.)

The defendant pleaded the gencral issue, conditions performed, and
conditions not broken. On the trial, the plaintiff, after proving the
signing and sealing of the bond by the defendants, offered in evidence a
copy of the record of the court of pleas and quarter sessions of Ruther-
ford County in the words following, to wit:
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“January Conrt, 1839, Tuesdav, 15 January. Court met according
to adjournment.

“Present: R K. Wilson, Green B, Palmer, and Greenbury Griffin,
Esquires.

“Gabriel Waslibnon, having been clected in Captain Eskridge’s com-
pany, came into court and gave bond to North Carolina in $4,000, with

Benjamin Washburn, Josiah McEuntive, Joseph Maguess, Goods-
{21) bury Dyens, Abram Collins, Jr,, and Thomas J. Lackey for his
securities. and then he was daly sworn.”

The defendants objected that it did not appear from the said record
that Washiburn had been eleeted by the voters in a captain’s distriet,
and did appear from the record that only three magistrates were present
in court when the said bond was executed, and therefore Washburn could
not have beeu regularly appointed.  The court, being of opinion‘that the
record was sufficient, overruled the objection.

The detendant then proposed to prove that no election for constable
1 fact rook place In Captain Eskridge’s company in the vear 1839, The
court rejected this evidence,

The jury. under the charge of the court. rendered a verdict for the
plaintiff. and a new trial being refused the defendant appealed.

Holkee for plaintlif.
D Caldwell, J. (0 Byrum, umZ J AT Bryan for defendants.

Gastox, J. By the act concerning constables (1 Rev, Stat., c¢h. 24),
it 1s directed that the inhabitauts of each captain’s company in the
county shall elect a suitable person to act as ('onsml)lﬂ for the succeed-
ing year, and on return of such election being wade nuder the certifieate
of the judges of the election, the county court shall proceed to qualify
the person so returned as constable, and take the bond prescribed by law
for the faithful execution of his duty. It was objected on the trial in
this case that the court had no authority to take the boud declared on

because it did not appear that the judges of the clection had
{ 22) made retwrn to the said court that Gabriel Washburn had been

elected by the inhabitants or qualified voters in a captain’s dis-
trict.  This objection was overruled by his Honor, and, as we think,
properlv.  The county court is the proper judge of the retuwin, and its
adjudication thereon, while it remains in force, cannot be questioned.
The record of the county court, which was given in evidence, sets forth
that “Gabricl Washburn, having been elected in Captain Eskridge’s com-
pany, came into court and gavea boud to North Carolina in $4,000, ete.,
and then he was duly sworn.” This is an adjudication that said Wash-
burn was clected, and of course that he was elected in due form by those
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who had the right to elect. There might have been a more plausible
exception taken to the sufficiency of the record as set forth, viz., that it
does not show to what office he was elected.  Whether this would or
would not be obviated by veference to the bond, in which the office 1s
distinetly set forth, or to the law, which authorizes no other elections in
captain’s districts but those of coustables, we need not inquire, because
the precise exception is that it did not appear by whom he was elected.
It is exceedingly probable that no more of the record was set forth in
the ease than was sufficient to present the exceeption taken by the defend-
ants, and that the context of the record would have shown with suflicient
distinetness the office to which he was elected.

The court having overruled this exeeption, the defendants then offered
to show by parol cvidence that an clection had not in fact been made of
a constable in Captain Eskridge’s company, which evidence the court
rejected. We think that the evidenee offered was properly rejected. The
authority of the court to take the bond does not depend upon the fact
that an clection had been made, but that it doth so appear to them upon
the return of judges of the clection. He who elaims to be constable be-
cause of such return, and those who become the bondsmen of” him who
so claims, will not be released from their obligation by showing that he
had availed himself of a false return to obtain induction into office.

There is no allegation of any other error on the part of the (25 )
appellants, and the Judgment mnst be »

Prr Crrran. Affirnied.

(‘ited: S. v, Eskridge, 27 N, O 412,

JOLIN MILLER v. IIKNRY [IEART.

1. In a proceceding under the processioning act where the processioner lias been
stopped in running the lines by a party claiming the land, it is not neces-
a1y to show that such party had previous notice that the lines were about
to be run.

190

. The report of a processioner that he has heen stopped by a party in runuing
a disputed line constitutes, between the parties claiming and disputing
that line, a cause of record. and eacl, without further notice, must be pre-
sumed to kpow what ix judicially done therein,

3. An objection to any of the commissioners appointed by the court is in the
nature of a challenge and <hould be hrought forward when the appoint-
ment ix about to he made.

4. The adjudication of the commissioners affects only the rights of the parties
contesting,

[ 84
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Arrearn from an interlocutory judgment at Fall Term, 1843, of Davip-
soxy Manly, J.

At February Term, 1543, of Davidson Conuty Court, Azariah Wil-
Jiams, processioner for the said county, made a report to the said court,
setting forth that, being called on to procession the land of John Miller
(the present plaintiff), he did, on 2 February, 1543, after 1t had been
certified to hiim that due notice had been given, commence “on the cast
bank of the Yadkin at a hickory stump, then run thence north 85 de-
grees, cast 40 chains 21 links, to a black oak, Bonner’s corner; then

north 215 degrees, west 65 chains 83 links to a post oak, and then
(24 ) was abont to proceed to run south 38 degrees, west 78 chains to a

white oak on the bank of the Yadkin and was forbidden to pro-
ceed any further by Henry Ileart (the present defeudant). Said Heart
contends that the land 1s his; that it runs from the post oak south 87445
degrees, west 15 chaing, thence soutli: consequently the lines remain in
dispute.”

Upon this return of the processioner, the county court ar that term
ordered a writ to issue, and the same issued accordingly, directed to the
sheriff, which, after reciting that the said processioner “had made a
report to the court that he was called on to procession the land of John
Miller on 2 February, 1843, and was stopped by Henry Heart when
about to run from a post oak south 85, west 78 chains to a white oak on
the bank of the Yadkin,” commanded the sheriff to summon five persons
therein named “as commissioners to attend with the processioner and
run and settle said dispured line.,” .\t the succeeding term the commis-
sioners made a report to the said court under their signatures and scals
i the words following, viz.:

“Norru Caroriya—Davidson County—ss.

“In obedience to an order of Davidson Conuty Court made at Feb-
ruary Term in 1843, appoumnﬂ the undersigned (here setting out the
names fully), freeholders of the said county, to proceced with the pro-
cessioner of said county, Azariah Williams, to establish the line of land
in dispute between John Miller of the one part and Henry Heart of the
other part, do report that we proceeded with Azariah Williams, proces-
stoner as aforesaid, who lLad, when processioning said land, been for-
bidden by IHenry Heart; and on § March, in the said year 1843, we
commenced at a post oak, where said Willlams was stopped by said
Henry Ileart when processioning said land, running thence south 88
degrees, west T8 chains and 42 links to the Yadkin River bank to a white
oak, and we did possession and establish the line in dispute between the

said parties as above set forth, and did establish the said line as
(25) the said Johu Miller did contend should be between him and
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Henry Tleart, all the parties being present at the said processioning and
establishing said line; and after hearing all the allegations and proofs
offered by both parties, we became fully satisfied the line and boundaries
of said land were as above set forth, and we established them accordingly,
this 8 March, 1843. Given under our hands and seals.”

To this report the defendant in the county court filed the following
exceptions:

1. No sufficient and legal notice was served upon the defendant pre-
viously to proceeding by processioner, when said processioner was
stopped and forbidden to proceed by said defendant.

2. The names of the persons making the report are not the same as
the names of the persons to whom the commission was directed.

3. Commissioners Clouse and Douthat are relations of the plaintiff,
and therefore mcapqmtated to act as jurors in the case.

4. No notice was given to the defendant that the plocessmner and
commissioners were about to procession the land, or that a commission
to that intent had issued. ’

5. The report is ambiguous and inconsistent, stating at one time that
the commissioners had established the line in dispute to be 78 chains
and 42 links in length, and again “that they did establish the said line
as the said Miller did contend,” whereas it appears by the report of the
processioner that the line claimed by the said Miller was 78 chains in
length.

6. That the commissioners having established neither the line claimed
by the plaintiff nor that claimed by the defendant, the court would not
know to which party to adjudge costs.

7. That the commissioners, instead of processioning the line as or-
dered by the court, have, as their report shows, merely possessioned it;
and without suggesting any possible meaning of the latter expression,
the defendant insists that it cannot by any construction be held to indi-
cate a complianee with their commission.

8. That the entire proceedings ou the part of the plaintiff have been
illegal, null and void, and that the report of the commissioners is
illegal and insuflicient both in form and substance. (26)

9. That legal owners of the land in dispute, to wit, the heirs of
Robert Williams, had no notice of any part of the proceedings.

10. That the processioner in his report did not set forth the lines in
dispute nor the circumstanees under which the dispute arose.

These exceptions were all overruled by the county court and the report
confirmed. The defendant thereupon appealed to the Superior Court,
where, upon argument, the report was ordered to be sct aside, and from
this order the plaintiff, by permission of the Superior (‘ourt, appealed
to this Court.
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Mendenhall for plaintiff.
Doyden for defendant.

Grasrox, J. This case has been submitted here upon the exceptions
taken in the county court, and we have accordingly examined them.
Several of these create no difficuliy, and may readily be disposed of.
Among these are the first and fourth, which exeept to the said report—
the first because 1t does not appear that previous legal notice was given
to Ieart to attend at the time wheun the processioning was first attempted
and the processioner forbidden by him to proceed, and the fourth that it
does not appear that legal notice was given to him to attend the com-
missioners when about to procession under the order of court, or that
Le had knowledge of the issuing of the commission. It is a plain prin-
ciple of law founded on reason, that when a person entitled to notice of
any judiclal proceeding actually attends thereat aud takes no exception
for want of notice, he walves all objection for the want or insufficiency
thereof. A \uluntar" appearance saves the necessity of service of proc-
ess. Anow., 2 N (., 403, As to the knowledge of the issuing of the
commission, the l(*p()l‘( of the processioner that he had been btopped by

the defendant in runuing the disputed line constituted between the
( 27) parties claiming and disputing that line a cause of record, and
sach must be preswumed to know what is judicially done therein,
Wilson e Shuford, T N. C., 504; Carpenter . Whitworth, 25 N. C., 204,

The second exception, for that the report is not made by the persons
named in the commission, 1s altogether unfounded in fact. The persons
named in the commission and those named in the report are idenfical,
and the only pretext for the exception is that one of them, “Henry Eak-
lex,” did not, in attaching his signatire to the report, write his Christian
name ut full length.

The third aud ninth exeeptions are untenable, for thov are not shown
to bu founded in fact. The third is, for that two of the commissioners
‘were of kin to the plaintiff; aud the ninth, for that the legal ownership
of the lands in dizspute was in the heirs of Robert Williams, and they
had no notice of the proceedings. Now of either of these allegations
no evidence was offered, nor was either of the exceptions supported by
affidavit. But besides the matter of the third exception, which is in the
nature of a challenge, ought to have been brought forward when the
appointment of commissioncrs was made; and as to the objection made
in the ninth exception, it is enough that before the processioner the de-
fendant claimed the land to be his, and the adjudication of the commis-
sioners affects only the rights of the parties contesting.

The seveuth exception is for that the commissioners, instead of report-
g that thex had processioned the line in dispute, reported that they had
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possessioned the same. We have no hesitation in overruling this excep-
tion. The context put the meaning beyond all doubt. That shows that,
in obedience to the order of the court, they proceeded with the proces-
sloner to run the line from the post oak “south 88 degrees, west 78 chains
and 42 links to the Yadkin River bank to a white oak, and did establish
the line in dispute between the said parties as above.” This is proces-
sioning, and the term to which objection has been taken may be rejected
as superfluous,

The remaining cxceptions, which need not be separately considered,
present the material inquiry, whether the proceedings set forth
with sufficient certainty the matter in dispute between the con- ( 28)
tending parties and the finding of the commissioners thereon, so
as to warrant the court in ordering the same to be recorded and adjudg-
ing costs against the party failing in the contest. .\nd, first, with respect
to the subject in dispute, are the respeetive claims and allegations of the
parties so stated that it may plainly appear upon what matter they are
at issue? We are of opinion that although this is not done in the most
approved form, it nevertheless appears with reasonable certainty. The
processioner reports that e commeneed to run the land claimed by the
plaintiff at a hickory stump ou the east bank of the river, and ran out
the first line therefrom north 85 degrees, east (within 5 degrees of a due
east course) 40 chains 21 links to a black oak, Bonner's corner; that he
then run thenee a second line north 214 degrees, west (that is, very
nearly north) 65 chains, 85 links to a post oak; and thus far it appears
that there was no dispute. ITe further states that he was then proeeed-
ing to run the third line; that is to say, from the post oak south 88 de-
grees, west ST chains to a white oak on the bank of the river; and he
must be understood as being about to run this as the line claimed by
Miller, and that he was forbidden so to do by the defendant Ileart, who
“contended” that the land was his; that i runs from the post oak south
8714 degrees, west 15 chains, thenee south.  Now, upon this, we think
it manifestly appears that Miller claimed that the third line of his tract
ran from the post oak sonth 88 degrees, west 78 chains to a white oak
on the bank of the river, north of the hickory stump, his beginning
corner on the river, and that Heart insisted that it ran south 8714 de-
grees, west 15 chains only, and thence, without regard to the river,
turned off to the south, and that the land between the line as claimed
by Miller and the line as he asserted it ought to run was his (Heart’s)
land. These were then the respective allegations of the parties as to a
dividing line between them, and the matter in issue was, Which of
these two alleged lines was the true one? The processioner was (29 )
forbidden to run the line as claimed by the plaintiff because, by so
doing, the defendant alleged that the processioner would go upon /is
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land, for that it (meaning the line) ought to run a different course and
distance, viz., the course and distance insisted on by the defendant. As
technical forms are not required, the report of the processioner we hold
to be sufficiently certain. There is less difficulty with respect to the
report of the commissioners. The only objection to it, except the hyper-
critical one before noticed founded on the substitution of the word “pos-
session” for “procession,” 1s that they make the distance on the line from
the post oak to the white oak, claimed by the plaintiff, 42 links of a
chain greater than the distance which the plaintiff claimed to run in
order to reach that white oak. This affects not in the slightest degree
the controversy between the parties. The commissioners have estab-
lished the line as claimed by the plaintiff, for they establish the same
termini and the same course to be the fermini and course thereof, and
whether the distance by actual measurement does or does not exceed that
claimed or called for (42 links) is wholly immaterial.

Tpon the whole matter, this Court is of opinion that there was. error
in setting aside the report of the commissioners. The defendant must
pay the costs of the appeal.

Per Crrian. Reversed.

Cited: Porter v. Durliam, 90 N. C., 33; Forney r. Williamson, 98
N. C., 332,

(30) .
ANN DEVINEY v. JOHN K. WELLS, BarL or A. ('rRow,

A plaintiff having recovered a judgment against the principal issued a seci. fa.
against his bail. On the return of the sci. fa. the bail pleaded that no ca.
sa. had issued against the principal, and the issue was found in his favor.
The plaintiff then. after the expiration of some years from the rendition
of the judgment against the principal. issued another sci. fe. against the
Dhill. to which the latter pleaded the statute limiting the time within which
a sci. fa. shall be issued against bail. Held, that the time during which
the former proceedings against the bill were pending should not be de-
ducted from the computation of the time within which the sci. fe. was to
he sued out,

Arrear from Dick. J., at the Special Term in July, 1843, of RurTHER-
FORD.

Scire facios against the defendant as bail of Abraham Crow. It ap-
peared that the plaintiff, at the Fall Term, 1834, rccovered a judgment
against Abraham Crow for the amount set forth in the sei. fa., and that
the defendant had become the bail of the said Crow; that what purported
to be a ca. sa. had issued on the judgment against Crow, which was
returned “not found™; that on 10 January, 1837, a sci. fa. issued to sub-
ject the defendant as bail; that on the return of the same several pleas
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were pleaded, and, among others, that there was no ca. sa., that the case
came on for trial at Fall Term, 1838, when the seci. fa. was dismissed
because of a defect in the ca. sa.. the jury having found the other issnes
for the plaintiff. .\ second cu. sa. was then issued and returned “not
found,” whercupon the present sei. fa. issued on 6 August, 1840, return-
able at the Fall Term, at which term the defendant pleaded nul tiel
record, no ca. sa., statute of limitations, and former judgment. The
court adjudged that there was such a record, and the jury, under the
charge of the court, found the other issue in favor of the plaintiff. It
was insisted on the trial by the defendant’s counsel that the dis-

mission of the first sci. fu. was a final judgment and bar, and also ( 31)
that the proceedings under it did not prevent the statute of limita-

tions. The court, being of opinion that neither objection would avail the
defendant, gave judgment for the plainfiff, and the defendant appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Iloke for defendant.

Daxrer, J. Rev. Stat., ch. 63, sec. 16, declares that “no scire facias
shall be issued out or prosecuted against the bail of anyv defendant to
any writ or action, ete., but within four vears after the rendition of a
final judgment or the entering of a final decree in the action or suit, to
which bail is or shall be given.” Then follow in the aet two provisos.
The plaintiff’s case is not embraced in either of them. More than four
vears had run from the date of the judgment against C'row, the prinei-
pal, to the issuing of this seire fucius against the bail. The time which
elapsed pending the first scire facias, we think, ought not to have been
stricken out of the computation, because the first seire facius was not
determined against the plaintiff “cither by nonsuit, arrest of judgment,
or reversal for ervor,” the only cases mentioned in seetion 17 of the aet
to prevent time from running in favor of the bail. There must be a

Prr Cruia. New trial.

(32)
Dex ox DEMISE or JONATHAN PACE v. JAMES STATON,

1. A possession of twenty-one vears under colorable title and under known and
visible boundaries will confer a good title and bar the entry of any person
claiming under the State. without any reference to the period at which the
person so cntering on the previous possessor acquired his right or claim
under the State.

12

. The word “entry” in Rev. Stat., ch. 65, sec. 2, means an actual entry into the
Tand. as the exercise of a right under a valid legal title derived from the
State. and not an entry in a public office. as of vacant and unappropriated
land to which the party intends to perfect a perfect title.

3--26 31
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AppEsL from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 18343, of HENDERSOX.

This action of ejectment was instituted on 3 February, 1842, and the
plaintiff claimed title as foltows: In November, 1815, Moses Martin,
by deed, conveved the premises, as described in the declaration, to the
or of the plaintiff, and he immediately entered and hath retained
possession ever since, except as 1t appeared that at the time of bringing
this suit the defendant has taken possession of a field, part of the land
so conveyed to and possessed by the lessor of the plaintiff.

To show the title in himselt, the defendant produced a grant from
the State to him, dated in \pril, 1836, for that part of the land into
which lie had thus entered.  And on the part of the defendant it was
insisted that the plaintiff conld not recover because his lessor had not
posscssion of the premises for twentyv-one yvears before the issuing of
the grant to the defendant,  Of that opinion was the court, and so in-
structed the Turv, whe gave a verdict for the detfendant, aud from the
judgment rendeved thercon the plamtitt appealed.

No counsel for either party,

(33) Reveiy, CoJ. It must be assumed, upon the case as srated,

that the defendant did not take possession of the field elaimed by
him before 1842, because he proved no possession betore thar time and
because the decision of the conrt is based on the faer that the grant is-
sued to the defendant before the possession of the plamntiff had con-
tinned for rwenty-one vears, and not upon the ground that the defend-
ant had entered under his grant before the expirvation of the twenty-one
vears. In that we think the opinion delivered by his Honor 1s-erroneous.
It the trath be, as it is necessarily to be inferrved Lere, that the lessor
of the plaintiff had possession for twenty-one vears under colorable title
of the premises, under known and visible boundaries, before the defend-
ant entered, then the title of the lessor of the plaintiff is ratified, con-
firmed, and declared a good and legal bar to the entry of the defendant
wider the vight or claim of rhe State by the express words of the wet
of 1701 (Rev. Stat., ¢b. 65, sce. 2), and that without any reference what-
ever to the pertod at which the defendant thus entering on the previous
possessor acquired his right or c¢laim under the State; in other words,
obtained his grant. We have been at a loss 1o conjecture a ground tor
the construetion of the acr which was adopted in the Superior Court.
The only color for it that has been suggested 1s that the “entry” men-
tioned 1n the act, and thereby barred, 1s to be understoad as “an entry
of the land as vacant,” and, therefore, that making such an entry and
obtaining a grant thereon before the expiration of twentv-one vears vest
in the grantee a good title, provided he sue for or take possession of the

avy
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land within seven vears after the grant. But that is manifestly, we
think, a mistake of the sense of the Legislature. The term “entry” in
the act of 1791 means precisely what it does in that of 1715, both being
acts for quieting ancient titles to launds, and thus /n pari materia. In
the act of 1715 the language is that no person who shall have title to
lands “shall thereunder enter or make elaim” bur within seven vears
but that all possessions held without suing such claim as atoresaid

shall be a perpetual bar against all persons, which unquestion- ( 34 )
ably means an entry into the land or a taking possession thereof.

From the nature of the subjeet, the same word, even if standing alone,
must be received in the like sense in the latter starute. DBut the con-
text puts it bevond doubt. The subsequent words, “under the right or
claim of the State” anuexed to and qualifving the term “entry” prove
the act to mean an entry into the lands as the exercise of a right under
a valid legal title derived from the State, and not an cutry in a public
office as of vacant and unappropriated land to which the party intends
to perfeet a title.

Per Crrraa. Venire de noro.

bl

JAMESN HARPER v. ELISHA P. MILLER.

1. On an appeal from the verdict of a jury in the county court assessing dam-
ages for the erection of a mill, the Superior Court has a right to permit
the sheriff to amend his return of the verdicet of the jury so as to set forth
that they were sworn on the premises,

2. In the case of a petition for damages caused by the erection of a mill, under
the act of Assembly (Rev. Stat., ¢h. 74), when there have heen a verdict
and judgment in the county court. the Superior Clourt has no right to dis-
miss the appeal of either party therefrom bhecause of irregularity in the
proceedings previous to the verdicet ov in the verdict itself. The trial must
be had in the Superior Court as prescribed by that act.

.

Avrvean from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Carpwrrr,

The plamtiff filed his petition in the county court of Caldwell County
in conformity to the provisions of the act of Assembly “concerning mills
and millers” {Rev. Stut., ¢h. 74), in which he rvepresented that he
was the owner of a tract of land and a mill; that the defendant ( 35)
was the owner of an adjoming tract and of a mill thercon lower
down the stream, and that the defendant raised the water of the stream,
by reason of his mill dam, so as to overflow the petitioner’s land and
submerge the water-wheel of the petitioner’s mill, and the petitioney
prayed that the court would direct the sheriff to summon a jurs to go
upon the premises and assess s damages.  The defendant put in an
answer to the petition, and the court ordered “that the sheriff should
summon a jury, and that they report to the next term, according to the

a0
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act of Assembly.” To the next term a report was made purporting to
be the verdict of the jury so summoned, wherein they assessed the dam-
ages sustained by the petitioner at $13 per vear. The transeript, after
setting forth these matters, then proceeds to state, “with which verdict
James Harper {the plaintiff), being dissatisfied, prayed an appeal to
the Superior Court, which was granted, he having entered into bond
and security as required by law.” Upou the cause being carried up to
the Superior Court, a motion was made on the part of the plaintiff to
amend the return of the sheriff, setting forth the verdiet of the jury so
as to show that they were sworn on the premises, and the court ordered
the amendment to be made, whereupon the defendant praved, and the
court gave him leave, to appeal from this interlocutory order. A motion
was then made by the defendant to dismiss the appeal because the verdict
of the jury was so defective as not to anthorize a judgment in the county
court from which the plaintiff eould appeal, and thereupon it was or-
dered by the court that the appeal be dismissed. From this judgment
the plaintiff appealed to this Court.

EF. Caldwell, Bynum, and J. H. Bryan for piamz‘zﬁ
Alevander for defenduant.

Gastox, J. There is no error in the order from which the defendant

appealed.  The court has nuquestionably the power to make the amend-

went nnder the extensive grant contained in the first section of

(363 the act “Concerning the amendment of process, pleadings, and

other proceedings at law.”  (Rev. Stat,, ch. 3.) We presume that

thev exercised this power discreetly, and have no right to supervise the
exercise of a diseretionary power.

With respect to the dismission of the appeal to the Superior Court,
we are of opinion that it is not warranted by any sufficient reason. The
counsel for the defendant expressly waives the objection that no formal
judgment was entered upon in the county court if the verdiet can be
decmed such as to warrant a judgment thereon. In waiving this objec-
tion, he not only conforms to the well-known indulgence which gentle-
men of the profession uniformly show to the imperfect records of our
county courts, but foregoes no right of his client, however technical, for
it has been long settled in this State “that upon a verdict which, con-
nected with the pleadings, authorizes a judgment; and where no judg-
ment 13 formally entered, the courts intend such a judgment as ought to
have been rendered.” Barnard v. Etheridge, 15 N. C., 296.

It remains to be seen whether the verdict was so defective as not to
authorize a judgment. The law dirvects that the jury shall assess the
amount which the plaintiff ought annually to receive from the owner of
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the mill on account of the damages by the petitioner sustained. Surely
this is distincily done when, after setting forth that they were appointed
to assess the damages between James Havper, plaintiff, and Elisha P.
Miller, defendant, they report that in performance of that duty they
assess the damages sustained by James Harper at $15 per vear. To
every fair intendment, this is a verdict that the plaintiff Harper receive
from the defendant Miller annually the sum of $15 on account of the
damages sustained by the plaintiff.

It is to be remarked, too, that no exception was taken by cither party
in the county court to the form of the verdict, and it does not appear
that the defendant was dissatisfied with its substance. The plain-
tiff, who complains of the verdict, treats it as a valid one fol- ( 37)
lowed by a judgwent conforming thereto. We think that it can-
not be allowed to the defendant to say there was no verdiet, no judg-
ment, and therefore the appeal of the plaintiff was a nullity. The act
concerning appeals (Rev. Stat., ch. 4, sec. 2) declares that no appeal
from the county court shall be dismissed for want of form if there
appear sufficient matter of substance in the transeript to enable the
Superior Court to proceed thereon.

In the argument here, the defendant raised objections to the regu-
larity of the proceedings previous to the verdict. It is unnecessary to
examine into the validity of these objections, and, if valid, whether they
be not waived by not being brought forward in apt season. It is cer-
tainly a general rule that objections to proccedings because of irregu-
larity should be made upon the first opportunity presented; and where
there has been an irregularity, if the party overlook it and take subse-
quent steps in the causc, he cannot afterwards turn back to the irregu-
larity and object to it. But at all events, whether the previous proceed-
ings have been regular or irregular, there have been a verdiet in this
cause, and a judgment pursuant thereto, and therefore the plaintiff had
a right to appeal therefrom. Appeals are expressly given “where either
(party) is dissatisfied with the judgment of the court upon the verdict
of the jury rendered upon the petition of any person alleging that he is
injured by the erection of a public mill.”” Rev. Stat., ch. 4, sec. 2. And
by seetion 17 of the act “concerning mills and millers” (Rev. Stat., ch.
74) speecial provisions arc made as to the mode of trial upon such ap-
peals and as to the consequences if, when the plaintiff appeals, he fail
to recover higher damages than were awarded to him by the jury on
the premises.

The Superior Court will reverse the order dismissing the appeal from
the county court and procced with the trial of the cause so brought be-
fore it by appeal, according to the usages of law.

Prr Curray. ) Reversed.
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(38)
DeEx oN DEMISE oF WILLIAM MORRISEY ET ALs, v. JOHN LOVE,

1. Where a constable returned on an execution against A, B.: “levied on land
suppo=ed to he upwards of 100 acres, where R. H. lives on; no other property
to be found,” and it appeared in evidence that A. B. had two tracts of land
in the county, each ahout 100 acres, on one of which he lived himself and
o the other J. H. lived. and that the latter was known as the land of A. B.
on which J. H. lived: Held, that the want of certainty in the description
of the land levied on was not aided hy the parol evidence, and that the
party claiming by purchase at a sale made under that levy acquired no
title.

2. Where the identity of land levied on hy a constable with that claimed under
a purchase under that levy is sought to he extablished by parol evidence,
the inquiry is one of fuct for the jury. not of law for the court.

Arpear from Pearson, J.. at Fall Term, 1843, of DurriN.

Eicetment. The possession of the defendant was admitted.  The
plaintift relied entirelv on the title of the heirs of James Joiner, the
lessors in the third counr of the declaration.  To support this title the
plaintiff introduced a grant fromn the State for the land in dispute. being
a tract of abont 110 acres, to James Joiner in the vear 1803, and proved
that the sadd James Joiner had died intestate, aud that the lessors of
the plaintiff weve his heirs ar law.

For the purpese of showing ritle out of the lessors of the plaintiff,
the defendant offered in evidence o magistrate’s warrant. judgment, and
exceeution, in tavor of Jonathan Gore against the said James Joiner, in
1506, MHe also offered 1u evidence a return made by the constable on
the said execution 1n the following words, viz.: *Levied on land sup-
posed to be upwards of 100 weves, where Richard Heath Tives on. No

other property to be found.”  This veturn was transmitted by
(39 the justice to whom it was made to the county court, who ordered

a ceadibioni exponas to 1ssue thereon.  The readitioni ecponas,
reciting the levy as made by the constable, was 1ssued direct to the sher-
iff ; the sherift sold by virtue thereof and convered the land to one Arm-
strong.  To sustain the levy made by the constable, the defendant proved
that at the time of the levy James Joiner owned but two tracts of land
in Duplin Countr—one tract of 110 acres Iving on ... Creek, upon
which said Joiner lived, and another tract of 110 acres adjoining the
other, upon which James Tleath lived (which 1s alleged to be the tract
In dispure); that this last tract was not simated on any water-course,
but Tax 1na level pocoson, pine barren, and was then known as a tract
belongineg v James Jomer, npon which James Heath lived, the said
James being the lessee of Jotner. The plaintiff insisted that the deserip-
tion 1 the levy was not sufliciently specifie, and made other objections

Qo
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to the record produced by the defendant which 1t is not necessary to
state particularly as thev are not adverted to by the Supreme Court in
delivering their opinion. The presiding judge was of opinion that the
levy of the constable, as explained by the evidence, was sufficiently ex-
plicit, and the juryv, under his direction, found a verdiet for the defend-
ant. A motion for a new trial having been refused, the plaintiff ap-
pealed to the Supreme Conrt.

RReid for plaindiff.
No counsel for defendant.

Gastox, J.* There would probably be no serious difficulty in ( 40 )
the wayv of affirming the judgment of the Superior Court but for
the objection taken to the certainty of the levy. The constable’s return
is “levied on lands supposed to be upwards of 100 acres, where Richard
Heath lives. No other property to be fonnd.” To sustain this levy, the
defendant proved that James Jolner, the defendant in the execution,
owned but two tracts of land in the county, each of 110 acres and
adjoining to cach other; that on one of these he resided himself,
and that on the other (which was alleged to he the tract levied on and
which is the traet now in dispute) James Heath lived as Joiner’s lessee;
that the former tract was situated on a creek, and the latter was not
situate on any water-course, but lay in a flat pocoson, pine barren, and
was known as a tract belonging to James Jolner whereon James Heath
lived. An objeetion being taken by the plaintiff to the sufliciency of the
levy, his Honor held that the deseription of the land therein, as explained
by this evidence, was sufficiently specific.

The plaintiff excepts to this opinion for two reasons: IFirst, for that
the extrinsic evidenee set forth has no tendency to explain or supply the
defective deseription in the rveturn; and, sccondly, for that, if it had,
whether such explanatory or supplementary evidence identified the sub-
ject-matter of the levy was a question of fact for the jury, and not one
of law for the court. In our opinion, both of these objections are well
founded.

Rev. Stat., ch. 62, see. 16, preseribes that where the constable makes
a levy on land, le shall make return thereof to the justice, “setting forth
what land he has levied on, where situate, on what water-course, and
whose land it is adjoining.” The courts have decided that 1t is
not indispensable that these dircctions of the statute should he (41)
literally observed, but at the same time they have held that where

=Phis was the last opinion delivered by Judge Guston in the Supreme Court.
e read it in court on Saturday, 20 January, and died on the following Tues-
day.
37
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the return does not set forth all the marks of deseription prescribed by
the statute, it 1s necessary for the claimant under the levy to show clearly
by extrinsic evidence that it does adequately deseribe the land, and that
it describes it as satisfactorily as if it had in terms conformed to the
statute. Borden v. Smith, 20 N. C., 27; Huggins v. Ketchum, 1b., 530;
Smith r. Low. 24 N. (., 457, And by the same decisions it 1s settled
that where it is attempted to help a return by such extrinsic evidence,
the inquiry whether the land levied on be thereby identified is an inguiry
of fact for the determination of the jury.

We are unable in this case to Iay our hands on any evidence which
could warrant a jury in declaring the land identified by the deseription
in the return. As the execution authorized the constable to levy on the
land of James Joiner, and not on that of any other person, we may
assume that the return should be understood as though it had in terms
described the land levied on as that of Joiner. So understood, the de-
seription is “land of James Joiner, supposed to be upwards of 100 acres,
whereon Richard Heath lives.” .\ part of this deseription, as appli-
cable to any tract of Joiner’s, 1s contradicted by the evidence. TFrom
that it appears that James Joiner had no land on which Richard Heath
lived. The parol evidence, far from aiding or explaining this part of
the description, proves it to be false. It is not shown that the land in
question ever bore this description, on the contrary, the evidence is that
the land was known as the land of Joiner, whereon James Heath lived.
Whether this false description, although it is apparently an essential
mark of the land, may not be rejected we need not stop to inquire, for
if this be admitted, then the deseription is “land of James Joiner, sup-
posed to be upwards of 100 acres.” Where 13 the parol evidence to sup-

ply this defective deseription? James Joiner had two tracts, each
(42 ) containing upwards of 100 acres. There is nothing to show which
of these, if to either, the levy applied.

Prr Curiawm. New trial.

Cited: Jones v. Austin, 32 N, C., 21, 22; Farmer v. Batts, 83 N. C.,
389.

HANNAH LOCKE v. ROBERT GIBBS.

One may recover damages in an action on the case for a malicious prosecution
of his slave.

Arpear from DBaitle, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Bruxswick.
(lase to recover damages sustained by.the malicious prosecution of her
negro slaves, in consequence of which the plaintiff had been deprived of
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their services and put to costs in paving their juil fees. The defendant
objected that the action eould not be sustained, but the court held differ-
entlv. The jury, under the charge of the court, found a verdict for the
plaintiff, and from the judgment rendered thereon the defendant ap-
pealed.

Strange for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendant.

Daxrter, J. We must take the case to mean that the defendant prose-
cuted the plaintiff’s slaves without having any probable cause or reason
to do so, for if he had probable cause he would not be liable to this
action, although he acted ever so maliciously. The defendant does not
contend that lie had probable cause. The injury, therefore, which
the plaintiff sustained was the consequence of the defendant’s doing a
wrongful act, and an action on the case was her rightful remedy.

This action lics against a person for maliciously and without ( 43)
probable cause suing out a commission of bankruptey, in conse-

gence whereof the plaintiff was damaged in his trade and business. So
1t lies at the suit of the husband for the expenses incurred in conse-
quence of the malicious prosecution of his wife—the wife in law being
the servant of the husband—and he was injured in defending her against
the defendant’s improper prosecution. Smith v. Hivon, 2 Stra., 977;
Bul. X. P, 13. The case now before us is in prineiple the same as the
one last cited. The judgment must be

Per Curraar Affirmed.

JAMES J. McCASTEN ET AL. v. MARTIN QUINN'S ADMINISTRATOR.

The Superior Court has jurisdiction of an action founded on two notes, neither
of which amounts to $100, but which together, including principal and in-
terest, amount to that sum or more,

ArrEaL from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of CLEVELAND.

Assumpsit on two promissory notes, the first for the sum of $61.43,
due 21 November, 1841, with a payment endorsed of $40 on 12 July,
1842; the second for $73.87, due 16 June, 1842. The defendant’s coun-
sel moved to nonsuit the plaintiff because neither of the notes amounted
to the sum of %100, and contended that the plaintiff could not bring a
suit on two notes, each of which was under $100. The court overruled
this motion and submitted the case to the jury with instruections
to find how much was due for principal money and how much for ( 44 )
interest at the date of the writ, to wit, on 1 April, 1843, and that
thev should caleulate interest ar the rate of 7 per cent as the notes were
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executed and pavable in South Clarolina. The jury, under the direction
of the court, fonud that ou 1 April, 1843, there was due on both notes,
after deducting the pavment endorsed, the sum of $98.15 principal
money aud $5.06 for interest.  Upon the finding of the jury, the court
ordered the plaintiffs to be nonsuited, from which judgment they ap-
pealed to the Supreme Court.

T By and J. 1. Bryan for plaintifis.
Ioke for defendant.

Daxien, J. The plaintiffs” declaration s in assumpsit on two promis-
sory notes.  Plea: Non assumpsit.  The plaintiffs offered in evidence
two notes signed by the defendant’s intestate.  The jury assessed the
plaintiffs’ damages to $107.74 of which $98.15 was principal money;
and thex further found that on the day the writ was issued, the princi-
pal money due on both of these notes was $98.15 and $5.06 interest.
Wherenpou, on motion. the court ordered the plaintiffs to be nonsuited,
and thex appealed.

The Superior Court has jurisdiction of all sims of $100 and upwards
due by bond, promissory vote, or liquidated account signed by the party
1o be charged thereby. Rev. Stat., ch. 31, sec. 40.  And if any suit shall
be commenced 1n any of the said courts (county or Superior) for any
sum of Jess culie than $100 due by bond, promissory note, or liquidated
account signed by the party to be charged therewith, the same shall be
dismissed by the conrt. 1h/d.. see. 41, And in a suit commenced in the
Superior Court, if by the verdict of a jury 1t shall be ascertained that a
less sum s due to the plaintiff in prineipal and uterest than by the pro-
visions of scetion 40 the said Superior Court has jurisdiction of, the

conrt shall nonsuit the plaintiff.  7hid., sce. 42,
(43 ) It appearcd by the finding of the jury in this case that the

sumn due to the plaintiffs on the two notes for principal and inter-
est at the date of the writ was $103.21. Tt seems to us that the Superior
Cowrt had jurisdietion, and that the judgnment of nonsuit was erroueous.
If the dumages stated in the count would cover them, any number of
notes 1n the same right might have been consolidated and given in evi-
denee, provided the principal and interest due on them amounted to $100
or upwards. It has been suggested to us that probably the word “bal-
ance,” 1u the third hne of section 40, might have a bearing on the case;
bur that word when read with its context and with the three last lines in
the section will be perceived to have no governing control on suits in the
Superior Courts on money notes of the description of those sued on in
this action.  We do not doubt that a magistrate had concurrent juris-
diction of the case.
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The nonsuit must be set aside and judgment rendered for the plain-
tiffs on the verdict.

Per Crrian. Reversed and judgment for plaintiffs.
| ,

Cited: Bireh v, Howell. 30 N, C., 470; Caldwell . Beatty, 69 N. C.,
371.

Dex ox DeymiseE or CHRISTOPHER WALLACE ET AL, v. JAMES L.
CORBITT.

Where an appeal is filed in the Superior Court, and the appellee removes the
cause to an adjoining county and suffers it to remain there for three years
bhefore he moves to dismiss the appeal for want of an appeal hond: Held,
that the motion comes too late. and that the appellee muxt he intended to
have waived his right to a bond.

Arrvear from Battle, J.. at Fall Term, 1843, of Branx. (46)

Ejectment commenced in the county court of New Hanover.
At September Termi, 1839, of that court, the plaintiff was nonsuited,
and au appeal was taken to the Superior Court, upon which the lessors
of the plaintiff exceuted and filed what was intended to be an appeal
boud, but what was in fact a nullity. At Spring Term, 1840, of New
Hanover Superior Court the cause was placed on the docket for trial,
when the defendant filed an affidavit and obtained an order for its
removal to the Superior Clourt of Bladen for trial. It was placed on
the trial docket of this last court at the Fall Term, 1840, and was con-
tinued by consent of parties at that and the two suceeeding terms. At
the Spring and Fall Terms, 1542, it was continued by the lessors of the
plaintiff ou affidavit for the absence of witnesses. At Spring Term,
1843, the defendant moved the court to dismiss the appeal for the want
of an appeal bond, which motion was continued to give the lessors of
the plaintiff an opportunity to proenre the bond, which they alleged that
they had exceuted and filed, but which had not been sent with the other
papers in the cause on its removal to Bladen. At Fall Term, 1843, the
plaintiff’s lessors produced the bond, which the defendant contended was
a nullity, and he insisted ou his motion to dismiss.  The court held that
the paper produced was entirely ineffectual as an appeal bond, and that
if the motion had been made at a proper time, 1t ought to have been
granted, but that after the cause had been removed at the instauce and
upon the aflidavit of the defendant. and had been continued for several
terms, the motion came too late and could not be allowed. It was accord-
ingly overruled, and the defendant, by permission of the court, appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Strange for defendant.
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Daxrier, J. That the lessors of the plaintiff intended to prosecute
their appeal there can be no doubt, as they executed and left in the
clerks’ office an instrument which they considered an appeal bond.
(47 ) The bond 1s given by law for the benefit of the appellee. It is
not essential that there should be an appeal bond in the transeript
to give the appellate court jurizdiction, for the bond may be waived by
the appellee, cither expressly or impliedly; and whenever the appellate
court sees that the appeal bond i1s waived, it will always proceed with
the trial of the cause. The bond in this case could only be to secure to
the defendant his costs 1f he should succeed in the Superior Court. If
the defendant had moved the court to dismiss the appeal at the first
term, the lessors of the plaintiff might have suggested a diminution of
the record and obtained a certiorari, when, on its return, the court would
have scen that the instrument intended for an appeal bond was defective
as such by the misprision of the clerk and would have put the lessors of
the plaintiff under terms to have put in a proper prosecution bond to
secure the defendant in his costs before they should have been permitted
to proceed. DBut the defendant did not take this course. He at the first
term of the Superior Court of New Hanover filed an affidavit and ob-
tained an order of court to remove the cause to Bladen for trial; the
cause stood for trial three years in the Superior Court before this mo-
tion was made to dismiss for the want of an appeal bond. Taking all
the circumstances together, we think that the judge came to the right
conclusion that the defendant had 1mpliedly waived the appeal bond.
Prr Crria. : Affirmed.

Cited: Arrington r. Smith, post, 60; McDowell v. Bradley, 30 N. C.,
93; Robinson v. Bryan, 3+ N. C., 184; McMillan v. Davis, 52 N. C., 221;
Council v. Monroe, ib., 3973 March v. Griffith, 53 N. C., 265; Howze .
Green, 62 N. C., 251; Ifutchison ». Rumfelt, 82 N, C., 426.

(48)
HENRY C. ELLISON v. JAMES JONES.

R. D. executed to H. E. an instrument, under seal, in the following words:
“Five months after date. I promise to pay H. E. the sum of $50 for a
horse, said horse to he H. E.’s horse till paid for.” Held, that this was
only a conditional sale of the horse, and not an absolute sale and a mort-
gage from the vendee to the vendor.

ArrEsr from Manly, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Raxporrm.

This action was brought to recover the value of a horse taken and
sold by the defendant. as constable, under sundry executions against one
Robert L. Dawson. The horse at the time of the seizure was in the pos-
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session of the said Dawson. The plaintiff, in the course of the trial, in-
troduced a paper of the following tenor, viz.:

“Five months after date, T promise to pay Henry Ellison the sum of
$50 for a horse, said horse to be said Henry Ellison’s horse till paid for.
This 14 December, 1839, Roserr L. Dawsox. (sEarn)”

The counsel for the defendant contended that this instrument must be
construed into a mortgage, and that it was void and inoperative for want
of registration, and asked the court so to instruct the jury. The pre-
siding judge declined to give such instructions, but informed the jury
that the paper seemed to be an undertaking on the part of Dawson to
pay the money therein specified at the expiration-of five months, upon
the consideration of his then having a title to the horse. And the paper
in that sense was submitted to the jury to be considered with other evi-
dence in ascertaining whether the horse was in good faith the property
of the plaintiff. There was a verdiet for the plaintiff under the charge
of the court, and a new trial having been moved for and refused, the de-
fendant appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff. (49)
Mendenhall, Morehead, and Iredell for defendant.

Daxter, J. The horse in controversy had been the property of the
plaintiff, and the instrument of writing which Dawson exccuted declares
that “the said horse is to be Henry Ellison’s horse till paid for.” These
words were ingerted to repel any inference that might arise from the
antecedent words in the instrument that the title had passed and was
exccuted in Dawson. The said words show the understanding of the
parties to be that the contract was executory—but a conditional sale.
There could have been no necessity for Ellison to have taken a mortgage
on the horse to secure the price unless there had been a prior absolute
sale of the horse to Dawson. We think that the instrument is only evi-
dence of a conditional sale, and that it is not a mortgage, and therefore
did not require to be registered. Dawson’s posscssion of the horse was
only a bailment by Ellison. The judgment must be

Prr Crrian. Affirmed.

Clited: DParris r. Roberts. 34 X, (', 2695 Smith r. Sasser, 50 N. C,,
390; Clayton v. Hester. 80 X. C., 276 Frick v. Ililliard, 95 N, C., 119;
Butts v. Serews, ib.. 217 Tufts v. Grifin, 107 N. C., 305 Whitlock .

Lumber ('o., 145 N, (., 124,
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JOHN JONES ALSTON'S ADMINISTRATOR v. SAMULL S, JACKSON.

Where A. and B. were coexecutors of (', and A. gave his bond for money to B..
styling him executor, and statring that he himself had borrowed the money
in hix private capacity and not as executor, and B, afterwards died: Held.
that B.x executor or adminixtrator conld maintain an action on this bond.
and thix even without having settled or paid over the amount to another
executor,

Areesr from Meanly, J., at Fall Term, 1343, of Cuatnanr.
Debt upon a boud of the defendant, brought by the plaintiff as
( 50 ) the administratrix of John Jones Alston. The case appeared to
Le thiz: Joseph John Alston appointed John Jones Alston, the
defendant Samuel 8. Jackson, and one Rives the executors of his will, of
whont the two former only undertook the office at the death of the testa-
tor,  John Jones Alston, having in his hands money belonging to the
estate, lent the sum of $711.74 10 Jackson, the coexecuror, and took his
bond in the following words, viz.:

“One day after date, I promise to pay to John J. Alston, executor of
the last will and testament of Joseph Johu Alston, deceased, $711.74,
which =um I have borrowed of him in my private and individual capac-
ity, and not in my character of executor of the said will, aud which is
to bear interest until paid. 23 September, 1841,

“Savver S Jacksoxn, (sgan)”

John Jones Alston afterwards died intestate, and the plaintiff became
his administrarrix, and came to a settlement of her intestate’s adminis-
tration with Rives, who had then qualified also as an executor, and upon
that sertlement, the plaintiff accounted for the money mentioned in the
bond and paid it to Rives. The plaintiff, as administratrix of John
Joues Alston, then brought this action ou the bond, and it came on to be
tried on the general issue.

To the evidence of the sertlement aud the payment of the mones to
Rives, the defendant objected, but it was admitted by the eomrt.

It was then 1usisted for the defendant that the plaintiff could unot
maintain the action, but that the debt belonged to the surviving execen-
tors of Joseph John Alston: but the court held otherwise, and a verdict
and judgment were rendered for the plaintitf,  From the judgment the
defendant appealed.

Manly for plaintiff.
Waddell for defondant,

Rurry, €], Without adverting to the state of the pleadings, the
Courr 1s of opinion that the judgment should be atlirmed, because, upon
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the facts stated, the merits are for the plaintiff.  The general rule ( 31)
is that, for a cause of action which has arisen wholly in the excecu-

tor’s own time. he is to sue in his own name without calling himself
exceutor. It follows that upon the death of the executor, the action sur-
vives to his representitive, and not to the representative of his testator;
but to the rule certain exeeptions have been established.  They were
stated and sufficiently discussed in Eure v Eure, 14 N. €L, 2060 It iz
admitted that for a debt due the testator, executors may take bills or
notes i their otficial character and declare on them as given to the exeen-
tor as such. And in the case cited it was held that where an an exeeutor
sold property according to the act of 1794, on credit, and ook a bond for
the price, pavable to him as executor, and died without colleeting the
money or appropriating the hond, au action might be maintained on it
by the administrator de bonis non of the testator. From that deeision
we have no inclination, in any case—and there is no necessity in this
case—to depart, for althougl it probably gave rize to the defendant’s
objection, 1t does not support it. It is manifest that it and everv case
in which an exception to the general principle has been admitted pro-
ceed on the ground thar the executor meant to take aud hold the security
in his representative character, and that no injustice would arise from
so treating the trausactions.  Such may be the presumption when a
single exceutor, in the due course of administration, takes a bill, note,
or boud pavable to himself as execeutor; and so, likewise, if there be two
or more exccutors, and the security be taken to them all, either by the
general deseription of their office ov nomination und as exeenfors. But
it never can be presumed or admitted, when one of two or more execu-
tors, upon a transaction of his own, thoungh in a matter touching his
office, as 1n taking sccurits for a previous debt or for the price of a
chattel sold, takes a Fond payable, not to all the executors, but to hin-
self alone.  Sueh a dealing with the assets is essentially a con-

version of them, which renders the exeeuror responsible for thewn, (32 )
and, therefore, he holds the seeurity taken for them proprio jure.

Though called execuror in the bond, hie 1s not entitled to 1t virtite officil,
for he docs not fill the office, but others arve also in it who are not named
nor deseribed in the boud, aud for that reason cannot sue on ir.  And
this is true « forliori when one who is an executor gives his bound to
another who is also an exceutor. It is absurd to suppose an intention
that it should operate as a bond ro the execurors as such, which would
be at once to extinguish it.  On the contrary, the object must have been
to bind oue of these parties personally to the other personally, and it is
obvious that it was just it should be so. If an executor who has the
money of the estate lets it go into the hands of another executor, not for
the purposes ot the extate, but for the use of the latter, the former is
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answerable as for a devastavit upon the insolvency of the coexecutor.
Moreover, he who first had the money has no means of compelling the
other to restore 1t to his posscssion if he has the rights of an executor
merely, for each executor has an equal right to hold what he gets, pro-
vided he gets it as money of the estate. Before parting from funds to
his coexecutor, it was then an act of prudence, with a view to his own
indemnity and of official duty to those entitled to the estate, to provide
a security which, in case of danger, could be promptly and efficiently
enforced, and the boud of the borrowing executor to the lending executor
seems very proper for that purpose. By lending the money, the one
executor became immediately responsible to the estate; and by giving
the bond, the borrowing executor became responsible to the other. The
plaintiff was, therefore, entitled to recover on the face of the bond and
without the settlement and payment to Rives. DBut though not necessary
to the plaintiff’s action, that evidence displays the justice of it more dis-
tinctly, as it was another overt act of appropriation of the bond, accord-
ing to the idea of Chief Justice Henderson in Eure v. Eure. Tt was not
incompetent and injurious evidence, but was, at most, irrelevant
53 ) and harmless, and therefore no ground for reversing the judg-
ment.
Per Crrisan Affirmed.

P

NATHANIEL ROBARDS g1 ar. v. SETH JONES.

=

Before the act of 1827 (Rev. Stat., ch. 122, sec. 11) a bequest of personal
property to “A. and his heirs,” and “if he should die and leave no lawful
issue,” then over to B., was a good executory limitation to B., to take
effect if A. died without leaving any issue living at the timne of his death.

2. And if B. died before A., this executory interest was so far vested that on
the happening of the contingency. the execator or administrator of B.
would take it.

The executor or administrator of A., dying without leaving issue living at
his death, is of course not responsible to his creditors or legatees or next
of kin for the property so hequeathed.

o

Arrear from Bailey, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Waxe.

Detinue, in which the parties submitted the cause to the judgment of
the court upon the following case agreed, to wit: James D. Ridley, by
his will made 15 August, 1820, and soon afterwards admitted to pro-
bate, devised and bequeathed as follows, to wit:

“Item 1. My will and desire is that, after my debts are paid, all
my property, both real and personal, should be kept together for the use
of my beloved wife, Elizabeth J. Ridley, and for the support and school-
ing of my two sons, Willlam W. Ridley and John A. Ridlex, until they
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arrive at the age of 21 vears or nutil my wife marries; and at her mar-
riage or my two sons coming of lawful age, my will is that all my prop-
erty, both real and personal, my gold watch excepted, should be equally
divided between my wife Elizabeth and myv two sons, William W. Ridley
and John .\. Ridley, to them and their heirs forever.

“TItem 2. I give unto my beloved wife my gold watch, to her (54)
and her heirs forever,

“Item 3. Tf my two sons, William W. Ridley and John A. Ridley,
should die and leave no lawful issue, my will and desire is that their
part of the estate should be equally divided, and for one part thereof to
go to my wife, Elizabeth J. Ridlev, to her and her heirs forever, and
the other half to be equally divided between my two brothers and my
sister, to them and their heirs forever.”

After the death of the testator his will was proved, the executors quali-
fied and assented to the legacies. The property passing under the first
clause included a large number of negro slaves. Both the legatees, Wil-
llam W. and John .\. Ridley, arrived at full age, but no division was
then made. Afterwards, John . Ridlex died without leaving issue, and
subsequently thereto the widow Elizabeth and Williamm W, Ridley di-
vided the slaves between them, leaving 1u rhe possession of William one-
third part thereof.  MMterwards, William W. Ridlev died without leav-
ing issue, having made a will and appointed the defendant executor, who
proved the will and took possession of the slaves so found in his testa-
tor’s possession and forming the said third part, of which the slaves
named in the writ and declaration are pareel.

The plaintiff Robards is the executor of Howell Ridley, one of the
brothers of the restator named in the third elause of the will, who died
in the lifetime of the said William W. Ridley, and the plaintiff Hinton
Is the administrator of Willis Ridlex, the other brother named iu the
said clause and of Mrs, ... Robards, the sister therein named, both
of whom died in the lifetime of the said William W. Ridlex. The divi-
sion of the slaves hereinbefore mentioned is ratified and confirmed by
the parties, and the slaves so left in the possession of the said William
W. Ridley are considered and treated as the moiety which, by the said
third clause, 1s dirceted to he divided between the testator’s two brothers
and hig sister. At the death of the satd William W, Ridley he was
largely indebred, so that his debts cannot be paid unless the said slaves,
or some portion thercof, be applied to their satisfuction,

For the defendant, it is insisted: (1) That the limitation over ( 35)
in the said third clause is too remote and cannot, in law, take
effect, and consequently that the cutive interest vested in the suid Wil-
liam W, Ridlevy and John \. Ridlex,  (2) If this be not so, vet that the
said slaves are liable in the hands of the defendant to his testator’s
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debts, and cannot be claimed by the plaintiffs until such debts are paid.
And it is agreed that if, on either of these grounds, the plaintiffs are
not entitled, judgment of nonsuit is to be entered, otherwise judgment
to be for the plaintiffs for the slaves and damages claimed in the writ
and declaration. .\nd it is further agreed that, should judgment pass
for the plaintiffs, the defendant will surrender to the plaintiffs any issue
which may be of the said slaves since they came into his possession, and
that the plaintiffs shall receive from the defendant, on account of the
damages and in satisfaction thercof, such hires as the defendant may
have actually received, or the securities taken, or that may be taken by
him therefor, the defendant te be allowed all just credits by reason of
payments for keeping chargeable slaves, and the plaintiffs to receive the
balance only, if any there be, of such hires.

Upon the case so submitted, his Honor, being of opinion for the plain-
tiffs, rendered judgment in their behalf for the slaves mentioned in the
writ and declaration, and for damages, costs, ete.

From this judgment the defendant appealed to the Supreme Court.

Badger for plaintiffs.
J. H. Bryan and Saunders for defendant.

Daxter, J. 1. The limitation over in the third clause of the will to
the testator’s two brothers and sister of the personal estate given to the
two sous of the testator in the first clause of the will 1s not too remote.

The testator in the third clause says, “if my two sons should die
(56) and leare no lawful issue (an eveut which happened), my will is

that their part of my estate should be equally divided, and one
part thereof to go to my wife, and the other Zi¢lf to be equally divided
between my two brothers and my sister.” When the expression used by
a testator in making an executory limitation is “learing no issue,” the
established rule is, when applied to personal estate, that it imports leav-
ing no issue at the death of the first taker, and ties the event up to that
time, and therefore prevents a perpetuity. Forth r. Chapman, 1 P. W,
663, and 2 Powell on Devises, 566 (Jarman’s Ed.), where all the authori-
ties are cited.

2. The slaves arc not assets in the hands of the defendant as the ad-
ministrator of William W. Ridley. The hires and profits of the slaves
during the life of William belonged to him; but on the event which has
taken place, viz., the death of both of the sons leaving no issue, the orig-
inal stock of slaves and their inerease went over to the ulterior legatees.
The three ulterior legatees—the two brothers and the sister of the testa-
tor—died in the lifetime of the two sons, the first takers. The exccutory
interest, resting on an uncertain event, went to the administrators of her
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sons, who were' certain, viz., the ulterior designated legatecs. Pinbury
v. Blkin, 1 P.W., 563.

In Barnes v, llen, 1 Bro., 181 (Belt’s ad.), Lord Thurlow remarked
that a contingent interest might rest in right, although 1t did not in pos-
session, and that contingent exeentory interests might be as completely
vested as 1f they were in possession, so as to go to the representative of
a named legatee who might happen to die before the event took place.
See 1 Roper on Legacies, 402,

We think that the judgment must be

Per Currraar, Affirmed.

Cited: Sanderlin ¢, Deford, 47 N, C, 77,
(57)

THE STATE. to THE Use or R, H. LisTER ET AL, v. HENRY W.
SKINNER ET AL

A., before the act of 1827, Rev. Stat., ch. 122, sec. 11, bequeathed as follows:
“I give to my sou J. W, all my negroes, to wit, ete.. to him and hix heirs
lawfully begotten of his body; but if he should die without lawful heirs,
then my wish ix for & W., to him and his heirs forever.” Held, that the
limitation over to 8. W. was too remote, and that J. W. took the ab=olute
estate i1 the <lavesx,

Aprrrear from Nash, 7., at Fall Term, 1543, of Pasqroraxk.

Debt on the bond of Henry W, Skinner as the administrator of
Joshua Wooton, deccased. The following case agreed was submitted to
his Honor:

The defendant’s intestate died in 1839, without issue, leaving his
relators his only next of kin, and this action is brought to recover what
may be due to them as the distributees of the said Joshua Wooton, By
a reference made in the case and an account thereupon stated, it appears
that the amonnt of assets in the hands of the administrator on 5 Sep-
tember, 1843, after deducting all charges and expenditures, was %2,044.37,
By the said report it further appears that the estare of the said Wooton
is credited with $2,975 as the amount of sales of certain negro slaves
bequeathed by the will of Charles Wooton, deccased. The bequest of
the said slaves is in the following words: “L give and bequeath unto my
son Joshua Wooton all my land, ete.; also my negroes, to wit, my negro
woman Venus, cte., them and their inercuse, to him and his heirs law-
fully begotten of his body; but it he (Joshua) should die without
lawful heirs, then my wish is thar Joshua Wooton, a son of my ( 53 )
brother Samuel Wooton, now living in the west part of Tennessce,
in Sumner County, near Huntsville, to him and hix heirs forever,” etc.
Charles Wooton made his will and died in 1825,
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Should his Honor be of opinion that the said Joshua, who was the
first taker under the said bequest and under whom the relators claim,
took by virtue thercof the entire and absolute estate in the said negroes,
then there is to be judgment for the plaintiff for the said sum of
$2,044.37, with interest from 5 September, 1843. But should his Honor
be of opinion that the said first taker took only a life estate, then judg-
ment is to be entered for the defendants. His Honor, being of opinion
that the defendant’s intestate took the whole estate in the said negroes,
gave judgment accordingly for the said sum of $2,044.37 and interest
thereon, from which judgment the defendants appealed to the Supreme
Court.

No counsel for plaintif.
Kinney and Iredell for defendants.

Daxtxr, J. Charles Wooton, the testator, died in 1825, after making
his will, which contained the clause mentioned in the case agreed. Did
that clause give to Joshua Wooton, the son of the testator, the absolute
and entire cstate in the negroes mentioned thercin? There can be no
doubt that the words in the clause would create an estate tail in lands
devised, and the general rule is that wherever words in a will would
create an estate tail in lands devised, the same words in a bequest of
chattels will carry the absolute estate. DBut an exception to this rule is,
where there are words superadded to those which standing by them-
selves would create an estate tail in land, which superadded words would
show and explain that the testator did not intend to create an estate tail
in the chattels, Swain v. Rascoe, 25 N. C., 200. But in this will there
arc no such superadded explanatory words to the bequest of the slaves.

“To him (Joshua Wooton) and his heirs lawfully begotten of his
(59 ) body; but that if he (Joshua) should die without lawful heirs,

then over,” ete. We are therefore of opinion that the judgment
given by his Honor must be

Per Crriaarn Affirmed.

ARCHIBALD H. ARRINGTON v. CALVIN A. SMITH.

In the caxe of an appeal from the county to the Superior Court, where the
cause has heen continued for two years in the Superior Court and wit-
nesses summoned on both sides, it is too late for the appellee to move to
dismiss the appeal for the want of an appeal bond. He will be considered
ax having waived his right to a bond.

Aprrar from Dadey, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Waxke.
Case commenced 1n the county court of Wake, A judgment having

0
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been rendered in that court agalnst the plaintiff at Mayx Term, 1841,
he appealed to the Superior Court, but neglected to give an appeal bond.
The cause was entered on the docket of the Superior Court of Wake at
Fall Term, 1241, and continued at the several terms of the court until
Fall Term, 1843. When the cause was called for trial on the second day
of that term, the plaintiff declared himself ready, but the defendant
having called his witnesses stated he was not ready, whereupon the cause
was left open until the next day. On the next day the defendant moved
to dismiss the appeal for the want of an appeal bond. The plaintiff
then moved for leave to tile a bond for costs and damages, which was
refused. It appeared that a subpena had been issued by the clerk of
the Superior Court for the defendant’s witnesses, returnable to the Fall
Term, 1841. On the above facts, the court dismissed the appeal

and gave judgment against the plaintitf for the costs of the Supe- ( 60 )
rior and county courts.

From this judgment the plaintiff appealed to the Supreme Court.

Saunders and Miller for plaintiff.
W. H. Haywood for defendant.

Daxier, J. At May sessions, 1841, of the county court of Wake the
plaintiff appealed. The defendant, two years after the transcript of the
record had been filed in the Superior Court, moved to dismiss the appeal
because there was no appeal bond. The defendant, at any of the ante-
cedent terms of the Superior Court, could have made the motion to dis-
miss; he did not do so, but went on and forced the plaintiff at one term
to continue the cause by affidavit, and at another term he obtained leave
of the court for time to prepare for the trial of the cause; he moreover
had caused his witnesses to be subpened to the first term of the Superior
Court. It seems to us that this case 13 within the prineciple and reason
of Wallace v. Corbitt, ante, 45. All the facts and circumstances dis-
closed by the case are, we think, sufficient to raise an 1mplied waiver by
the defendant of an appeal bond. The judgment must be

Per Cvriaor. Reversed and procedendo.

Cited: Robinson v. Bryan, 3+ N. C., 184 MeMillan v. Davis. 52

N. C., 221; Council v. Monroe, tb., 397, Howze v. (freen, 62 N, C., 251;
Hutchison v. Rumfelt, 82 N, C., 426, .
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(61)
JAMES BRANNOCK v. LEWIS P. BOULDIN ET AL.

1. To charge persons with a conspiracy to cheat and defraud a third person,
there muxt be a collusion and participation in the scheme or its execution.
Mere silent observation and acquiescence are not sufficient.

1o

. Unless the persons charged, by some deed or word became parties to the plot
to cheat, they could neither have influenced the acts of the person de-
frauded nor contributed to his losses: and, therefore, they are not liable
to his action.

3. One may he bound to speak the truth concerning any matter or thing with
which he or his rights are connected and not suffer another to deal respect-
ing them under a delusion ; but in respect to matters with which he is in no
wise concerned or connected, he is not charged with the legal duty of pre-
venting mischief to others by communicating what he knows, but he may
he silent.

Arrear from Manly, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Sroxes.

Trespass on the case, in which the plaintiff declared against the de-
fendant for conspiracies with one Edward Bouldin: (1) To entice away
his daunghter and marry her to the said Edward; and (2) to defraud
him (the plaintiff) out of certain moneys by inducing him to become
surety for the said Edward, he being iiisolvent.

It appeared on the trial that Edward Bouldin, leaving a wife and
family in the county of Caswell, had removed to Guilford, and therc,
nnder an assumed name and representing himself to be a wealthy planter
from the State of Mississippi, had married the daughter of the plaintiff.
There was no other evidence on the first count in the declaration.

On the second count, there was evidence tending to show a knowledge
on the part of the defendants (who arc his brothers and brothers-in-law,
respective) of Edward Bouldin’s marriage under an assumed name in
Guilford and of the delusion under which the plaintiff was acting as to

his true character and condition. Other evidence was likewise
( 62 ) before the court tending to establish conmivance and aid, on the

part of the defendants, in keeping up this delusion, and particu-
larly in procuring the plaintiff to become surety npon a note of the said
Edward, which the plaintiff subsequently paid. The testimony was cir-
cumstantial and prolix, and it is not deemed necessary to report it at
length.

The courr charged, that to make out a case to justify a recovery
against the defendants, it wus necessary for the jury to be satisfied that
they acted in concert with the prineipal character, Edward Bouldin, and
with a view of enabling him to impose npon the plaintiff in the particu-
lar complained of. It would be insuflicient that they saw and under-
stood his contrivances and kept theni seevet, if they neither did nor said
anything to aid in making those contrivances successtul, and with intent
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so to aid. TIf they neither did nor said anything intended to keep up
this delusion or to lead him off from auy inquiry which he might else
have made to undeceive himself, the defendants would not be guilty of a
conspiracy, so as to make tiiem liable to the plaintiff’s action.

The jury found a verdict in favor of the defendants, and the plaintiff,
having failed to obtain a new trial, appealed to the Supreme Court.

Morvelead for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendants.

trrrry, (L J. Cousidering the relation between the parties, it might
have required but little evidence over and above a knowledge by the de-
fendants of the plans of the principal actor and their observation of the
execution of them to satisfy a reasonable mind of the actual participa-
tion of the defendants in the plans, cither in their formation or exeeu-
tion. But that is not the question presented here. The evidence being—
as might be expected—ecirenmstantial, it was left to the jury to deduce
therefrom, as was thelr province, such inferences as to the facts of the
alleged conspiracy as in their judgment it authorized. The court was
not asked to give any particular instructions in aid of the jury in that
part of their duty. It was, therefore, only incumbent on the court
to inform the jury what kind of conduct by the defendants would ( 63 )
make them conspirators with Edward Bouldin, so as to render
them liable for the deceits and impositions practiced on the plaintiff by
that person. Such direetions the court gave, and after considering them,
we own that we are unable to perceive that they are erroneous.

As we nnderstand them, it is laid down, that if the defendants aided
Edward Bouldin by saving or doing anything or in any wise acted in
concert with him to deceive the plaintiff as to the condition and charace-
ter of that person, ov to keep up the delusion of the plaintiff on those
poiuts, or to induce or to enable Edward Bouldin to induce the plaintiiff
to become his surety, that would amount to a conspiracy aud fraud; but
that if the defendants merely knew of the designs and countrivances of
the principal party to lmpose ou the plamtiff, that would uot be a cou-
spiracy, though they did not, as they might, disclose the matter thus
known by them. The question, then, 18 whether a collusion and partici-
pation in the scheme or its execution, something beyond silent observa-
tion and acquiescence, be not necessary to charge these defendants. We
think it is. There are many cases to which 1s strictly applicable the
common saying that “silence gives consent,” and a person is bound as
to his own rights by not making them known to one iunocently dealing
for an article. Qui polest et debet retare, jubet, st non vetat. Such is
the prineiple, when one ought, as a legal duty, to give notice of his own
rights when one is about to contract with another who he knows is under

-
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a false impression as to some material fact influencing the person to
contract. Thus, if one man sees another buy his estate and will not
make known his title, it is a fraud, which justly renders the contract as
binding on the owner as if he had made it himself. So, for example, if
these defendauts had themselves taken an obligation from the plaintiff
as the surcty of Edward Bouldin without informing him that he was not
the person the plaintiff took him to be and making known his true
character, such silence might be fraudulent, and the plaintiff be
( 64) relieved from the obligation. Indeed there the defendants would
be parties to the act from which the injury to the plaintiff arose.
There are, however, many cases in which silence is innocent—at least,
legally speaking—although another may suffer in consequence of it. A
person is always bound to refrain from willful falsehood which may
produce a prejudice to another. Ile may also be bound to speak the
truth concerning any matter or thing with which he or his rights are
connected, and not suffer another to deal respecting them under a de-
lusion; but in respect to matters with which he is in no wise concerned
or connected, he 1s not charged with the duty of preventing mischief to
others by communicating what he knows, but he may be silent. If one
sees another about to fall into a pit, ordinary humanity would induce
him to ery out and warn him of the danger, but the duty is of that im-
perfect kind, of which conscience is the only sanction; it creates no legal
obligation, nor its omission any responsibility for consequences. If one
recominend an insolvent person as worthy of credit, it is a fraud which
subjects the perpetrator to damages; but if he be asked as to the credit
of such a person, he may decline answering, although he knows of his
insolvency, and that the inquirer is about to deal with him. Much more
may he refrain from speaking when he is not asked to do so. The law
does not require a person to intermeddle in other people’s business, nor
interpose to protect onc man from the wrong of another, with neither
of whom is he connected as to the transaction in which the wrong 1s
sustained. One is at liberty to attend to his own affairs and leave others
to inquire as they can and judge for themselves in matters that concern
them alone. If these defendants were mercly passive witnesses of the
deceits of Edward Bouldin, they were his deceits and none of theirs.
There must be some union of views, or confederation, between two or
more to constitute a conspiracy. Unless by some deed or word they be-
came parties to the plot to cheat the plaintiff, the defendants could
( 65 ) not have influenced his acts nor contributed to his losses, and,
therefore, they are not liable to his action.
Prr Curraar. Affirmed.

Cited: Shrelds v. Bank, 138 N. C.; 188.
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WILLILEE GAITHER v. ELITAH TEAGUL.

Where on a contract for the sale of a horse, the vewdor ix to retain the title
until the purchase money ix paid, and the vewdee gives hix note for the
price and takes possession of the horse, it is competent for the vendor, in
an action to recover the horse from one claiming under the veudee. to show
a4 judgment on the vendee's note, execution. and return of wulle bona, in
order to sliow that ihe price had not been paid,

Arpear from Diek, J., at IFall Term. 1843, of CanLpwEeLL

Trover for a horse. The plaintiff showed title to the property by
offering in evidence an instrument of writing signed by Edward Teague,
uinder whowm the defendant elaimed.  The instrument was in the follow-
ing words, viz.:

“Nortu Caroriya—DBurke County.

“Know all men by these presents, that I, Edward Teague, have this
day bargained for a sorrel filly of Willie Gaither, which filly T want to
stand as security until T pay him, the said Gaither, for her. I also
promise to take good care of her. Witness my hand and seal, this 5
October, 1836.- Epwarp Tergur.”

At the time the instrument in question was cxecuted and the posses-

sion of the property passed to Edward Teague, the plaintiff took the
note of the said Edward for %30, being the price of the horse.
Afterwards the plaintiff sued on the said note, obtained judgment, ( 66 )
and sued out execution, on which the officer returned “No goods.”
On the trial, the plaintiff offered to give these proceedings in evidence
to show that the debt had not been paid, and that the said Edward was
insolvent. The evidence was rejected by the court. The jury returned
a verdict for the defendant, and judgment having been rendered pur-
suant thereto, the plaintiff appealed.

Boyden for plaintiff.
Badger for defendant,

Daxter, J. We think that the evidence rejected by the Superior Court
would have been admissible against Edward Teague if he had been the
defendant. And as the present defendant claims under Edward (how,
it does not appear}, it must be good evidence against him.

Per Curiadr Venire de novo.

Cited: Ballew v. Sudderth, 32 N. C., 179; Parris v. Roberts, 34 \ .,
2695 McFadden r. Turner, 43 N, C., 482 Lw cis e Fort, 75 N, C., 233,
Thomas v. Cooksey, 130 N. C., 151
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JAMES A. WILSON v. JOHN HEXNSLEY ET ATL.

When an ofticer. who hax levied an execution on personal property. voluntarily
permits the defendant in the execution to regain possession of the prop-
erty. his lien isx xo far gone that the levy of a subsequent execution by
another officer on the property so in possession of the defendant shall be
preferred.

Arpearn from Prearson, J., at Special Term in August, 1843, of
YaxcEy.
Trover for a horse, on the trial of which the jury found the following
special verdict:
“The jury find that the defendant McCurry, being a constable of the
county of Yancey, and having two executions in his hands—one
(67) in favor of the other defendant Hensley against one William
Edwards for $8.25, and the other in favor of one Samuel Flem-
ing against the said Edwards and the other defendant Hensley for $70—
did, ou 7 September, 1841, in the town of Burnsville, levy upou and
take into his possession a roan mare, the property of the said Edwards;
that the said MeCurry immediately led the mare across the street and
delivered her to the defendant ITensley, with the understanding that
Hensley should have her forthcoming at the next October court in Burns-
ville, to be sold in satisfaction of the said executions; that Hensley then
delivered the mare to the said Edwards, with the understanding that
he should keep her and have her at the time and place before agreed
upon; that Edwards kept her in his possession until 24 September, 1841,
when the plaintiff, who was also a constable of the said county and who
had executions in favor of different persons against the said Edwards,
went to the house of Edwards, levied lis executions on the mare, took
her into his possession, and kept her until 4 October, when he exposed
her to public sale after due advertisement, at which sale one Chandler
became the purchaser for $45, and soon after his purchase transferred
the mare to the plaintiff on an advauce of 25 per cent for his bid. The
jury further find that there was no understanding between the plaintiff
and the said Chandler before the sale was closed that Chandler should
bid for and as the agent of the plaintiff. They further find that, after
the sale by Chandler to the plaintiff, the defendants took and converted
the mare to their own use, and that the value of the mare at the time
of the conversion was $65; but whether upon these facts the plaintiff is
entitled to recover, the jury are ignorant, and pray the advice of the
court, ete)” .
The court was of opinion with the plaintiff. They held that the right
of the first officer commenced with and depended upon his possession;
that this possession was lost by the act of his agent in restoring
( 68 ) the possession to the debtor, and of course the right which de-
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pended upon ir was also lost. Judgment was therefore rendered for the
plaintiff, and the defendants appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Jo A DBryan and Alecander for defendants.

Daxter, J. We conenr with his Honor in the opinion delivered by
him in this case. The case is within the rule laid down by this Court
in Roberts . Scales, 23 N, (') 88, relation to the duty of officers in levy-
ing executions on the property of a debtor. When the plamtiff, who
made the last levy, came with the executions then in his hands to make
the levy he found the mare now in controversy in the posscssion of the
debtor.  The levy which MeCurry had before made on the mare had
lost its effect as to the executions in the hands of Wilson by the property
being then out of the eustody or care of MeCurry, or his agent, and
again in possession of the original debtor. If the agent of MceCurry has
been gnilty of a breach of trust in permitting Edwards, the debtor, to
regain the possessiou of the mare, Le is responsible to him for that con-
duct; but the plaintiff had nothing to do with rthat agency. The judg-
ment must be '

Per Crrraa. Affirmed.

88

JOSEDPH BOST v. THOMAS SMITH.

Where A. gave B, an usurious bond for $220 in conxideration that B. would
discharge him from a previous bona fide debt of 200, althongeh this origi-
nal debt ix not affected by the subsequent usury. yet B. cannot recover the
%200 upon the mere declaration of A, to a third person that he would pay
that sum. hut never would pay the usurions hond,

Aprear from Nettle, J., at Fall Terni, 1843, of Livcory. (69)

Assumpsit to recover the sum of $200, with the legal interest
thercon. It was admitted by the defendant that about two vears pre-
vious to the bringing of this suit, one Stmpson was indebted to the plain-
tiff in the sum of $200, and to pay lini, Simpson agreed to give him a
bond or note on the defendant Smith for the sum of $220; that at that
time the defendant was justly iudebted to the said Simpson in a sum
between $300 and $400, and that Simpson iformed the defendant that
he owed the pluintiff $200 and kad agreed to let him have a note or
bond on him for $220 to discharge the debt, and that he wished him to
execute to him (Simpson) o boud for the sum of $220, and another for
the residue of the sum due him, and the defendant accordingly executed
and delivered to Simpson a bond in the sum of $220, dvawn payable to
the plaintiff, and also another bond for the residue, together with the
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sum of $20 therein included, which Simpson alleged he was justly enti-
tled to, as the plaintiff was unwilling to take Smith’s bond unless 1t was
discounted at 10 per cent; that Simpson delivered the $220 bond to the
plaintiff in discharge of the debt due to him, and the plaintiff accepted
the bond on the defendant in lien thereof without any knowledge of the
addition of the above-mentioned $20 to the other bond; that after the
lapse of some time, the defendant not paying off his said bound to the
plaintiff, a suit was brought thereon in the county court of Lincoln, and
in bar of the action the defendant pleaded the statnte against usury, and
eventually sustained his plea by proving the facts above set forth. It
was admitted that the plaintiff knew nothing of the usurious contract
between Simpson and the defendant. The plaintiff then proved by a
witness that during the pendency of the suit in the county court, and a
short time before the trial, the defendant, in speaking of the said bond
and sult, said to the witness that “as to the $20, he never would pay

Bost that, but Lhe would pay him the $200, with the legal interest
(70 ) on it.” It was on this declaration to the witness that this action

was founded. The plaintiff insisted that under these cireum-
stances there was a moral obligation resting upon the defendant to pay
him, and that such moral obligation formed a sufficient consideration for
the promise to sustain the action. But the court intimating an opinion
that, under all’ the circumstances of the case as admitted and proved,
the action could not be maintained, the plaiutiff, in deference to that
opinion, submitted to a judgment of nonsuit and appealed to the Su-
preme Court.

Iloke for plaintiff.
Alexander for defendant.

Dawter, J. Where one man is bona fide indebted to another, and
agrees, in consideration of forbearance, to pay him more than legal in-
terest, this second contract 1s usurious and, consequently, void. But this
does not atfect the original debt, provided the original debt was lawfully
contracted ; the oviginal debt will still remain untained with the vice of
the second security. Cro. Eliz., 20; Comyn on Usury, 189, 190. When
Smith gave Bost the usurious bond for $220, he did not owe him any
antecedent debt. The said bond was given in consideration that Bost
should discharge Simpson of an antecedent debt of $200. During the
pendency of the action against Smith on the usurious bond of $220, he
said to a witness (who was not the plaintiff’s agent) that he would pay
Bost the $200, but that he never would pay the usurious bond of $220.
Was this declaration by Smith to the witness a promise to Bost to pay
him that sum? His Honor thought it was not, and we coneur with him,
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The assent of Bost at that time was wanting. There was merely a
declaration of an intention by Smith, and not an engagement. The
Judgment must be

Per Crrias. Affirmed.

(71)
JAMES C. DOBBIN v. JOHN GASTER ET AL

1. If upon a ca. s¢. from a justice of the peace. returnable to the county court
instead of being returnable before a justice out of court within three
months, the person arvested give Lond to appear at the county court to
take the benefit of the insolvent debtors’ law, and he fail to appear at the
time appointed. and the court render judgment against him and his sure-
ties, they cannot hear any objection, even at the same term of the county
court, against such judgment.

2. But certainly at a succeeding term the county court cannot vacate such
judgment.,

Arpear from Manly. J., at Special Term, in December, 1843, of
Moore.

It appeared from the records that the plaintiff had obtained a judg-
ment before a justice of the peace aguinst John Gaster, one of the de-
fendants, and on 20 March, 1843, he took out a process thereon, which
was intended to be a capias ad satisfaciendum; but instead of being
returnable within three months after its date and before a justice of the
peace, it was made returnable to the next county court of Moore County,
to be held at the courthouse in Carthage on the fourth Monday of April
next following. On 30 Mareh, John Gaster was arrested thereon by the
sheriff, and he and Henry Gaster, the other defendant, as his surety,
entercd into bond for his appearance. After reciting the arrest “by
virtue of a capias ad satisfaciendum issued by a single justice of the
peace at the instance of the said James C. Dobbin for the sum of, ete.,
recovered, ete., and that the said John Gaster was desirous to take the
benefit of the act for the relief of insolvent debtors,” the condition 1s
for the appearance of “the said John at the next court of pleas and quar-
ter sessions to be held on, ete., at, ete., then and there to stand to
and abide by such proceedings as may be had by said court in (72 )
relation to his taking the benefit of the said act.”

The bond, judgment, and exccution were duly returned to the county
court at April Term, 1843, which was more than twenty days after the
date of the bond; and then and there “the said John Gaster being
solemnly called and failing to appear, on motion of the said James C.
Dobbin,” the court gave judgment against John Gaster and Henry Gas-
ter for the penalty of the said bond, to be discharged by the payment of
the debt and costs.
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At July Term, 1843, upon a rule granted and a notice to Dobbin, the
court set aside an execution that had been issued thereon and ordered
the judgment itself to be vacated; and upon an appeal therefrom to the
Superior Court, this last order was affirmed, and then the plaintiff Dob-
bin appealed to the Supreme Court.

Reid for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendants.

Rurriy, C. J. We regret that the case has not been argued for the
appellees, since, as at present advised, our opinion is against them, and
there may be reasons for the decision under review which are not set
forth or perceived here. The counsel for the plaintiff indeed informed
us that the ground on which it was made was that the ca. sa. was in-
sufficient because illegally returnable as to time and place, and he at-
tempted to support that process in those points. The Court, however,
is not prepared to go with him in the argument upon that part of the
case. DBut it is not thought material to examine the point because, ad-
mitting the insufliciency supposed, we should be inelined to the opinion
that the judgment on the bond was not erroneous; and we hold that, at
all events, it should 1ot be set aside at a subsequent term, as was done
in this case.

The party might have been relieved from arrest upon a habeas corpus
and we will not say that he might not also have been relieved even after

giving bond if he had appeared and placed himself again in actual
(73 ) custody, and then moved the court to quash the proceedings or

* discharge him. If the debtor had appeared, the court, as we sup-
pose, would not have been obliged ex officio to look back to the ca. sa.
and judgment before admitting him to the benefit of the act or subject-
ing him to its penalties. The creditor could not in such a case take the
objection to the debtor’s taking the oath and being discharged that the
ca. sq. on which the arrest was made was not valid. DMuch less could
the objection prevail, if taken for the first time after the debtor. had
taken the oath and beeu discharged, on a motion to set aside or vacate
the judgment of discharge. There 1s in all legal proceedings a proper
time to present evidence and urge objections arising on it; and if a
party willfully or negligently omits at that time to take the benefit of
such matter as may be in his favor, he must be deemed to have waived
it. 8o, on the other hand, if the debtor, upon appearing, raised no
objection to the legality of the execution and arrest, but upon refusing
or being unable to take the oath of insolvency was adjudged to be im-
prisoned, he ought not afterwards to go back to pick holes in the process
on which he was brought before the court. It is true that in these cases
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there are no pleadings by which a party concludes himselt, but though
the proceedings are summary, vet the party (if after giving the bond he
can take the objection) ought, at the least, to present his case to the
notice of the court by showing that the facts are not as they are recited
in his bond, and moving on that ground for his discharge. Wherefore
should not the law be so? If the debtor were discharged for such a
cause, the debt is not thereby satisfied, but the creditor may immediately
take another execution against the body. Then it must be supposed that
the debtor, by not bringing forward the defect in the previous proceed-
ings, waives the delay and submits to be then imprisoned under the
judgment which the court is required to pass, namely, nntil he shall
make a full and fair disclosure of his effects. It is true also that this
party did not appear, and therefore he cannot be said to have

walved any advantage. But that, we think, makes no difference, ( 74)
for if he waieed nothing by the default he admitted every fact

which a declaration in debt on the bond ought to allege. The act says
that “in case of failure to appear,” judgment shall be rendered instauter
on the bond, which places it on the footing of a judgment by default in
debt, which 1s final the first ferm. If, therefore, the allegation of a
ca. sa. and an arrvest would, notwithstanding the recital in the bond, be
requisite in a deelaration on this bond (a point we do not decide), still
the defaunlt admirs that allegation as made, and therefore there 1s no
necessity for other proof. Iere the bond 15 in due form as preseribed
in the statute and stauds in the place of the declaration, and we see no
reason why the court should go out of the bond and require the creditor
to prove his case upon independent evidence when the case is fully ad-
mitted under the hand and scal of the debtor and surety and no objec-
tion raised by them. But if the judgment be erroncous upon the ground
that the ca. sa. on which rhe arrest was made is to be returned, and =o
forms part of the record, still it 1s a valid judgment until reversed, and
that can be done only in a Superior Court. It ean be vacated by the
court whieh rendered it ouly on oune of two grounds—the one that it is
absolutely vold for the want of jurisdiction of the subject (Whitley .
Black, 9 N. C., 179) 3 the other that it was not rendered by the court, but
was unduly taken by the party contrary to the course of the court; in
other words, was irregular. There is no question as to the jurisdiction,
and there is nothing set forth which shows that this judgment was
irregular or that it was vacated on that ground. Apparently the jude-
ment was that of the court in fact, after proclamation; and if so, it
must be deemed regular, however erroncous it may be. But if signed
in the office by default, it wonld still seem to be perfectly regular. It
was taken in term time at the proper term, according to the bond, and
at the proper period of tlie term, as far as appears, and for those reasous
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(75 ) the case differs from that of Winslow ». Duckworth, 20 N. C., 1.
From necessity, every court must have the power to set aside an
irregular judgment; that-is to say, one which the court did not actually
give and which was entered by surprise on the opposite party and con-
trary to the course of proceeding as established by law or the practice
of the court. But here was no surprise, for the judgment was taken
upon the bond.given by the parties at the term it required the debtor to
appear, and for his failure to appear, and therefore was taken in the
regular course of practice and without having precluded the debtor or
his surety from the opportunity of discharging themselves or making
rightful defense at the proper time. It is obvious, therefore, that the
objection now urged by those parties is not to the period or circum-
stances of taking the judgment, but it is to the substance of the case on
which the judgment was rendered, which they say did not entitle the
creditor to judgment, and which, therefore, we think ‘might sustain a
writ of error or appeal from the judgment, but, even if true, cannot
authorize an order at a subsequent term to vacate the judgment.

The opinion of the court, therefore, is that the orders of the Superior
and county courts, from which Dobbin appealed, are erroneous and must
be reversed, and the cause must be remanded to the Superior Court with
directions there to reverse the said order of the county court, with costs
in the Superior Court, and to issue a writ of procedendo, certifying the
sald reversal to the county court and requiring that court to discharge
the rule for vacating the judgment recovered by the plaintiff at April
Term, 1843, of the county court and to grant the plaintiff execution of
his said judgment.

Per Crreran Reversed.

Cited: Watts v. Boyle, post, 334, Freeman v. Lisk, 30 N, C,, 213;
Larle v. Dobson, 46 N. C., 517; Bryan r. Brooks, 51 N. C., 581,

(76)

JOSEPH HARE v. BARNEY PTEARSON.

1. Where once crops or works with the owner of land for a share of the crop,
and after it isx made the crop is divided, the share of the person who has
s0 worked is liable to be sold, though it was levied on before the division
and though it still remains in the crib of the owner of the land.

(]

. The wrongful dominion and assumption of property in personal chattels by
one who menaces the rightful owner, if he attempt to take them, amount
in law to a conversion, and are not merely evidence of a conversion to be
left to a jury.

ArpeaL from Baidey. J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Nasu.
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This was an action of trover for a quantity of corn. On the trial the
plamtiff offered evidence to show that the defendant rented a small
tract of land to one Elijah Powelll a free man of color, for the vear
1841, and that the said Powell cultivated the land in corn and agreed
to give the defendant one-hilf of the crop.  Te then offered in evidence
a judgment obtained before a justice of the peace dated 13 March, 1841,
and an execution which was levied upon the growing crop of the said
Powell on 5 June tollowing. The sale was postponed at the instance of
the said Powell, and was not made until after the corn was gathered and
put in a barn on the land of the defendant then in the occupaney of the
said Powell. Tt was further in evidence that when the corn was gathered
and about to be housed, an equal division was made between Powell and
the defendant, but that the whole of it was put in the barn aforesaid.
The sale was made § February, 1542, the plaintiff and defendant, the
coustable and others being present.  The constable proceeded to the
house and there offered the coru for sale. The defendant forbade the
sale and declared the corn to be his. There was evidence that more than
half of the corn had been taken out of the barn, The plaintift
purchased what was lett and gave notice to the defendant that he (77)
should take 1t away. The defendant then told him that the corn
was his; that he (the plamntift) should not have it, and that he would
break every boue in Lis hody before he should carry it away. The de-
fendant offered evidence tending to show that he did not rent the land
to Powell, but that he (Powell) acted only as a laborer, and that he was
his servant and had no interest in the erop which was subject to the
plaintiff’s excention, and for the purpose of showing the contract be-
twween Powell and lamsclf he further offered to prove the declarations
of Powell made at one time and the declarations of himself made at
another time before the issning of the warrant against Powell, which
evidence was rejected by the conrvt, The defendant further insisted that
thiere was 110 conversion.

The court lefr it to the jury to say whether Powell was the tenant of
the defendant for 1841, or whether he was merely his servant.  If he
acted as his servant, the pluantiff could not recover; but if he was his
tenant, then the coustable had a right to levy upon and sell that part of
the corn which belonged to him: and if the defendant forbade the sale,
and after it was made he had notice from the plaintiff, who was the pur-
chaser, that he should come for the corn, and he then told the plaintiff
that the corn was his property and the plaintiff should not have it nor
should he carry it away, this in law amounted to a conversion, and the
plaintiff would be entitled te recover its value.

Under these ustructions the jury returned a verdiet for the plaintiff.
A new trial having been moved for and refused, the defendant appealed.
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Busbee for plaintiff.
B. F. Moore for defendant.

Daxier, . 1. Admit that Powell was the servant and eropper of the
defendant at the time the growing corn was levied on by the officer as
his property (which then in fact was not his, but belonged to the
(78 ) defendant), still at the day of sale the title to the corn actually
sold was in Powell by the division previously made with the de-
fendant, and the plaintiff acquired a good title under the said sale. An
officer has a right to scll personal property levied on under an execution
after the return day of the said execution. Powell was present at the
sale and raised no objection. TIf there had been any irregularity in the
sale he was the person to raise the objection, and not the detendant.
The corn had been placed by Powell in the defendant’s barn upon a
naked bailment for safe-keeping. The sale of it and the demand by the
purchaser put an end to the bailment.

2. The defendant on the day of sale set up a claim to the corn as his
property, but he has shown no title. The plaintiff gave notice to the
defendant that he should take away the corn which he had purchased at
the officer’s sale. The defendant said that he should not have it; that
the corn was his, and that he would break every bone in his body before
he should carry it away. The judge charged the jury that this, in law,
was a conversion. It is now insisted that it was only ewvidence to be
left to a jury of a conversion. We think the charge of his ITonor was
correct, for a wrongful dominion and assumption of property in the
chattels is a conversion; and if there be a deprivation of the property
by a defendant, it is_a conversion. Keyworth v. Hill, 3 Barn. & Ald,,
687; 2 Leigh Nisi Prius, 1478, We think that the judgment must be

Prr Crrraa. Affirmed.

Cited: Brazier v. Ansley, 33 N. C., 14; Warbritton v. Savage, 49
N. (., 885; Rhea v. Dearer, 85 N, C., 340; University v. Bank, 96 N. C.,

85.

(79)
De~x ox DeMIse oFr ROBERT R, LOVE £T Ar. v. WILLIAM SCOTT.

Lo

In an action of ejectment, upon the death of the defendant, a sci. fa. and a
copy of the declaration must be scrved on the heirs at law in the manner
prescribed by the act (Rev. Stat., ch. 2, secs. T, 8, 9) within two tcrins
after the decease of the defendant, or the suit will stand abated. It is not
sufficient to apply for such process within the two terms.

Arrran from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Yancey.
Ejectment. At the Fall Term, 1842, the death of the defendant Wil-
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liam Scott was snggested on the record, At Spring Term, 1843, there
was an order for a scire facias to issue to James Scott, of Burke County,
and an order of publication as to the other heirs at law of the said Wil-
liam Scott. A\ seire facios issued from Spring Term, 1843, made return-
able to Fall Term, 1843, This seire fucias was actually rerurned to the
special term held in August, 1843, At this term the following ovder was
made: “Ordercd by the comrt that a copy of the declaration and notice
to James Scott to next term; also issue copies to the sheriff to notify the
other heirs to this county.” At Fall Term, 1843, the declarations not
having been issued, the defendant’s counsel contended that the suit had
abated, and the court having so decided, the plaintiff appealed to the
Supreme Court.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Hoke, Alevander, and J. Il. Bryan for defendants. .

Rurrix, C.J. The act of 1786, Rev. Stat., ¢h. 2, sec. 1, authorized
heirs and excentors to carry on suits after the death of one of the par-
ties.  DBut as 1t prescribed no time at which the application to revive
should be made. it became necessary that the courts should lay down a
rule of practice to regulate the action of parties. In 1798 a
Regula Generalis was adopted that if a plaintff died and his (80 )
executors did not apply to carry on the suit within two terms after
the death, the cause should abate. 1 N. C,, 134, The same period has
also uniformly been taken, in case of the defendant’s death,. for the
plaintiff to take steps to bring in the representatives. In the construe-
tion of the act and the general rule, 1t was held that if the defendant
died, and the plaintiff, at the second term after his death, sued out a
scire facias, or had an order entered for issuing such process, that was
an application in due time. Hamilton ©. Jones, 5 N. C., +41. We sup-
pose that the application of the plaintiff in this suit is founded on that
case; but we do not think it will support the motion. The act of 1756
embraced only such actions as survived to or against representatives,
The action of ejectment was not of that character, and therefore 1t
could not be revived on the death of the defendant. To remedy that
inconvenience the Legislature passed the act of 1799, ch. 532, Rev. Stat,,
el 2, sees. 7, 8, 9, In which it is enacted “that after the death of the de-
fendant, the action of cjectinent may be revived by serring on the heirs
at law, within two terms after his decease, a copy of the declaration,
together with a notice to the lieirs to appear and defend the suit; and
after such sercice, the suit shall stand revived,” with particular direc-
tions as to the mode of service where the heirs are infants or reside out
of the State. Under this act it has been held that a service of the copy
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of the declaration and notice at the second term is sufficient to prevent
an abatement (Ray v. Stmpson, 4 N. C., 227); but service at a later
period cannot be admitted as sufficient without disregarding the un-
equivocal language of the act for the reviving of this particular action.
The distinction between the provisions of this act and those of the act
of 1786 and the Regula (Generalis is obvious—this requiring “service”
and the former “an application” within two terms. Here there was no
service of a copy of the declaration nor attempt to serve it until the
expiration of the second term, which was too late.

There is no error in the decision below, and the appellant must pay
the costs in this Court.

Per Crrian, Affirmed.

Cited: Tripp v. Potter, 33 N. (., 122,

(s1)

LITTLETON HARRIS ET AL, v. DUNCAN McRAE'S ADMINIS-
TRATORS ET AL.

1. Upon the destruction of any part of the record while a suit is pending, or
rather of the process, pleadings, or orders in a suit, such loss may be sup-
plied by making up others in their stead, provided the court be reasonably
satisfied that the two are of the same tenor.

2. Upon that matter the court in which the suit is must exercise its own judg-
nent.,

Arveearn from Battle, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of MoxNTGOMERY.

In this case the plaintiffs, alleging that the record of the suit was
destroyed in the fire by which the courthouse and all its contents were
consumed 1n March last, proposed to supply the loss by parol proof of
its existence and destruction, and showed that the defendants had notice
to produce the original record, and of the intention of the plaintiffs, in
case of its nonproduction, to offer secondary evidence of its contents.
The defendants objected, that to show that the cause was in court, the
original record must be produced, and that nothing could supply its loss.
The court held that if the existence and destruction of the record were
proved, then it was competent for the plaintiffs to supply the loss, first,
by the production of a copy, if that might be had, but if no copy had
been taken and preserved, then, in the sceond place, by parol proof of
its coutents. The clerk of the court was then introduced, and testified
that in the month of March last the courthouse for the county of Mont-
gomery was destroyed by fire, and that all the records of the Superior
Court of law for said county, including the record in this case, were also
destroyed ; that no copy of the said records was taken and preserved,

66 -



N.C] DECEMBER TERM, 1843.

Harrrs v. McRAE.

except a copy of the trial docket which had been made out at the last
term of this court for the usc of the court or the bar. The witness

then stated the contents of the record in this suit. Wherenpon ( 82 )
the court directed the clerk to make out a complete record of the

cause and ordered a jury to be impaneled to try the issues joined therein.
The plaintiffs thereupon had a verdict and judgment, from which the
defendants appealed to the Supreme Court.

No counsel in this court.

Rewrmy, C. J. We see no difficulty in the objection stated in this case,
but concur in the opinion of his Honor. While a case is pending, un
omission in the record from misprision of the clerk or any accident may
from necessity be supplied by making the proper entry as of the proper
time so as to make the record speak the truth as to the doings of the
partics or the court in that matter. TUpon the same prineiple, upon the
destruction of anv part of the record, or rather of the process, pleadings,
or orders in a suit (for the record, properly speaking, is not made up
until the cause is at an end), such loss may be supplied by making up
others in their stead, provided the court be rcasonably satisfied that the
two are of the same tenor. Thus, upon the loss of an oviginal bill in
equity or the destruction of a declaration, copies extant have been or-
dered to be filed and stand as the originals, And so we think 1t mnst
be as to each part and the whole of the proceedings. The rveal difficulty
" in the case consists not so much in the legal principle as n the party
having the means of satistving the court as to the tenor of the documents
destroyed, which he is under the necessity of doing before he ean put in
a substitute for them. Iut if the conrt is able to see really that, from
the materials before it, another record may be made of the same purport,
so that no injustice will be done, it 1s both within the authority and duty
of the court so to order. There was no intimation in this case of a vari-
ance between the record that was burnt and that newly drawn up, and
there can be scarcely a suspicion that they are not of the same tenor,
since the action is debt on a bond which is produced, and corresponding
to which were doubtless the writ and declaration, and the issues
appear from the memoranda on the preserved docket. Such being ( 83 )
the circumstances, we suppose the judge could not hesitate upon
the question of fact; but into that this Court does not enter, it being our
provinee only to say whether the Superior Court had the power in con-
troversy, upon which our opinion is clear in the affirmative.

Per Crurrran. Affirmed.

Cited: Greenlee . McDowell, 39 N. C., 485 ; Stanly v. Massingill, 63
N. C, 559; Hill v. Lane, 149 N. C., 271.
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MATTHEW POWELL v. NICHOLAS P. MATTHIS ET AL.

1. In equity. relief is granted between cosureties upon the principle of equality
applicable to a common risk; and upon the insolvency of one, the loss is
divided between the others as being necessary to an equality.

2. But in a court of law each surety is responsible to his cosurety for an
aliquot proportion of the money for which they were bound, ascertained
hy the number of sureties. merely without regard to the insolvency of any
one or more of the cosureties,

s

. Thix rule of the common law as declared in England is not altered by our
act of 1807, Rev. Stat., ch. 113, sec. 2, by which it is provided that where
the principal is insolvent, oune surety who has paid the debt may have his
action on the case against another “for a just and ratable proportion of
the sum.”

4. Where there are more than two sureties, and one pays the whole debt, the

principal heing insolvent, he cannot bring an action against his cosureties

jointly, hut each must be sued separately for his own liability.

Arrean from Pearson, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Duvrrix,

This suit commenced by a warrant before a justice of the peace of
Duplin County, and was carried by successive appeals to the Superior
Court of the county. On the trial it was in evidence that in 1838 one
Carrol exeented a note to once Barden for $52.83, and that the plaintift
and the two defendants executed the said note as the sureties of the said

Carrol; that in April, 1840, the plamntiff paid a judgment which
( 84 had been taken against the said Carrol and himself and the two

defendants upon the said note, including interest and costs, being
at the time of payment $59.69. It was also proven that Carrol, the prin-
cipal, was in 1840, and still 1s, insolvent, and that the plaintiff had de-
manded a contribution from the defendants before the warrant issued.
The defendants’ conusel insisted that the plamtitf could not maintain a
joint action, and moved to nousuit because the cause of action was sev-
eral. This question was reserved by the court, and the jury returned a
verdict for the plaintiff, subject to be set aside and a nousuit entered if
the court should be with the defendants upon the question rescrved. The
court was of opinion that the cause of action was several, and that a
joint action could not be maintained, and set aside the verdiet and
entered a Jjudgment of nounsuit, from which the plaintiff appealed.

No cowisel for plaiutiff,
Reoid vud Winstow for defendants.

Rerrev, CoJdo In equity, 1t has ahwavs been held that there shonld be
reliet between cosureties, upon the principle of equality applicable to a
commnen risk; and upon the msolveney of one, the loss has been divided
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between the others as being necessary to an equality. The court of
equity, from its modes of proceeding and having all the parties before
it at once, 1s able to adjust their rights upon this principle in every
case, however complicated by the number of the suretics or by succes-
sive insolvencies. In a single suit, everything may be fully investigated,
the property of the. principal first applied, full or partial indemnities
to some of the surcties inquired into and required, and the insolvency
of some of the suretics ascertained, and indeed the loss of cach ascer-
tained and the proper contribution from each finally and conclusively
determined. In many instances, a court of law is incompetent to ad-
minister the justice to which suretics may be entitled as against each
other. Ifor that reason, it was formerly held in this State that the
ground of relief in the courts of equity was a pure equity, and not
the notion of mutual promises between the cosurcties; and there- ( 83 )
fore that at common law no action would lie for one against an-
other, even where there were but two sureties. Carringlon v. Carson,
1 N. C, 410. Tt is true that about the same time in 1800 it was held
otherwise in England, and an action at law was sustained for one surety
- who paid the debt against another for contribution. Cowel ». Edwards,
2 Bos. & Pul, 268. DBut it was there found necessary to restriet the
action to the simple cases where there were two sureties; or if there were
more than two, to a recovery against each of an aliquot proportion of
the money, ascertained by the number of the sureties merely. 1t was
found impossible to carry the doefrine further at law, because conrts of
law proceed only on contracts, and could not imply that there was more
than the one contract between the sureties, at first enterved into, and snp-
pose, contrary to the faet, new ones to spring up with everx change of
the eivcumstances of the sureties that might happeu, even after the pay-
ment of the monev by one of them. As far as an aliquot proportion,
according to numbers, the money might be presumed to have been paid
to the nses of the sureties severally; but on the insolveney of one of them
afterwards, the share of the insolvent could not be made then to ehange
its character and become money paid to the use or at the request of
those who were solvent. The law eould not in such complicated cases
do complete justice by one final determination, and therefore it did not
undertake it; and such is still the rule in England.  Browne ». Lee, 6
Barn. & Cres., 689. .

In this State, however, the doctrine has been the subject of legislation
in the act of 1807, Rev. Stat.. ¢h. 113, see. 2, and it 1s to be considere:d
low far that has altered the law as it previously existed here. It pro-
vides that when the prineipal is insolvent, one suvety who has paid the
debt mav have his action on the case against another “for a just and
ratable proportion of the sum.” The purpose of the act was probably
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nothing more than to say that the rule laid down in Carrington v. Car-

son, that there was no jurisdiction at law in any case, should be
( 86 ) law no longer, leaving the question to the courts what in each

case was the “Just and ratable proportion” to which, as far as a
court of law was competent to ascertain, the party was entitled. It is
not unlikely that a knowledge of the case of Cowel v. Edwards, about
that time acquired, might have induced the cnactment, and that it was
intended to transfer its principle and nothing more in the act. At all
events, it furnishes no data for determining the proportion but the num-
ber of sureties, and thus it adopts the rule of that case. The words are,
“where there are {wo or more sureties, and one may have been compelled
to satisfy the contract, he may have his action against the other surety
or sureties for a just and ratable proportion of the sum.” The propor-
tion here spoken of is that which arises among the parties to the con-
tracts specified 1n the first part of the sentence, which are, first, a con-
tract in which there are two surcties, and, secondly, a contract in which
there are more than two.

In ecach of those cascs, the suretics are to be respectively liable for a
ratable proportion, namely, where there are two sureties for a moiety,
and where there are more than two, in a like proportion—that 1s, accord-
ing to their number. This construction is rendered the clearer when
attention is drawn to the particular case in which the action 1s given.
It 18 not 1n every case in which a surety makes the payment, but only
in that of the insolveuey of the prineipal, or what is tantamount, his
residence out of the State. Those and those alone are the cases within
the purview of the act; and upon the sipposition of that state of facts,
an aliquot part, according to numbers, is not only a ratable, but the only
just proportion of each surety. Without the insolvency of a surcty also
his share cannot in any court be imposed on the others; but the act takes
no notice that one or more of the sureties may be insolvent or reside
abroad, nor gives an action for rights arising out of that state of things.
It is apparent that case was not contemplated by the Legislature, and
therefore no rate of contribution between the sureties, as affected by the
insolvency of one or more of their own body, or indeed by anything else

but the insolvency of the principal was thought of or is provided
( 87) for in the act. The object was merely to change the form in the
single instance of payment by a surety who was unable to obtain
reimbursement from the principal, and everything else was left as before.

Tt follows that each surety is liable at law for only his original aliquot
part, and of course an action cannot be brought against two or more
jointly, but each must be sued separately for his own liability. Indeed
there is another consideration which renders it perfectly clear that a
joint action camnot be maintained, which 1s that the plaintiff might
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thereon raise the whole recovery from oue of the defendants 1n the first
instance, althongh the other might be solvent, which is wholly inadmissi-
ble. Morcover, it would change the ratio of liability, even in case of the
msolvency of one, for suppose three sureties, ., B., and C., for a debt
of $300, and that .\, pays it and then sues the other two for %200, 1t
B. then becomes insolvent and C. pay the judement, he would then pay
more thau his proportion and have a just elaim on \.—to return to him
$50 to equalize their loss.  Dut 1t 1s an absurdity that one shounld recover
m one action what the defendant may have a vight to recover back iun
another action, which shows that no action can be allowed 1n which the
recovery will not be confined to the sum for which the defendant 1s liable
at all eventz. Bevond such a liability justice can be done hetween per-
sons 1n this relation ouly in the court of equirty,
Prr Crrraa. AtHrmed.

Clited: Hall . Robinson, 30 N, C. 5% MePlherson oo MeDPherson, 33
N. C., 403; Leak v Corington, 99 N, C., 5705 Adams . Hayes, 120
N. C, 386 Fowle . MeLean. 163 N, C., 543,

(8%)
STATE v. SAMUEL O'NEALL.

1. The party impeaching a witness should inquire of the attacking witness
whether he has the means of knowing the general character of the witness
impeached.

2. He may answer that question without saying that he knows what a majority
of the neighbors say of that witness. Such ix not the only means of
acquiring a knowledge of general chavacter.

3. But the attacking witness cannot be asked by the party introducing him
simply “in wrhat estimation the witness impeached was held in his neigh-
borhood.”

Arrran from Dick, J., at Fall Term, 1543, of BurNcoaisE.

Petit lareeny. .\ witness by the name of Elizabeth Earnest was exam-
ined on behalf of the State. The defendant offered a witness by the
name of Wincade, and asked him if he knew the general character of
Elizabeth Earnest. The witness replied that he did not know whether
he did or not. The court then asked the witness if he knew what a
majority of the neighbors said of her. The witness replied he did not,
for she was voung when she left his neighborhood and he had not heard
a majority of her neighbors speak of her in any way. The defendant’s
counsel then proposed to ask the witness if he knew in what estimation
Elizabeth Earnest was held in his neighborhood before she left it. The
question was objected to by the solicitor for the State and overruled by
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the court becanse the witness had already stated that he had not heard
a majoritv of her neighbors speak of her. The defendant was found
guilty by the jury, and having moved for and been vefused a new trial,
and the court having pronounced a judgment in pursuance of the ver-
dict, appealed to the Supreme Court.

Attorney-General for the State.
Hoke for defendant.

(R9)  Daxmer, J. The party against whom a witness is called may
examine other witnesses as to the general character of the first
witness.  The regular mode is to inquire whether they, the attacking
witnesses, have the means of knowing the general character of the former
witness.  Rochwood's case, 4 Stat. Tri, 6935 Newsom v. Hartsink, 4
Esp., 102; Phil. Ev., 212, The means of ascertaining Elizabeth Earn-
est’s general character as inquired of by the court are not the only means
of ascertaining that character. That would be a means so extraordinary
that it would almost preclude any witness from being attacked as to
character. We do not pretend to define the exact meons by which an im-
peaching witness 1s to learn the general character of the witness at-
tacked, and this case, in our opinion, does not call for such a definition
from this Court. DBut then the question put by the defendant’s counsel,
“whether he (Kincade) knew in what estimation Elizabeth Earnest was
held in his neighborhiood before she left 1t was on the other hand too
much eirenmseribed. It did not amount to an inquiry as to hér general
character before she left his neighborhood.  The auswer to this question
might verv naturally have been, “my estimation of her character was
then so and so,” but we kuow that such an estimation by the witness
himself would not answer the requirements of the law., The counsel did
not ask the witness if he knew in what generel estimaation Elizabeth
Earnest was held, for that would have brought him round again to the
original question whether he knew her general character, which the wit-
ness had before responded to by stating that he could not say whether
he did or not.  And to aveid the same answer, the counsel not ounly
changed the pliraseology of the question, but so narrowed its meaning
as to take it out of the rule of law governing questions as to the charac-
ter of witnesses; and, thevefore, we think he was properly stopped by
the eourt, but not for the reason then given by his Honor.
Per Crrraarn No error.

Ciled: S.vo Lanier, 79 N, C., 6245 S, v Ejler, 85 N. C., 5885 S, o,
A\'Lm!/']/'u(/. 118 N. C., 1253.
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(90)
STATE v. BAILEY KIRBY.

1. An oral requisition by a plaintiff in a warrant to an officer to take hail ix
sufficient to justify the latter in making an arrvest and insisting on bail.

. But an officer hy virtue of his office ix not an agent of the plaintiff for exact-
ing bail. and it may be doubted whether he can become an agent for that
purpoese,

Arvearn from Dick. J.. at Fall Term, 1843, of Macox.

Indictment against the defendant for falsely arresting and imprisou-
ing one Bonnard Long, to which the defendant pleaded not guilty, It
was proved on the trial that the defendant arrested and took into his
custody Bonnard Long and detained him in custody several hours. Tt
wias also proved that the defendant said he arrested Long on a warrant
in favor of Bryson & Alison. The defendant proved that he was a con-
stable for Macon County, in which the arrest was made. The defend-
ant’s counsel admitted that he had no warrant at the time of the arvest
in favor of Drrson & Alison, but alleged that he had o warrant in favor
of one Matthis, and offered the warrant. which was in the following
words, to wit:

“Nortir Caroriya—Macon County—ss.

“To auv lawful officer to exceute and return in thivty days, Sundays
excepted:  You are hereby commanded to take the body of Bonnard
Long and cause him to appear before some justice of the peaee ot snid
connty. to answer the complaint of Perer Matthis oo plea of debt due
by book account, the sun nader ten dollars, Given under my hand and
seal, this 1= Februory, 18410 Siened and sealed by justiee).”

N

On e baek of this was an Indorsement as follows:
“Peter Matthi= v. Bonnard Long. %7.56.  Execnted by B. Trby,
C'onst.”

The defendant then proved by one Paxton that e (Paxton). as the
agent of Drvson & lizon, enrried o note exeeuted by Long to the
defendant and informed him thot Breson & Alison wished him to (91)
proceed on the said note aeainst Long nmnediately, for he (the
witness) was informed thar Long was abour to run away, This witness
further stated that he saw at the =anie time @ warrant in the possession
of the defendant 1o favor of Muarihis aeuinst Tong. and believed the
warrant offered noevidence o be the wanie papery thar the defendant
e comnty of Macon; that Loug
oty for the purpose of making
an avraneentent with Breson and Alison, who lived in Havwood ;. that

arrested Long on the sanwe dav e il
wishod to croxs the e tao Haywoed

-
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the defendant refused to let Long go into Haywood County unless Bry-
son and _Alison would release him (the defendant) from all liability;
that they agreed to do so, and Long went into Haywood. This witness
heard nothing said between Long and the defendant about the Matthis
debt.  The defendant then proved by one Bryson that he heard some-
thing between the defendant and Long about the Matthis debt while
Long was in custody, but could not tell what was said. There was no
evidence that Matthis had ever instrueted or required the defendant to
hold Long to bail on the said warrant. The defendant’s counsel re-
quested the court to instrucet the jury, “that although the law is that
unless the plaintiff instruct the officer to hold to bail, the warrant is
nothing more than a summons; yet if the jury ave satisfied from the
evidence of Paxton that the defendant was informed, upon the arrest,
that Long was about to run away, the defendant, being in law the agent
of Matthis, had a right to hold Long to bail if he did so bona fide for
the purpose of securing the debt due to Matthis” The court refused
the instructions asked for, but instructed the jury that if they believed
the defendant arrested Long and detained him in custody several hours,
as stated by the witness, without any legal authority to do so, he was
guilty of the charge in the indictment; that the warrant in favor of
Matthis, if they believed the defendant had it in his possession at the
arrest, would not authorize the arrest and detention of Long, unless
Matthis had instructed the defendant to hold Long to bail.

The jury found the defendant guilty, and judgment having been
(92) given pursuant to the verdict, the defendant appealed.

Attorney-Generval for the State.
No counsel for defendant.

Rurrin, C. J. A constable is directed by the act of 1794 (Rev. Stat.,
ch. 62, see. 7), “when required by the plaintiff,” to take bail on serving
a warrant. The act does not preseribe the mode in which the plaintiff
shall require bail as by endorsement by himself or his agent on the war-
rant, and perhaps the omission may lead to abuses if permitted to con-"
tinue; but as the act is silent, we should feel obliged to hold that an oral
requisition was suflicient, and that of an agent was in law that of the
plaintiff. But we think the court was right in refusing the instructions
prayed for, because they assume a position wholly indefensible that the
constable was “in law the agent of the plaintiff” for this purpose. By
virtue of his office, he is not the agent of the party, but of the law; and
in reference to the power and duty of taking bail, he is to act as he may
be required by the plaintiff, and not by his own will or judgment.
Whether Le can become the agent of the plaintiff, so as thereby to invest
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himself with the arbitrary authority to summon or to imprison a de-
fendant, is well worthy of consideration. Admit that he may, there was
no evidence of such ageney of the defendant for Matthis in this case—
not even anvthing from which an agency for this purpose might be
remotely inferred, as if the demand were due on a bond and Matthis
had placed it in the hands of the defendant to collect, with or without
suit. The defendant was clearly guilty, and the judgment ought to stand.
Per C'triaar. No error.

(93)

WILLIAM CASE v. MARVILL M. EDNEY ET AL.

Where one has ziven a deed of trust on his property, to he sold for the benefit
of his creditors, and they have neither released their ¢laim on him nor as-
sented to the deed, e hag such an interest in the sale of the property that
if at a sale made by his trustee he stands by and sees property sold in
which he knows there ix a latent defect and does not disclose it he makes
himself liable to the purchaxer in an action for deceit.

Arerar from Pearson, J., at an extra session in August, 1843, of Bux-
COMEE.

Case in the nature of an action of decelt for a fraud in the sale of a
mavre. It was proved on the trial that in November, 1839, the defendant
Marvill Ednex, being much indebted, executed to the defendant Rufus
Ednev a deed of trust, which was duly proved and vegistered, for his
real and personal estate, including several tracts of land and many arti-
cles of personal property, among others the mare in question, in trust
to sell and apply the proceeds to the pavment of the debts specified; that
in December, 1839, the said Rufus, the trustee, sold all the property at
public sale; that the plaintiff attended and bought the mare at $75, for
which he gave his note and surcty to the trustee according to the terms
of the sale; that Marvill Edney was present at the sale, but took no part
in it and said nothing one way or the other to the property. It was also
in evidence that in the spring of 1839 the mare had a colt, and soon
afterwards was discovered to be very lame in her left foreleg; that she
continued lame during the summer, but early in the fall, after the colt
was taken from her, she got 1 good order and was to all appearance
well.  One of the witnesses said that although when standing or walking
nothing seemed to be wrong, vet when put to a trot he could perceive
she was a little stiff.  As to this the evidence was contradictory.

On the dax of sale she appeared to be well, and some weeks after ( 94 )
the sale the plaintiff, althongh he had been told soon after he pur-

chased her that the mare had been lame the spring before, said he was
well pleased with her.  About 1 February, 1840, the mare became very
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stiff in all her joints and died soon afrerwards. There was other evi-
dence which 1t 1s not material to state.

The court charged the jury that there was no evidence that the de-
fendant Marvill had sold the mare to the plaintiff, or had made any
misrepresentation, or done any act to assist the defendant in practicing
a frand, supposing the Jatter to have been guilty of a fraud; and inas-
much as the legal title had passed out of Marvill and was vested in
{ufus, he was not accountable as an owner would be who procured an
auctioneer to cry his property merelv as his agent. and stood by in
silence.  As to the defendant Rufus, the eourt charged that althongh le
acted as trustec in making the sale, vet, like all other persons who sold,
he was bound 16 act honestly and to disclose defects if lie believed them
to exist. It was then left to the jury whether the mare was unsound at
the time of the sale, and whether the defendant Rufus knew or had rea-
son to believe that she was unsound; if =0, as he failed to state the eir-
cumstances, he was ltable in damages, The jury found a verdict in favor
of the defendants. .\ new trial was moved for on the ground of error in
the charge of the court as to the defendant Marvill and refused, and
judgment being rendered pursuant to the verdiet, the plaintiff appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Loke for defendant.

Daxier, J. The court said to the jury that nasmuch as the Tegal title
to the mare had passed out of Marvill Edney and vested by the deed of
trust in Rufus Edney, the trustee, he was not accountable as one would
be who procured an auctioneer to ery his property merely as his agent,

and he stood by in silence.  Was this part of the charge correct?
(95 ) If the geller of an article is aware that there is any defect in it,

and he frandulently conceals it, and 1t be such a defect as the
buyver hath not the means of discovering by the exercise of ordinary dili-
gence, the purchaser may maintain an action of deceit in the sale. If
the owner had procured an auctioneer to sell, 1t is admitted that if the
thing so sold had been defective, and the owner, knowing of the defect,
stood by and failed to disclose it e would be liable. DBabbington on
Auctions, 164; Jones v. Dorden, 4 Taunt., $47. The legal title in the
mare was transferred by the deed to Rufus Edney to sell her, and the
stipulation in the deed was that he should apply the proceeds of the sale
to satisfy certain creditors of Marvill Edney. There is nothing in the
ase to show us that the creditors had released the debtor in consider-
ation of the assienment of this property for their benefit, nor that they
in fact had ever agreed to accept of the said property for their bencfit.
If, therefore. the creditors were not to release, Marvill Edney had an
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interest in the price the mare might bring, either as constituting a fund
for the payment of his debts or as resulting to his use. Although a
court of law may not be able to enforee such rights, vet it is obliged to
take notice of them as valuable interests. They affect the competence of
witnesses, and in some instances may be sold under execution. It seems
to us, therefore, that the maker of the deed was materially concerned in
raising up the fnnd by the said sale to the highest amount; and it also
appears to us that Rufus, in the receipt and application of the money,
is to be looked 1upon as the agent of Marvill Edney. We, therefore, are
of opinion that the aforesaid part of his IHonor’s charge was erroncous,
and that there must be a new trial as to Marvill Edney; but the verdict
and judgment in favor of Rufus Eduey are not disturbed.

Tt will not be understood from this that we think mere silenee of the
debtor as to defects in his property, when he is present at a sale under
exceution, would amount to a fraud, for that is a proceeding in invitum
in which the sale 1s exclusively the act of the law, and the rule of caveat
emptor applies.

Prr Crriaor New trial.

Cited: DBrown v. Gray, 51 N, C., 104.

(96)
JOHN ASHCRAFT v. YOUNG H. ALLEN,

A sheriff, from whose custody a prisoner confined for debt had escaped, agreed
with B. that if he would retake the prisoner and deliver him at the county
town within a certain time he would pay him $400. B. took the prisoner
and had him under his care, within the time specified, at his own house
some miles from the county town, intending to deliver him to the sheriff,
when the sheriff went to the house of B. and seized the prisoner himself.
In an action by B. against the sheriff, held, first, that the contract was not
illegal ; secondly. that the sheriff having prevented the plaintiff from liter-
ally performing his contract while ie was in the progress of doing so, was
answerable to him for the stipulated sum.

Apvearn from Battle, ], at Fall Term, 1843, of Avsow.
Assumpsit, in which the plaintifi’s counsel, in opening the case,
stated that he declared on a speeial contract in writing, of which the
following is a copy, viz.:

“Norru (Carorixa—Anson County—ss.

“This is to certify that T am to pay John Asheraft four hundred dol-
lars for the delivery of his brother James Asheraft to me, in Wadesboro,
between this and September next, this 1 May, 1838, T. H. Avcex.”

The plaintiff then called as a witness one Redfearn, who testified that
the defendant was sheriff of the comnty of Anson during 1338, and as
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such had one James Asheraft, a brother of the plaintiff, in his custody
in the public jail of his county; that the witness was then a deputy of
the defendant, and heard him say that James Asheraft had broken jail
and made his escape, and the witness saw him at his (James’s) house,
and the plaintiff, his brother, with him. but he could not state at what
time this took place.
James Asheraft was then called for the plaintiff, and stated that he
was confined in the jail of Anson for debts amounting in the
(197 ) whole to ten or twelve thousand dollars; that he made his escape
therefrom by breaking the jail without the knowledge, contri-
vance or assistance of any other person: that after eseaping he resolved
upon going to Alabama, and with that purpose went to take leave of his
father and mother and his own family; that he first met his brother, the
plaintiff, at his father’s, and informed him of his intention of going to
the Sonthwest; that in a few days afterwards his brother came to him
i the woods near his (the witness’s) house and showed him the written
contract abiove recited, and told him the defendant would be hound for
his debts mnless he was retaken; that he then refused to surrender him-
celf, but after some further couversation told his brother fhat he in-
~tended to go on through Camden and Columbia, in South Carolina, and
that if his brother would meet him the next dav at a place he desig-
nated in South Carolina he would tell him his final determination with
regard to the surrender of himself; that his brother did meet him at
the time and place appointed, and he at last agreed to surrender him-
sclf to his brother upon condition that he should be permitted to go
home and see his family before being delivered up to the sheriff; that
he and his brother then, after remaining in the woods all night, went
togetlier to the house of the witness, where they arrived the next morn-
ing; that finding one of his children very sick, he requested his brother
to permit him to remain at home until the next morning, which his
brother consented to do, and remained with him; that during this time
Le considered himself the prisoner of his brother, though he was not
coufined in any way; that early the next morning, before the witness
had got up, the defendant came In company with three or four other
persons, some of whom were armed, to the house of the witness, and as
soon as he had dressed himself entered the room where he was and said,
“T am glad to sce you, you must go with me 1o Wadesboro”; that the
plaintiff then stepped into the room and said, “No, he 1s my prisoner,
and I am going to take him to Wadesboro”; that the witness requested
‘them to wait until he could have breakfast, but the defendant in-
{ 98 ) sisted upon setting off immediately, and thex all’ went to Wades-
boro; that the plaintiff went in company with the defendant and
his attendants, and after entering the town, said to the defendant, “I
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now surrender vou my brother,” to which the defendant replied, “I have
had him all along,” but the witness said he had been his brother’s pris-
oner. This witness stated further that the plaintiff persuaded the wit-
ness to surrender, and, overcome by hix persuasion, he consented to sur-
render himself as the prisoner of the plaintiff, to be by him delivered
in Wadesboro to the defendant, provided the plaintifl would permit the
witness first to go home and visit his family: that this was in the spriug
of 1838, that the witness was returned to the jail in about a fortnight
after he had escaped. This witness also stated that the contract above
recited 1s the same which the plaintiff exhibited to the witness in the
woods; that he had no kuowledge of this contract wntil it was exhibited
to him in the woods, nor had he any reason to expeet that anyv such con-
traet would have been made by the plaintiff,

The plammtiff heve closed his case, when the court ntimared an opin-
ion that the action could nor be sustained. in submission to which the
plaintiff submitted to a judgment of nonsuit.

A motion was subsequently made to have the nonsuit set aside and a
new trial granted, the plaintiff’s counsel alleging that be was entitled to
recover cither upon the ground that lie had performed his part of the
contract or that, if he had nor done so. he was prevented by the act of
the defendant himself, and that at all events he was entitled to recover
upon a count for a quaulumr neraid. The court held thar if the action
could not be sustained upon the special contract it could not be sustained
at all, and that a count upon a guantum merwit would not now be
allowed without the defeudant’s consent, which was not given; that the
. plaintiff had not proved a cowmpliance with his part of the coutract,
which was essential to the maintenance of his action; that his permit-
ting his brother to go home and remain there a day justified the
defendant in taking him himself, and having done so. the plammtiff (99 )
had no longer any claim to compensation under the contract. The
court held further that if it were contended for the plaintiff that under
the contract he had a right to give his brothier ease, then the contraet was
against the poliev of the law and void. The motion for a new trial he-
ing overruled, the plaintiff appealed.

No counsel for plainti].
Strange and Mendenhall for defendant.

Reerrx, C.J. It is needless to inquire whether there was evidence to
sustain a count for a quantum meruit, since there was no such count in
the declaration, and the court had, undoubtedly. the power to refuse per-
mission to add it. It is lHkewise true that, as the action is founded on a
special agreement, whereby the defendant bound himself to pay a stipu-
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lated sum of mouey on the performance of a precedent act by the plain-
tiff, the latter cannot recover without showing a performance of that act
or a sutlicient excuse for its nonpertformance. His Honor was correct in
holding that the plaintiff had not shown a compliance with his part of
thie contract by performing the precise act to be doue by him, for he did
not deliver John Asheraft to the defendant in Wadesboro. and the sher-
iff no doubt had the right to vetake his prisoner, and did rerake him,
before he was brought to him “In Wadesboro.”

But the Court is nevertheless of opinion that it was not correet to
nonsuit the plaintiff.  Of the credibility of the testimony the jury are
the judges, and there was evidence tending to show—and if believed,
showing—that the plaintiff was in the conrse and progress towards the
performance of the condition oun his part, and would have performed it
literally according to its terms if he had not been preveuted by the act
of the defendant himself.  That is alwavs suflicient, for he who pre-

vents the performance of a thing ot which le is to have the bene-
(100) fit caunot 1nsist on auy advantage frow its nonperformance. 1In

such a case the aer is considered as done as far as vespects the
rights to arise upon its performance to him who was to perform it. An
averment, therefore, in the declaration that the plaintiff had retaken the
prisoner and had him 1n his power and custody with the iutention to
carry him to Wadesboro and there to deliver him to the detfendant, and
that he could have so carried and delivered hint, and would have done
so but that the defendant took the prisoner from the power and custody
of the plaintiff, aud thereby hindered and preveuted him from making
the delivery, supported by dne proof, would, in our opinion, entitle the
plaintiff to recover. To hold otherwise 1s nierely sticking to the letrer
without regard to the substance of the agreement, and would occasion
the evasion of the cleavest stipulation by tricks and subterfuge. The
real object of this contraet was to enable a sheriff to vetake a debtor who
had escaped, and thus save himself from lLieavy labilities; and he sup-
posed that the plaintiff, either by his mfluence with his brother. who
was the debtor, or by other means, could bring abour that end, tfor which,
it he could and would, the sheriff agreed to pay him a reward. But in
the agreement a time and place of performance are specified, on which
indeed the defendaut has a right to insist as a condition, but not s0 to
insist on it as 1o defeat the rights of the other party, notwithstanding
the agreement has been substantially performed by the other party, and
the defendant has had the same benefit from it as if it had been a literal
performance.  Suppose the defendant had accepted his prisoner from
the plaintiff ar his home in the country, it caunot be disputed but that
would be the same as a delivery in Wadesboro.  Suppose that, learning
that the plaintifl was bringing his brother 16 rown for the purpose of
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delivering him, the defendant had met them just out of town and, as he
had a right to do, had then taken the debtor into his own custody, the
~ same consequence must follow. It is the same thing in the events that
happened, except that the evidence is not so plain avd convineing thar
the plamntiff had in fact the power over the debtor, aud with the
power the will to restore him to the timprisonment from which he (101)
escaped. DBut as to the eredit due to the evidence, or the inference

from it as to the purposes of the plaintiff, they fall to the province of
the jury to be decided. We apprehend also that there 1s nothing in the
policy of the law to forbid such a contract as this, nor to impeach the
right of the plaintiff under it on the score that he gave ease to the
debtor. That is a question between the ereditors and the sheriff, and
the acts of the plaintiff would not have affected it at all.  The plamntiff
was not the defendant’s deputy, nor had from him any authority what-
ever, and therefore his aets did not induee any responsibility on the
sheriff. The rights of these parties grow out of the stipulations of the
agreement between them, whereby the plaintiff undertakes, if he can, by
his own authority or influence, to place his brother again in the power
of the sheriff; and upon his doing so within a time specified, the sheriff
engages to pay him so mueh money. As between them, the law enforees
no diligence more speedy than that for which theyv contracted. If, in-
deed, the plaintiff would not deliver the prisoner before the sheriff was
able, of himself, to take him he wonld Jose his bargain, because the sher-
iff does certainly not depart from his own right to retake him, and he
might exercise it for his own security, provided only that he did not
thereby stop the plaintiff from fulfilling literally his part of the agree-
ment, which he had fulfilled substantially.

Per Curranr. Tenire de noro.

Cited: Bufflein v. Baird, 73 X. (., 291,

(102)
JOB WORTH v. JOHN NORTIIAM ET AL.

1. Though a conveyance may be fraudulent as against creditors, it is good
against the grantor and tort feasors not claiming as credifors.

19

. Where a raw material is transferred, but left in possession of the grantor.
and is afterwards by him. with the consent of the grantee. converted into
a manufactured article. the grantee ix entitled to this article in its new
state.

Apprar from Manly, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Gricrorn.
Trover to recover the value of certain chattels, whieh the plaintif
claimed under a deed of trust executed by one John Beard to the plain-
S1
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nff as trustee for certain creditors. It was in proof that John Beard,
the grantor, had continued in possession of the property conveved after
the execution of the deed. and while so in possession, in the prosecntion
of his trade as a hatter, with materials conveyed by the deed, to wit, fur
and hats in o incomplete state, had finished a number of hats, and that
these were spread about throngh several counties in this State and sev-
cral in Virginia, The defendants introduced varions judgments and exe-
eutions against Beard for debts due prior to the date of the deed,
amounting in all to about $300: bur it did not appear that the articles
which were seized and =0ld by the defendants had been sold by virtue of
any execution on these Judgments. The articles were all taken from the
possession of Beard. There was no proof of any other debts of Beard
ar the time he exeenred the decd, except those referred to above and a
judgment of a court aud an exceution thereon for ... ... , the lien of
whicll was anterior to the date of the deed. It was insisied by the de-
fendants that the deed to the plaintiff was fraudulent and void, and the
court was reguested to instruet the jury to that effect as a conclusion of

law {1) because of the absence of any specification in the deed of
(103) a debt or debts intended 1o be secured by 1t; (2) because of the

manifest disparity between the anmount of the property conveyed
aud the entive amount of the grantor’s debts so far as they appeared;
(3) because of the actual posrpounenient of any action under the deed
for six months, The court declined pronouncing, as a conclusion of
law, that the deed was fraudulent for any or all the above reasons, but
left them to the jury to be considered by them with all the other eir-
cumstances of the ease, when they came to pass upon the validity of the
instrument, as a question of fact., TUpou the subject of damages, the
jury were informed that they might not only assess the value of such of
the articles converted as were in a state of completion at the time of the
convevance, but wight add to this amount the value of such articles as
were fabricated out of the materials conveyed.

The jury rerwmed a verdiet of guilty as to two of the defendants and
not guilty as to the other. A new trial was moved for (1) because the
court refused the iustructions praved for; (2) because the court erred
in the Instructions given on the point of damages. The new trial was
refused. and judgment having been given according to the verdict the
defendant found guilty appealed.

Mendenfiall and Iredell for plaintiff.
Cirahiam for defendants.

Daxier, J. On the question of fraud in the conveyance by Beard to
the plaintiff, the court left it to the jury to say whether there was any
<@ :
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fraudulent intent on the part of Beard, and the jury found there was
not such an intent. But suppose there had been such an intent, still the
conveyance would have been good in law against the grantor and

the defendants also, who were but tort feasors. The property (104)
mentioned in the deed beiug dispersed made no difference, for the

title being in Beard at the time, and there being no adverse possession,
the said title in law drew to it the possession, and the plaintiff did not
take an assignment of a chose in action, but acquired the title and also,
in law, the possession of the property mentioned in the deed.

Secondly, Beard did not, after the date of the deed of trust, tortiously
take the plaintiff’s fur and change it into hats. He was the bailee of
the plaintiff, and the alteration of the articles does not appear to have
been done against the will and consent of the bailor. If I send my wheat
to a mill to be ground into flour, and the miller, my bailee for that pur-
pose, converts it into fiour, the property in the flour is in me, and not in
the miller; but if a miller or other person fortiously takes myv wheat and
afterwards turns it into flour or malt, the flour or malt is not my prop-
erty. So if I gather my grapes and send them to my neighbor’s wine
press, and he by my consent turn them into wine, the wine belongs to
me because the vintner was my bailee; but if my neighbor commit a tres-
pass and tortiously take and carry away my grapes, and then turn them
into wine, the wine is not my property. The wheat and the grapes thus
tortiously taken having lost their identity by their transformation, the
original owner cannot pursue and recover them from the fort feasor in
their entirely new and changed nature and state. But even if things
have been tortiously taken and have not lost their identity, the owner may
recover them in their changed form unless they have been annexed to
and made part of something which is the principal, or changes its form
from personal to real cstate (as if worked into a house), as cloths made
into a garment, leather into shoes, trees squared into timber, and iron
made into bars. All these, and such like, may be reclaimed by the origi-
nal owner in their new and improved state, for the nature of the thing
is not changed. Brown r. Sax, T Cowen, 59; Betts . Love, 5 Jolm., 384;
Curtis v. Grant, 6 John., 169; Babcock r. GHIl. 10 Johu., 287; Vin. ab.
title Property, E. plea., 5.

Prr Curiaar. No error.

(105)
ANN McGEE v. THE HEIRs AT Law oF THOMAS McGEE, DECEASED.

1. In a petition for dower. it is sufficient for the widow to state that her hus-
band died seized of the lands. It is not necessary to state that the heirs
entered ax heirs, or to set forth deeds executed by her husband to the
heirs in his lifetime and allege that they were fraudulent as to her.
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2. Upon the trial of the issue. if made by the answers and replication. whether
Lie died =eized or not. the question of fraud will arise

S0 When the conveyances of the hushand to his heirs ave to operate only after
liix death. and in the meantime he is to have the enjoyment of the land,
the conveyances are to he deemed colorable and void as to lher.

4. Thix presumption can ouly e repelled by his having made an effectual pro-
vixion for his wife,

5. Where the husband, in executing a conveyvance to his heirs, declares the
ohjeet to be to defeat hix wife of dower, this Ix a case of actual fraud.

6. Where o deed ix made by a hushand to hix heirs to defeat his widow of
dower, the cireumstances of his afterwards attempting to make a will in
hier tavor for a part of his lands is not admissible on the question of fraud
hetween the widow and the heirs, because. being incomplete, it was only
the subsequent declaration of one who had committed a fraud of his not
intending to do =o.

Aerean from Pearson, J.. at Fall Tern, 1843, of Drprix,

Petition for dower, filed by the widow of Thomas McGee, deceased,
against the defendants, who are his children and his heirs at law. The
conusel for the defendants moved to dismiss the petition because there
was 10 allegation that the defendants as heirs had entered, and were
seized as lieirs, at the filing of the petition. The court was of opinion
that there was 1o necessity for an express allegation that the defendants
had entered and were seized as heirs, as the heirs are constructively in
possession before actual entry; but at all events, the objection was walved
by the answer and could only have been taken advantage of by special

demurrer.
(106)  The counsel for the defendants then moved to dismiss the peti-

tion because the petition alleged that Thomas McGee died seized,
and did not allege’ that betore his death he had executed the deeds of
gift to his children mentioned in the auswer fraudulently with an iutent
to defeat the dower of the petitioner. The court was of opinion that
the petition need not allege the existence and fraudulent intent of the
deeds. When their existence was alleged in the answers as a ground of
defense, the petitioner by her rveplication might either deny their exist-
ence or might insist that they were fraudulent and void as to her.

Upon the issues submitted to the jury as to the validity of the deeds
under which the defendants elaimed, the evidence was that Thomas
MeGee, the deceased husband, had by his first wife four children, who
ave the present defendunts; that some twenty vears ago, upon the death
of his first wife, he married the petitioner, by whom he had no children,
but they lived happily together up to the time of his death; that the
said MeGee was u man of good estate and owned about 1,006 acres of
Tand and 25 slaves: that some vears hefore his death his danghter Doro-
thy intermarried with one Stanford, and they settled off to themselves;
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that about six vears before his death his son Thomas married, and was
permitted to build a house and clear and cultivate, frec from rent, that
part of the land contained in the deed, which was afterwards made to
him, with the exception of a small field and the mill, of which his father
retained the possession np to his death; that his son William turned ont
badly, became much embarrassed, and left the State; that his danghter
Elizabeth remained unmarried and coutinued to live with her father.

Oue witness proved that a few months before the decds hercinafter
mentioned were executed, hie was at the house of MeGee; that they were
talking about the widow of one Wilkinson, who had the court before
disgented from her husband’s will; that MeGee said he intended to give
his widow a sufficieney to support her decently during ber life, but he
did not intend to leave his business so that it ecould be torn up as
Wilkinson’s was by the dissent of the widow—he would deed his (107)
property before he died; that MceGee was about 60 vears of age,
and died about eight months after the execution of the deeds.

Another witness proved that in August, 1841, when the deeds were
executed, he was at the house of MceGee and wrote them at his request,
and also a deed of gift for some personal property to Mrs. Stanford;
that MeGee executed the deeds and delivered to Thomas his and to Eliza-
beth hers, and also delivered to Elizabeth the one for her sister, Mrs.
Stanford; that before, or at the time of the delivery, the old man said,
“My children, 1 shall expect to have the use of this property while T
live,” to which they assented; that he also told Elizabeth he could give
nothing to his unfortunate sen William, but if he came back she must
let him live with her, and if she married she must muake a deed of trust
$0 as to secure him certain negroes which he named. The witness also
stated that Mrs. MeGee was not present when the deeds were exceuted ;
that he met her as he came out of the room; that she Jooked displeased,
and said she thought there was some underhand work going on; that the
witness told her nothing had been done except to make deeds to the chil-.
dren for the property which the old man had given them in his will
which the witness had written for him some three or four vears before.
The witness stated that the will he alluded to was present when the deeds
were exceuted, and he left it with the old man and had not seen it since.
The witness stated that the old man’s children had great influence with
Lim, and he said while the decds were writing that his first wife had
been the making of Lhim, and he felt hound to give Ler children a liberal
support. .

The two deeds produced by the defendants—containing the one 500
aeres and the other 400 acres—embraced all the land belonging to the
old man, except 106 acres, which included the house and abount 90 acres
of cleared land, and was about one-third in value and gquality of all the
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cleared land. The defendants’ counsel offered 1o give in evidence a
paper-writing executed by the old man a short time hefore his death, pur-

porting to be his will, but which was not admitted to probate as
(108) it was only attested by one witness, in which the said 106 acres

were given to the widow for life. The counsel stated that the
object of this evidence was to show that the old man did not intend to
defeat his wife's dower, but intended to make ample provision for her.
The court considered this evidence irrelevant and rejected it.

The court charged the jury that by law a widow was entitled to one-
third of all the land her husband was seized of in fee at his death, for
life, as her dower; and if the husband made any convevance of his land
with an intent to deprive the widow of this right to one-third, such con-
veyance was in law fraudulent and void as to her; and notwithstanding
any convevance so made to detraud her of her dower, he was still, so far
as her right to dower was concerned, considered as dying seized of the
land; that his intending to make what he considered an ample compen-
sation for this right of dower made no difference, for he had no right to
alter, abridge or diminish this right by anv deed made solely for that
purpose, and that when, just before hiz death, a husband made deeds of
gift having the effect to interfere with this right, it was to be presumed
that such was his iutent, unless such presumption was rebutted by the
evidence—as that his object was to advance a child and give him a start
in the world; but when a husband made deeds of gift for a large part
of his real estate and continued to use it as he had done before, those
circumstances had a tendency to confirm the presumption that such was
his intent.

The jury found the issues in favor of the petitioner. A motion for a
new trial because the court erred 1 not dismissing the petition upon the
grounds stated, because they erred in rejecting the evidence as to the
paper-writing, and because the court erred in the charge to the jury,
was overruled and judgment rendered for the petitioner, from whicll the
defendants appealed.

Winslow for plaintift.
Reid for defendants.

Rerrix, C. J. We think it sufficient for the petition to follow the
language of the statute and allege that the husbaud died seized.

{109) It is not necessary it should notice the deeds to some of the heirs
at law, for the widow may not know of them, or not so as to de-

seribe them, or that the donee will insist on them. Besides, if they be
fraudulent, they are void by the statute as to her, and she max treat the
land as if the deed had no existence. In Littleton . Littleton, 18 N, C.;
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327, and Norwood r. Barrow, 20 N. C., 578, the petitions stated that the
husband died seized, and the heirs took issue thereon in that general
form, which was approved. On the trial of the issue the deeds are evi-
dence that the husband did not die seized, and that may be rebutted by
evidence upon their face or proof eliunde that they were exceuted n
fraud of the wife.

Upon the evidence in this case, the instructions to the jury were, in
our opinion, entirely proper. The deeds conveyed to two of the children
900 acres out of 1,006 acres of land and 22 out of 25 slaves, which the
husband owned, leaving but 106 acres of land to descend to two other
children, and out of which his widow was to be endowed. There is
direct evidence that the deeds were intended to operate only after the
husband’s death, and in fact he coutinued in the enjoyment ot the prop-
erty while he lived. This, we said in Littleton r. Littleton, showed the
deed to be but colorable as an immediate convevance, and that, without
interfering with the maker’s own enjoyment, it was intended to hinder
that of the wife, and so was vold as against her. DBut here the husband
plainly declared that his object in making the deeds was to defeat his
wife of the right of claiming dower as secured to her by law, which
makes the case one of express fraud. The only way of repelling that
imputation would have been for the hushand to make an effeetual pro-
vision for the wife as much to her advantage as if the deeds had not an
existence. For that reason, we do not sce, if the imperfect will had been
completed, that it would have purged the positive frand designed in exe-
cuting the deeds. But it is not necessary to consider that, as we
are of opinion that the paper was properly rejected. Not being a (110)
will, it is but an empty subsequent declaration of the party, who
perpetrated a legal fraud, that he did not intend to do so, or was willing
to make some reparation for it, as far as he could. It is irrelevant to
establish a bona fide intention in making the deeds.

Per Curraa. - No error.

Cited: Grant v. Grant, 109 N, C., 714

MARK McWILLIAMS v. DABNEY COSBY.

Under the book debt law, a plaintiff may prove by his own oath a balance due
to him of $60 or under, although his account produced appears to have
heen originally for more than $60, but is reduced by credits below that
amount.

Arprrar from Battle, J., at specml term on the third Monday of June,
1843, of Wake.
AssumpSIt to recover the balance of aun account for goods delivered

and work and labor done. The account was originally $203, but the
ST



IN THHE SUPREME COURT. |26

McWrinnrays . CosBy.

plaintiff had given credit on it for $138.34, leaving a halance due of
§44.16. The action commenced by warrant before a single justice and
was brought by suecessive appeals to the Superior Court, when the plain-
tiff declared on o special contract and also on the common counts.

On the trial the plaintiff produced a witness who testified that the
plaintiff, upon an agrecinent with the defendant, furnished him unburnt
bricks at the price of §3 per thousand, bur he did not know how manyv
were deltvered norv thie time when thex were delivered.  Another witness
for the plaintiff proved that he assisted in burning the bricks, and that
the plaintiff paid some mones o the hands, but he did not know how

much.  The plaintiff’s counsel then proposed to call the plaintiff
(111) himsclf to prove the number of bricks delivered and the time

when, and also some of the other itemns in the account, but this
was objected to by the defendant (1) hecause a party could not prove
an account upon a special agreement by his own oath; and (2) because
the plaintiff’s account was for more than $60. The court held that the
evidence was inadmissible, and the plaintiff thereupon submitted to a
judgment of nounsuit and appealed.

J AL Bryan and J. B Stepherd for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendant.

Daxer, J. The plaintiff’s warrant was for $44.16, and was brought
to recover the balance of an account. On the trial, the plaintiff, being
unable to prove his account by other witnesses, offered to prove the same
to the amount of $44.16 by his own oath, under the book debt law (Rev.
Stat., ¢h. 58).  This was objected to (1) beeause the contract was spe-
cial, and (2) because the account which was rendered by the plaintiff
was for more than $60. In an action of assumpsit, it a plamtiff is un-
able to sustain a count in his declaration on a special undertaking, he
nmay nevertheless recover upon any of the common counts in the declara-
tion which his evidence may fit.  In the cuse before v, the plaintiff
abandoned his special count, and then the evidence was offered by him
to support the common counts in lig decluration for goods sold, work
done, and labor done. A magistrate has jurisdiction of all debts and
demands of %60 aud under “for a balance due on any special contract,
note or agreement, or for goods, wares, and merchandise sold and deliv-
cred, or for work and labor done, or for special articles, ete.” Rev. Srtat.,
ch. 62, sec. 6. The plainuft, we think, was a competent witness, under
the book debt law, to prove the sale, delivery and price of any artieles
of goods or other items in his account for work and labor done to the
amonnt of %60, as all the items in the account appear to bear date within

two vears of the date of the warrant, and he could not prove them
(112) in any other wuy.  The admission of the plaintiff in his account

|8
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that Le had received of the defendant $158.84 must be taken together,
for at the same time that admission was made the plantiff also declared
i his written account that he onee had a just demand (which is set out
in the case) against the defendant over and above his present demand,
which said demand jJustly absorbed all the money received. The declara-
tions of o purty made at the same time must be taken as evidence alto-
gether, as well those to discharge as those to charge him. The whole
gocs to the jury, and thev way, it they think it proper to do so, give
credit to one or more parts of the said declaration or declarations and
reject the vesidue.  But the whole declaration is admissible evidence.
Walker v. Fentress, 18 N C.L 17, By the book debt law, the plaintiff 1s
obliged to give all jiki debts, for he has so to swear. Then when he
proves, by his own oath, items to the amount of $60 or under, forming
the balance that appears due on the account, if the defendant claims the
benefit of the eredit as a pavment of the items thus proved, the plaintiff
must necessarily be competent to state in reply that those pavinents are
not applicable to those items because they have been applied to others.
It ig true that the plamtift cannor prove those others originally, so as
to entitle him to recover therefor, it the ground of an action, because
the value exceeds $60. But when the defendant examines him upoun the
point of the payment of his demand then sued for, it exists in the nature
of the thing that he should be allowed to answer, if the fact be so that
they are not paid for, aud to tell the reason why, Of course, the credit
of the statement is for the consideration of the jury. If the plaintiff be
honest enough to confess the credit they will consider whether he has
not also been honest enough to disclose trulv its proper application.
Per Crriaw. Reversed.

(113)
STATE v. HARRY LANE.

1. If one seek another and enter into a fight with him with the purpose, under
the pretense of fighting. to stab him, if a homicide ensues, it will be clearly
murder in the assailant, no matter what provocation was apparently then
siven, or how high the assailant’s passion rose during the combat. for the
malice is express. .

2. The omission of North Curoline in an indictment found in a court of this
State, where the name of the county is inserted in the margin or hody of
the indictment. is not & cauxe for arresting the judgment,

3. Where the indictment <et forth the time of the commission of the murder in
these words: “On the third day of Auguxt, eighteen hundred and forty-
three.” without saying “the year of our Lord.” or even using the word
svear”: ITeld. that although this defect would have been fatal at the com-
mon law, yet it ix cured by our act of Assembly of 1811 (Rev. Stat.. sec. 335,
see. 120,
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Arerar from Bailey, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of EpcEcoMBE.

This was an indictment against the prisoner for the murder of John
Bedford. The testimony was as follows:

Benbury Bradley swore that he was at M. P. Edwards’ on the day of
the election in August last, and that the prisoner and the deceased were
there; that Edwards’ house has a piazza in front, next the public road,
in one end of which he had a room used as a storeroom, and there is a
plazza also extending from this storeroom along the side of the house;
that there is an entrance into the piazza in front of the house, and also
one into the piazza, which extends along the front of the house; that
there are also two deors leading info a large room—one from the front
plazza and one from the side piazza—and a door leading from the front
piazza into the storeroom; that he first saw the prisoner and the deceased
in the storeroom, where Edwards kept his liquor; that the deceased was

lving down upon the floor, and the prisoner commenced slapping.
(114) him very hard with his hand, pulling him and cursing him, and

telling him to get up; that he continued to do so, until he made
the deceased angry; that the deceased then sat up on the floor, took his
knife out of his pocket and attempted to draw it; that before he opened
it the witness took it away from him; that the deceased then lay down
again; that the prisoner again began to slap him and pull him about as
before, and continued to do so until the deceased got on his feet and
went near the door leading into the front piazza, and then the prisoner
pushed him out of the door into the piazza; that the deceased then lay
down in the plazza about fifteen feet from the door of the storeroom,
and had not been lving there long when the prisoner began to slap him
again; that the deceased told him to let him alone, that he was not pes-
tering him and did not want any fuss with him; that the prisoner con-
tinued still to slap him, until the deccased got very angry, rose, and
struck the prisoner with his fist; that the deceased gave the prisoner two
or three blows, but the witness could not say that the prisoner returned
the blows; that they were parted; that prisoner went to the piazza door-
post and put one hand on the railing and the other on the post, with his
back to the decensed ; that the deceased came up behind him while stand-
ing in this position and struck him with his fist or open hand and tried
to seratch him; that the prisoner then turned round, and blows were
exchanged between them, and they were parted a second time.

This witness further stated that the deceased then went into the large
room of the house, and the prisoner stood at the door leading from the
vard into the plazza; that the witness was near him while standing
there, and seeing him rab his fingers, asked him what was the matter
with his hand; that the prisoner replied that he had cut it foolishly with
his own knife, for he had it open and it shut up and cut his hand; that
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after standing there a short time, the prisoner went into the same room
that the deccased had entercd; that the deceased returned into the piazza
and into the vard in front of the house, and the prisoner went out of the
large room 1nto the side piazza, and had got out of the door of the
plazza, when the witness and John B. White met him wear that (115)
door; that the prisoncr said to them as he met them, “Boys, don’t

see me, I Intend to cut his coat oft”; that they told him “that would not
do, to put up his knife and quit such as that”; that the witness heard
him shut his knife, and he thought he put it iu his pocket, but of this
he would not be certain; that the prisoner passed by them as they at-
tempted to go into the door of the side plazza; that the witness and
White had got on the block of the door, when the witness heard the de-
ceased say, “Harry, what in the h-11 fire do you mean ?”; that the pris-
oner replied with an oath, “What do you mean?’; that the witness was
then about 25 or 30 feet from them; that the deecased had met the pris-
oner at the corner of the house and theyv engaged as they met; that the
prisoner cried out, “Part us, boys!” three or four times; that the wit-
ness and White went towards them, and just before they got to them
they parted themselves; that the prisoner met them and, as he passed,
said “he wanted some water to wash his hands,” and passed through the
house into the front piazza; that the deceased went towards the road
and rested against the paling. The witness stated that he soon went to
him, and when he got there he was lving on the ground, and upon exam-
ination, the witness found he was cut under his left breast;- that he
carried him into the house and discovered three cuts upon his arm, two
in his abdomen, one of which was near his groin; that his intestines
came out, and the witness discovered the next day a wound upon his
hip; that he had seven wounds in all, and that he died the night of the
next day.

Upon the cross-examination of this witness he stated that the prisoner
was not angry when he was slapping the deceased; that Edwards, the
owner of the house, had requested the prisouer, after he had commenced
slapping the deccased, to get him out of the storeroom; that the witness
the next day saw scratches on both sides of the prisoner’s face which
looked as if an attempt had been made at gouging. Several other wit-
nesses were examined, who corroborated this testimony. One of
them stated, in addition, that when the prisoner and the deccased (116)
met the last time they reached out their hands and took hold of
each other about the same time; that the prisoner commenced striking
the deceased under his left arm, giving him three blows—yperhaps four;
that witness eould see the deceased’s right arm, but he caught hold with
his left; that after they were separated and the prisoner was coming
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towards the house, the prisoner called for some water, and said “he be-
lieved that d==d scoundrel had eut his finger.”

The prisoncr’s counsel pur hix defense upou two grounds: fivst, that
the evidence was not sufficient to satisfy the jury that the deceased died
of the wounds which he recelved from the prisoner, and, secondly,
they should be satisfled of this fact, it was contended that it was not a
case of murder, but one of manslanghrer ouly.

The court charged the jury that they must be satisfied that the de-
ceased died of the wounds, and that they were inflicted by the p11~01161
that if thev were not satisfied of this, they ought to acquit the prisoner
‘altoget her' but if thev should be conviueed that the wounds which he
received caused his death, aud they were mflieted by the prisoner, thev
would then mquire whether he was guilty of murder or manslaughter;
that the crime of murder was the unlawful killing of a reasonable crea-
ture in being with malice atorethought, either c\ple\\ed or implied; that
manstaughter was the unlawtul k]lhng, of another, but withour malice;
that if two men upon a guarrel come to blows, no undue advantage be-
g taken on either side, and death cnsues, although by a deadly weapon,
it would be only manslanghter; that if the prisoner, while engaged with
the deceased 1n the plazza, his blood being excited by the blow he received
from the deccased, had drawn his knife and stabbed him, and death had
ensited, 1t would have been manslaughter, and not murder; that if, hav-
ing received blows and seratches from the deceased in the piazza, the
prisoner in a very short time met the deceased at the corner of the house,
and, being excited by passiou and smarting under the blows he had just

received, had in a moment of sudden revenge stabbed the deceased,
(117) 1t would be manslanghter ()nl\'; that 1f the prisoner, when he

passed the wirnesses, saying, “Bovs, don't see me, I intend to cut
his eoat off,” intending nothing but sport, or even malicions mischief,
and did not intend to use the knife upon his person, aud when they met
they engaged in mutual combat, and in the heat of blood the- prisouner
stabbed the deceased, so that he died, it would be manslaughter, and not
murder. But if at the time he passed the witnesses, he then intended to
use his knife upon the person of the deceased. and either take his life or
do him some grievous bodily hurt, and when he met the deceased he
carried his intention into execution by giving him several mortal wounds,
of which he died, he would be guilty of murder, although at the time he
did the act he was excited by passion; and for the purpose of satisfyving
their minds upon the subject, they should look at all the circurstances
of the case.

The jurv found the prisoner guilty of murder. The prisouer’s coun-
sel then moved In arrest of judgment because the words North Carolina
were not mentioned in the bill of indictment.
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The bill of indictment was found in Edgecombe Superior Court of
law. The caption was “Edgecombe County Superior Court of law, see-
ond Monday of September, cighteen hundred and forty-three” In the
body of the bill, the offense was laid to have been committed “on the
third day of .\ugust, eighteen hundred and forty-three, in the county of
Edgecombe.”

The court overruled the motion in arrest of judgment and pronounced
judgment against the prisoner, from which he appealed to the Supreme
Court.

Attorney-tieneral for the State.
B.F. Moore for the piisoner.

Rurrix, . J. The counsel for the prisoner complaius of only (118)
otie part of the iustructious to the jurv. It is that in whiech his
Homnor stated that if at any time the prisoner passed the witnesses and
said to them, “Boys, don’t see me, I intend to cut off his coat,” he in-
tended to kill the dececased, and when he met the deceused carried that
intention into execution by stabbing him, he was guilty of murder,
although at the time he did the act he was excited by passion. It is said
this instruction was erroncouns because 1t put the grade of the otfense on
the existence of an intention to kill when the prisoner was going to the
deceased, whereas such an intention is common both to murder and man-
slaughter, and the inquiry, therefore, in each case is whether the inten-
tlon was Inspired by malice or deliberate 11l will towards the deceased
or was the impulse of suddén passion aund heat produced by adequate
provoeation; and it is further said that here the instruction assumed
that such heat of blood had been excited by the previous combat and
continued to the fatal strokes. 1t 13 thence iuferred that the killing was
but manslaughter.

The first step in our inquiry 1s whether that be the proper construc-
tion of the language of the judge; whether the excitement of passion was
assumed, in the hypothesis, to have been created by the first contest and
to have continued to the last. We think it 1s not. It is to be recollected
that there was a combat in the plazza, and that the case presents some-
thing from whicl it might have been contended for the prisoner that
there was also a sudden mutnal combat when the parties again met in
the vard for the last time.

The counsel for the prisoner insisted on the trial that the offense was
manslaughter; but whether it was so by reason that the provocation
arose out of the first encounter or out of the last conclusively the excep-
tion does not explieitly state. It seems to us that his Ionor could not
Lave understood the former, and that in closing this part of his instruc-
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(119) tions he had in view an excitement that might have arisen, or was

supposed 1o have arisen, subscquently to the prisoner’s passing
the witnesses. s to the heat of blood produced by the previous combat,
it had just been disposed of in a mauncr most favorable to the prisoner
by the instruction that 1f the prisoner, in a short time after receiving
the blows aud scratches in the plazza, and being excited by passion and
smarting under those blows, had in a moment of sudden revenge stabbed
the deceased, 1t would be manslaughter only. Of the correctness of that
position iu point of law we arve not called on at present to express an
opinion. s applicable 1o the facrs in this case, it might perliaps be
found upoun reconsideration to go bevond the law in allowing a cruel
and nordinare revenge, exceuted with a deadly Instrument not shown
openly, for a very trivial offense—and that induced by the prisoner’s
own outrages. But this passage in the charge makes it very clear that
his Honor did not have reference In the latter part of his observations
to an excitement of passion from the fight in the piazza, since that
would render the two parts of the charge directly contradictory, for in
the oue hie savs expressly that killing while excited by passion from
those blows would be manslaughter, while it is attempted to be inferred
that 1n the other lie meant that the killing was murder. though perpe-
trated under the sume excitement of passion.  Besides, the particular
terms of the part of the chiarge excepted to, which are, “although af the
tome he did the act he was excited by passion,” show that the passion
meant was one springing out of the last contest itself.  Indecd, but a
moment before the conrt had treated the prisoner as being, when pass-
ng the wirnesses, free of passion aud possessed of deliberation, by speak-
mg of Lim as then ntending some sportive or malicious mischief short
of sertous bodily mjury, or as then intending to kill the deecased. The
fair iuterpretation, therefore, is thut before mentioned——that although
something might have aviseu when the prisoner got up to the deceased

to rouse Lis passion, ver that would not extenuate the homicide
(120) to manslanghter if, when the prisoner passed the witness and

went up to the deceased. being before this new provocation arose,
the prisoner had formed the intention to kill. And that position we
think good in law. We do not indeed perceive anything that shows the
prisoner to have been unuder a transport of passion during the last
encounter, Far from it. But supposing that to have been so, yet if the
prisoner sought the deceased and entered into that fight with the purpose,
nunder the pretense of fighting, to stab him, it was clearly murder, no
matter what provoeation was apparently then given or how high the
prisoner's passion rose during the combat, for the malice is express and
was promptly wreaked, and puts the idea of provocation out of the ease.
It the prisoner meant to insist that his blood had not cooled, and that
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there had not been suflicient cooling time between the first and last meet-
ings, he should have prayved an instruction distinetly to that effect.
Having omitted himself to do so, he cannot complaiu of the omission of
the court. But we hold the opinion that he would not have been entitled
to the instruction if he had asked it, for although the provecation sup-
posed was recent, yet it does not seem to have wrought any height of
passion suspending reason, even at the very first, and even if it did it
1s evident that it had subsided. It eannot be conceived that a person
who had received so very slight a hurt from a druuken man in return
for the aggression practiced by the prisoner; who voluntarily termin-
ated the scuffle and calmly went into the house, giving no external indi-
cation of anger; who in the interval held such mirthful or guileful dis-
course with the witnesses as to his intentions towards the deceased; who
was advised by those persons to desist, and yet proceeded to the deceased
and, as they met, expressed a desire to be parted—which must have been
pretended—and uttered a mock ery of distress during the affray, when
he was giving the other party fatal stabs, to the number of seven, and
was receiving no serious hurt himself; who of his own accord separated
from his antagonist and had the cooluess, instantly after this mor-

tal combat, to eall for water to wash his hands and {rame the (121)
falsehood that he believed the deceased had cut his finger—we say

it canunot be conceived that a person thus acting was under a sudden
transport of passion. The vengeance was that of a bad heart and delib-
eration, and not of infirmity from heat of blood. There ought not, there-
fore, to be a new trial.

There is also a motion in arrest of judgment for alleged defects in the
indictment. The first is that it does not appear in the indietment that
it was found in North Caroling, or that the offense was committed in
this State; but the county (Edgecombe) is in the margin and in the
body of the bill, and that is sufficient; so are all the precedents in the
books. The indietment was found in the Superior Court of Edgecombe,
and the judge must know that he was holding a court in that county of
the State and for the State of North Cfarolina.

Aunother objeetion is that the indictment sets forth the time thus, “on
the third day of August, cighteen hundred and forty-three” withont say-
ing “the year of our Lord,” or even using the word “vear.” This, we
think, would have been fatal at common law, and we cannot but express
a regret that there should be necedlessly a departure from the ancient
forms in a point in which conformity is so easy and contributes so much
to precision, even though it be not necessary. But we are obliged by
previous adjudications te hold that under the act of 1811, Rev. Stat.,
ch. 35, sec. 12, this indictment is suflicient. TIndictments in the county
and Superior C'ourts are now placed on the same ground. In S. v Dick-
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insg, 2 N. O, 406, the time was stated 1n figures, aud held good. becanse
the meaning was as well known to the court as if expressed i letters,
and the indictment was therefore “intelligible,” as required in the act
of 1784. So when the caption was “Fall Term, 1822, and the indict-
ment charged the time to be “the first dav of August in the present
vear,” it was sustained. S.r. JTaddock, 9 N, C., 461, It will be observed

that in neither of those cases did the indictinent expressly refer
(122) to the Christian era or any other epochy, but they were nevertheless

sustained as expressing a certain time because the court under-
stood them as referring to the era of our Saviour. as that is the universal
reference in judicial procecdings here as well as in common usage. This
indictment was found in the vear 1843, and that being in fact the year
of the Christian era, it is judicially intended to mean the vear of that
era. Consequent)y, the opinion of the Court 1s that there 1s

Per Crrraan No error.

(ited: S.v. Dula, 61 N, C., 441, Sovs Walleer, 8T NOCL 5435 50 0
Gooeh, 94 N. C., 10141 N, ». Hoensley, ib., 10351 S, v, Pankey, 104 N, C,,
S45; S, v, Arnold, 107 X, C., 864 N, v, Van Doran, 109 N, C., 861 5. 1.
Francis, 157 N, O 8145 N0 Ratlif, 170 N. CL, 709,

Dex oy Deyise or JOSEPH J. WILLIAMS v. CHARLOTTE BENNETT.

1. A deed for land executed by a clerk and master by an order of the court,
under the act of 1836, Rev. Stat.. ch. 32, zec. 18, conveys all the interest
any of the parties to the suit had in the land, although another may he in
possexsion, claiming adversely,

2. The possession of a widow of Jand assizned to her as dower is not adverse
to the mortgagee of her hushand or the asxignee of the mortgagee,

. The mortgagor ix concluded by his deed, and after its execution. his posses-
sion is by the consent of the mortgagee and ix in law the possession of the
mortgagee.

4. The widow’s extate in her dower land is bhut a continuation of that of her
husband and is aftected by the same estoppels which attached to it in the
handx of the husband.

S.0A morteagor, or one claiming under him. is not entitled to notice to quit.

. IDven wliele a lenancy is construed to be frowm year to yeai, if afcer the
commencement of a yvear there is an express lease for a certain time and
S an agreenrent to quit at the end of that time, this dispenses with notice.

(123)  Averesn from Baitey, J., at Fall Term, 1543, of MarTIN,
Ejectinent corumenced 17 February, 1842, On the trial it ap-
peared that on 16 October, 1527, Eli Benuett executed to Josepl: J. Wil-
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liams, who is the lessor of the plaintiff, and to William 8. Rayner a
mortgage for sundry slaves, and also for a tract of land in fee, of which
the premises deseribed in the declaration are part, for the purpese of
securing the payment of certain debts to those persons and to others, for
which they were his sureties. He died intestate in 1828, and Williams
and Rayner afterwards, but at what particular time does not appear,
sold the slaves under a power to that effeet in the deed. Afterwards,
but at what time does not appear, a bill was filed in the court of equity
against Williams and Ravner by the administrator and heirs at law of
Eli Bennett for an account of the mortgage debts and of the proceeds
of the effects sold, and for the pavment of any balance thercof that
might be remaining in their hands, and for a redemption of the truct
of land. In that suit a balance of $1,281.78 was found to be still due
to Williams in 1840 after applving all the mortgaged property except
the land, and for the purpose of paving that balance it was decreed that
the land should be sold by the clerk and master, and lie accordinglv
made a sale to Williams, the lessor of the plaintiff, at the price of $300,
and after the confirmation of the sale and in obedience to an order in
the cause conveved the land to him by deed bearing date 2 March, 1842

After the death of Eli Bennett the present defendant, who is his
widow, continued in possession of the mortgaged premises. The case
states further that on the trial she gave in evidence the record of a suit
by petition instituted by her in the county court for dower in those
premises, as the widow of Eli Bennett, in which dower was assigned to
her by a jury and finally adjudged in January, 1832, and that the de-
fendant further gave evidence that, under that judgment, she had ever
since claimed and possessed the land allotted to her therein for dower
as her own.

The plaintifl then proved that on 1 April, 1842, the lessor of (124)
the plaintiff let the premises to the defendant for the residue of
that year at a rent of $1, for which she gave her bond expressed to be
“for the rent of the land whercon I now live, being the lands formerly
belonging to the estate of Eli Bennett.” .\nd the plaintiff further proved
by a witness that it was then agreed by the lessor of the plantiff and
the defendant that the lease was to terminate at the end of that year,
and that the defendant should then surrender the premises to Williams.
To this testimonv of the witness the defendaut objected because 1t was
not competent to vary the terms of the bond by parol.

The counsel for the defendant insisted that she was in the adverse
possession of the premises, claiming under the allotment of dower, and
therefore that the deed of the clerk and master did not pass any title
to the lessor of the plaintiff, but the conrt held that the deed was effectual
to pass the title.
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The counsel for the defendant further insisted that she was not es-
topped to deny the title of the lessor of the plaintiff as her landlord and
set up title in herself because she did not receive the possession from
him, and that she did show title in hersclf by the assignment of dower
and her possession under it for more than seven years. Upon which the
court held that the said possession of the defendant under such claim,
without suit or elaim by Williams or Rayner, would bar them and give
her a title for life in the premises allotted for her dower, but that by
acknowledging the title to be in the lessor of the plaintiff in 1842 and
continuing her possession that yvear under him and giving her bond for
the rent, the defendant was estopped to deny his title.

The counsel for the defendant further insisted that if there was a
tenaney between the parties, this action could not be maintained for
want of notice to quit; but the court held that notice was not necessary.

There was a verdict and judgment for the plaintiff, and the defend-
ant appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
Whitaker for defendant.

(125)  Rrrrin, C. J. The act of 1336, Rev. Stat., ¢l 32, sec. 18, sus-

tains the opinion given by the court on the first point, although
it were true that the defendant’s possession was adverse. From the
nature of a judicial sale, it would seem to form an exception to the rule
which forbids persons out of possession and not acting under the man-
date of the law from selling merely the right. But this act in terms
provides that the deed of the clerk and master “shall be sufficient to
convey such title, interest and estate as the party of record owning the
same had in the land.” Whatever interest, therefore, any of the parties
to the suit had in the land, whether in possession or in right, passed by
the sale and convevance,

In relation to the second point, it is to be observed, in the first place,
that it does not appear directly against whom the defendant brought her
petition for dower. We cannot assume, however, that the mortgagees
were parties, because if it had been so the defendant ought to have
stated the fact explicitly in her exception, and doubtless would have done
it and relied on her recovery as an estoppel on the lessor of the plaintiff,
and not merely as color of title. We therefore take the recovery té be
against the husband’s heirs alone. If so, we need not inquire whether
the defendant, supposing her to have become the owner of the premises
Ly the statute of limitations, lost the benefit thereof and concluded her-
self bv taking the lease, as stated, from the lessor of the plaintiff in
1842, for she was bound by the prior estoppel of her husband’s deed and
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of the possession of her husband and herself under the mortgagees. The
mortgagor was concluded by his deed, and after its execeution his posses-
sion is, by consent of the mortgagees and is in law, their possession. If
1t be continued so long without payment of the interest or other recog-
nition of the mortgage as to raise a presumption of satisfaction and a
release, then indeed it may be insisted on as a title, for that 1s consistent
with the title of the wortgagees aud supposes their title to be actually
revested in the mortgagor. But short of that, the possession of the
mortgagor is that of the mortgagee, and the former is clearly

estopped from acquiring a title from another person or by other (126)
means and setting 1t up to defeat his own convevance. There 1s

nothing in this casc on which to found a presumption of satisfaction or
abandonment, for the parties were in some form constantly acting on
the mortgage, and the fact that it was not satisfied was judiecially found
in a proper proceeding.  The question, then, is whether the possession
of the widow of the mortgagor is held under the mortgagee or adversely
to him. Clearly we think 1t 1s the former, whether she merely continues
in possession after the death of the mortgagor as his widow or holds a
part of the premises as dower assigned to her. Both the heir and the
widow are bonnd by the estoppel on the mortgagor—the former as privy
in blood, the latter as privy in estate. Tenant in courtesv and fenant
in dower shall be bound by and shall take advantage of estoppels,
as Lord Coke informs us. Co. Litt.,, 352 b. The widow but continues
the estate and possession of the hushand which she held under the mort-
gagee, and cannot therefore set up an estate in any other person. Buffer-
low v. Newsom. 12 N. C., 208. Neither can she set up title in herself
by virtue of her possession as tenant in dower, for in its very nature it
is but a continuation of the husband’s estate, and is thercfore affected
by the estoppels which attached to it in the hands of the husband. From
those estoppels no contrivances between the heir and the widow ecan sct
cither of those parties free. This case arose before the act of 1828,
ch. 14, Rev. Stat., ch. 121, sec. 6, allowing dower in an equity of redemp-
tion. Nevertheless it might be quite proper, as between the heir and
widow, that the latter should have her dower in case the mortgagee did
not choose to eunforce his mortgage by taking possession. DBut the as-
signment could not release either the heir or the widow from those
obligations of good faith, which constitute the foundation of the estoppel
on the mortgagor and arose out of the possession derived by him from
the mortgagee, and through him derived also by the heir and widow from
the mortgagec. The Court is therefore of opinion that the defendant
did mnot acquire any title, as agaiust the lessor of the plaintiff, by her
possession, and consequently that the plaintiff was entitled to

recover. (127)
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The point upon notice was. we think, decided right. A morigagor, or
one claiming under him, is not entitled to notice to quit.  Fuller v. Wads-
worth. 24 N. (., 263 Neach ». ITall, Doug., 21; Wearer v. Belcher, 3
East, 449. But if this had been a tenaney from vear to yvear up to 1842,
the express lease in April for the residue of that yvear and the agreement
for the delivery of the possession at the end of it, fixed a definite term
which dispensed with further notice. Messenger v Armstrong, 1 Term,
54 C'obl . Stoles, 8§ East, 358,

The parol evidence was not inconsistent with the bond. which did not
profess to set out the particulars of the lease nor the duration of the
term.

Prr Cruraor No error.

Cited: Grandy v. Baidey, 35 N, C., v Jolson vo Prairie, 94 N. G,
T80 Love v, MeClure, 99 N ('.., 29 i ( or r. Smith, 101 N, C,, 262,
Kilebrew ¢, [lines, 104 N, C., 195: Iinson c. Smith, 118 N. C., 507,

Atwell v Shook, 133 N. C., 39 2.

THOMAS BAXTER v. WILLIAM F. CLARK.

1. Where a vendor, before he sells to a partner, has notice that there is a part-
nership. but that each partner is to he liable only for his own purchases,
the vendor cannot look to the partnership for pavment. but can have
recourse only against the partner purchasing.

2. But where the vendor is informed there is no partnership existing, he may,
upon discovering the partnership. make all the partners responsible for
goods he has 20ld to any one and which have been carried into the copart-
nership concern.

Arprar from Bailey, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Waxke.

Assumpsit to recover the value of certain castings and machinery

for an oil mill, in which one Mead and the defendant Clark were part-
ners. Plea: Non-assumpsit. It was proved that a partnership

(128) existed between Clark and Mead for carrying on an oil mill for
their joint benefit, and that the articles for which this suit was
brought were applied to the uses of that concern. It was agreed between
these partners at the formation of the firm that each one was to be indi-
vidnally liable for what he bought, and one was not to be responsible for
the other. Clark. on 1T June, 1836, on being asked if Mead was not his
partner, told the plaintiff that there was no connection amounting to o
partnership existing between them; that everyvthing was in lits name;
that if he bought anvthing for the concern he made himself individually
responsible, and if Mead bought anvthing he did the same. The plain-
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tiff then said that he kuew it, and approved of the arrangement. Clark
at that time made large purchases from the plaintiff of articles for the
mills in his own name and pald for them in a bill of exchange drawn
in his own name. Afterwards, on 17 November, 1836, Mead purchased
from the plaintiff, aud procured him to order the articles, for the price
of which this action 18 brought. At that time the plaintiff made out his
account against Mead individually, and took his separate note for the
articles then sold and delivered; and pursuant to the request of Mead,
he then ordered the other articles for the mills mentioned in the account,
which articles were received and used by the firm at the mills. The
court-charged the jury that as the plaintiff, before the sale to Mead, had
been informed by the defendant that there was no partnership between
himself and Mead, he had a right, upon the discovery of the existence
of the partnership, to hold both the parties liable; and the jury were in-
structed to find for the plaintiff, which they accordingly did. Judgment
being rendered pursuant to this verdict, the defendant appealed.

Badger for plaintiff.
W. H. Haywood for defendant.

Dawier, J. It is a general rule in law that partners ave all liable for
articles purchased for the benefit of the partnership, though the
vendor did not know of the existence of the partnership and sup- (129)
posed himsclf dealing with an individual partner, to whom he
gave credit by charging him alone in his books. And if a special con-
tract should be made by the vendor and such partner, the partnership
would not be discharged from liability, unless it appeared that the
vendor had taken such individual partner for his debtor knowing that
there were other partners. Reynolds v. Cleveland, 4 Cowen, 282. But
the authority which one partner has to bind the firm in contracts re-
lating to the partnership is an implied authority (Collyer, 212), and
the other partners may prove a diselaimer of the alleged contract, and
that they gave notice to the vendor that they would not be answerable.
Collyer, 450. Where the creditor knows there is a partuership, and has
express notice of a private arrangement between the parties by which
either the power of one partner to bind the firm or his liability in
respeet of partnership contracts is qualified or defeated, in such case it
is clear that the creditor himself must be bound by the arrangement
between the partners. Collyer, 214; Ensign . Ward, 1 Johns. Cas.,
171; Roardman v. Gore. 15 Mass., 339; Baiey v. Clark. 6 Pick., 372,

In June, 1836, Clark told the plaintiff that there was no connection
amounting to a partnership between him and Mead; that everything
was in his name; that if he (Clark) bought for the concern he made
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himself individually liable, and if Mead bought anything he did the
same.  From this conversation, the plaintiff must have understood Clark
to mean that Mead had no interest in the “concern” as a partner. Clark,
it 1s true, then informed him of the arrangement between Mead and him-
self as to any purchases which either of them should make, which
arrangement the plaintiff approved. What kind of connection between
two men would, in Clark’s estimation, make them partners in law we
are unable to sav. Ile might have supposed that the contract inter se,
that one should not be liable for the purchases of the other, prevented
them in law from being partners. If that was his nnderstanding, he was
mistaken.  The agreement between them that they should share in the
profits of the mills, if any there should be, constituted them part-
(1307 ners as to the rest of the world. The plaintiff, with the informa-
tion which he had received from Clark, must have coneluded that
there was no partnership, and therefore that the creditors of Mead would
have a vight at all times and in all events 1o look to the property which
hie was then purchasing iu satisfaction of their debts, whereas the fact
was that the said property was transferred immediately into the firm,
and the separate creditors of Mead could not reach it until the partner-
ship creditors were all satisfied, at least, this is so in equity. If Clark
had informed the plaintiff that Mead and he were partners, and at the
same time had given him notice not to trust Mead on the eredit of the
firm. the plaintiff could not have recovered; but Clark did not do so;
what he said amounted to a denial of a partunership. The plaintiff said
that he understood the arrangement between Mead and Clark, and ap-
proved of it. What did he understand and approve? Why, that Mead
was not a partner with Clark, and that if he purchased anything for the
“concern” (viz., the mills), he did 1t on his individual credit. The plain-
tiff might well approve of Clark’s caution in restraining a man who had
“no interest amounting to a partnership” from purchasing articles to
charge him, who represented himself as the entire owner of the mills.
Tt seems to us, therefore, that this case 1s within the rule of a firm being
liable where a vendor, not knowing of the firm, sells to a partner articles
which come to the use of the firm. '
Prr Crrrsar No error.

Cited: Sladen v. Lance, 151 N. C., 494
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(131)
THE CLERK OF DAVIDSON COUXNTY (COURT v. JACOB WAGONER.

After a judgment, the clerk has a right to issue execution against a party to
the suit for hix own costs, though that party has succeeded in his suit.

Apprar from Manly, J., at Fall Term, 1543, of Davinsox,

Motion made by Charles Mock, clerk of the conmty court of Davidson,
for a judgment against the defendant under the following cireumstances.
There had been before a justice of the peace an action, by warrant, in
favor of Daniel Shuler against the defendant Wagoner, in which a judg-
ment was rendered for Shuler. From this judgment the defendant ap-
pealed. In the county court there was u rule upon Shuler, at the in-
stance of the defendant, to give surety for the costs; and in cousequence
of a failure to comply with this rule, his cause was di=missed and a jude-
ment entered against him for the costs of the defendant.  Mock, the
clerk, then moved for a judgmeut also against the defendant Wagoner
for the costs due to him by Wagoner, which motion was overruled and
an appeal taken to the Superior Court. In that court the motion was
also overruled and an appeal taken to the Supreme Court.

Iredell for plaintifl.
Mendenhall for defendant.

Ruvrry, O J. Tt has been wsual for the officers of the cowrt to -
dulge the successtul party for his costs until a return of his execution
therefor against the party cast. If raised on that execution, the officers,
instead of the party, receive them, and thus the matter is settled. Bur
it is clear that every party may be required to pay his own costs as they
are incurred, or at any time when demanded. 1t is incident to
every court to have a jurisdiction over its suitors and officers to (132)
regulate the taxing and payment of the proper costs, and for thas
purpose tomake rules on those persons and enforee them by attachment.
This is most usually done when the officers have charged and levied more
or higher fees than they ought to have done.  But 1t may be done as prop-
erly when the party owing the costs to the oflicers fails to pay them. In
this State it has been the course to proceed by rule and attachment for
his own costs, because after judgment a milder method by execution was
given by statute. The act of 1784, Rev. Stat., ch. 105, sec. 24, is express
that where suits are determined and fees are not paid by the party from
whom they are due, the clerk may issue execution for them. In Office
». Lockman, 12 N. (., 148, it is true, the execution against the suceessful
party was not moved for until a veturn of »ofla hona on a fi. fa. against
the party cast, but the Court there said, in so many words, that the
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party is at all {imes answerable for his own costs, and execution was
awarded agaiust the party who had gained the suit for his own costs.
So we think it must be here. The judgment is thercfore reversed, and
the rule must be made absolute as moved for by the clerk,

Pee Crria, Reversed.

Cited: Office . Allen, 52 N. C., 1575 S. v, Wallin, 80 N, C., 580;
Lowg ro Walleer. 105 N CL 07 Bellard ¢, Gay, 108 N. ., 545,

(133)

JACOB RAMSOUR v. SARAH YOUNG ET AL,

1. Where a sheriff. having several writs of fi. fa. and vend. cr. against a per-
<on. at the instance of different creditors, takes an indemnifying hond from
one of the creditors and zells in conzequence of that indemnity, he has no
right aftrerwards to apply to the court for its advice as to the distribution
or payment of the money raised hy the sale, especially when he has not
paid the money into court.

2. Advice given by the court on such an er parte application would not bhind
any of the creditors who might still pursue their remedy against the sher-
iff, if they thought themselves agerieved by his refusal to pay them.

3. When the court, however, proceeds on such an application to give its advice.
the proceeding heing er parte, none of the creditors have a right to appeal.

Arrear from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1843, of LixcoLx.

At Mareh Term, 1843, of Lincoln County Court, the sheriff returned
into court a number of writs of renditioni exponas and fi. fa. issued
from that court against one William Fullenwider, at the instance of dif-
ferent creditors, among whom was the present plaintiff, Jacob Ramsour,
and the present defendunts. The following return was made by the
sheriff on one of the executions, No. 69, in favor of Jacob Ramsour:

“The following executions, to wit, Nos. 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 87, and 93,
against thie property of one William Fullenwider, issued from June
Term, 1842, of this court, came into my, the high sheriff’s, hands. And
also two other executions bearing the same teste, in favor of Jacob Ram-
sour against the property of the said Fullenwider for the sum of
$1,131.61. were placed in the hands of one of the deputies (Isaac Lowe)
of the said high sheriff. On 3 December, 1842, the said Isaac Lowe,
deputy as aforesaid. by virtue of the said two executions in favor of the

sald Ramsour, and at his speeial request, levied on and took into

(134) lis possession the following negroes, to wit, Rosetta, Bob, and

Isaac, said negroes then being in the possession of and claimed

by one John Haves as his property. The said Ramsour, before the

making of the said levy. gave to the said deputy a bond to indemnify
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him against the claim of the said Taves, and withont which bond said
deputy would not have made said levy. Ou the following Thursday (it
being the court week to which all of the above executions wore return-
able), as soon as I, the said sheriff, became aware of the said levy, I
directed the said Lowe 1o endorse the like levy on the said executions,
to wit, Nos, 71, 72, 13, T4, 75, 87, and 93, and to date said levy as of
3 December, 1842, which was done. The said negroes were sold after
due advertisement on 7 Mareh, 1843, and Jacob Ramsour became the
purchaser. No bond of indemnity was given or tendered by any of the
execution creditors except the one given by the said Ramsour.

Amount of money made by said sale. ... $549.00
Retained for fees, commissions and charges......_.. 47.45
3alance remaining in my hands.. . 501,55

“T had made no appropriation of this sum, and I am ignorant how T
should appropriate the same, and T therefore pray the court to direct
how the some shall be appropriated. J. R. Stavey, Sheriff.

J. Lows, Deputly Sheriff.

“The other writs vendition? and fiere facias, viz., Nos. 70, 71, 72, 73,
2 bl 2 ) 2 3
T4, 75, 87, and 93, were endorsed : “The same return made on this as on
b 2 b b)
\ .
No. 69; sce 69. J. R. Sraney, Sherdff.

J. Lows, Deputy Sheriff.”

On these returns being made, the counsel of Jacob Ramsour moved
that the proceeds of the sale of the negroes set forth in the return of the
sheriff be applied to the two writs of readitiont exponas 1ssued at the
instance of Jacob Ramsour, viz., Nos, 69 and 70.  This motion was sus-
tained by the court and the money dirceted to be applied accordingly.
With this decision, Sarah Young and other execution creditors being
dissatisfied prayed an appeal to the Superior Clourt, whicl was granted.

In the Superior Conrt it was adjudeed that the money be appropri-
ated to the excentions in favor of Jacob Ramsour. From this de-
cision the present defendants prayved for and obfained an appeal (185)
to the Sapreme Court.

Alewcander and L. E. Thompson for plamtiff.

D.F. Caldwell and Holee for defondants.

Daxrsn, J. This case is, in substanee, an application to the court by
the sheriff for informution haw he onght to make his returns npon the
several exeentions whiel arve in his hands. It is pot like Yarborough .
Bank. 13 N, €, 23, where the money was paid into court.  The sales

105



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

RaMsoUR v, YOoUNG,

anounted only to $501.55. Ramsour, one of the exceution ereditors to
the amount of $1,131.61, gave the sheriff a bond of indemnity to levy
at his ustance on the slaves as William Fullenwider’s property. The
sheriff says that as the said slaves were then In possession of one Ilaves,
under a claim of title, he should not have made the levy without the
said indemnitv.  He has not abandoned his indemnity; and as he has
hitherto gone on and made his levy and sales, clinging to his indem-
nity, we think that he has no right in this stage of the proceedings to
ask the Court how he ought to make his returns so as to secure himself
from any liability to the dissatisfied creditors. As he is acting under a
bond of indemuity, the Court cannot interpose by rules on the parties,
but he must make his returns on the executions upon his own judgment
and ar his peril. Upon such an e parte application by the sheriff, the
creditors would not be coneluded, and if the officer chose 10 abide by
an opinion given to him by the court. one of the creditors could not
appeal therefrom.  Whether, therefore, the court was right or net in
thinking that the indemnifving creditor had a right to the money raised
by the sheriff, the other ecreditors could not try the question in this form,
the sheriff still holding the money in his own hands. .\s between the
sheriff and Ramsour, the former might have been bound to pay the
money to the latter by what had taken place between them, while
(136) the sheriff might also be liable in law to pay a share thereof to
the other ereditors, if m truth the negroes were Fullenwider’s,
and not Haves's. But that question must be tried in the proper manner.
This s not the proper mode of doing so, because when a sheriff acts
under an indemnity he does so at the risk of the indemnifying creditor,
whose inrerests the sheriff thereby undertakes to subserve. He does not
stand beforve the court in such a case merely as an officer, and therefore
the court is not bound to advise him. But if the court should advise
him to conform to the obligations arising out of the indemnity, it leaves
the other ereditors unaffected by that adviee, and they cannot appeal.
‘While, therefore, we think that the court ought not to Lave made the
order ou the sheriff to return the mouey as Ramsowr’s, we likewise
think that the appeal ought nor to have been granted to Young and
others, and that it should have been dismissed and with costs in the Supe-
rior Court,
Prr Crrrar Reversed.

Cited: Dewey r. White, 65 N. C., 229 Bates v. Lilly, 1b., 233 Ml
kan v. For, S N. (., 110.
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ROBERT McBRAYER axp Fraxces, His Wirg, v. ABEL HILIL.

1. The words “which amount to a charge of incontinency,” and for which an
action of slander is given to a woman by our act of 1808, Rev, Stat., ch.
110, must import not merely a lascivious disposition, but the criminal fact
of adultery or fornication.

1o

. To say of a woman that “she was kept by a man” is actionable as a slander
under our act of assembly.

3. He who repeats a slander without giving his author, or if he gives the

author with a malicious intent, is himself liable to an action for the slan-

der.

Arprar from Dick, J., at special term in July, 1843, of Ruruerrorp.

Slander, mm which the declaration alleged that the defendant
had charged the plaintiff’s wife with incontinence. Plea: Not (137)
guilty. The first witness for the plaintiff proved that the defend-
ant said he went to the plaintiff’s house; that the plaintiff’s wife asked
him to go into a room to see some carpenter’s work that had been done
in the house; that she commenced sweeping the house; that he put his
hand upon her and she rose up and kissed him; that the children came
to the door, and she said, “Lord, what have T done!” Ile further re-
marked to the witness, “You may depend upon it she is such a woman.”
The counsel for the plaintiff then asked the witness what he understood
the defendant to mean by the expression, “You may depend upon 1t she
is such a woman.” This question was objected to by the defendant’s
counsel, and his Honor rejected it and remarked that it was for the jury
to determine what he meant.

Another witness proved that he had frequently heard the defendant
say “She was a dirty, sluttish woman”; and while speaking of her, he
remarked that “a person might put a saucer of molasses down to the
children in one end of the house, and they might eat 1t up and come upon
them before they expected 1t.”

Another witness proved that theve had been an indictment against the
defendant for an assault and battery on the plaintiff’s wife before the
bringing of this action, and that the defendant, while speaking to the
witness about that action, said, “The reason that the plaintiff had not
summoned witnesses from the south side of the river to prove his wife’s
good character was that the general impression in that neighborhood was
that he (the defendant) kept the plaintiff’s wife.”

His Houor being of opinlon that the words as proved were not action-
able, the plaintiff submitted to a nonsuit aud appealed to the Supreme
Court.

J. (. Bynum and John H. Bryan for plaintiff.
W. J. Alexander for defendant.
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Ruerrin, €0 J. The statute of 1808, Rev, Stat., ch. 110, gives to a
woman an action for words “srhich amount to a charge of incon-

(138) tineney,” which imports, we think, not merely the imputation of
impure desires or a laseivious disposition, but the criminal faet

of adultery or fornication. It has not pleased the Legislature to go
farther, and perhaps it could not be safely done, though often the accu-
satlon of a propensity or the imputation of such conduct as only evinces
propeusity and nothing more may be as destructive to the reputation of
a woman as the most explicit charge of personal prostitution. In the
case before us, with every inelination to receive the words in the sense
in which thex were meant by the speaker, and were or would rcusonably
be understood by licarers, we cannot say that, as stated by the two first
witnesses, they import a charge of the very act of adultery, but only evil
thoughts in the heart which perhaps onlv waited for opportunity to
break out into open lewdness. But one cannot he at a loss as to the
sense 1n which the words proved by the last witness are to be received.
It 1s to be remarked in the beginning that the defendant is liable upon
these words as if he had direetly affivmed the faet to be as he savs it
was reported, Inasmuch as he states the report or impression about the
plaintift’s character as a general impression without disclosing the name
of any person from whom he received 1t.  Lord Northampton's case, 12
Rep., 32, And indeed if he had given the author, the repetition of this
slander was so obvionsly malicious and for evil ends that upon the aver-
ment of those facts it might have been left to the jury to find for the
plaintiff. unless the defendant proved the fact of her guilt with him.
HTampton v. Wilson, 15 N. C., 468. Then the case is to be taken that
defendant declared “he kepr MeBrayer's wife”  The word “kept” has
many significations, according to the subjects to which it is applied;
but 1t i a common and well-cstablished sense of it, when used in refer-
ence to counections between the sexes, to denote habitual and criminal
carnal conversatlon amounting to cohabitation. Every one knows at
once what 1s meant by the terms “kept mistress,” or what is laid to the
charge of a man who iz said “to keep a mistress.” It is not the

(139) meritorious act of providing for or maintaining a virtuous lady
in her innocence, but it is the viclous one of having a wanton at

his command for carnal gratification—of Akeeping her for sensual uses.
This scems to us the natural import of the words in themselves as the
people in the country would universally understand them. But at all
events, thev arve sunsceptible of that interpretation, and thercfore ought
to have been left to the jury to determine the sense in which they were
meant by the speaker and in which the hearers understood them. Stud-
davd v. Lineille, 10 N. C., 4745 Woolnoth v. Meadows, 5 East, 463. That
the word “kept”™ was not here used with an intent of only saying that
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the defendant innocently provided for-this woman, or had her in cus-
tody, or was exercising towards her any other benevolence or any proper
control over her, is evident from the circumstances and eolloquium. e
was speaking of the trial of an indictment against him for an assault on
this same person, and he gives as a reason why the husband did not
prove her good character on that occeasion, that it was the general im-
pression that he kept his wife. The meaning i= plainly that the husband
could not prove his wife’s good character because the defendant fept her,
and therefore her character was not good; but bad; and in what sense
bad, as meant by the defendant, no person can doubt. What else could
the defendant mean, under such civeumstances, but to charge a report—
which is the same thing as the charge of the fact—that the feme plaintiff
had been guilty of habitual adultery with the defendant himself? The
obvious import of the words is defamatory, and under the attending cir-
cumstances thev are so plainly pointed towards the charge of this par-
ticular offense that unless a judge is not to use his understanding like
other people we cannot give them any other aceeptation. They meant
that or they meant nothing.
Par Curraar. Reversed.

Cited: Johnston v. Lance, 29 N. C., 4553 Lucas v. Nichols, 52 N.C..
355 8. . Moody, 98 N. C., 6723 MeC'all v. Sustair, 157 N, C.0 1827 5. 0
Howard, 169 N. (., 313,

(140)
STATE ox 7112 REpaTion oFr ABSALOM DAVIS, ('HAIrMAN, Etc., v.
NEILL McALPIN ET ALS,

1. Every court has a right to judge of its own records apd minutes: and if it
appear satisfactorily to them that an order was actually made at a former
term and omitted o bhe entered by the clerk, they may at any time direct
such order to be entered on the records as of the term when it was made.

&

. In a suit pending in one court, oral evidence is inadmissible to supply a de-
fect in the record of another court hy showing that an order was made or
proceeding had in that court which the clerk by mistake, or through negli-
gence or from other cause, omitted to enter on the record.

3. A bond payable to the State, given by a public officer for the discharge of
public duties, though not taken in the manner or by the persons appointed
by law to take it, will be good as a voluutary bond. DBeing for the benefit
of the State, the State will be presumed to have accepted it when it was
delivered to a third person for her use.

4. The settlement by a sheriff of his public accounts with a committee of
finance of his county, with whom he is bound by law to settle. is an act
performed in the regular course of oflicial duty. and is at least prima facic
binding on the sheriff and his sureties,
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5. Evidence in a suit against a sheriff and hix sureties that he owed a particu-
lar amount in February is evidence that he owed the same amount in the
succeeding August, unless the contrary is proved.

6. The county court, and not the sheriff or county trustee, is to judge of the
propriety of an order for the payvment of money out of the county funds,
and therefore the latter must pay it if he has the funds. and if he refuses,
the person in whose favor the order is drawn is entitled to an action on
the official hond of the sheriff or trustee,

Arpear from Battle, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Rosesox.

Debt upon a sealed instrument, which the plaintiff alleged was the
official bond of the defendant MeAlpin as sheriff of Robeson. This in-

strument was in the form of a bond pavable to the State of North
(141) Carohma, in the sum of %4,000, the condition of which, after re-

citing that the said Neill Me\lpin had been duly appointed sher-
iff of Robeson, was that “if he should well and truly eollect, receive, and
pax over all such monevs as shall be levied according to law by way of
taxes which he may by acts of the General Asserubly be bound as sheriff
to collect, and alzo all fines, forfelitures and amerciaments which mayv he
laid, accrued or assessed and which the said sheriff may be bound to col-
feet, and also all other monexs which it may be the duty of the sheriff
to colleet and pay over to the person or persons entitled to receive the
same under the orders of the court and agreeably to the laws of the
State for county uses and purposes, and at the times specified by law,
and should well and truly perform all the duties of countv trustec and
treasurer of public buildings as preseribed by an act of the General As-
gsembly passed 1n 1831, entitled an act, cte.”

The statute mentioned 1 the bond is the private act of 1831, ch. 52,
which authorized the county court of Robeson, a majority of the justices
being present, at the next court at which, according to the law as it then
stood. the court ought to appoint a county trustee and treasurer of pub-
lie buildings, by order of court to abolish those offices; and 1n that case,
the sheriff is required to perform those duties and to give a bond drawn
0 as expresslv to include them as his official duties.

The breach of the condition of the bond assigned was the vefusal of
the defendant MeAlpin to pay an order for the sum of ¥382.46 to the
relator, Absalom Davis, Jr., chairman of the board of commissioners for
common schools for the county of Robeson, which order was as follows:

“Robeson Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions,
“August Term, 1841,
“Ordered by the court thar Neill MeAlpin, sheriff, pay to Absalom
Davis, Jr., chairman of the board of commissioners for common schools,
the sum of three hundred and eighty-two dollars forty-six cents,
(142) Dbeiug half the amount to be received from the literary fund, out
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of any money in his hands belonging to the county of Robeson not other-
wise appropriated.”

The plaintiff then proved the regular qualification of the defendant
MeAlpin as sheriff, at August Term, 1841, and the execution of the in-
strument declared on by the defendants and its delivery to and accept-
ance by the court, twelve justices being present. The plaintiff then in-
troduced a private act of the General Assembly, passed in 1824, appoint-
ing certain persons therein named a committee of finauce for the county
of Robeson, and offered in evidence a paper-writing purporting to be a
report of a committec of finance for the said county made at February
Term, 1841, of the county court, to show that the defendant MeAlpin
was indebted to the said county for taxes levied in the sum of $2,700,
This was objected to by the defendants for many reasous, among others,
becanse 1t had not been made by those who had been appointed to form
the committee of finance; and if it had been so made it was an ex parte
proceeding and not evidence against these defendants; that the act ap-
pointing a committee of finance and providing for making reports was
not intended to make evidenee to charge debtors, but to exhibit, for the
information of the connty court, the state and condition of the county
finances. It was then proved that the paper offered had been accepted by
the county court and ordered to be filed among their records as a report
of the committee of finance. It was also proved that the defendant Me-
Alpin was present when the report was made; that he was shown the bal-
ance against him therein stated, aud did not object thereto. Al this testi-
mony was objected to by the defendants, but admitted by the court. The
plaintiff then proved from the minutes of the court at August Term,
1841, that the order for $382.46 was passed in favor of the relator, and
that a majority of the justices was present at the time. The plaintiff
introduced a witness who proved that on the day the order was passed,
and before the writ in this case issued, the relator presented the
order to the defendant MeAlpin for payment; that he did not pay (143)
it. but smiled, and the witness supposed that amounted to a refusal
to pay; that the order was passed and presented to the defendant Me-
Alpin, the writ was issued, and the said defendant arrested thercon-—all
on the same dav, to wit, 25 August, 1841. The plaintiff then introduced
a private act of the General Assembly passed in 1831 authorizing a
majority of the justices of the said connty to abolish the offices of county
trustee and treasurer of public buildings, and in that case requiring the
sheriff to perform those duties, and to give a bond drawn so as expressly
to include them as his official duties. e then offered in evidence a
small book in which memoranda or entries were made in a great variety
of handwritings, which book the clerk stated was found in his office
among the records of the court, and which contained an entry purport-
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ing to abolish the office of county trustee. The clerk stated this entry
to be in the handwriting of the chairman of the county court, and it was
dated August Term, 1832. This evidence was objected to, but received
by the court. The plamhff further proved by the clerk that he was in
court, acting as a justice of the peace, at August Term, 1832; that he
did not recollect distinetly, but according to his best impression there
was a majority of the justices present when the said entry was made;
that he did not sce the entry made, but supposes it was made when the
subject of abolishing the office of county trustec was under consider-
ation; that his impression was strengthened by the circumstance that
he was a member of the General Assembly when the act of 1831 was
passed, and he recollected that he called the attention of the courr to
the provision requiring a majority of the justices to pass the order.
This evidence was also objected to. The plummrnff then introduced the
minutes of the county court showing that on the day the aforesaid entry
m the small book purponlnp to abolish the office of county trustee was
made, there was a majority of the justices present, taking the sheriff’s

bond. It appeared also, on examination, that some of the entries

144) 1n the said small book had heen likewise entered on the minutes

of the court, but not the entry purporting to abolish the office of
county trustee, It was then proved by the minutes of the county court
that the relator had been appointed a member of the bhoard of superin-
tendents of common schools for the county of Robeson, and by the min-
ntes of the said board that he was appointed chairman of the board.

The defendants offered no evidence, but contended:

That the office of county trustee for the countv of Robeson had not
been abolished ; that there was no competent evidence to show that the
office was abolished ; that the sheriff was not county trustee under such
circumstances; that the court had no authority to take the said paper-
\\'1‘iti11g‘ purporting to be a bond, and that it was a nullity.

That there was not reasonable time allowed the defendant Mellpin
airm' the demand to ascertain if there were anv unappropriated funds
in hig hands and to make payment before the arrest in this action.

3. That the said order is pavable to the chairman of the board of
commissioners for common schools; the demand was made in that charac-
ter, and the relator sues in this action as chairman of the board of com-
missioners for common schoolss and there 12 no such office or appoint-
ment known to the law, and none in fact.

4. That there is no evidence that the relator was chairman of the
board of commissioners of common schools,

That the relator could sustain no action on the said paper-writing
purporting to be a bond, if it were a bond, for the omission of the
defendant MeAlpin to pav the said order of the county court, as the
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relator was not entitled to the money “agreeably to law” and at the time
it was demanded.

6. That the said order and the omission of the defendant MeAlpin to
pay it gave the relator no right of action against these defendants cither
on the order or on the said paper-writing purporting to be a bond. The
only breach assigned by the relator is the refusal of the defendant Me-
Alpin to pay the order.

7. That if there had been evidence of a balance due the county (145)
in the hands of the defendant MeAlpin on 17 February, 1841, it '
was not evidence of “unappropriated funds” in his hands on 25 August,
1841.

His Honor then intimated an opinion that the relator ought not to
recover, but advised the parties to consent that the jury should find all
the issues in favor of the plaintifl and assess the damages to the amount
of the said order; and that if on further consideration his Houor should
think that judgment shounld not be rendered in favor of the plaintiff, he
would set aside the verdiet and have a nousuit entered. According to
this intimation the jury returned a verdict for the plaintiff. 1lis Honor
afterwards directed the verdict to be set aside and a nonsuit entered, and
the plaintiff appealed to the Supreme Court.

Strange for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendant.

Rvrrin, C.J. The action is debt on a bond for $4,000, pavable to
the State: and after reciting that the obligor, MeAlpin, had been duly
appointed sheriff of Robeson County, the condition is, that if he “shall
well and truly collect, receive, and pay over all such moneys as shall be
levied according to law by way of taxes which he may by acts of the
General Assembly be bound as sheriff to collect, and also all fines, for-
feitures and amerciaments which may be laid, accrued or assessed, and
which the said sheriff may be bound to colleet, and all other moneys
which it may be the duty of the sheriff to collect and pay over to the
person or persons entitled to receive the same under the orders of court
and agrecably to the laws of the State for county uses and purposes, and
at the times specified by law, and shall well and truly perform all the
duties of county trustee and treasurer of ]mbho buildings, as presceribe d
by an act of the General Assembly passed in 1831, entitled ‘An aect, ete,
then the above obligation to be \01d, otherwise, to remain in 11111 1010(3
and effect.”

The statute mentioned in the bond is the private act of 1831, (146)
ch. 52, which authorized the county court of Robeson, a majority
of the justices being present, at the next court at which, according to the
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Jaw as it then stood, the court ought to appoint a county trustec and
treasurer of public buildings, bv order of the court, to abolish those
offices; and 1n that case the sheriff is required to perform those duties
and to give a bond drawn so as expressly to include them as his official
duties.

The principal question in the case is whether, under the circumstances
stated in the case, the instrument thus set forth is the deed of the de-
fendants—they having pleaded non est factum. Tt is said that it is not,
for want of delivery to persons competent to receive it on behalf of the
State as her agents, because the offices mentioned in the act as distinet
offices had not been abolished in the manner required by the act, and
therefore that the county court had no right to demand nor power to
aceept this bond from the sheriff.

We think 1t did not duly appear that the court did abolish the offices
in gquestion. It seems, indeed, highly probable In point of fact that there
was an order of the court consisting of the proper number of justices
for that purpose. And perhaps from the minutes found in the two books
mentioned in the case, the county court might properly have a record
engrossed of the proceedings at August Term, 1832, showing that the
court was held by a majority of the justices, and did make the order.
Every court is necessarily the judge of its minutes and records—-what
constitutes them, and whether they are true memorials of its acts. Gen-
crally, another court gets them under the seal of the court whose pro-
cecdings they purport to set forth; and that scal verifies them as records.
If the county court of Robeson regards the entries made by the chair-
man in one hook as part of its records as well as the minutes kept by
the clerk in another book, or regards both as but minutes from which
the record mav be drawn out, the two might be incorporated into one
record by that court, and a transeript of that would be record evidence

to another court. So if the county court does not regard the
(147) entry by the chairman as a part of its records or minutes, yet if

the court knows or is satisfied on that and other evidence that in
August, 1832, those offices were abolished by an order of the court, made
when a majority was present, and that the clerk omitted to enter the
order at the time, there is no doubt of the power of the court and, when
necessary for the purposes of justice, of the propriety of exercising the
power of making the record speak the truth by now inserting in it, as
of the proper time, the entries which the clerk omitted. Dut nothing of
either kind has been done in this case.  There is no authentic recogni-
tion by the court of the supposed entry by one of its body in 1832 as a
part of the records of the court, but only the evidence of the present
clerk of the court offered to identify, but really not identifying with any
degree of certainty, that entrv as being a part of the minutes of the
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court and not a private memorandum of the person who made it. In
our opinion, that is not competent evidenece of the record. We are like-
wise of opinion that the omissions in the record could not be supplied
by oral testimony that such an order was made by a majority of the
justices. The counsel urged its competency and sufficiency upon the
ground that it was not a judicial sentence, but merely a deeision by the
persons then forming the court, but the acts of a public body can be
certainly known only by their authenticated resolutions put into the
permanent form of writing, and must not depend upon the fallible com-
prehensions and frail rccollections of bystanders to establish them. This
is more especially true In respect of a body constituting a court of jus-
tice and acting ordinarily as a court of record, according to the course
of the common law. Their records establish their acts and nothing less.
Wade v. Odencal, 14 N. C., 423. But the private act, out of which this
controversy has arisen, is express that “the court” might abolish the
offices “by order of court,” which shows the capacity in which the jus-
tices acted. Our opinion, therefore, is that, however it might have been
made to appear, it did not appear on the trial that the offices had been
abolished, and therefore if the case turned on this question alone

as a question of evidence, we should affirm the judgment. (148)

But in the opinion of this Court, there ought to be judgment
against the defendants, whether those offices were abolished or not, for
we think the bond good as a voluntary one. The doubt can only be
whether the State has accepted this bond, for her capacity to take a
bond cannot be denied. It is contended that there has been no accept-
ance by the State, becanse the case had not arisen in which, according
to the statute, the court ought to have taken such a bond, and therefore
that the justices were not the authorized agents of the State to accept a
delivery, without which it is not a deed. As to bonds of constables and
other officers for the faithful discharge of their duties in respect of
private persons, we have held (S. r. Shirley, 28 N. (., 597) that if pay-
able to the State, they must be taken in the cases and by the persons
designated by law, or they cannot be supported. Serious doubts were
entertained in that case, and it was decided with hesitation, yet the
Court certainly means to adhere to it as an authoritative precedent. In-
deed, if we then erred, the mischief that might otherwise have arisen
from it has been corrected by the subsequent act of 1842, ch. 51, which
removes all ground for reconsidering the question. But, as intimated
in that case and upon the reasons and authorities there adduced, we
think this case does not fall within the rule there laid down. Here is
a person de facto filling a public office, one of the duties of which 1s to
receive and disburse public moneys on behalf of the publie, and he gives
a bond to the State binding himself to collect and legally apply that
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portion of the revenue. Such a bond, payable to the State for the bene-
fit of the bodyv politie, stands upon ground essentially different from one
thus payable for the benefit of private persons. In the latter case there
18 no presumption of acceptance by the sovereign, unless there be an
actual delivery in the cases and to persons authorized by the Legislature

to take it.  But such express acceptance by an agent for the State
{149) need not be shown when the bond is upon its face exclusively for

the use of the State, as one for securing public money must be
admitted to be. To such a bond, the rule that, from the benefit to the
obligee, acceptance 1s 1o be presumed, applies with as much reason as if
the obligee were a private person. In each case there is a capacity to
accept the deed and the same interest; and as regards interests directly
and clearly publie, the assent of the sovereign to the security must be
inferred, as that of the citizen would be in like circumstances. It is
true, this bond docs not cover moneys payvable 1nto the public treasury,
still 1t 1s public money, applicable indeed in the county of Robeson, but
to purposcs of the most general utility. It is to sustain the administra-
tion of justice by building a courthouse and prison, paying jurors and
the expenses of public prosecutions, to open roads, build bridges, diffuse
education through all conditions of the people, and the like public serv-
ices. To secure money needful for those ends of government, the State
cannot be presumed to be opposed or to vield a reluctant assistance, but
as a conclusion of natural and legal reason her assent must be pre-
sumed until the contrary be deelured by the Legislature. The delivery
to the justices, as proved by the subscribing witness, was sufficient until
rejection by the obligee (8 Reyp., 28; 5 Rep., 119), and we do not, there-
fore, look back beyond the bond itself to sce whether the sheriff right-
fully' undertook the duties of the county trustee or not, or whether the
court could, as the agents of the State, have required the bond. It i
sufficient that 1t was given to the State for purposcs which unquestion-
ably make it the interest of the State, as such, to accept it, and there-
fore such aecceptance is presumed. Although 1t may not be given in the
way the State preferred, she must be willing to take 1t as given, rather
than have no security.

In the other questions there seems not much difficulty. The report
of the committeec of finance, as their report, was not evidence, though
it secms probable from several provisions of the acts, such as swearing
the committee and the like, that it may have been intended to be prima

facie proof ; but we think that, as a settlement of the sheriff him-

(150 self with the publie, it is evidence. The act requires him, under

a penalty, to render his accounts and settle with the committee of

finance. This is both to afford the necessary information of the state

of the countyv treasury and to secure the accountability and punctuality
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of the officer. The settlement 1s therefore an act performed in the regu-
lar course of official duty, and therefore is at least prima facie binding
on the sheriff and his sureties. Gorernor o. Twetty, 12 N, C., 157, In
this case it was proved that the sheriff made no objection to the items
or the balance of the account, and there was no attempt on the trial to
show its inaccuracy. If evidence at all, it was, in the absence of all
proof to the contrary, evidence of funds in August, 1841. The onus
was with the sheriff to show that between February and August he had
disbursed the balance he had admitted at the former period. It was his
duty to keep the accounts, and he had possession of the vouchers.

There is then an objection taken to the styvle or addition given to the
relator in the order for the money and in the declaration as “chairman
of the board of commissioners for common schools,” which is presented
i several different forms, but it is substantially the same in all. 1t is
founded on this: the act of 1838, ch. 8, calls those persons “superintend-
ents,” and not “commissioners.” But the aet does not make them a cor-
poration, nor confer a name by which they are to contraet or sue. They
are still but natural persons filling a certain office, and they sue as
natural persous (Fercbee . Sanders, 25 N. C., 360); another addition
18 but surplusage. Indeed it 1s nothing to the defendants whether the
money was properly appropriated by the county court or not. The stat-
ute, Rev. Stat., ch. 28, sec. 22, “invests the county court with full power
to direct the application of the county funds to the purposes specified
therein, or to any other good and necessary purpose for the use of the
county.” And by Rev. Stat., c¢h. 29, sec. 4, the county trustee, and by
section 11 the sheriff, is to apply the money in the payment of claims as
the county court may direct. The sheriff therefore is not to judge, but
the court, of the propriety of the order. It is his part to pay it if he
has funds as the order is his justification.

It is also by force of those provisions of the statutes requiring (151)
the county trustce or sheriff to pay the claims allowed by the
county that suits may be brought and recoveries had on their bonds in
the same manner as on other official bonds of sheriffs or other officers
that a person in whose favor an order is made may sue in the name of
the State. Tt is the duty of the sheriff having funds to pay an order,
and for the breach of that duty, after notice, the statute gives to the
creditor of the county an action on the official bond. There remains to
be considered the objection that there was not reasonable time after de-
mand before suit. If not bound to pay immediately, yet here no further
time was wanting, for the sheriff asked none. e did not state that he
hiad not funds, or that he was uncertain upon that point. Indeed, he
gave no answer to the demand but the smile, which, connected with the
fact of his silence and the nonpayment of the money, the witness con-
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strued into a refusal to pay—and not without reason, we think. When
the ereditor asks payment and the debtor condescends to no reply bus to
laugh at him, it was at least fit to be left to the jury as evidence of a
refusal. Thev so found in this case; and after a refusal, the creditor
may sue without delay. '

The judgment must therefore be reversed and judgment entered for
the plaintiff on the verdict.

Per Crrray. Reversed.

Cited: Harris v. Wiggins, post, 2755 Pierce v, Jones, post, 3305 S. v.
Pool, 27 N.C., 1115 8. v. Ingram, 1b., 4425 S. v. Perkins, 32 N. (., 334,
3355 Daris v. Shaver, 61 N. C., 205 Comrs. v. Blackburn, 68 N. C., 408
S. v Warren, 95 N. C., 676; Mobley r. Watts, 98 N, C., 286; Hopper v.
Justier, 111 N, C., 421,

(152) :
JAMES WALKER v. ROBERT W. REED ET AlL.

A.. by deed. conveys to B. a negro woman in exchange for a negro boy, with
this condition in the deed, that B.’s heirs shall convey their right derived
from their grandfather to A., and if they do not, each party is to resume
the right to his negro. Held, that before B.’s heirs refuse to make this
conveyance of their right, the right of B. to the negro womun is not di-
vested out of but remains in him.

Avrearn trom Seftle, /., at Fall Term, 1543, of MECKLENBURG.

Detinue to recover two negro boyvs, the children of a woman named
Peg. The defendants pleaded the general issue and the statute of limita-
tions. ‘The plaintiff offered in evidence a paper-writing, of which the
following 1s a copy:

“Know all men by these presents, that I, James Walker and Anny
Reed, for various considerations and conveniency to us both, have mu-
tually changed negroes, viz., I, the said Walker, have given to her, the
said Anny Reed, a negro girl named Peg with two children, Maximilian
and a vounger one, both boys, for a negro boy named Bennet, left her
by her father in his last will and testament, the girl and her issue to be
and remain with her, the said Anny Reed, in every respect in conform-
ity to the last will and testament of Robert Walker, her father. The
said exchange of negroes to be permanent and forever, with the said
Anny Reed’s heirs making the said James Walker a right from their
grandfather’s last will; and without the legatees agree to the right, any
one to take their negroes. Said Walker is equally bound with the lega-
tees of sald Annv Reed. In witness whereof we have hereunto set our
hands and affixed our seals, this 7 March, 1831.” (Signed and sealed
by Anny Reed and James Walker and attested by witnesses.)
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The plaintiff then proved a demand of the negroes from the defend-
ants, who were in possession, and that they refused to surrender
them. The defendants proved that the slaves had been in their (153)
possession and that of their father and mother, under whom they
claimed title, until they were scized by a constable under regular judg-
ments and exceutions against the father of the defendants, Hugh Reed,
who was a witness to the paper-writing above recited and the husband
of Ann Reed, who executed the said instrument during her coverture.
The said negroes, to wit, Peg and her children, were sold by the con-
stable. At the sale the plaintiff and the defendants were present and
forbade the sale, each party claiming.the negroes in his own right. They
. were sold, however, and purchased by one Samuel A. Harris at between
eighty and ninety dollars. After the sale and during the same dayv the
plaintiff applied to Harris, the purchaser, and inquired what he would
take for the negroes, to which Harris replied he would take $200 over
and above what he had paid for them. The plaintiff then went to the
defendants and urged them to buy the negroes at the price Harris
asked for them. The defendants declared they would not give that
sum. The plaintiff then insisted they should go to see Ifarris. They
all then went to IHarris—it being the evening of the same day of his
purchase—and Harris then agreed to tuke $150 above what he had given.
The plaintiff insisted that the defendants should buy them at that price,
and told the defendants that if they would do so, the plaintiff would
abandon all claim to the slaves, go their surety for the price to Harris,
and give bond to Harris covenanting not to sue him. The defendants
then agreed to purchase the negroes upon these terms. The negroes were
present. The defendants executed their notes to Ilarris for the pur-
chase money, with the plaintiff as their surety, and the plaintiff gave
his bond not to sue Harris. Harris then, in the presence and at the
request of the plaintiff, delivered the slaves to the defendants. Tt
appeared that the defendants had paid Harris the purchase money and
had had possession of the slaves ever since their purchase, which was
some four months before the commencement of this suit. It was proved
‘that the constable only offered for sale the interest of Hugh Reed,
the defendant in the said executions, and that the negroes were (154)
worth $373 each.

The court charged the jury that the plaintiff had not divested him-
self of the title to the slaves in controversy by exccuting the paper-
writing above recited; that his title was the same after executing the
said instrument that it was before. The plaintiff’s counsel moved the
court to instruct the jury that the plaintiff did not, nor could he, lose
his title by a parol estoppel. The court so charged the jury, but in-
structed them if they were satisfied from the testimony that Iarris
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acted as the agent of the plaintiff in the sale of the slaves to the defend-
ants, then the title passed to the defendants without a bill of sale or any
writing ordering a sale,

The jury returned a verdiet for the defendants, and judgment having
heen rendered pursuant thereto the plaintiff appealed.

Hoke and Alexander for plaintiff.

Rouden for defendunts.

Daxter, . This is an action of detinue, brought to recover two negro
boys, the children of the slave Peg. The plaintiff, by the deed men-
tioned in the case, conveved Peg and her two children (the bovs now
sued for) to his sister Annx Reed, with the assent of her husband, TTugh
Reed. She was to hold them in the same manner that she had held the
slave DBurnett {given in exchange) under her father’s will. The slaves
Peg and hier two sons were then taken into the possession of Hugh Reed.
The deed contains a defeasance, or condition subsequent, that if the
“legatees” (children of Anny Reed., we suppose) do release to him
(Walker) all the interest which thev have in the slave Burnett under
their grandfather’s will, then the convevance of Peg and her children
shall become absolute, permanent, and forever. 1f, however, the chil-
dren of Anny Reed should refuse to release or transfer to Walker their
right in the slave Burnett, then ecach party to the deed was to be at

liberty to take back the slave or slaves given by him or her in
(153) exchange, and hold the same as if the said deed had never been
executed.

The terms of the contract in the deed arve certainly very badly ex-
pressed; but we think, from our reading of 1ir, that we can distinetly
make out the meaning and intention of the parties to it to be as before
set forth. The plaintiff did not on the trial show in evidence that the
“heirs,” as they are called in the instrument. ever refused to execute to
him a release of their interest in the slave Burneti. The title conveyed
to Mrs. Reed, consequently, has not been divested. We therefore think
that at all events the plaintiff has no right as vet to retake Peg and her
children under the condition contained in the deed of exchange. Hence,
although we think Harris conld not be decmed, upon the evidence, the
plaintiff’s agent, and without deciding the effect of the plaintiff’s con-
duet upon his title, if he had any, we hold that the judgment must be
affirmed.

Per Clrriaa. No error.
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WILLIAM MATTHEWS v. EZEKIEL MATTHEWS.

1. Where there ix a summary proceeding of an inferior trihunal. ax in a case
under the processioning act, not according to the course of common law,
the parvty is entitled. er debito justitice, to a certiorari to bring it up for
review in the matter of law.

2. The report of a processioner ought to state the lines claimed by each party,
and that while running a line ax claimed by one party he was stopped by
the other. and must set forth particularly the locality of the line thus
claimed aud of the part of it at which he was stopped. o ax to constitute
an issue on the houndary.

Appear from Manly, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Ranporru. (156)

The following 1s the ease as it appears from the record: At
Augugst Term, 1839, of Randolplr County Coutt, John D. Brown, a pro-
cessioner of Randolph County, reported to the court that he had been
required by William Matthews to procession a tract of land for him, and
particularly to establish the lines between his land and that of Ezekiel
Matthews, and that on 23 May, 1839, he met the said parties on the said
land of William Matthews (which is not deseribed) aud “proceeded to
ascertain the black jack corner, then down, from which corner cast was
one of the lines between the said William and Ezekiel; and after run-
ning two lines your processioncr, from particular eircumstances, thought
it doubtful where the black jack corner formerly stood; and that it was
then agreed Letween the said parties that vour processioner should run
and procession the line between the said Ezekiel and the said William
south from where the line east from the black jack corner, after having
gone down the various courses of a certain branch from a stone corner,
would intersect the countv line of Chatham to William Matthews’ cor-
ner; and that vour processioner then, 1 order to ascertain where that
corner was, commenced running at a marked post oak, which was said
to be in the county line, and run without measuring due south to the
aforesaid branch, the said parties being present with their deeds; and
that vour processioner then had the chain stretched, and after running
on due south 1 ¢chain and 18 links, he was forbidden by the said Ezekiel
to proceed farther, upon the plea that he was running on the said
Ezekiel’s land, he (the said Ezekiel) claiming the land from that place
east as far as the said branch, with its various courses, to Bush Creek,
and the said William claiming the land east from a straight line running
from a corner, formerly Pickett’s corner, on the north side of his planta-
tion to an oak, now Auron Moflitt’s and the said Ezckiel’s corner, so fav
as his land extends.”

On the foregoing report five frecholders were appointed, who, with
the processioner, were to ascertdin and report “where the true line is
between the said parties.” At the next term they made a report, accom-
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(157) panied by a plat i explanation, and thereby established the

point where the black jack formerly stood, and a line from that
point north 39° 60 cast 15 chains to a branch as onc of the lines be-
tween the parties; and it also established two othier lines not necessary
to be particularly stated 1n reference to the point now before the Court;
and these lines were, as stated 1u this report, all the disputed lines,

At November Term, 1540, the report was confirmed and judgment
given against k. Matthews for costs. In Jaunary, 1841, he obtained a
certiorari on his aflidavit stating that he had prayed an appeal and was
induced to abandon it by the agreement of William Matthews not to in-
sist on the judgment, but to refer the suit to arbitration, and that after
the court adjourned he refused to do so.

Upon the return of the certiorar/, there were aflidavits on both sides
upon the point of an amicable arrangement by a reference; and E. Mat-
thews offered other affidavits, which establish satisfactorily that the
prineipal contest was as to the locality of the line between Chatham and
Randolph, which, running north and seuth, divides the lands of these
parties, and that the commissioners were entirvely misled as to the true
line. William Matthews opposed the reading of these latter affidavits,
and insisted that the case was to be decided upon the record from the
county court, but the court heard the afidavits and, upon them and the
record, reversed the judgment of the county court, quashed the report of
the freeholders, and ordeved the same to be certified to the county court
with directions to proceed further in the cause agreeably to justice and
right. From that decision Williamn Matthews appealed.

Winston for plaintiff.
Mendenhall and Iredell for defendant.

Rvrrix, C. J. We do not stop to inquire into the particular cause
why L. Matthews did not appeal, nor whether it would have been proper
on an appeal to hear affidavits as to the merits which were not offered

in the county court, because, taking up the case upon the record
(158) alone as nrged by W. Matthews, we think it must be determined

against him. This being a summary proceeding of an inferior
tribunal, not according to the course of the common law, we think the
party entitled, ex: debito justitie, to a certiorar: to bring it up for review
in the matter of law as in other cases on a writ of error; and if found
to be erroncous, to have it quashed.

It has been decided 1n Wilson v. Shuford, T N. C., 504, and Carpenter
v Whitworth, 25 N, C., 204, that the report of the processioner must
set forth the claimns of the respective parties and their opposite allega-
tions in such a way as to show the points of dispute, so that the parties
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may not be surprised, the freeholders know therefrom what they are to
decide, and the court see that the lines or corners established by the
freeholders are those which one of the parties claimed and the other de-
nied to him. Without such a rule there would be no precision in pro-
ceedings of this kind. Although it was no doubt his purpose to comply
with it, the processioner seems to us to have entirely failed in the report
made by him in this case.

The report begins by stating that the processioner had “proceeded to
ascertain the black jack corner, then down, from which corner east was
one of the lines between the said William and Ezekiel.” That line, then,
was one of the lines, which, as was before mentioned in the report, was
to be processioned and established. Tt then proceeds to state, “that after
running two lines, the processioner, from particular ecircumstances,
thought it doubtful where the black jack corner formerly stood.” Therc
it stops as to that point of the controversy; and from what is said, it
cannot be told what the dispute between the parties was as to that corner.
The processioner says he was at a loss to determine where the corner
was; so the parties also might have professed an inability to identify it,
and therefore did not set up a claim to any particular point as the ter-
minus. At all events, it is not stated that the parties respectively
claimed that terminus to be at different designated points, so as to put
them at issue on the question. In such a case and upon an order
passed that the freeholders were “to ascertain and report where (159)
the true line is between the parties,” those persons would have to
inquire at large and inform the parties where the tree stood. DBut that
is not their officc nnder the statute. It is, on the contrary, to establish
“the disputed line” by finding that it begins at such a point and runs to
such another, as claimed by one of the parties. Tlere must be an issue
between the parties apparent on the processioner’s report; otherwise
there is no controversy that can be definitely decided.

The report then advances to another line, about which it secms more
distinetly there was a dispute. But of the precise point in dispute the
report fails to present the requisite information; and in this it is again
defective. Tt states that it was agreed, as we understand it, that from
the point of intersection of the county line and a certain other line
(which is not very intelligibly deseribed) the processioner should run
and procession a line scuth to William Matthews’ corner; and that in
order, as we understand it, to aseertain where that (William Matthews”)
corner stood he began “at a marked post oak, which is said to be in the
county line.” and run due south until he eame to the atoresaid bravch;
and then, stifl running due south, he was, at the distance of 1 chain and

" 18 links, forbidden to proceed by E. Matthews, upon the plea that he
was running on his land, he (the said E. Matthews) claiming the land
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from that place east as far as the branch, with its various courses, to
Brush Creek. From this we can colleet that Ezekiel Matthews claimed
that the branch, from the point at which the survey crossed it, to Brush
Creck, was his boundary, and that the land belonged to him which was
on the west side of the branch and between it and the line which the
processioner ivas then running; that is to say, south from the “marked
post ouk,” and after erossing the branch. Now, we are unable to see that
the claim of William Matthews Is in conflict with that. They probably
are 1n fact inconsistent with each other, but it is not dircctly affirmed 1o
be so, uor are they so deseribed in the report as to appear so to he. The

words are “William Matthews claiming the land east from a
(160 straight line running from « corner (formerly Piclett's corner)

an the south side of his pluntation to an oak, now Aaron Moffitt's
and the suid Ezeliel’s corner.””  We cannot identify this line thus
claimed by William to be that which the processioner was running when
Ezekiel stopped hinn. They may be the same, but one cannot see that
they are. The one begins at “a marked post oak supposed to be in the
county line,” the other at “a coruer, formerly Pickett’s corner,” with-
out saying whether it be a marked post oak or anv other trec, or whether
it stood in or out of the Hue; the one runs south from the marked post
oak o a branch, and,-after crossing the brauneh, is still running south,
but without any {erminus called for; the other runs straight from Pick-
ctt’s old corner, without mentioning any course, to a certain oak as the
termenus. Thus it may be that the two lines are not identical; and if
thex be not, the report must be pronounced defective, It is not sufficient
that 1t should be reported that two persons owning coterminus lands
claim different lines. Tt onght to state the lines as claimed by each, and
that the processioner, while ranning a line as claimed by one of the par-
ties, wus stopped by the other.  Oue of the purposes of having the ad-
joining proprictors present iz that they mav see the lines, claimed by
the person, designated by actual survey, and be enabled by view to know
whether 1t-interferes with their lands, and how far. In this case the
controversy seems probably to have been, what was the county line—
that being called for on opposite sides as the line berween the parties,
It may be that Pickett’s corner and the marked post oak are one and
the same, or that the former is at a point in the counts line (as claimed
by William) north of the larter, and that by running south from Pick-
eft’s corner the line would strike the marked post oak and go on to
Moftitt’s corner also, as claimed by the same party. But that it is so
must be conjecture, and that is no ground for a judicial sentence. We
canuot know that if the processioner had run the line claimed by Wil-

liam from Pickett’s corner (wherever it is) to Mofitt’s and E.
(161) Matthews' corner oak (wherever it is), the other party would not
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have seen from the running either that it did not interfere with him, or
if 1t did, that it was the true line, and thus been led to decline the con-
troversy. It is nothing to the purpose that a party stops a surveyor
{from running one line when the other party claims another line. To
found this proceeding, the processioner must be forbidden to proceed on
a line claimed by the party, and the locality of the line thus claimed, and
of the part of it at which he was stopped, must be stated in the report
£0 as to constitute an issue on the boundary.

We think, therefore, not only that his Honor was right in reversing
the judgment of the county court and quashing the report of the free-
holders, but that he should have gone farther and dirvected the report of
the processioner also to be quashed as wrong from the beginning, and so
this Court adjudges, and with costs, against William Matthews through-
out.

Per Crriane. Judgment accordingly,

[8N]
S

Cited: Hoyle r. Wilson, 29 N, C., 469 ; Comrs. . Kane, 47 N. €., 291
Porter v. Durham, 90 N. C., 38; Forney v. Williamson, 93 N, (., 332
Euliss v. Meddams, 101 N, (., 3858, :

LEFFY . CLARK v. ARCHIBALD CAMERON ET AL

1. The court cannot dizmiss g suit, unless the act passed in 1826, Rev. Stat..
ch. 31, sec. 41, unless it appears from the aerit and declaration that the
sum demanded is less than $100. The verdict of a jury finding a Jess sum

,doesx not bring the case within that section of the act.

2. Where there is an issue joined in the county court, a verdict of a jury. and
before the verdict ix entered a motion to dismiss the suit. which is allowed
by the court. and the plaintiff appeals to the Superior Cowrt, there must be
a trial in the Superior Court of the issues de noro. That court cannot
render a judgment upon the verdict in the county court.

Arpean from Manly. .J.. at special term 1n December, 1843, of Cuar-
BERLAXD,

This was an action of debt brought in the county court on a (162)
bond for $300, in which the defendant pleaded payment and set-
off. The jury found sundrv pavments, and that the balance due the
plainti¥ was %€0.8%. Before the verdict was entered, the defendant
moved the court to dismiss the suit, and after having the verdict recorded
the court allowed the motion. The plaintiff appealed to the Superior
Court, and then the defendant renewed his motion to dismiss, but the
court refused it. The plaintiff then prayved judgment according to the
verdict in the county court, and the court rendered judgment thereon,
and the defeudant appealed to this Court.
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Warren Winslow for plaintiff.
D. Reed for defendant.

Rerrix, € J. We concur with his Honor in refusing the defendant’s
motion to dismiss. That is a proceeding not known to the common law,
but introduced by the act of 1826, Rev. Stat., ch. 31, sec. 41, which im-
poses that duty when a suit shall be “commenced for any sum of less
value than $100”; that is, as we conceive, when the sum demanded in
the action is less than $100. The acts of 1804 and 1820 were no doubt
intended to make the jurisdiction of justices thereby conferred exclusive,
but they provided that actions brought in courts for less than $60 or
$100 should be abated on plea, and 1t was held that the construction of’
those acts was that a plea in abatement was the only means of ousting
the jurisdiection of the courts, inasmuch as that was the method of the
common law and the statutes contained no provision for entering a non-
suit after the sum due was ascertained by a verdict, as in the Superior
Courts under the acts of 1777 and 1793, Sheppard «. Briggs, 9 N. C.,
369, in 1823, Then there grew up a practice of bringing suits in the
county courts on bonds and notes for sums between $60 and 100, upon

an understanding among the attorneys not to plead in abatement.
(163) It was to remedy that mischief that the act of 1826 was passed,

making it the duty of the court to dismiss suits when the want of
jurisdiction appears, whether the attorneys will or not.  And the ques-
tion 1s, to what cases that act applies? We think, both from the words
of the statuie and from the nature of the subject, that it manifestly ap-
plies to actions in which less than $100 is sued for or demanded in the
writ and declaration. and not to those in which a large sum is demanded,
but a smaller found due by a verdict on pleas in bar. The words ave “if
any suit shall be commenced for any sum of less value than $100,”
which would seem to express plainly enough an action brought for less
than %100, and not one in which, though brought for more, the recovery
was less than $100. DBut the meaning to be given to the phrase “com-
menced for” is placed above doubt by the sense in which it is unquestion-
ably used in another statute < part materia. In the acts of 77 and
’03 before alluded to, it is enacted “that no suit shall be originally com-
menced in the Superior Courts for any debt of less value than, ete.,”
upon which words the course would be to plead in abatement if a suit
were brought for a sum less than those mentioned. But the acts go on
to add, “and if any suit shall be commenced contrary to the meaning
hereof, or if any shall demand a greater sum than is due, on purpose to
evade this act, in either case, the plaintiff shall be nonsuited and pay
costs,” with a proviso for the plaintiff’s showing on affidavit that “the
sum for which his suit was brought was really due,” though not recov-
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ered, and thereby avoiding the nonsuit. Now, it is obvious in those acts
that the words “commenced for a sum” and “the sum for which his suit
was brought” are used as synonymous; and both are countradistinguished
from the others, “if any person shall demand a greater sum than is due,”
with the intent to evade the act. In the first case, the nonsuit may be
entered from inspection of the declaration; in the other, it must appear
by verdict that the lesser sum is due that it may appear that the greater
sum was demanded in order to evade the act; and when that appears, a
nonsuit is entered, non obstante ceredicto, by foree of the act.

But the act of 1826 has no such provision, but only directs the (164)
court to dismiss a suit that 1s commenced or brought for less than

%100, leaving the casc of a suit brought for more, but in which less is
due, to the operation of the common law or thc previous statutes, and
to be abated on plea. If it had been intended to place this case on the
same footing with that of suits in the Superior Courts it would have
been easy to have adopted the provisions of the acts of '77 and "93. As
that was not done, there is no method of proceeding but by plea in abate-
ment. By what means can the court ascertain for itself that the whole
sum demanded is not due? The Legislature could not mean that, upon
motion and aflidavits, the court should undertake to determine the whole
merits of the suit, and thus supersede the trial by jury; nor can the
court, without the express mandate of a statute, refuse to receive a ver-
diet beeause it finds more or less to be due, or, after receiving and record-
ing it, nonsuit the plaintiff, or, in the language of this act, dismiss his
suit. To render the act of 1826 effectual to such an end, an amendment
conferring that power on the court is indispensable.

But we are of opinion that it was crroneous to give the plaintiff judg-
ment in the Superior Court on the verdiet in the county court. The
plaintiff might have carried her case into the Superior Court by writ of
error, and then she would have been entitled to judgment in the Supe-
rior Coourt if, upon the record, she ought to have had it in the county
court, beeanse in that proceeding only the matter of law upon the record
is to be determined.  But upon appeal it is otherwise, for the act, 1777,
ch. 115, see. 77 (Rev. Stat., ¢h. 31, see. 122), is express “that in all
appeals from the county to the Superior Court, if the trial in the county
court was of an issue to the county. a trial de novo shall be had.” ~ The
appeal vacates the judgment rendered, and the verdiet also, and the
course is to proceed as if there had been no trial.  If language so ex-
plicit could require the aid of construction, it has long received it in
Snowden v. Humphries, 2 N. C., 21. Suppose a special verdict in the
county conrt, and judgment and appeal; it would stand no higher than
a general verdiet, although the appellant might have nrged in the
county court that, npon the verdiet as it was, he was entitled to (165)
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judgment. In the Superior Court either party is at liberty to show the
facts to be otherwise than found in the verdict below. Of course, this
is different from decisions in petitions, or on demurrer or awards, or the
like, in which there was not a trial of an issue, but a different mode
decision. For this reason, the judgment of the Superior Court must be
reversed and the cause remanded with directions to proceed to try the
issues joined between the parties, and otherwise act according to right
and justice.
Prr Currisar. Reversed and remanded.

Cited: Newman v. Tabor, 27 N. C., 232; Birch v. Howell, 30 N, C,,
470 Parliam v. Hardin, 33 N. C., 220; Bean v. Baxter, 47 N. C., 857;
Patton v. Shipman, 81 N, C., 349 ; Blackwell v. Dibbrell, 103 N, €. 273;
Hicles v. Beam, 112 N, €., 644,

THOMAS W. HOLLOWELL v. CHARLES W. SKINNER.

1. Where a father places personal property, other than slaves, in the possession
of his son about the time he arrives at age, and suffers him to continue
such possession uncontrolled for a considerable time, using it as his own,
the law implies a gift, which can only be rebutted by express evidence of
a mere loan.

2, But although an imposition on particular creditors by false representations
on the part of the father of the son’s credit might make him liable in a
proper action, yet even an express fraud of that kind would not work a
change of property so as to render what was really the property of the
father subject to an execution against the son.

[0

. An irregularity by the sheriff in making a sale under an execution can only
be objected to by him whose property is sold under the execution, or by
those claiming under him,

Arerar from Nash, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of Gares.
Trover, in which the plaintiff declared for the conversion of 80 hogs
and 31 head of cattle. The plaintiff showed sundry judgments,
(166) at the instauce of several persons, obtained at May and August
Terms, 1840, of Perquimans County Court against William C.
Skinner, amounting in all to upwards of $1,200, but gave no evidence
of the time when the debts, upon which the judgments were rendered,
were contracted, nor of the consideration of the said debts. The plain-
tiff then proved that he had bought the property claimed in the declara-
tlons under executions upon those judgments; that William O. Skinner
had, for some time before the rendition of the judgments under which
the sale was made, the possession of the property, and continued this
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possession up to the sale; that the sale under the executions took place
on 25 September, 1840; that possession of the property was demanded
of the defendant, who, after the sale, had got it into his possession, and
that it was 1efuscd, and he then prov ed the value of the property.

In order to repel this prima facie evidence of title, the defendant
proved that in 1835 he purchased the farm in Old he(‘k, in Perquimans
County, and all the stock of horses, cattle, sheep, hogs, and farming
ufensils upon it ; that for the years 1(\“' and 1836 he carried on the farm
under the managemcnt of an oversecr; that the first of the year 1837 he
put Willlam C. Skinner, his son, who was then under the age of 21
years, in possession of the farm and continued upon it the slaves, horses,
cattle, sheep, hogs, farming utensils, ete., and agreed to give him half
of the wheat crop, which was then on the land, and that he would give
him the property if he found he knew how to manage it and conducted
himself properly; that William came of age in the summer of 1837;
that from the time he took possession in 1837 he continued the posses-
sion until the summer of 1840, when he went up the country with his
family; that while he had possession of the farm, he made whatever use
of the crops and appropriated them as he thought proper, but disposed
of none of the other property; that his father, who lived some 18 or 20
miles off, occasionally visited the farm and gave him such advice
in relation to the business of the farm as he deemed proper; that (167)
the cattle and hogs claimed in this action were the same, or the
produce of the same, that were on the farm previously to and at the
time William C. Skinner took possession; that W. C. Skinner purchased
some furniture and stock, all of which was sold under cxecutions against
him in July, 1840, and that his father never made him any title to the
property put into hls possesssion.

The plaintiff then proved by a witness, who was present when the
demand was made, that the defendant remarked to the plaintiff that if
he had known the time when the sale was to have taken place he would
have had some person there to bid for him; that he hoped the plaintiff
had purchased the property for him, and he would pay the plaintiff the
amount he bid for it; that the plaintiff refused to accept this offer unless
he would pay him the whole amount of the debt due to him from Wil-
liam C. Skinner.

. H. Small, a witness for the plaintiff; proved that the defendant
and his son, W. C. Skinner, attended a vendue in February, 1837, at
which the witness was present; that after the sale was over and the
persons who had purchased property were giving their notes, the de-
fendant, being near the table when the persons who had conducted the
sale were taking the notes, remarked that he had given his son William
$30,000 worth of property, or that he had given his son the possession
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of $30,000 worth of property—which expression the defendant used the
witness could not state.

Another witness for the plaintiff stated that in 1839 he was employed
by William (. Skinner as an overseer, and lived with him in that capac-
ity upon the farm in Old Neck; that during that vear the defendant
came there and requested the witness to send two of the hands on that
farm to assist him in clearing a fishery; that not finding William C.
Skinner at home, the defendant complained of his being absent, and
remarked that he had better stay at home and attend to his business
himself, instead of employing an overseer; that he had fallen in debt

$500 every vear, and In a few years it would take all the property
(168) to pay his (William’s) debts, and it should all go to pay his debis;

that as he (William) could not get along with the property, he
would then see how he could get along without it.

Another witness for the plaintiff proved that he was the clerk in a
store for John S. Wood & Co., and afterwards for W. Bruer, in 1839,
near where Charles W. Skinner lived; that William C. Skinner pur-
chased articles that were used upon the farm, and that he also purchased
some furniture. )

W. Bagly, another witness for the plaintiff, stated that he, as sheriff
of Perquimans County, having one or more executions against Willlam
C. Skinner, to satisfy them, advertised a sale of personal property to
take place at the farm in Old Neck in July, 1840; that before the sale
commenced, the defendant asked him what property he intended to sell;
that this was in the piazza of the house; that witness told him lLe would
sell such property as William C. Skinner could best spare, and requested
William to point out such; that the defendant requested his son to make
out a list for him (Bagly), remarking that it was nnnecessary for them
to go over the plantation selling property, “Go and sell all-—all should
be sold to pay his (William’s) debts”; that Willilam C. Skinner made
out a list of property, by which he (Bagly) sold, until he sold more
than enough to satisfy the exccutions which he then held against him
by some small amount. The account of sales returned by the sheriff,
with the executions under which he then sold, were exhibited to the
sheriff, and he identified the property sold at the sale in Julv, 1840, as
being the same property which William C. Skinner furnished him with
a list at the time spoken of bv the witness.

The defendant then proved that all the property of which William C.
Skinner made out a list at the sale in July, 1840, with the exception of
an ox-cart, consisted of property which William C. Skinner purchased
after he took possession of the farm; and as to that ox-cart, William C.
Skinner deposed that until he referred to the sheriff’s account of sales
Le did not recollect it was sold at the sale in July; that he supposed he
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had put it in the list furnished the sheriff because he had ex- (169)
pended nearly the value of the cart in having it repaired.

The defendant introduced another witness, whose recollection of the
conversation between the defendant and Bagly agreed substantially with
that of the latter, with the exception of the remark made by the defend-
ant when he requested William to make out a list. This witness’s recol-
lection of this remark was that the defendant requested his son “to make
out a list of his property, as it was unnecessary to go over the house
selling the property.” The property sold at that sale consisted mainly
of household and kitchen furniture.

The hogs claimed in this action are 80 in number, consisting of hogs
of different classes—all of which, so far as it could be gathered from
the account of sales, were sold together and not in separate lots nor by
weight. The sheriff was examined as to the manner in which the sale
of the hogs was conducted, and was unable to state whether they were
sold altogether or in separate lots.

The defendant’s counsel insisted (1) that there was no evidence of a
gift from the father to the son; (2) that as the plaintiff had declared
for the conversion of the property only, the question whether the de-
fendant had secretly retained the title to the property with a knowledge
that his son was contracting debts upon the faith of that property, or
whether he had fraudulently given to his son a false credit, and thereby
deceived and defrauded creditors and purchasers, did not arise. DBut
supposing that question to arise upon the pleadings, he then insisted
there was no evidence of such a fraud. (3) That if the jury believed
from the evidence that the entire lot of hogs was put up together, the
purchaser acquired no title by virtue of the sale.

As to the first point, the court instructed the jury that if they believed
the evidence of William C. Skinner, his father, the defendant never had
given him the property in controversy. The after declarations of the
defendant did not in law amount to a gift, and they were only important
as they might assist them to a satisfactory conclusion upon another part
of the case.

As to the second point made in the defense, the jury were in- 170)
structed that if they believed the testimony of the plaintiff, he had
made out a prima facie casc of title in himself; that the defendant con-
troverted that title upon the ground that the property belonged to him,
and that it was perfectly competent for the plaintiff to show, if he could,
that the title set up by the defendant was one the law would not tolerate,
or that it was contaminated by fraud; that it was in coming to a de-
eision upon this part of the case their attention had been drawn to the
declarations and acts of the defendant subsequent to his putting his son
in possession. They were further instructed that where a father settled
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his son off to himself, putting him in the possession of property, which
passed by delivery, and the son obtained credit upon the faith of that
property with the knowledge of the father, who takes no steps to correct
the mistake, but suffers his son to go on in so obtaining a false credit,
as against a ereditor so trusting the son, believing the property to be his,
the father would not be permitted to set up his title; that if they were
satisfied from the testimony that William C. Skinner did obtain credit
upon the faith of this property, and that was known to the defendant,
and he made no effort to correct the mistake, he now comes too late to
say the property is his, and not William’s; but to enable the plaintiff to
avail himself of this principle, they must be satisfied from the evidence
that the debt upon which the judgment was obtained, and under which
he claims, was contracted with William C. Skinner upon the faith of
this property.

As to the third point, the court instructed the jury that if they found
a verdict for the plaintiff, he was entitled to the value of the lLogs, as
well as of the cattle; that the objection was one of which no one could
take advantage but the defendant in the execution, or some one claim-
ing under him, or by a creditor of his; that the defendant was not before
them in either capacity.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff, assessing in his damages
the value of the hogs as well as of the cattle claimed in the deelaration.

A new trial having been moved for and refused, and judgment

(171) rendered pursuant to the verdict, the defendant appealed.

Kinney and Iredell for plaintiff.
A. Moore for defendant.

Rurriy, C. J. The opinion of the Court is, that upon the defendant’s
*own evidence, there is a legal presumption of a gift to his son of the
cattle and hogs in controversv. No one can hesitate as to the true nature
of the transaction between the defendant and his son who knows any-
* thing of the ordinary feelings and conduct of parents towards their sons
when come to man’s estate and will look at what took place between
these persons. It is preposterous to call a voung gentleman his father’s
overseer, who, upon returning home after completing his education, is
put by a wealthy father into possession of a fine estate, properly stocked
with slaves, and with the usual supplies of the various kinds of cattle
and provisions, which, in conversations with his friends and in trans-
actions of business, the father calls his son’s, and with which the father
does not interfere for nearly four vears. On the contrary, during all
that period, the son acts in the management of the estate and in the use
of everything made or being on it as if they were his own, disposing of
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all the erops and profits—and they, too, were of great value—at his own
will and to his own use. It is true, the land and slaves did not become
his, because they do not pass but by deed or writing, but before the act
of 1816 the slaves would have been the son’s property; and even since
that act, if young Mr. Skinner had remained in possession of them until
his father’s death, intestate, they would have been his, as an advaiice-
ment, from the beginning. Stallings ©. Stallings, 16 N, C., 298.

It was among our earliest reported adjudications, that if, when a
child went to housckeeping, a parent put a slave or other chattel into
the child’s possession, the property was to be deemed in the possessor,
The soundness of the principle consists in its certain conformity
to the intentions of almost all men under such circumstances and (172)
by its necessity as a protection to children in bestowing care and
labor on what cannot be taken from them, and as a protection also to
persons dealing with the children. In Farrel v. Perry, 2 N. C., 2, Judge
Williams laid down the rule, that putting a chattle into a ¢hild’s posses-
sion 1s a gift in law unless the contrary be proven, and one of the rea-
sons for it was that otherwise creditors might be drawn in by false
appearances. The same reasoning is given more ut large in the subse-
quent case of Carter v. Rutland, 2 N. O, 97, where it is said that when
the possession remalns with the child for a considerable time, it will be
necessary for the father to prove clearly that it was expressly and notori-
ously understood not to be a gift; and further, that the peace of families
and the security of creditors were greatly concerned in the law being
thus settled. ‘

To no case could those reasons be more applicable than to the present.
The only thing that is supposed to qualify the legal inference from the
son’s possession that there was a gift is, that when the father put the
son into possession and gave him half the crop then growing, he added,
“and he would give him the property if he found he knew how to man-
age it and conducted himself properly.” DBut that does not repel, but
rather fortifies, the legal presumption that both the father and son, as
well as the rest of the world, considered the ¢rops and the various kinds
of stock, except the slaves, the property of the son. It is expressly stated
that the son made what use of the crops he thought proper, and appro-
priated them to his own use. That was for three or four years, and
during the same time the stocks also remained in his possession without
any complaint of his son’s conduct or claim of property by the father,
but on the contrary, with repeated declarations that he had given all
that property to his son, and that it was liable to his debts. How can
it be pretended to the contrary? A father may lend his son the use of
land and negroes, but who can suppose that any one would ever think
of borrowing for four years a stock of sheep, hogs, and cows with a view
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(173) of returning the same specifically or accounting for the increase?

Nothing of the kind was contemplated in this case, for the son
must have killed the original stock, or most of it, for sale or consump-
tion, and bred more upon his own provisions and with his own care.
The discovery of the son’s embarrassment induced the defendant to
resime the possession of the land and negroes, and tempted him also to
claim again the other chattels as being in some sort appurtenant to the
plantation. But until that discovery all parties regarded them as an
advancement to the son, and therefore as his property; and although the
land and negroes might be resumed, the other chattels could not to the
prejudice of the son and his creditors. In owr opinion, therefore, the
jury ought to have been instructed that the property was in the son, and
consequently passed to the plaintiff by the sheriff’s sale.

That conclusion renders 1t perhaps unnecessary to consider whether
the subsequent observations to the jury were correct or not, since, even
if they be erroneous, the verdiet, being right in point of law upon the
whole case, ought not to be disturbed. Atkinson v. Clark, 14 N, C., 171.
Yet as we do not concur in those observations, and the contrary might
be inferred from our silence, it seems to be incumbent on us to state the
opinion entertained by the Court.

The learned judge, upon the assumption that there had been no gift,
gave it as his opinion that if the defendant knew his son was obtaining
credit upon the faith of this property and took mno steps to correct the
mistake, but suffered hLis son to go on in obtaining a false credit, the
father would not be permitted to set up his title against the plaintiff:
provided, however, the debt for which the sale to the plaintiff was made
was 1n fact contracted on the faith of this property. For imposition on
particular creditors by false representations of the son’s eredit, the de-
fendant might be made liable in a proper action. But even an express
fraud of that kind would not work a change of property, so as to render

what was really the property of the father subject to an execu-
(174) tion to an execution against the son. If there was a loan, and

not a gift, to the son, we think the defendant would have been
entitled to a verdict. In our opinion, indeed, the law is clear that it
was a gift. But that is not on the ground of actual deception on par-
ticular persons, as to whom, and not as to others, it 1s to be deemed the
son’s property. The rule rests on the tendency to deceive the world
arising out of a long unqualified possession of chattels derived from a
father by a child on settling in life. To eounteract that tendeney as a
general mischief, is one among several sufficient reasons for the pre-
sumption of a gift where it does not appear that it was expressly a loan.
If obtaining false eredit with particular persons on the faith of prop-
erty in the son’s possession would make a quasi estoppel on the father
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against claiming it, the cases of express loans, and of slaves even, would
be within the rule, as, we suppose, they unquestionably are not. Our
view is that a possession of a chattel by the child under the father, not
expressly as a loan, is evidence in law that there was really a gift, as is
known to be the actual intent of the parent in a vast majority of the
instances in which a child receives such things from a parent.

If the property was in the son, the defendant is not concerned whether
the sheriff conducted the sale properly or not. The son and those claim-
ing under him can alone make the objection. .

* Pzur Curiam. No error.

Cited: Skinner v. Skinner, post, 175, 1815 McNeely v. Hart, 30
N. C, 493; Wormell v. Nason, 83 N. C., 36; McCanless v. Flinchum, 98
N. C, 364.

(175)
JAMES C. SKINNER v. CHARLES W. SKINNER.

1. Where a father puts his son in possession of a plantation and slaves, and
permits him for three years to appropriate the crops to his own use, the
crop of the fourth year, as well as the preceding ones, are to be considered
as gifts from the father to the son and liable to the claims of the son’s
ereditors.

2. A sale of a crop of corn in a field by a sheriff, under execution, is good,
although the sheriff was not in nor immediately at the field, if he was near
enough to be in plain view, so that bidders saw what they were bidding
for, for that is the purpose of requiring the thing to be present.

Arrear from Pearsorn, J., at Spring Term, 1843, of Gares.

The statement of this case, which was founded on the same transaction
as the case last reported, Hollowell v. Skinner, ante, 165, was thus given
by the presiding judge:

This was an action of trover for 700 barrels of corn. The plaintiff
read in evidence six judgments, amounting in all to $1,291, against
William C. Skinner, taken at August Term, 1840, of Perquimans County
Court, and executions thercon to November Term, and proved that a
sale by the sheriff under these several executions in September, 1840, the
plaintiff purchased the crop of corn at Old Neck, which the defendant

" afterwards converted to his own use. It appeared in evidence that the
defendant, who was the father of William C. Skinner and a wealthy
planter, was the owner of the Old Neck plantation, which was about 20
miles from his residence. The plantation was supplied with horses,
stock, and farming utensils, and the defendant kept there some 20 slaves.
In February, 1837, William, his son, who had just finished his eduea-
tion, went fo reside on this plantation, and eontinued to live there until
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the fall of 1840. The wheat crop of 1837, which had been put in by
the defendant, was equally divided between the defendant and William.
The corn erop of 1837 and the corn and wheat crops of 1838 and 1839,

and the wheuat crop of 1840, were disposed of by William and the
{176) proceeds nsed by him. Wheat and corn were the onlv products

of the farm made for sale. In 1838 William married. In 1839
and 1840 William employed overscers. During his residence at Old
Neck -he bought several horses—some to work on the farm, others for
riding horses: ITe purchased, in his own name from the stores, salt, iron,
and all other articles needed on the farm, and acted in evers respect as
if he was the owner of the establishment, but did not sell nor offer to
soll the plantation or any of the negroes or any of the stock found there
when he went into possession,

Baglev, the sheriff, swore that the sale took place at Old Neck; that
the corn was growing in two large fields Iving near each other, separated
by a fence and a narrow slip of uncultivated land. The river field, con-
taining about 150 acres, was first sold. The sheriff and others attending
the salc were inside of the field when it was sold and bought by the plain-
tiff. The new field, containing about 50 acres, was then put up and
sold, the sheriff and others remaining in the river field. The new field
was 1n full view, the nearest part about 250 vards off. This was also
purchased by the plaintiff. The corn was sold as 1t stood in the fleld.

One Small swore that he was in the spring of 1837 at a sale of the
property of Thomas Long, deceased, the defendant and William, his
son, and many others, attending the hiring and sale; that the defendant
bid for many mnegroes when offered for sale, but did not get one; that
when the purchasers and persons hiring were at the table giving their
notes, the defendant observed, as a reason for wishing to hire negroes,
that hie had given his son William property worth $30,000.

One Iollowell swore that he was the overseer of the defendant at
Old Yeek in 1836; that in 1837 he and the defendant happened to be
at Old Neek together, and were talking about the value of the plaee
that the defendant said the place was worth $22,000; that he had given
it to William; that it was rather more than his share, but it could not

he split; that he intended it for William, and \}muld direct in his
(177) “111 that William should refund to the other legatees. This wit-

ness also stated that in 1838 le was at the courthouse while
negroes were being hired, when a certain megro man was put up; that
the defendant inquired f01 William, saying William wanted to hire this
negro; that the defendant then bid off the negro and directed the clerk
to ]mt him down to William; that this negro worked that year on the
Old Neek plantation; that William managed and spoke of the said
plantation as one would of his own property.
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One Brothers swore that he was employed by William as aun overseer
in 1839; that he looked only to William for his wages, though he had
not vet been paid.

One Whidby swore that he was emploved by William (. Skinner as
overseer for the vear 1840; that William managed evervthing as his
own, shipped the wheat crop and received the proceeds; that the witness,
in August, informed the defendant that, owing to the great indebtedness
of William, he was afraid his wages would not be paid, whereupon the
defendant emploved him to oversee, as his agent, for the remainder of
the year, and agreed to see him paid for the time Le had acted as over-
seer of William; that William was then on a visit up the country, and
did not return to Old Neck. i

Langley swore he sold William a Lorse in 1839 for $230, and William
said he should be paid out of the next erop.

Brewer swore that he kept a store near Old Neck, and William pur-
chased article from him for his own use and that of the plantation, and
that William said on one occasion he considered himself worth $20,000;
that Lis name was at the service of the witness and was good for $20,000.

William C. Skinner, called by the plaintiff, swore that at the time he
requested the memﬁ to sign a note to Wood & Co. as his surety, he
told the plaintiff the note should be paid out of the corn erop of 1940,
that Wood & Co. were merchants near the Old Neck; that the note
was given to settle thelr store account, and was one of the debts (178)
which had been reduced to a judgment, and to satisfy which the
sheriff sold the corn crop of 1840, that the debt was about $600. This
witness further stated that he had tlie sole use of the crops after he
went to Old Neck, except the wheat erop of 18375 that he bought horses,
mules, ete., and managcd as if the property was hxs; that he anticipated
the wheat crop of 1840 by a draft, which was endorsed by his father for
him; that his father had no knowledge of the debts or of any one of
them under which the crop was sold, so far as he knew, but his father
on several oceasions complained that he was doing badly and was going
in debt; that he remonstrated with him, and when he saw a new horse
would give him a lecture on cconomy ; that he went to Old Neck in Feb-
ruary, 1837, and came of age in June of that year; that when he left
school, his father asked him whether he would prefer living at home or
going to Old Neck; that he left it to his father, who concluded that he
should go to Old Neck, and told him he would give him half of that
vear’s erop, and afterwards would be regulated according as he thought
his conduct merited ; that no more definite arrangement was ever made,

The witness Brothers further stated that in 1839, while he was Wil-
liam’s overseer, the defendant came to the plantation; that William was
not at home; that the defendant said he had come to get two of Wil-
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liam’s negroes to assist in clearing out a fishing ground; that William
had better stay at home and attend to his business, instead of having an
oversecr; that he had been getting in debt $500 a year ever since he took
possession of the place, and that if he did not do better, he would be
sold out in a few years; that the defendant then said, “Well, the prop-
erty will all be sold, and if he can’t live with property, he may get along
without it”; that the defendant came to the plantation but seldom, and
exercised no control when there, except to give advice, ete.

The defendant offered no evidence.

The plaintiff’s counsel insisted (1) that from the evidence, William

Skinner was the owner of the corn crop, being a tenant from year
(179) to year, or, at any rate, a tenant at will, and so entitled to emble-

ments; (2) that William being permitted by his father to enjoy
the property as his own, and having acquired credit on the faith of the
crops, the defendant would not be permitted to set up his eclaim and de-
feat the creditors.

The defendant’s counsel contended (1) that William was the mere
agent and manager of his father, having no ownership in the property
or crops; (2) that supposing the principle of law contended for by the
plaintiff’s counsel to be correct and applicable to creditors, it was neces-
sary to show that the defendant had knowledge that William was about
to contract some one of the debts, under which the property was sold,
and permitted him to get credit on the faith of the crops, so far from
which it was apparent that the defendant had no such knowledge, but
was unwilling and even remonstrated against his contracting debts.

The court charged that if Willlam was the agent or manager of the
defendant, the plaintiff could not recover on the first ground, as repre-
senting William the debtor, because an agent has no property in the
crop, and if injured, must sue on his coutract; but if the son took pos-
session—not as agent, but on his own account—with the understanding
that the possession was his, and although the title remained in the father,
vet he was to have the privilege of using the plantation and negroes and
be the owner of what he should make, subject to revocation by the father
whenever he should think proper, the son’s taking possession would ere-
ate such a relation between him and his father, whether a tenancy from
year to year or a tenaney at will, it was unneccessary to decide, as to
entitle the son to a erop which he had planted and cultivated, although
it was standing on the ground at the time the fatller terminated the rela-
tion. It was not nécessary for rent to be reserved. A father might give
his son a stated sum for his support, or he might give him the use of a
plantation and negroes for that purpose. If he did so, and the son was
at the expense of employing an overseer, hiring negroes, buying horses,
ete., although the father might revoke the gift or loan at any time, still

138




N. C.] DECEMBER TERM, 1843.

SKINNER 2. SKINNER.

the son would be entitled to the crop which he had been at the (180)
trouble and expense of making. Whether the son was the mere
agent, or was put in possession on his own account was left to the jury.

The court further charged that if the defendant, by putting the son
in possession, enabled him to acquire credit; if the creditors, or any of
them, under whose executions the crop was sold, gave credit to the son
under a belief that he was the owner of the erops and had a right to dis-
pose of them, and if the defendant knew that his son was enjoying credit
and going in debt upon the faith of his being entitled to the crops, and
stood by without taking any measures to correct the false impression,
he would not be allowed to set up his title to the crop against the plain-
tiff, who represented the creditors, although the jury should believe he
was unwilling for his son to go in debt and remonstrated against his do-
ing so, and although he did not know of his incurring any of the par-
ticular debts sued on—on the same prineiple that one who stands by and
sees another buy and pay for his horse is not allowed afterwards to elaim
him, and one who is in the habit of sending his servant to a store is
bound to pay the account, though the master did not send him for a
particular article.

The defendant’s counsel also insisted that as to the 50-acre field, the
sale was void, because the sheriff had no right to sell at the distance of
250 vards.

The court charged that it was not necessary for an officer to go inside
of a field in order to sell a growing crop; it was suflicient that he was
within view and within such a convenient distance that the persons at-
tending the sale could exumine for themselves and know what was
offered for sale.

There was a verdict for the plaintiff, and a new trial being refused
and judgment rendered according to the verdiet, the defendant appealed.

Kinney and Ivedell for pluintiff.
A. Moore for defendant.

Ruvrriy, (. J. This case arises out of the same transaction (181)
which gave rise to that of Ilollowell +. Skinner, ante, 165, and, if
possible, is elearer for the plaintiff than that was.

If the son was not occupying the plantation as the overseer and serv-
ant of the defendant, it must follow that he did so on his own account
and for his own benefit.  We need not go minutely into the evidence for
the purpose of establishing the nature of the occupation; no one can
doubt from what the defendant said, and from what he and his son did,
and from what they did not do, that the father was setting his son up in
the world by giving him the use of the large property of which he put
him in possession; accordingly, the young gentleman sold the erops of
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three years and appropriated them to his own use without claim or com-
plaint of the father. What overseer or steward would have been allowed
to act in that way? Could the father maintain actions against the pur-
chasers of the crops of 1837, ’38, and ’39 which the son sold? Why not?
It'is because the father never thought of claiming them, but intended
that the son should so dispose of them and appropriate the proceeds; in
other words, they were gifts. For the same reason, the crop of 1840,
produced during the son’s oceupation and by his industry, is his, both
for the bencfit of himself and his creditors. The son’s possession began
with an express gift of half the crop then growing, “and after that, he
(the father) would be regulated as he thought the conduct of the son
merited.” That 1s the son’s own account of the matter, and he adds
“that no more definite arrangement was ever made.” This certainly
imports that the father might resume the land and negroes when he
pleased, but 1t equally imports that until he should resume them he did
not claimn the crops that should be made, but that as the first was the
son’s by express gift so the others should be also. Tle son planted and
cultivated the crop of 1840, to maturity, and therefore that belonged to
him; and so the Jury, we think, were properly instructed. As the ver-
dict on this ground was, in point of law, right, the judgment must be

affirmed, nothwithstanding, as we said in Hollowell . Skinner,
(182) we do not concur in the opinion as to the quast estoppel on the

defendant.

We also think the sale of the corn in the small field valid. Although
the sheriff was not in or immmediately at the field, vet Le was near enough
to be in plain view so that bidders saw for what they were bidding, and
that is the purpose of requiring the thing to be present.

Per Crriaar No error.

Cited: MeNeely v. Hart, 30 N. C., 495 ; Shannon v. Jones, 3¢ N. C,,
208; Perry v. Hardison, 99 N. C., 27.

WILSON C. WHITAKER ET AL, v. WILLIAM D. PETWAY, SHERIFF.

1. Any irregularity in the return of a justice’s execution levied on land, as that
it was not returned to the next court, or that the personal property was
not exhausted, or any error of the court in ordering a sale of the land,
when the personal property levied on has not been evhausted, can only be
objected to by the defendant in the execution.

2, On the application of a sheriff for the advice of the court how he is to apply
moueys raised by him under several fi. fas. on judgments in court and
writs of venditioni erponas issuing on orders for the sale of land levied on
by a justice’s execution, the court will not look behind the orders of sale
and the venditioni erponas issuing thereon.
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Arpear from Bailey, J., at Fall Term, 1843, of EpcEcoMBE.

This case came before the court upon the application of the defend-
ant, the sheriff of Edgecombe, to the county court of that county at
August Term, 1841, which application was in the following words, viz. :

“The sheriff, being doubtful to whom to apply the moneys raised by
the sale of the defendant’s lands, as mentioned in his return on the fi. 7a.
of Wilson C. Whitaker against Benjamin 1’. Porter, brings into court
here the sum of $558.42, and asks the advice of the court how to
appropriate the same, which return is in the following words, (183)
viz.:

“William D. Petway, sherifl of Edgecombe, brings into court here the
sum of $558.42, arising from the sale of B. Porter’s lands; and not know-
ing how to apply the said moneys, asks the court how to appropriate the
same upon the followlng statement of facts, to wit:

“James C. Marks, a constable, whose office expired at February Term,
1841, having in his hands sundry executions against the defendant
Porter, to part of which Asa Edmondston and others were sureties, levied
"some of those exccutions, to wit, those in favor of L. H. B. Whitaker,
Pittman, and Coker, on two negroes and a tract of land of Asa Edmond-
ston, and on Porter’s property 11 Jaunuary, 1841, The exceutions of
John Barfield, T. and B. Hunter were levied 21 December, 1840, on
Porter’s hogs, horses, corn, cte., and on three negroes, as well as on
Porter’s land ; the executions of Denton and others were levied on 2 Feb-
ruary, 1841, on Porter’s land and property alone. Part of the personal
property of Porter was sold by Marks on the Friday of February court,
1841, and by Marks’ returns brought the sum of $246. The remainder
of the personal property of Porter (the negroes) was soM on the fourth
Monday of March, 1841, for $551. The whole amount was applied by
Marks to a part of the exccutions in his hands, which were levied on 21
December, 1840, in favor of Barficld, excluding a part of Barfield’s exe-
cutions and the cxeccutions of T. and B. Hunter then levied. The per-
sonal estate of Edmondston levied on by Marks remains unsold. On 25
May, 1841, Porter accepted notice of the levies on his land, and Marks
returned them to May Term, 1841, of the county court on the sccond
day thereof, and by order of the court venditiont exponas issued on them
to August Term, 1841. On 13 May, 1841, Thomas Mancr, a constable,
levied the execution of James J. Phillips on the land alone and returned
the same to May Term, 1841, upon which, by order of the court, a ven-
ditioni exponas issued, returnable to August Term following. At May
Term, 1841, Wilson (. Whitaker obtained his judgment and exe-
ention issued thereon returnable to the succeeding August Term. (184)
The land was sold under all these several exccutions, which are
now on file and returned herewith.” Signed “Wm. D. Petway, Sheriff.”
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Whereupon Wilson C. Whitaker moved the court for a rule on the
sheriff, first, to appropriate the said moneys to the execution of James
J. Phillips, and then to his own; and the sheriff, being in court, here has
notice of the rule without any other service. And the rule was con-
tinued.

At February Term, 1842, the following entry was made on the min-
utes: “Rule on plaintiff Wilson . Whitaker to show cause why the
constable, James C. Marks, may not amend his constable’s levies so as
to describe more particularly the boundaries and location of the lands
levied on. Rule granted.”

At May Term, 1842, the motion of Wilson C. Whitaker was over-
ruled, and it was ordered by the court that the moneys in the hands of
the sheriff be appropriated pro rata to the venditioni exponas issuing
from May Term, 1841. From this order Wilson C. Whitaker appealed
to the Superior Court.

The case came on for hearing in the Superior Court of law of Edee-
combe County upon this appeal, when the following order was made:
“This case now coming on to be heard upon the return of the defendant,
who 1s the sheriff of Edgecombe, and the exhibits filed in the cause. The
court 1s of the opinion, and doth so adjudge, that the moneys mentioned
in the said return arising from the sale of the land of Benjamin Porter
be applied to the venditionis issuing upon the levies made by James €.
Marks and Thomas L. Maner, according to the dates of the said levies.”

From this order Wilson ('. Whitaker appealed to the Supreme Court.

Whitaker for plaintiff.
B. Moore for®defendant.

{185)  Daxmr, J. Both the County and Superior Courts proceeded

in their judgments on this rule, not barely to discharge 1t as to
the plaintiff, but directed the sheriff how he should dispose of the money
raised by the sale of the land among the other execution creditors—a
thing not called for by the rule, and which, therefore, we shall not de-
termine in this opinion of ours. We, however, coneur with the judge in
his opinion that the plaintiff has no right to any of the money arising
from the sale of Porter’s land, as there is not enough to pay the justice’s
judegments. Tt is true that the levies on Porter’s land by the constable
Marks ought regularly to have been returned to the next term of the
county court, which would have been February Term. And it is equally
true that the court should not have made any order for the renditioni
to issue until all the personal property which had been levied on had
been first sold and the amount credited on the justice’s judgments; then
the balance only of the monev due on the judgments would have to be
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raised out of the land under the renditionis. Henshaw v. Branson, 25
N. C., 298. But who had a right to take advantage of these errors and
irregularities? Porter, the defendant in these justice’s executions, and
nobody else, had a right to object. He, so far from raising an objection,
actually waived all errors and permitted the orders to be made at May
Term as prayed for by the plaintiffs in those justice’s judgments. It is
a maxim that consent takes away error. The venditioni in each case
recites the levy on the land by the constable, and also the date of that
levy. All these levies were made before the plaintiff obtained his judg-
ment against Porter; and, of course, as they are not void, have priority
to the plaintiff’s execution.

As to the amendments permitted to be made on the returns of the jus-
tice’s executions by Marks, all we can say is that the amendment was at
May and was not appealed from. The question of its propriety is there-
fore not before us. We cannot, in deciding this rule, look behind the
orders of sale and the writs of venditions cxponas issued thereon. .
Tt is to be recollected that the writ justifies the sheriff, and that he (186)
is therefore bound to pay the money to the creditors according to
the preferences appearing upon their executions. Here Whitaker’s is a
fi. fa. tested at May Term, while those of the other ereditors are writs of
venditions exponas on levies before May. The rule ought therefore to
have been discharged and the judgment is affirmed with costs.

Per Curram. Affirmed.

Cited: Dewey r. White, 65 N, C., 2295 Mdllikan v. Fox, 84 N. C., 110.

BENJAMIN ROBINSON v. DANIEL GEE.

1. Where the grantor of a tract of land reserved to himself and his heirs “all
the saw-mill timber on the land standing or heing, or which may hereafter
stand or be on the said land or any part thereof”: Held, that the grantor
and his assignees had only a right to the saw-mill timber then on the land,
or to such trees as might thereafter become fit for saw-mill timber when
they became so fit, but that they had no right to prevent the grantee of the
land from cutting down pine saplings, though these might, if left undis-
turbed, have become saw-mill timber at some future time.

2. Held, further, that if the person claiming under such reservation of saw-
mill timber had been injured by the grantee of the land cutting down such
timber, his proper remedy was by an action of trespass quare clausum
fregit.

AppraL from Manly, J., at Special Term, December, 1843, of Crar-
BERLAND.
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Trespass quare clavsum fregit to recover damages for cutting down
and using a number of pine saw-mill timber trees, and for cutting down
and using pine cord wood, and for cutting down and using pine rail
timber, not needed nor used for plantation purposes, upon a certain tract

of land.
(187)  The plaintiff produced a deed dated in July, 1800, from Archi-
bald Reed to James Gee, of whom the defendant was the son and
heir. This deed conveyved to the said James Gee the tract of land in
question, called “the pine thicket,” containing 200 acres, “to have and
to hold the aforesaid tract or parcel of land, with all and singular the
appurtenances to the same belonging or appertaining, reserving only to
himself, the said Archibald Reed, and his heirs and assigns forever, all
the saw-mill pine timber on the same land stauding and being or which
may hereafter stand or be on the said land or any part thereof, with
full and absolute privilege of egress and regress in and upon the said land
at all times for the purpose of cutting or taking away the said reserved
timber, except only such timber as shall be at any time necessary for
fencing and for plantation uses on the said land.” And then followed
the usual covenant of warranty. The plaintiff then produced a deed
dated in February, 1803, from the said Archibald Reed to one David
Anderson in which the description of the premises conveyed is as fol-
lows: “A certain plece or parcel of land in the said county of Cumber-
land, situate, lving, and being as follows, ‘beginning, ete. (here the
boundaries ave deseribed), being the same land which was sold to James
Gee some vears ago, and the saw-mill timber excluded, which saw-mill
timber on said land the said A. Reed only sells to David Anderson and
his heirs, ete., forever, and the said A. Reed doth warrant and defend
the same to the suid David Anderson and his heirs forever, and that the
sald D. Anderson shall at all times and when he pleases go upon the
sald land and take off and eut down any such saw-mill timber as he
thinks proper, free from any hindrance or molestation whatsoever from
the owner of the said land or any other person or persons.” By virtue
of an execution issuing on a judgment against the said David Ander-
son, the sheriff sold, and by deed bearing date 4 November, 1818, con-
veying, to Jonathan Evans in fee “a certain piece or parcel of land, ete.
(deseribing it), being the same land sold by Archibald Reed to James
Gee on 15 July, 1800, and all of the pine saw-mill timber excepted
thereon, which said pine saw-mill timber was sold by the said
(188) A. Reed to D. Anderson by deed bearing date 28 February, 1803;
and 1t is the true intent and meaning of this instrument to sell
and convey only the pine saw-mill timber which now is and which ever
hereafter shall be on the aforesaid 200 acres of land, with all the rights
and privileges vested in the said D. Anderson.” Jonathan Evans on the
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same day, by deed, conveyed to the plaintiff all that had been conveyed
to him by the said deed of the sheriff.

It was in evidence that the tract of land called the “Pine Thicket”
had never been cleared except about 3 acres, upon which was a house
inhabited, and that nearly the entire growth thereof was pine; that the
widow of James Gee, after his death, which happened nearly forty
years ago, had used the land without stint as her own, and enjoyed more
than twenty years actual possession of it, and there was no proof that
the plaintiff, or those under whom he claimed, had ever exercised the
right of getting saw-mill timber on the said land, but it was in proof
that he had got some rails thereon about the time of the alleged tres-
pass by the defendant, and also that the defendant acted under his
mother’s authority. Tt was also in evidence that the defendant admitted
he had cut down for market about 30 cords of pine wood, but denied
that he had cut down any trees fit for saw-mill timber; and it was also
proved that at divers times the defendant had cut down pine wood for
the use of his mother’s plantation adjoining, though no times were fixed
upon as those at which the acts were done.

It was insisted by the defendant that the plaintiff could not recover
in this action:

1. Because the reservation in the deed from Reed to Gee was void as
a reservation.

2. That it could not operate legally as an exception, and therefore
(1) that Reed had nothing in him to convey to Anderson; and (2) that
even if Reed had anything in him and had conveyed to Anderson, the
judgment, execution, and sheriff’s deed had not conveyed that intcrest
from Anderson to Evaus.

3. That the plaintiff, and those under whom he claimed, had lost their
right by lapse of time, there being no proof of its having ever been
exercised. (189)

4. That, supposing the exception in the deed from Reed to Gee
to be valid, there was an exception to an exception which gave Gee a
right to use even saw-mill pine timber when necessary for fencing or
other plantation uses, and that the proof was that any timber of any
deseription taken by the defendant had been for fencing or other planta-
tion uses.

5. That there was no proof that any saw-mill pine timber had been
used or taken by the defendant for any purpose.

6. The defendant relied on the statute of limitations,

7. That the action of trespass quare clausum fregit was not the proper
action, if the plaintiff conld maintain any action.

His Honor charged the jury. Reserving all other questions which
had been raised by the defendant in this cause, he Ieft it to them to say
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whether the defendant had at any time within three vears before the
institution of the plaintiff’s action cut down or otherwise used or de-
stroyed any pine trees fit for saw-mill timber not necessary for fencing
the land or other plantation uses, or had commanded the same to be
done or had assented to its being done before or afterwards or had taken
benefit thereof. For the present, he held the action to be properly
brought, and that the plaintiff had a right to all the saw-mill pine tim-
ber which might at any time be standing on the said land, subject to the
exception that the defendant might use as much thereof as might be
necessary for fencing or other plantation uses on the said land. What
was saw-mill pine timber? was a question for them; and having ascer-
tained what was saw-mill pine timber from the evidence submitted to
them, they were next to inquire if the defendant had used or caused to
be used, at any time within three years before the plaintiff’s suit, any
such timber; and if so, whether it was necessary for fencing or other
plantation uses on the said land; and if they so found, they would assess
the plaintiff’s damages accordingly; otherwise they should find for the
defendant. The jury found a verdicet for the defendant.
The plaintiff moved for a new trial: (1) Because his Honor did not,
as requested, charge the jury that if the defendant cut or used
(190) any pine timber which might thereafter have become fit for saw-
mill timber, unless it was necessary for fencing or other planta-
tion uses, he was guilty of a trespass. (2) Because his Honor did not
“charge the jury that if the defendant cut or used (or caused it to be
done) any pine timber fit for saw-mill purposes, he was guilty of a tres-
pass, whether the same was applied to fencing or other necessary planta-
tion uses on said land or not. A new trial was refused, and judgment
being rendered pursuant to the verdict the plaintiff appealed.

Henry and Winslow for plaintiff.
Strange for defendant.

Daxrer, J. The plaintiff contends that the judge should have charged
the jury that he was entitled to recover if the defendant cut down on
the said land pine trees or saplings growing and progressing to timber,
and which would in time bhecome saw-mill timber, provided they had not
been thus prematurely cut down. He insists that he, as assignee, had a
title to such growing pine trees and saplings under the reservation in
Reed’s deed to Gee “of all the saw-mill pine timber on the same land
standing and being, or which may hereafter stand or be on the said
land.” It seems to us, however, that the reservation in Reed’s deed cm-
braced only the saw-mill pine timber that was then standing, with a
contingent use to him and his heirs and assigns to any pine timber
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standing on the land when it by growth had become fit for saw-mill pur-
poses. The reservation is not of all kinds of trees, but only of the pines,
and not of all the pines, but only of saw-mill pines. Whilst the pine
trees were saplings were in an unfit state for saw-mill timber, they were
a part of the residue of the inheritance, and might be used with that
residue by the owner of the same in any manner he pleased; but when
any of the trees and saplings by full growth became timber fit to be used
at the saw-mill, then there would be a cesser of estate in those trees by
the owner of the land and an use in the said timber trecs would spring
up and vest in him, whoever he was, who could deduce his title

under the said reservation, with a perpetual license to enter and (191)
cut and carry away the timber. Clap v. Draper, 4 Mass., 266,
where much of the learning on this subject is to be found. Tt conld
never have been intended by Reed, when he made the reservation, that
the 200-acre tract of land should be a perpetual plantation for the rais-
ing of pine timber for his benefit; but Reed in his deed conveyed to
Anderson and his Jieirs forever “the saw-mill timber only.” The plain-
tiff has therefore only the interest that was in Anderson by force of the
deed from the sheriff to Evans. It would seem that Evans only got what
was then of full growth for timber; but at all events, until the pine
trees became fit for saw-mill timber, Reed or the plaintiff had no title
in them. No use in the trees could until then spring up for his benefit.
Tt seems to us that the plaintiff had no title in the trees that were cut
by the defendant. If he had, this action was the proper one for his
redress. See the above cited authority and Brittain v. McKay, 23 N. C.,
265.

Pzr Currawm. No error.

Cited: Guion r. Murray, post, 5205 Whatted ». Smith, 47 N. C., 38;
(Frice v. Wright. ib.. 185; Hardison v. Lumber Co., 136 N. (., 176;
Kelly v. Lumber Co., 157 N. C., 178; Veneer Co. v. Ange, 165 N. C,, 59.

(192)
ADELAIDE S. MEARES v. WILLIAM B. MEARES’' EXECUTORS ET AL.

1. A provision by a parent for a child in any manner or at any time, except in
the case of partial intestacy, excludes such child from the benefit of the
act of 1808, Rev. Stat., ch. 122, sec. 16, providing for children born after
the making of their father’s will; yet to have that effect, the estate de-
rived by such child must be ex provisione parentis, and not from any other
source.

2. A provision, however inadequate, will exclude a child from the benefit of
this act.
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3. Where there is a gift in a will to a class of persons, as to children, courts
are always anxious to effectuate the intention of the testator by including
in it as many persons answering the description as possible.

4. When legacies are given to children, payable or to be divided at some period
subsequent to the testator’s death, then those persons, whether born before
or after the making of the will or before or after the death of the testator,
who come into being before the period of division, etc., and answer the
description at that time, are entitled.

5. In construing a father’s will, although the division may not be postponed, a
gift to his own children will be held to include all of them in being at his
death unless it be evident upon the will that the testator meant the pro-
vigion only for those living at the date of the will.

Arprar from Battle, .J., at Fall Term, 1843, of New Haxover.
Petition filed by the plaintiff, who was a daughter of William B.
Meares, deceased, born after the making of her father’s will, to obtain
a share of his estate under the provisions of the act of Assembly, Rev.
Stat., ch. 122, secs. 16, 17. The executrix and the legatees, heirs, and
next of kin of the deceased, were made parties defendant. The follow-
ing ave the material facts disclosed by the pleadings.
On 15 October, 1838, William B. Meares made his will, of which he
appointed his wife executrix. The will gives to her certain real
(193) and personal estate for her own immediate use, and then confers
the power of selling all the other parts of the testator’s estate, real
and personal, at such times and on such terms as the executrix might
think best. Out of the proceeds of the sale, or out of the profits before
a sale, the testator directs his debts to be paid, and two small annuities
to be paid until January, 1844, to his two eldest sons. Then comes these
clauses: “As my executrix is authorized, but not required, to sell my
real estate, and will in that regard be governed by circumstances, to wit,
the practicability of effecting sales without too great sacrifices, and it
will be necessary for the support of my family and education of younger
children to work myv rice lands if not sold; and if sold, the money on
interest will be required for the same purpose. I direct my executrix
not to make anv division of that part of my estate not given to my wife
among mv legatees until 1 January, 1844, and that until that time the
whole of my estate not given to myv wife be kept as a common fund for
the maintenance of mv family (my wife inclnded) and the education of
my children; and on 1 January, 1844, or as soon after as practicable,
such of my real estate as may remain unsold must be sold, and what-
ever estate there may then be shall be divided as follows, to wit, into
as many equal shaves as I may have children then living, adding one
share for my swife; and T give one share thereof to my wife. T then will
that the residue, after taking out my wife’s said share, shall be valued,
and one-fourth part thereof equally divided among my sons Henry W.,
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Thomas D., Gaston, and John L. Meares, which I give to them and
their heirs. The then vemainder of my estate I direct to be kept to-
gether as a common fund to maintain and educate those of my children
who are younger than my son John L., and so continue until 1 January,
1851. I then direct that the estate then remaining unexpended be
divided as follows, to wit, that my sons William B., Oliver P., Edward
G. receive a sum equal to that allotted to my other children in 1844,
and my son Walker a like sum and $300 more to bring up his education
to equal maturity, and that the residue then remaining be equally
divided among all my children then living; and in case either of (194)
my children should then be dead and have left a child or children,

such child or children shall have their parent’s share.”” Then follow
several clauses, in which the testator directs that any money not neces-
sary for the maintenance of his family and education of his “children”
should be invested in stocks; and upon the death of any of his “children”
under 21 and without leaving issue, limiting over the share or shares
of the one or more so dying, to the “survivors or survivor of his chil-
dren”; and upon the death of “all his children” under 21 and without
leaving issue at their death, he gives the whole property to his wife.
The testator then adds:

“Tt is my will, and T so order, that all my children be liberally edu-
cated, and that there be expended upon their education as much as may
be necessary for that purpose, even if it exhaust both profits and prin-
cipal; and, further, that if it shall appear in January, 1844, that my
youngest children cannot be educated from the income of my estate, if
the allotment and division herein before appointed to be then made
should be made, then I direct that said allotment and division shall not
be then made, but my estate must be kept together and the income ex-
pended on the education of my younger children.”

At the time of making the will the testator had the eight sons men-
tioned in it and no other child. In May, 1839, the testator had a
daughter born, Adelaide 8. Meares, who is the present plaintiff; and in
October, 1841, the testator died, leaving his wife and the nine children
before mentioned surviving him.

In September, 1843, the present suit was commenced by petition by
the daughter Adelaide S., by a mnext friend, against her mother and
brothers, setting forth the facts above and claiming to have such por-
tions laid off to her of the testator’s personal and real estate as she
would have been entitled to had her father died intestate, insisting that
he had made no provision for her. The answers admit the facts, but
insist, on the other hand, that the will does provide for the plain-
tiff, and thercfore that she can have nothing more. In the (195)
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Superior Court there was a decree pro forma for the plaintiff, and an
appeal to the Supreme Court.

Badger for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendants.

Rurrix, C. J. The present proceeding is founded on the act of 1808,
“to provide for children born after the making of their parent’s will,
by which it is enacted that when a child shall be born after the making
of the parent’s will, and such parent shall die without having made pro-
vision for savd child, the child shall be entitled to such portions of the
personal and real estates of the parent in value as he or she would have
been entitled to had the parent died intestate, which portions are to he
made up in a manner specified in the act. The plaintiff’s right, there-
fore, depends upon the inquiry presented in the pleadings, whether her
father’s will does or does not make provision for her. The act, indeed,
does not require that the provision by the parent for a child born after
his will was made should be by the will itself; and there is no doubt
that a provision under a scttlement, or otherwise, executed either before
or after the birth of the child, would prevent the claim of a portion
under the act, for the act does not proceed upon a notion of compelling
the parent against his wishes to give an equal share of his estate or
any part of it to every child, but it supposes that every parent is desir-
ous of performing the natural duty of making a provision for each
child; and, therefore, when it happens that a will is made by a parent
who did not contemplate the birth of a child subsequently, and in con-
sequence of that gave away all of his estate to his other children or to
other persons, thereby leaving an after-born child destitute, the law
interposes this provision beneficently as supplying that which it pre-
sumes the parent must have intended to make and would have made after
the birth of the child had not death surprised him, or a mistake as to

the effect of his will, or an unaccountable supineness prevented
(196) him from making the alteration dictated by natural affection.

But this cannot apply to the case of a competent provision by
other means, for we ean see there a reason, consistent with nature, why
the parent should not alter his will, or even declare in it why he does
not make therein a further provision for such child. It may be said,
indeed, that would apply equally to a case in which the provision for
the child came from a grandfather, or a collateral relation, or even a
stranger, since the substance is that the child is not unprovided for,
and that may have induced the parent not to give more. But it is im-
possible that the wisest men can foresee every possible state of facts on
which a law may operate, and provide in it accordingly. The usual
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source of provisions for children is the parent, and therefore the Legis-
lature has adopted its enactments to that case, and confined them to it.
‘While, therefore, a provision in any manner or at any time by the parent
for the child—except, by necessary construction of the act, one by reason
of a partial intestacy—excludes the case from the operation of the act
of 1808; yet to have that effect, the estate derived by the child must be
ex provisione parentis, both by the words and the spirit of the act.

But in this case there is no other provision for the plaintiff but that
in the will, if there be any in that instrument; and the case, thercfore,
turns on the construetion of the will. If the aet of 1808 had never
passed, there is little doubt that is would be readily discovered that this
will did not exclude, but included, the plaintiff; for courts ave always
anxious to effectuate the intention of testators, when there is a gift to a
class of persons, as to children, by including in it as many persons
answering the description as possible—seeing they all stand in the like
relation to the testator, and, when a parent, in a very near relation. In
consequence of this inclination, a number of rules of construction have
been laid down, under several of which the plaintiff would get a provi-
sion, though it happens an inadequate one, under her father’s will; for,
although, when it is clear a testator meant to confine the gift to children,
or to any other class of persons, to those only who were in esse at
the making of the will, that meaning must govern; yet the inten- (197)
tion must be plain, to have that effect. When, however, legacies
are given to children, payable or to be divided at some period subsequeunt
to the testator’s death, then those persons, whether born before or after
the making of the will, or before or after the death of the testator, who
come into being before the period of division, ete., and so answer the
description at that time, arc entitled. Vanhook v. Rogers, T N. C., 178;
Fleetwood v. Fleetwood, 1T N. C., 222; Knight ¢. Weall, 19 N. C., 125.
But in construing a father’s will, although the division may not be post-
poned, a gift to his own children will be held to include all of them in
being at his death, unless it be evident upon the will that the testator
meant the provision only for those living at the date of the will; for the
law presumes he intended to fulfill his natural duty by providing for
each one, and, therefore, if it be possible, receives his words in that sense.
This is strongly exemplified in Matchwick v. Cock, 3 Ves., 609, and
Freemantle v. Taylor, 15 Ves., 363 ; the former of which was decided by
Lord Alvanley, and the latter by Sir William Grant; in which it was
very apparent that only the children in existence when the will was
made were within the contemplation of the testators; yet, as there was
no apparent purpose to exclude others, those after born were admitted
under the general term, “children” of the testator. Iere we have not
only the circumstances that there are future divisions, and that the
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objects of the testator’s bounty are his own children, but the testator
says that in the meantime “all my children” shall be educated in the
best manner; and then those divisions are to be made in shares equal
in number to the children then living, and, finally, the residue, after
taking out certain parts for four named sons in 1851, is then to be equally
divided between all the testator's children then living. Here is an ex-
press provision for the plaintiff, to say nothing of the cross-limitations
among the children upon the death of any not leaving a child and under
age. As before mentioned, the statute only provides for the case
(198) where the parent dies without having made provision for the
child, which means, without making any provision; for the act
does not mean to judge between the parent and child as to the adequacy
of the provisions he mayv choose to make, but only to supply his acei-
dental omission to make any, and in doing that the rules of the statutes
of distributions and descents are adopted, because there is no other.
Per Crriam. Reversed and petition dismissed.

WILLIAM McKINDER v. THOMAS B. LITTLEJOHN, ApMmgr. or WILLIAM
VAUGHAN, DECEASED.

Where a debtor relies upon the presumption of payment from the lapse of time,
and the creditor endeavors to rebut that presumption by showing his
insolvency, the creditor may also offer in evidence the circumstance of the
debtor’s residing at a great distance from him as tending to show that,
although the debtor may have had property for a short time, yet the
creditor had not an opportunity of knowing that fact and of getting satis-
faction out of that property.

ArpEan from GraNviLLE, at Fall Term, 1843, Manly, J.

Debt, commenced 31 July, 1837, on a bond given by the defendant’s
intestate and one John Vaughan on 15 August, 1811, payable 31 August,
1811. The defendant pleaded “payment,” and to establish it, relied on
the presumption of payment from the lapse of time. This presumption
was attempted to be rebutted on the other side by proof of the insolvency
of the defendant’s intestate, connected with his residence at a great dis-
tance from the place where the plaintiff resided. It was admitted that

the plaintiff resided in Norfolk, Va., and the defendant’s intestate,
(199) after his removal in 1812 from North Carolina, where the debt
was contracted, resided until his death, in 1819, in Mississippi.
John Vaughan, the other obligor, it was admitted, had always been
insolvent. The plaintiff’s witnesses deposed that the defendant’s intestate
was insolvent when he came to reside in Woodville, Miss., in 1812; that
his practice then as a physician did not more than defray his and his
family’s ordinary expenses; that he was never able to pay for the house
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in which he lived, of which the price was only $250; that he left at his
death some of his store bills unpaid, and from the insolvency of his
estate they never will be paid; that he was insolvent when he died, leav-
ing his only child upon the charity of Ins friends. It was also proved
that, a short time before his death, he wrote a desponding letter to his
brother in this State, complaining of his continuing distressed circum-
stances as to property and his bad state of liealth, and begging his brother
to take care of his child in case of death, which he shortly expected. It
was proved that this letter was of the same character with many others
to his brother during his residence at Woodville. The plaintiff’s witnesses
deposed that at no time from his coming to settle at Woodville to his
death was he able to pay a sum equal to this debt, except the eurrent
bills for the support of himself and his family, and, indeed, he did not
pay all of them. On the other hand, the defendant’s witnesses deposed
that when the defendant’s intestate went to Woodville in 1812 he was
insolvent; that he then commenced the practice of medicine and had a
very good practice, supposed to be worth upwards of $2,000 a year, up
to the year 1817 or 1818, when from his bad health he was compelled to
give up his profession; that he then obtained $5,000 or $6,000 worth of
goods and carried on merchandise for about 18 months, until his death,
in 1819; that he was in possession of a dwelling-house and lot, a store-
house and a doctor’s shop ; that he was reported to be solvent and in good
eredit; and these witnesses gave it as their opinion that he was

able in thosc times to have paid the debt now sued for. The (200)
defendant’s counsel prayed the court to instruct the jury as fol-

lows: 1. That if upon the cvidence before them they should be of opinion
that the defendant’s intestate was, during his residence at Woodville, in
Mississippi, solvent and able to pay the plaintiff’s debt, then the pre-
sumption of payment was not repelled, and they should find for the
defendant on his plea of payment. 2. That if upon the said evidence
the fact of the intestate’s solvency during his said residence was left ih
doubt, so that the jury should be unable to say from the evidence whether
he was solvent and able to pay, or the contrary, then, as it was for the
plaintiff to show the insolvency affirmatively, the defendant was entitled
to the benefit of the doubt, and the jury should find for the defendant on
his said plea. 3. That if the evidence did not show to the jury a con-
tinued inability in the said intestate to pay, from 21 August, 1811, till
his death, the presumption of payment remained, and the jury should
find for the defendant on his said plea. 4. That if the jury believed the
witnesses for the defendant instead of those for the plaintiff, and found
the solvency and ability of the said intestate to be as stated by the said
witnesses for the defendant, then the presumption of payment was not
repelled, and they should find for the defendant on his said plea. 5. That
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in passing upon the plea of payment the jury were not at liberty to con-
sider the residence of the parties—that 1s to say, that of the plaintiff in
Virginia and that of the intestate in Mississippi—as repelling the pre-
sumption of payment or as affording any evidence tending to repel the
same.

The court declined to give these instructions as prayed for, but in-
structed the jury that whenever a bond like the one before them had
continued to lie for 20 years or more after it fell due, the law declared
it should thercafter lie under a presumption of payment; that the jury,
therefore, in investigating the case, should begin by assuming the legal
position that the bond in question is paid, and then proceed to inquire

whether there is proof suflicient to satisfy them that it is not paid;
(201) that it would be erroneous for the jury to consider the case upon

the point of inquiry whether there is proof of pavment in the
defense; that the plaintiff, to entitle himself to recover, must make out,
as a part of the case, not only that the hond was executed, but that it
remains unpaid; that proof of the negative was an active duty, which
the law cast upon the plaintiff, and if he had not performed that duty
Lie had not entitled himself to the verdict of the jury. The jury were
then directed to consider the whole testimony and determine whetler the
presumption of fact that the bond was paid had been disproved or
rebutted—whether the proofs with regard to the pecuuiary embarrvass-
ments of the defendant’s intestate and the distance of his separation
from the plaintiff, taken together, were sufficient to satisfy them that
the said obligor could not and, in point of fact, did not pay the bond.
It the proof be sufficlent and the jury be satisfied that the presumption
already explained has been repelled, there should be a verdict for the
plaintifl; otherwise, if the jury be not satisfied, the presumption which
the law raises must have its effect, and the verdiet should be for the
defendant.. The jury were informed, in conclusion, that the court could -
not say there was no proof tending to show that the bond was not paid.
There was believed to be some proof (such as that already mentioned)
bearing upon this point, and it was submitted to them. Whether it be
suflictent for the purpose was a question for the decision of the jury.

The jury found a verdiet for the plaintiff, and, judgment being ren-
dered thereon, the defendant appealed.

Graham for plaintiff.
Badger and Iredell for defendant.

Daxirr, J. The defendant now iusists that if upon the testimony in
this case the jury had a doubt whether William Vaughan, at any time
whilst he remained at Woodville, was able to pay this debt, then he was
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not insolvent within the meaning of the law declaring that circumstance
sufficient to repeal a presumption of payment after a lapse of 20 years.
The answer 1is, that the court left it to the jury to say whether

William Vaughan “could not puy” during that time; and the jury (202)
by their verdict have said that he could not have paid the debt

during that time. If the evidence had been sufficient to have raised a
doubt in their minds, we suppose that they would not have returned a
verdict that he was not at any time able to pay the debt. William
Vaughan was insolvent when he gave the bond, and also when it became
due. He removed to Woodville, a considerable distance from the plain-
tiff’s residence, and in eight years thereafter he died insolvent. The
judge, in his charge to the jury, did, it is true, mix up the circumstance
of distance between the parties upon the point whether Vaughan could
and at any time did pay during that period. The defendant contends
that for a small space of time (18 months) in the said 20 years Vaughan
was (by his witness) proved to have had in his possession at Woodville
a house and lot and other property, worth from $5,000 to $6,000; and,
therefore, that he (Vaughan) was not continuously insolrent during the
whole space of 20 years from the time the bond became payable. The
law makes it the duty of the debtor to seek his creditor and pay him.
Take the fact to be, then, that for the space of 18 months during the
latter part of the first 7 or 8 years in the 20 years from the time the bond
became payable Vaughan did have at Woodville the means of payment,
then the circumstance of distance between the debtor and the creditor
might, we think, be left to the jury, with the fact of a continuous insol-
vency during the residue of the 20 years, as some evidence that the debtor
did not pay the debt during that small space of time. It comes within
what was said by this Court (MeKinder v. Littlejohn, 23 N. C., 66),
that the repelling of the presumption will not be hindered by the fact
that the debtor had a reversionary interest in certain slaves which vested
in possession but a short time before the suit was brought, when it did
not appear that the creditor knew of the existence of the reversionary
interest. The distance is material only as preventing the possession of
property by the debtor for but a short period from counteracting

the effect of insolvency as a circumstance repelling the presump- (203)
tion of payment; for if the debtor, living more than a thousand

miles from the ereditor, and in a situation between which and the place
of the creditor’s residence there was but little communication, should
have had in possession property of value to pay the debt but for a very
short time, so that the jury should think the ereditor did not know of it
and could not get payment out of that property, it might be regarded as
being, substantially, a continued insolvency, espceially where, as here,
the debtor seems barely to have had possession of property, without its
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appearing how he got it and whether he had paid for it. Immediately
afterwards, his state was that of absolute destitution. Therefore, we
think the residences of these parties was, in reference to the other facts,
some evidence in aid of the insolvency and general state of destitution of
the debtor. Lastly, we think, of course, the court ought not to have
charged the jury, as prayed, that if Vaughan had in his possession any
property at Woodville, or anywhere else, then that fact took him out of
the state of insolvency, which would repel the presumption of payment
after the lapse of twenty years. Although he might be able to live, yet
if wholly unable to pay this debt, it is justly to be considered insolvency
throughont. The judgment must be aflirmed.
Per Crria. No error.

Cited: Walker v. Wright, 47 N. C., 157; Woodhouse v. Simmons, 73
N. C, 32; Grant v. Burgwyn, 84 N. C., 568; Rowland v. Windley, 86
N. C, 38; Campbell v. Brown, ib., 318; Long v. Clegg, 94 N. C., 766;
Alston v. IHawkins, 105 N. C., 7.

(204)
HENRY J. CANNON v. ETHELDRED J. PEEBLES.

1. Where, in a deed of trust for the satisfaction of creditors, the maker of the
deed reserves to himself a general power of revocation and the declaration
of other trusts by which he may be benefited, the deed is fraudulent on its
face, and void.

2. But where the maker of the deed only reserves the privilege of adding to the
number of preferred creditors others of the same class, the deed cannot be
pronounced by the court fraudulent on its face, but it must be left to a jury
to determine whether such provision was inserted with a fraudulent intent,

Appral from Havirax, Fall Term, 1843, Bailey, J.

Trespass, in which the jury found a verdict for the plaintiff, subject
to the opinion of the court upon the following case reserved:

It was admitted on the trial that Samuel B. Spruill, on 16 August,
1841, executed a deed of trust for the purpose of securing certain credit-
ors therein named, and that the same was duly proved and registered
before the teste of the executions, or either of them hereinafter men-
tioned ; that the debts specified in the said deed were true debts; that the
said Spruill, at the time of the execution of the deed, was insolvent and
unable to pay his debts, and that the deed conveyed, or attempted to
convey, all his property. The trust in the deed was, that the trustee
should sell all the property and apply the proceeds of the sale to the
payment pro rate of certain debts, particularly described and enumer-
ated, and for which certain sureties, whose names were mentioned, were
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respousible, and then follows this elause 1n the deed: “It 1s, however,
stipulated that as the said Samuel B, Spruill is anxious to save harmless
all his sureties, if there be any of them unprovided for in this
indenture, he 1s at liberty to direet them to be paid in Like mauner (205)
as his other suretics are.” It was further admitted that ccrtain

writs of fiert faeias upon judgments against the said Spruill, one 1sswing
from September Term, 1841, of Northampton County Court, and one
from the Superior Court of Wake County, tested of Antumn Term, 1541,
duly came to the hands of the defendant, then Sheriff of Northampton
Connty, to be executed, and that he, by virtue of the said writs, seized
and took into his possession the negro slave, Sam, meutioned in the
plaintiff’s declaration, and one of the slaves conveyed, or atterpted to
be conveyed, by the said deed, for which seizure this action was brought.
It was also admitted that a debt of the said Samuel B. Spruill, of abowt
$70 or %80, to which one Colin W. Barnes stood bound as his surety, was
not inserted among the debts provided for in the deed, nor any provision
made thereby for the said debt or the sald surety, unless by the stipula-
tion in the said deed herctofore referred to—that the said deed or surety
was excluded without any aer or direction of the suid Spruill—and that
no direction had been given by the said Spruill for the payment of the
said debt. Tt appeared that the whole debts secured by the deed amounted
to about $30,000.

And it was thercupon insisted by the couusel for the defendant that,
upon the foregoing facts, and the lel)HldthH in the deed reserving to
the said Spruill power to dircet surety debts unprovided for, to be 1)&1&
in like manner as others therein specified, the said deed was void as
against his creditors, and that the plaintiff was not entitled to recover in
this action for the said seizure by the defendant, while the couusel for
the plaintiff insisted that the clause of the deed referred to did not in
fact and in law confer the supposed power, and that if it did confer it,
vet no inference of fraud could thenee be drawu to affect the validity of
the said deed; and thercupon the counsel insisted that the plaintiff wus
well entitled to maintain his action against the defendant.

And it is agreed that should the opinion of the court be for the plain-
tiff, judgment shall be entered for him; otherwise, tor the defend-
ant, (206)

And his Honor being of opinion for the plaintiff, judgment
was accordingly entered for him upon the verdiet, and the defendant
appealed.

B.F. Moore and Irvedell for plaintifi.
Badger for defendant.
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Rurrix, C.J. When this case was here before (24 N. C., 449)) the
Court declined deciding the point now made in it, because it did not
arise on the state of facts. Desides, we consider every question affecting
creditors, and on which there is even a slight probability of protecting
them against the contrivances of insolvent debtors by assignments for
the benoﬁt of a favored few, to be a question well w orthy of consideration,
and, for that purpose, of belnw kept open until it comes up so directly as
to make its decision a duty. That duty has now arrived; and after hav-
ing bestowed on it an earnest attention, we are of opinion that the court
cannot pronounce the deed fraudulent in law and void upon its face, and,
therefore, that the judgment must be affirmed.

The deed was made in August, 1841, with a provision for a sale in
Janunary, 1842, at the latest, and directing the proceeds to be applied to
the satisfaction of a number of specified debts for which Mr. Spruill had
given sureties, and which amounted to more than twice the value of all
his property. It has, then, this clause: “It is, however, stipulated that
as the said Samuel B. Spruill is anxious to save harmless all his sureties,
if there be any unprovided for in this indenture, he is at liberty to direct
them to be paid in like manner as his other sureties are.” And it now
appears that there was a debt of that character for about $80 which was
not mentioned in the deed. It is insisted on the part of the defendant
that this gives to the debtor an undue control over the trust fund, amount-
ing substantially to a power of revocation and appointment, and there-
fore the deed is fraudulent and void.

We fully agree that if this deed contained such a power as that
{207) supposed, it would be clearly frandulent. A provision for the
debtor himself or his family, before his debts be paid, and a
requisition on the creditors that they should consent to such provision
or should release him, or any other clause by which it is apparent that
the debtor executed the deed for his own advantage, would constitute
fraud. Those purposes, thus expressed in the deed, are so directly dis-
honest and against law that no evidence dehors can explain them away.
Therefore, the conrt may say the fraud is patent in the deed and makes
it void in law.

A general power of revocation and appointment will have the same
effect; for that is virtual ownership of the property, as the law supposes
that every such power will be exceuted for the benefit of the person who
has it. And as to the intent, it is the same, whether the power be in
form a general and absolute power of revocation or a power to encumber
at the pleasure of the grantor, as was decided in Tarback v. Marbury,
2 Vern., 510. There one made a deed to trustees and their heirs, in trust
to sell and pay all his debts, with a power, nevertheless, to himself to

_mortgage such part of the estate as he should think fit. Then judgments
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were obtained against him; aud the question in the cause was whether
they were to come in, under the deed, and be paid in an average with
other creditors, or be preferred as judgment creditors. It was held that
the deed was fraudulent as to the creditors by judgment, because the
power to mortgage and charge what sums he saw fit was a power to
charge to the full value of the cstate, so as to amount in effect to a power
-of revocation. That decision in reference to creditors is in the spirit of
the clause of the St. 27 Eliz., e. 4, which makes void against pur-
chasers a previous convevance with power in the grantor to revoke, alter,
or determine it, although he had not revoked it before the second con-
veyance. Of this statute Lord Coke says, in Twine's case, 3 Rep., 83a,
that it made voluntary deeds, made with power of revocation, as to pur-
chasers, in equal degree with conveyances made by fraud and
covin to defrand purchasers. And in 82b he lays it down that if (208)
AL reserve to himself a power of revocation, with the assent of B.,
and afterwards A. bargain and sell the land to another, this bargain
and sale is good within the remedy of the act; for otherwise the good
provision of the act, by a small addition, an evil invention, would be
defeated. This last observation is, probably, to be imderstood with some
qualification; for where the power of revocation is not absolute, but
clogged with a condition that 1s not illusory, the deed would not seem
to be more within the reason than the words of the statute. Thus, in
Willis . Martin, 4 Term, 39, it scems to be yvielded on all hands that a
settlement with power to the settler to revoke, and the trustees to sell the
estate, so as the purchase should be paid to the trustee and invested in
other lands to the same uses, would be good, going elearly upon the ground
that there conld be no benefit to the settler under the power, since he was
not to get the money, but the trustee was interposed to take the money
for the benefit of others. and therefore was not a mere color. But if the
condition be but colorable, so that the power is in fact tantamount to a
power of revoeation, it will, however veiled by artifice, make the deed
void as to a purchaser. Thus, in Lavender v. Bluckstone, 2 Lev., 146,
A. was indebted £4.000, for which T. L., his father-in-law, was his surety,
and at the instance of T. L. he levied a fine to two persons in fee, in
trust at the request of T. T.., to sell any of the land and pay those debts
or any others for which T. L. should be bound for A.; then, to pay all
such debts of A. as were then due, and should be certified by . and his
ereditors by a ccrtain day; and then, upon ulterior trusts, not necessary
to be noticed at present, with a proviso (amongst others) that, with the
consent of the father-in-law, T. L.. and one R. L., the said A, might
make leases for any part of the lands for any number of years, with or
without rent. A. and the trustees sold and conveyed land to the value
of £12,000, and therewith debts were paid; then A. alone sold other
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(209) lands of £400 per an. and conveyed them, and the purchaser

held them many years without disturbance, and then niortgaged
the residue of the land; and upon a trial at bar of an ejectment between
the mortgagee and one claiming under the fine, the jury found for the
mortgagee under the direction of the court, for these reasons: The con-
tinuing in possession and the sale of £400 per an. by himself solely,
while the trustees joined in the sale of the other part, was a badge of
fraud; secondly, the proviso to make loans for any term without rent,
with consent of the trustees, put it in his power to defeat the whole set-
tlement, and those were trustees of his own voluntary nomination. This
case pregents several points for observation material to that now before
the Clourt. One is, that the first reason must have been one left to the
jury, since the eircumstances on which it rests are stated to be badges,
and but badges, of fraud. Another is, that the next was probably left
to the jury also, as the court could not know the trustees (whose consent
was requived) were the mere agents of the settler, put into the deed to
help on his views, and not to check him when about acting to the preju-
dice of the creditors. But if that was not so, and the court directed the
jury to find the deed frandulent, as coming within the St. 27 Eliz, it
must have been on the ground that the power to lease without rent,
under any restriction as to consent of others, must have been inserted
with a view solely to the personal advantage of the settler getting heavy
fines, which would go into his own pocket, instead of rents, which would
go to those to whom the estate would go under the settlement, still having
respect to the benefit provided in the convevance for the grantor. But
the most apposite fact to our present purpose is, that one of the uses of
the fine is precisely of the same character with the clause in this deed
on which it 1s impeached ; and so far from having been deemed a fraud
per se, which avoided the conveyance in law, it was not even noticed to
the jury as one of the badges or evidences of fraud to be considered by
them. The provision alluded to is that before mentioned, secondly—that
is to say, “in trust to pay such debts of .. as were then due and should
be certified by A. and his ereditors within a time limited.” Tt is not,

therefore, the mere fact that the appropriation of the trust fund
(210) may be changed, or that the debtor may modify the appropriation

by letting in other c¢reditors existing at the time, that converts the
power to do those acts into a fraudulent power of revocation, cither
literally or substantially. The true principle is, that if it appear ex-
pressly to be for the benefit of the grantor, as every general power of
revocation must be, or to be a contrivance designed for that end, although
covered by some form with a view to conceal that end, then it is frandu-
lent under the statute, but otherwise there must be a purpose actually to
deceive found by the jurv. TIn Griffin v. Stanhope, Cro. Jac., 455, there
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was a lease to one, in trust for the lessor’s wife (in pursuance of a promise
before marriage, with a provision endorsed, that the intent was that when
there should be a jointure of £1,000 per an. settled upon her the lease
should be void), and it was contended to be fraudulent, because by the
proviso it was to determine at the party’s will. But the court held other-
wise, and took this difference: That when loans are made with a proviso
that 1f the lessor pay ten shillings, that the loan should be void, it is
apparent that the sum 1s not the value of the land, but only limited as a
power of revocation, and therefore void. But if the proviso be that if
the lessor pay £1,000, then the lease shall be void, this is not fraudulent,
but the lease shall be good against the purchaser if the money be not
paid thereon; for, in truth, this last is but a common mortgage, and the
sum 1s not colorable barely. But in Jenkins v. Keymis. 1 Leo., 180, it
was held, upon a special verdiet, that a settlement with a power to the
settler to charge the sum of £1,000 on a large estate was not void, because
“it 18 not a power within the words of the statute (it being a particular
sum) to revoke, determine or alter the estate; and no fraud being found,
they (the court) could not adjudge the conveyance fraudulent.
Applying the principles of these cases to the present, it seems clear
that the court cannot pronounce the deed fraudulent. We assume that,
upon 1its true construction, the clause does not provide for any but the
scheduled sureties, except at the clection and upon the appoint-
ment of Spruill. But we think it does not give him fraudulently (211)
an undue control over the fund. There is no uncertainty as to the
persons to take benefit for an unreasonable time; at least, not obviously
so. From the nature of the power, he must have executed it at or before
the time of sale and distribution of the proceeds among the scheduled
debts, so that the ereditors could not be long tied up. In terms, it is not
a provision or a power to make a provision for himself or any volunteer
under him, but for a directly opposite end. In any event, all the property
is gone from him forever. But in parting from it he reserves the power
of doing equal justice to all his sureties, as well those he could not then
enumerate as those he had specified. Tt that was really the purpose, it
was one of the soundest morality, placing all having the same meritorious
claims on him on the same footing; and if the ereditors and sureties who
procured him to execute the deed were satisfied with it, no other person
can object, as the value of the estates is far less than the scheduled debts.
Tt is not a power by which, apparently, he can take benefit indirectly;
for he cannot gain credit and contract new debts on the faith of the
power, since it is expressly restricted to those existing at the exccution
of the deed. Tt only gives the debtor the power of doing thereafter what
he ought to have done then. It is said that such a power may be, never-
theless, used to the debtor’s advantage, as the means of bargaining with
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the different sets of creditors to exclude or admit those not mentioned
in the deed. We suppose an appointment from any such consideration
would be an illusory execution of the power, and thercfore disregarded.
The act would be a fraud on the power, and not the power a fraud on
creditors. DBut admit that such a dishonest exercise of the power could
be sustained, yet it would ouly be true that such a power is equivocal
and may be used to bad as well as to good ends. Therefore, it follows
that it is fit a jury should say whether the purpose of inserting it in the
deed was the good one expressed in it, or the bad one imputed to it, and

to which perhaps it may be abused. The susceptibility of such
(212) abuse is not a ground on which the court can say conclusively it

it fraudulent in law, but only a cause of suspicion and argument
of fraud to be weighed by a jury. If an insolvent father makes a gift
to his son. the law, as Lord Coke says, intends a trust between them-——
that is, that the donee would, in consideration of such a gift freely made,
and also in consideration of nature, relieve his father and not see him
want who had made such a gift to him. Therefore, the law pronounces
that conveyance fraudulent. But if an insolvent father owe a debt justly
to his son, and make an assignment to secure or pay the same, although
it is evident that there is great danger of the abuse of the power of
debtors to give preferences among creditors, and it is not only possible,
but highly probable. that the father thus preferrved his son because he
knew that “in consideration of nature” the son would be disposed to
relieve him, and therefore he thus secured to him the means of doing it
by paying him and leaving all others unpaid, vet the court cannot pro-
nounce such a transaction a fraud, but must submit it to the jury to say,
from that and other attending cireumstances, such as the father’s retain-
ing possession or enjoving other bounties from the son, whether the
intent was bone fide to pay the son, or under pretense of that to provide
for the father himself. In such a case, and in the one before the Court,
to use the language in Jenkins v. Keymiss. no fraud being found, the
Court cannot adjudge the convevance fraudulent. There is nothing here
to excite a suspicion of actual fraud. The argument against the deed
arises from the abuse that mig/it be made by the debtor in holding him-
self up to be bribed by the creditors. But what could he make by admit-
ting or excluding a petty sum of %30, when the scheduled debts amount
to $£30,000 or $40,0007 The particular circumnstances of this case show
how unreasonable the rule would be which sternly pronounced the deed
void, when no actual fraud was intended, but guite the contrary. The
argument against the deed consisted of general reasoning, without an
adjudication to sustain it, We think, however, the principle is the other
way, and that where there is an apparent good purpose it is not to be
presumed bad without some proof. Besides which, Larender v. Black-
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stone, supra, is direetly in point, as there one of the trusts was (213)
similar to that in this deed, and it was not even contended that it
was a badge of fraud, though there were several others on which the fine
was found to be fraudulent.

Per Curiam. Judgment affirmed.

Cited: Hardy.v. Skinner, 31 X. C., 194; Young v. Booe, 33 N. C., 350;

Ingram ¢. Kirkpatrick, 41 N, C., 471; Gilmer v. Earnhardt, 46 N. C,,
560; Blalock v. Mfg. Co., 110 N. C., 107,

Hox. Wirriayr Gastox, one of the judges of this Court, died 28 Jan-
nary, 1844, during the term of the Cowrt, in the 66th year of his age.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NORTH CAROLIXNA.

Trarrsbay, 26 January, 1844.

On the opening of the Court, the Attorney General rose and said:

The request of my brethren in attendance at this term makes it my
duty to inform your Honors of their proceedings, on hearing, to them,
the afflicting intelligence of the death of the Hox. Wirniam Gasronw,
your associate on the bench of the Supreme Court of the State, and to
ask that the same may be placed on the minutes of the Court.

Juoer Gasrox, at the meeting of the Court, had every appearance of
health, giving to the community a confident expectation that his services
would be prolonged vet for many years. Our hopes are at an end; the
calamity 1s sudden, unexpected, overwhelming! Tt hath pleased a merei-
ful Providence to cut short his existence. On Tuesday Jupok Grastox
came into Court, in health, went through a case requiring close and con-
stant application. Ilis notes demonstrate his attention. At the usual
hour the Court adjourned. At 8 o’clock in the evening of that day his
death was announced, the members of the bar and the officers of the
Court, except a few, not having heard of his illness.

[ cannot speak of Junar Gasrox as he deserves to be spoken of. His
eulogy 1s on the lips of the whole country. The force of his example will
perpetuate his praise.

The ways of Heaven, how unsearchable are they! To teach us our
nothingness, as well to wean us from life, our most useful citizens, our
nearest relations and our dearcst friends are snatched away, impelling
us to rely only on Him who pervadeth and sustaineth all things.

You, sir, know (addressing himself to the Chief Justice) the manner
of his death. Sorrow often produces its consolation. T was present
when Jenee Gaston died.  That he lived constantly mindful of the
grave I have no doubt. The evening before he departed this life, in
conversation with a friend, he mentioned that death had to him no ter-
rors—that the vears he had numbered were but so mauy steps in the
completion of the journey assigned him by his Master, and that he
rejoiced that his armor would soon be put off. Up to the moment of his
dissolution, his mind was cheerful. Entertaining and instructing his
friends on moral subjects, his last sentence impressed upon them the
absolute necessity, to enable us to be either useful here or happy here-
after, of an abiding belief in a Being, present everywhere, knowing the
intent and understanding the imagination of the heart—who is Almighty,
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bringing man into judgment after death, rewarding him for his deeds.
Before his voice had died on the ear, “he was not”! “He has gone to
his rest!”

The Attornev General then presented and read the following:

At a meeting of the members of the bar of the Supreme Court of
North Carolina, held at the court-room in the Capitol, on Wednesday,
24 January, 1844:

On motion of Mr. Henry, the Hon. William A, Graham was called to
the chair, and Charles Maulv, Esq., appointed secretary. The chiairman
announced that the meeting was called in consequence of the sudden
death, on the evening of vesterday, of the Hovorasre Wirriay Gastox,
one of the judges of the Court, and to take such action as this melancholy
event rendered proper. And thereupon, on motion of the Hon. Mr.
Strange, Mr. Badger, Mr. Henrv, Mr. Manly, Mr. Bryan. and Mr.
Mordecal were appointed a committee to counsider and veport to the
meeting the action proper to be taken thereon. Mr. Badger subsequently
reported from the committee the following preamble and resolutions:

This meeting of the members of the bar of the Supreme Court have
learned with profound grief the melancholy and totally unexpected be-
reavement which the Court and the country have sustained in the death
of the Hox. WrrLraar Gastox.  Struck down cerfainly by the hand of
God in the midst of his judieial labors—dying, as he had hved. 1n the
enlighteued and devoted serviee of his country, endued by learning and
adorned by cloquence, with their choicest gifts, ennobled by that puve
integrity and that firm and undeviating pursuit of right which only an
ardent and animating religious faith can bestow and adequately sustain,
and endeared to the hearts of all that knew him by those virtues which
diffuse over the social circle all that is cheerful, refined and benevolent,
he has left behind him a rare and bhappy memory, dear alike to his
brethren, his friends and his country.

While we ave conscions of our inability adequately to express our feel-
ings on this mournful occasion, it is vet in some degree consolatory to
offer to the memory of our beloved and venerated friend the usual tribute
of affection and respect. Therefore,

Resolred, That in the death of the [Tox., Wirnraar Gastox, late judge
of the Supreme Court, the beneh, the bar, and the whole people of Nortl
Carolina have sustained a loss which can ncither be supplied nor for-
gotten,

Resolred. That the members of this meeting will wear, and that they
recommend to their professional brethren throughout the State to wear,
the usual badge of mourning for 30 davs.

Resolved, That the surviving judges be respeetfully requested to attend,
and that the members of the bar will attend, the funeral of the deceased.
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Resolved, That the Chief Justice be respectfully requested to transmit
a copy of these proceedings to the family of the deceased, and to express
to them the sincere condolence of the members of the meeting in the loss
they have sustained.

Resolred, That the Attorney General be requested to present these pro-
ceedings to the Supreme Court at their next meeting, and request that
they be entered upon the minutes of the Court.

And the said preamble and resolutions, having been read, were unani-
mously adopted, and the meeting adjourned.

Wircraar A, Gramaosr, Chairman.

Cuarres Maxry, Secretary.

Wherenpon, Chief Justice Ruffin, on behalf of the Court, responded:

The Court unites with the bar in lamenting the calamity which has
fallen on us, and is ready to concur in whatever may honor the memory
of our deceased brother, or express a sympathy with his bereaved familv.

The loss, indeed, is that of the whole country, and it will doubtless be
decply felt and deeply deplored by the whole country. DBut to us, who
have been connected with him here, it is peculiarly severe.

Having been closely associated in private intercourse, and in the dis-
charge of a common publie duty, for the last ten vears, we have had the
best means of knowing and appreciating his personal virtues, his abilities,
his attainments, and judicial services.

We know that he was, indeed, a good man and a great judge.

His assistance in the discharge of our official duties is cheerfully and
gratefully acknowledged by us who have survived him. In our opinion,
his worth as a minister of justice and expounder of the laws was inesti-
mable, and we fcel that as a personal friend his loss cannot be supplied.
The Court directs the proceedings of the bar to be entered on the
minutes, and will in other respects comply with the requests expressed
in them.

The Court then adjourned.

E. B. Freenax, Clerk.
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GEORGE STAPLES v. ARTHUR S. MOORING.

Where an appeal from a Superior to the Supreme Court has not been filed in
proper time, a certioreri will not be granted, unless it be applied for at the
term when the appeal should have been filed.

Biggs, for the defendant, moved for a certiorari upon the following
petition and affidavits:

GEORGE STAPLES
v,
Arraur S. Moorine.

To the Honorable the Judges of the Supreme
Court of North Carolina.

The petition of Arthur S. Mooring, defendant in the above-named
case, showeth: That at the Fall Term, 1843, of Bratrort, a suit was
tried, in which George Staples was plaintiff and vour petitioner defend-
ant; that the case was decided, upon a point of law raised in the case,
against your petitioner, and that he prayed for and obtained an appeal
to the Supreme Court, and gave bond as rvequired by law. The case was
made up by his Honor, and your petitioner is informed that the tran-
seript was prepared by the clerk of Beaufort shortly after the term of
the said court, and in sufficient time to reach Raleigh before the sitting
of the Supreme Court, and was mailed by him, directed to the Clerk of
the Supreme Court, at Raleigh.

Your petitioner further shows that he supposed the record of (216)
the suit had been received by the Clerk of the Supreme Court and
the suit docketed, nor did he know to the contrary until some short time
ago, and after the adjournment of the Supreme Court; that your peti-
tioner, while the Supreme Court was in session, wrote to the Clerk of the
Supreme Court relative to the said suit, but received no answer. Your
petitioner further shows that he 15 desirous of having the suit tried and
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the question settled by the Supreme Court. He therefore prays vour
Honors for a writ of certiorar:, directed to the Clerk of Beaufort Supe-
rior Court of Law, requiring him to send up a record and transcript of
the said suit, and also an Injunction restraining him from Issuing an
execution upon the said judgment.

Sworn to 1 May, 1844,

Francis H. Hawks, Clerk of the Superior Court of Law for Beaufort,
maketh oath that at the Fall Term, 1843, of Beaufort, a suit was tried,
wherein George Staples was plaintiff and Arthur S. Mooring was defend-
ant; that under the charge of the judge that the law was with the plain-
tiff, a verdiet and judgment were rendered for the plaintiff, and the
defendant prayed for and obtained an appeal to the Supreme Court and
gave bond as required by law; that the case was made out for the Supreme
Conrt by his ITonor, and that i some short time after the term of the
Superior Court, and in suflicient time for the trauscript to reach Raleigh
sonie weeks before the sitting of the Supreme Court, the case was made
up for the Supreme Court and mailed by the affiant at the postoffice in
Washington, N. (., directed to the (lerk of the Supreme Court at
Raleigh; that this affiant has been in the habit, ever since he has been
clerk, of sending in this way the appeals from Beaufort Superior Court
to the Supreme Court, and they have always before been received in time
and docketed.

Per Crzianr. The application for a certiorari comes too late. It

should, have been made at the term to which the appeal was
(217) returnable. Tt was the duty of the party, by himself or attorney,

to be present at that term to see that his appeal was properly
filed. Motion vefused.

Cited: Grael v. TVernon, 65 N. C., 78; [Towerton r. Henderson, 36
N, 721

STATE, To THE USE oF PETER SUMNEY, v. JOSEPH MAGNESS AXD OTHERS.

Where a suit is brought on a constable’s bond, and it appears the constable was
appointed by the County Court, it is incumbent on the plaintiff to show that
the people of the captain’s company had failed to elect a constable, or that
the person so elected had died or failed to qualify and give boud and
security, or that there was a tie. The appointment of the court, and of
course the bond given, are, under any other circumstances, void.

Arpeal from Ruruerrorp, Extra Term in July, 1843, Dick, J.
This was an action instituted by the relator against the defendant,
Magness, as a constable for the vear 1838, and the other deferidants as
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the sureties on his bond for that year; and the breach assigned was the
failure of the constable to collect a debt placed in his hands for collee-
tion. The plaintiff, after proving the constable’s receipt, the solvency of
the debtor therein mentioned, and also proving that the bond declared on
had been signed and sealed, and delivered by the defendants to the elerk
of the court, and that the same was produced from the proper files in the
clerk’s oflice, exhibited the record of the County Court at January Term,
1838, in which the following entries appear as a part of the transactions
of Tuesday of that term:

“Tuesday, Jannary Court, 1838, Seven justices being present. Satis-
fied of the orderly good conduct of William T., the court granted him a
license to retail spirituous liquors at his house for one year, on his pay-
ing fees and tax.

“The court drew and elected the following persons to serve as (218)
jurors of the original panel of the grand and petit jury at the
next spring Superior Court, to-wit, ete.

“The court appointed Gabriel Washburn constable for one year in
Capt. John G. Kskridge’s company. He gave bond, cte., and he was duly
SWOTIL

“The court appointed Joseph Magness constable for one vear in Capt.
John Edwards” company. He gave bond to North Cfarolina in $4,000,
with Samuel Magness, Edward Decius, Benjamin Washbury, James
MeMahon, and Gabriel Washbnrn for sureties, and he was then duly
sworn.”

The court was of opinion that it did not appear from the record that
geven justices were present when the defendant Magness was appointed a
constable and gave bond, nor did it appear that there was a vacancy in
the captain’s company: and in deference to this opinion the plaintiff
submitted to a nonsuit.

The court having refused a motion to set aside the nonsuit, the plain-
tiff appealed to the Supreme Court.

Bynuwm for plaintiff.
Caldwell for defendant.

Daxter, J. The general power to elect and appoint constables belongs
to the inhabitants of each cuptain’s district, and not to the County Court.
But should anv person elected constable by the people die, or from any
other cause fail to qualify and give bond and security, or should auy of
the captain’s companies fail to hold an election, or if there should be a
tie in the clection, then it shall be proper for the County Court, which
shall next happen (seven justices being present) to supply the vacancy
oceasioned by sucl failure. The County Court (of seven justices) has
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power also to determine in all cases of contested clections of constables.
Rev. Stat., ch. 24. In this case it was not declared by the court, nor does
it appear in fact that the people had failed to elect a constable in
(219) Captain Edwards’ company, or that any one of the events men-
tioned in the act of Assembly had occurred which would give the
County Court power to fill the vacancy. It was incumbent on the relator
to show that some one of the events mentioned in the statute had oecurred
to enable the County Court to appoint Magness constable for that dis-
triet; otherwise, the appointment was void as being an excess of power
in the County Court. The relator failed in this proof, and the court
could not help him by any intendment. Therefore, we think the nonsuit
was properly entered. 8. r. Briggs, 25 N. C., 357.
Per Crris. Affirmed.

STATE v. ALEXANDER FISH.

By an act of Assembly, passed in 1842, a part of the county of Burke and a
part of the county of Rutherford were constituted a new county, by the
name of McDowell ; and by a supplemental act, jurisdiction of all eriminal
offenses committed in that part of MeDowell taken from Burke was given
to the Superior Court of Burke. But an indictment for a criminal offense,
alleging it to have been committed in Burke County, cannot he supported
by evidence showing the offense to have been committed in McDowell after
the establishment of the latter county. The jurisdiction of the offense is
given to the Superior Court of Burke, but its locality must be truly averred
in the indictment.

Areear from Borke, Spring Term, 1844, Settle, J.

The indictment in this case was found in Burke Superior Court at
Fall Term, 1843, and charged that the defendant “being an evil-disposed
person and wickedly designing and intending to cheat one Joseph Curtis,
on 15 May, 1843, with force and arms, in the county aforesaid, did know-

ingly and designedly, by means of a false token, to-wit, by means
(220) of a counterfeit 10-cent piece, which the said Alexander well knew

to be counterfeit, then and there obtain from the said Joseph
Curtis two pleces of gingerbread, with intent to cheat and defraud the
said Joseph Curtls, against the form of the statute in such cases made
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State.” Another
count, substantially the same, was added. On the trial, at the instance
of the court, the jury found specially that the defendant, in the county
of MeDowell, formerly a part of the county of Burke, knowingly and
designedly, by means of the false token charged in the bill of indietment,
did cheat and defraud Joseph Curtis, named in the bill of indictment,
of the goods, to-wit, the gingerbread named in the said bill, at the time
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named in the said bill. Upon which special verdiet it was adjudged by
the court that the defendant, Alexander Fish, was not guilty.

From which judgment the Solicitor for the State praved an appeal to
the Supreme Court, which was granted.

Attorney General for the State.
W. J. Alexander and Hoke for defendant.

Rurrmy, C. J. By the act of 1842, chap. 10, the county of MeDowell
was established, consisting of territory before forming parts of Ruther-
ford and Burke counties. By an act (chapter 11) supplemental to the
former, a County Court is established for the new county, but not a
Superior Court; and by section 6 it is enacted that all eriminal offenses
committed in that part of MeDowell taken from Burke which are
cognizable in the Superior Court shall be and continue under the juris-
diction of the Superior Court of Burke.

The present is an indictment found in the Superior Court of Burke,
for cheating by means of a false token, and it lays the offense to have
been committed on 15 May in the county of Burke. On the trial it
appeared that the act was perpetrated on the day mentioned, but that it
was not in Burke, but in that part of MeDowell which was taken from
Burke. By the direction of his Homor, these facts were found in
a speeial verdict, and thercon judgment was given for the defend- (221)
ant, from which an appeal was taken by the State.

The opinion of this Court concurs with that of his Honor. An indict-
ment states the place where the offense was committed, to enable the
court to see that it is within its jurisdiction. This purpose necessarily
requires that the place should be truly stated. The jurisdiction of crimes
is local, and generally the Superior Court of a particular county is
restricted to offenses committed within that county. When a new county
is created, crimes thereafter committed therein are not, therefore, cogniz-
able in the court of any other county, unless the statute should confer
such new jurisdiction. DBut it is undoubtedly competent to the Legisla-
ture to curtail or enlarge the jurisdiction of courts; and in this case the
jurisdiction of the Superior Court of Burke is no longer confined to
offenses committed within Burke, but extended to such as may be com-
mitted within a eertain part of McDowell. That, however, is not be-
cause the part of Burke which was taken off and now forms a part of
McDowell remains for this purpose a part of Burke; for, to all intents,
Burke and McDowell are two distinet counties. But it is because the
statute says that the Superior Court of Burke shall take cognizance, not
only of offenses committed in Burke, but also of those committed in
MecDowell, thus giving that court jurisdietion over two counties instead
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of one. In alleging the place, the indictment ought to be according to
the fact, as the offense may have been in the one county or the other.
Both counties are on the same footing precisely, and it is not more
proper to state in the indictment that an act done in McDowell was
committed in Burke than, vice rersa, to lay one committed in Burke as
having been committed in MeDowell. The court has jurisdiction over
both counties, but the offense cannot be laid in both, but in one of them
in partienlar. If it be laid in one, when it was in the other, the act

alleged and that proved are different, and the accused must be
(222) acquitted.

Per Crroar Affirmed.

Clited: S.v. Boon, 49 N. C., 465.

STATE v. WILLIAM HART.

Under an act of Assembly, passed in 1842, establishing the county of Union, an
indictment against citizens of Union pending in Anson Superior Court, at
the Fall Term, 1843, should have been transferred to the Superior Court
of Tnion, though the place where the offense was comitted was still in
Anson County.

Arpear from an interlocutory order, before Nash, J., at Spring Term,
1844, of Axsox.

Indictment for assault and batrery, in shooting the prosecutor’s slave.
The offense was committed in what is still the county of Anson, and the
defendants both lived in what is now the countv of Union. The indict-
ment was found at Spring Term, 1843. At Fall Term, 1843, the defend-
ants moved to have the cause removed to the Superior Court of Union
County, aceording to the act of Assembly counstiruting a Superior Court
of law in that county. The Solicitor for the State opposed the motion,
and the court at that time declined to decide the question. At Spring
Term, 1844, the motion for removal was renewed, aud the court, being
of opinion that the jurisdiction of the cause belonged to the Superior
Court of Union, and not to that of Anson, accordingly ordered it to be
removed. From this order the Solicitor for the State prayed an appeal,
which was granted, to the Supreme Court.

Attorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendants.

(223)  Ruvrrix, C. J. In 1842 the Legislature established the county
of Union, composed of parts of the counties of Mecklenburg and
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Anson. By a supplemental act (chapter 13) Superior and County
courts are established thereln, and the first term of the former was to
be in February, 1844, DBy section ¥ it 1s, among other things, enacted
“That all indictments and criminal procecdings against the citizens of
Union which shall be pending in the Superior Court of Aunson shall be
transferred from the Fall Term, 1843, of Anson Superior Court to the
Superior Courr of Union,

The defendants were indicted in Anson Superior Court, at the term
which was held on the second Monday of March, 1543, for an assanlt
said to have been committed in Anson. Both of the defendants lived iu
Tunion County, aud were citizens thereot at the time of the alleged
offense, and continually since. At Fall Term, 1843, they moved the
court, on that ground, that the case should be removed to Union for trial.
The motion was opposed on behalf of the State, on the ground that the
place at which the offense was committed was, 1n fact, not in Union, but
was still in Anson County. DBur the court allowed the motion, and the
Solicitor for the State appealed.

We think the removal was proper.  Although offenses now comnitted
in Anson by the inhabitants of Union are cognizable 1 the courts of the
former county, vet the act 1s explicit thar for offenses committed before
the Fall Term, 1843, of Auson Superior Court, the proceedings at that
term pending in that court against the eitizens of Union should be sent
from Anson to Union for trial.

There is no allusion made to the place of the commission of the offeuse,
whether in that part of the territory originally forming Anson County
which should fall into the new county, or in the part continuing in the
old one. The residence of the defendants aloue determines the jurisdic-
tlon by the plain words of the act. There iz nothing to authorize, in the
construction of i, a departure from the obvious import of its
terms. On the contrary, it was meuant for the ease of the citizen (224)
by allowing him a trial at home. Besides, it might have been an
object with the Legislature to transfer such cases to the new county,
where there was 1o business. as a means of relieviug the overburdencd
dockets of Anson, for the disposing of which the ordinary and regular
terms were found madequate.

Per Curran. No error.

STATE v. JESSE FARMER.

1. Where an indictment for a rape charged that the defendunt, “with force and
arms, ete., in and upon one Mary Ann Taylor, in the peace of the State,
etc., violently and feloniously did make an assault, and her, the said Mary
Ann Taylor, then and there, violently and against her will, feloniously did
ravish and carnally know.” the court can and must see with certainty that
Mary Ann Taylor was a female,
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0

2. It is not necessary, in an indictment for a rape, to state the female ravished
was of the age of 10 years.

3. If she be under the age of 10, then that fact should be averred, hecause
abusing such a female is made felony by the statute, whether she assented
to the act or not.

APPEAL from Bailey, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Brr11s.
The defendant was tried and convicted upon the folowing indict-
ment, viz.:

Norra Ciarorixa—DBertie County—ss.
Superior Court of Law, Spring Term, 1844,

The jurors for the State, upon their oaths, present: That Jesse
Farmer, late of Bertie County, laborer, on 4 March, 1844, with
(225) force and arms, in said county, in and upon one Mary Ann Tay-
lor, in the peace of the State then and there being, violently and
feloniously, did make an assault, and her, the said Mary Ann Taylor,
then and there, violently and against her will, feloniously did ravish and
carnally know, against the form of the statute in such cases made and
provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State.”

The jury having found the defendant guilty, he moved in arrest of
judgment—first, because the bill of indictment did not charge that Mary
Ann Taylor was a female, and therefore it was defective; secondly, it
was defective because 1t did not charge that Mary Ann Taylor was a
female of the age of 10 years.

The motion was overruled and scntence of death passed upon the
defendant. From this judgment he prayed an appeal to the Supreme
Court, which was granted, without security, it appearing to the satisfac-
tion of the court, by affidavit made by the said defendant, that he was
unable to give security.

Attorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendant.

Daxter, J. This was an indictment for a rape. The first ground
taken by the prisoner in arrest of judgment, to-wit, “That the bill of
indictment does not charge that Mary Ann Taylor is a female,” was, we
thinl\, p1 operly ov, erluled by the court. This question came up before us
in 8. v. Terry, 20 N. C., 289, where we decided that the word “her,”
used in the 1nd1ctment, dlsclosed with sufficient certainty that the person
stated therein to have been ravished was a female. This indictment
charges that the prisoner “did make an assault, and her, the said Mary

174



N.C JUNE TERM, 1544,

L.yLE ©. WILsOXN.

Ann Taxlor, then and there, violently and against /ier will, feloniously
did ravish and carnally know.”  From the language used, the
court can and must see with certainty that Mary Ann Taxlor 13 a (226)
female.  The form of this indictment 1s agrecable to the one set
forth in Arehbold €. L., 372, The second ground taken by the prisoner
in arrest of judgment was that the indictment does not charge thar Mary
Ann Tavlor was o female of the age of 10 vears or more. This objee-
tion, we think, was properly overruled by the court.  An indictment for
rape never states the age of the female that has been ravished., 1If,
indecd, she be under the age of 10 years, then it is averred in the indiet-
ment, becanse (by force of the statute) abusing sneh a female 1s made
felony, whether she assented to the act or not.

We Lave attentively examined the whole of the record in this case. and
we are unable to discover any defeet in 1t.

Prr Crriaa No error.

Cited: S Johinson., 100 No (L, 496,

SAMULL A. LYLE v. THOMAS WILSON.

Where money has been collected by a deputy sheriff by virtue of hix office. a
demand on him for the money, and his refusal to pay it. are equivalent to
a demand and refusal on the part of the sheriff. and will enable the person
injured to sustain an action agcainst the latrer.

Arvreear from Nettle, J. ar Spring Term, 1844, of Yaxcey.

Caze against the defendant, who was the Sherift of Yaucey County.
It was proved that one Maleohn MeCurry acted as deputy sheriff under
the defendant, and by and with his aurhority and conscnt, and that while
Lie was so acting he received from the plaintiff sundry papers for
collection. for which he gave his official receipt, and it was fur- (227)
ther proved that the said deputy had collected %90 on the said
papers, and that o demand had been made on the said deputy before the
beginning of this suit. The defendant proved that he had refused to
take the papers which his deputy had received, when offered to him by
an agent of the plaintiff, but that the plaintiff knew nothing of his
refusal.

Upon the foregoing facts the jury returned a verdiet in favor of the
plaintiff for £90, the amount actually collected by the deputy, subject to
the opinion of the court upon the following points reserved, to-wit,
whether the sheriff was liable to the plaintiff in an action on the case
for the aets of his deputy, and if he were, was he so liable until after a
demand wag made upon the sheriff himselt’

12—26 175



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

LYLE v. WILSON.

His Honor was of opinion that the action was properly brought, but
that a demand should have been made upon the sheriff himself before he
could be held liable for the conduct of his deputy in failing to pay over
the money collected. Upon consideration of which, the verdict was set
aside and a nonsnit entered, from which judgment the plaintiff appealed
to the Supreme Court.

J. H. Bryan for plaintiff.
W. J. Alexander for defendant.

Darxzer, J. This is an action on the case against the defendant, the
Sheriff of Yancey, tried on the general issue. The plaintiff placed claims
against certain of his debtors in the hands of the defendant’s deputy.
The deputy collected of those claims the sum of $90. The plaintiff,
before the commencement of this suit, demanded of the deputy the
money, but he did not demand it of the high sheriff. The act of Assem-
bly declares that whenever a sheriff, by himself or deputy, shall receive
claims for collection, it shall be his duty (as an officer) to collect and
pay over in like manner as constables are now bound, and in default of

such duty he shall be liable. And for moneys collected on such
(228) claims the sheriff and his sureties are liable in like manner as is

now provided for in the case of moneys collected by sheriff under
process of law., Rev. Stat., chap. 119, sec. 23. The receipt of the money
by the deputy was, in law, a receipt of the sheriff. The only objection
taken by the sheriff was that the suit had been brought against him
before any demand had been made of him. There was a verdict for the
plaintiff, subject to the opinion of the court upon this point. The court,
afterwards, was of opinion that a demand of the money should have
been made of the sheriff before the commencement of the action, and
nonsuited the plaintiff, who thereupon appealed to this Court.

If there be a nonfeasance or neglect of duty by the under-sheriff, the
sheriff alone is responsible to the party injured, and the default is a
matter to be settled between the sheriff and the under-sheriff. Cameron
v. Reynolds, Cowp., 406; 2 Black. Rep., $32; 3 Wilson, 314; Doug., 40;
Watson, 33. Upon this demand on the sheriff for the money collected
by him and then in his hands, it was his duty on behalf of his principal
to have paid it to the plaintiff, and for the default in not doing so, the
defendant is liable to this action. We are thercfore of opinion that the
judgment rendered by the Superior Court must be reversed and a judg-
ment rendered for the plaintiff for the amount of the verdict, and cost.

Per Crrian. Reversed.
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(229)
WILLIAM TILLY’S ApMmr. v. JOHN 8. NORRIS,

1. A master cannot be made liable for work done for his slave and money lent
to his slave.

2. A general license by the master to his slave to make bargains for work to
be done only for the benefit of the slave, or a license for the slave to bor-
row money on his own account, will not render the master a debtor to a
person who should be so inconsiderate as to run up an account with a
<lave thus licensed.

Arprar from MNanly. J.. at Extra Term in January, 1844, of Nuw
Haixover.

Assumpsit. A promise by the defendant to pay the plaintiff’s intestate
$100 for clearing away the ruins of an old building in the town of Wil-
mington, and a performance of the work by fhe intestate, were estab-
lished. Bur the defendant cluimed to be entitled to a set-off, consisting
of the amount of an account against a slave of the intestate for work and
labor rendered ro him (the slave), ar his request, and money loaned to
the slave. The legality of this set-off was made to turn upon the inguiry
whether the manner of the slave’s usual employment jmplied a license
from the master to him to contraet in this ease for the labor and bhorrow
the moneyv in question. In the course of the investigation the plaintiff
gave in evidence sundry cases in which the master had ratified bargains
of the slave, such as contracts for jobs of work, and had claimed the
benefit of them. and gave in evidence also the master’s deelarations,
going to show a general license to the slave to make bargains to bind bim.
In reply to this latrer proof, the plaintiff then offered to show declara-
tions made at other times by the intestate, tending to rebut this pre-
sumption of a general license, such as his deelarations, upon discovering
the slave’s engagements, that he had used cvery effort to prevent
the slave from acting in such matters without his express author- (230)
ity, and threats to sue persons for emploving him without his
permission.

The evidence was objected to on the part of the defendant, but admit-
ted by the court, upon the ground that the declarations of the plaintiff
having been resorted to by the defendant to establish a state of facts from
which an ageney in the slave might be implied, it was then competent
for the plaintiff Limself to resort to the same sources, to-wit, his own
declarations. at any tinme anfe litem motam, for evidence to obviate such
implication. After instrietions to the jury from the court, which were
not objected to. there was a verdict declaring that there was no set-off, ete,

A rule for a new trial, upon the ground of the admission of improper
testimony, having been discharged, and judgment rendered for the plain-
tiff, the defendant appealed.
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No counsel for either party.

Daxmer, J. The account reudered, which the defendant offered as n
set-off, was for work done for the slave and money lent to the slave, A
genceral license by the master to hus slave to make bargains for work to
be donie only for the benefit of the slave, and also a license for the slave
10 borrow money on his own account, would not vender the master a
debtor 1o a person who should be o inconsiderate as to run up an account
with a slave thus Heensed. It would not be work done or money lent for
the henefit of the master by the ageney of lis slave. We ure of opinion
that the defendant hiad not offered anv evidenee tending to establish a
set-off at the time when the court permitted the plaintiff ro give in evi-
dence the declarations of lis intestate; thervetore, rhe said deelarations
were immaterial as evidence, and the admission of thew by the convt
constitnted no grotnd for a new rral.

Prnr Crwavar, No errar.

(2371
STATE v. THOMAS COWELL axp AMANDA WILLIAMS,

Where, on an indictment for fornication and adultery, the jury found that rthe
defendants were guilty of fornication, but not guilty of adunltery, the State
wax entitled to judgment.

Aveear tfrow fBatife, J., at Spring Term. 1844, of Winxes,
The defendants were tried upon the following indictment, to-wit:

Nowrmn Caroriy a—Wilkes Connry—ss,
Superior Court of Law, Spring Term, 1844,

The jurors for the State, upon thetv oaths, present: That Thowmas
Cowell, late of the said county, laborer, and \manda Williams, late of
the said eounty, spimster, on 10 Mareh, in the year aforesaid, and on
divers other days and times, hoth before and atter that day, with force
and arms, in the sald conntv, unlawtully did bed and cohabit together
without being Jawfully married. and then and there did commit fornica-
tion and adultery, against the form of the statute in such case made and
mrovided, and against the peace and dignity of the State.

The jury found the defendants guilty of fornication, but not of adul-
tery.

On motion to the conrt om behalf of the State for judgment against
the defendants, the court, being of opinion that the verdict of the jury
amonnted to a verdict of acquittal, refused to vender the judgment
praved for. and ordered that the defendants go without day.
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From this judgment the Solicitor for the State prayed for an appeal
to the Supreme Court, which was granted.

Attorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendants.

Rurrrx, C. J. The Court is of opinion that the State is entitled (232)
to judgment against the defendants. Tn ordinary parlance, adul-
tery 1s an aggravated species of fornication, both involving an illieit co-
habitation between the sexes; but the latter is constituted where the par-
tles are single, or at least one of them, while the former imports a viola-
tion of the marriage bed. It is true that the signification of the words,
as generally received, would not be material if it were perceived that they
were used by the Legislature in a peculiar and different sense-—for
example, as meaning precisely the same thing, instead of different mnodi-
fications of an offense of the same general nature. But the language of
the Legislature renders it clear that those terms are used in the statute
according to their common acceptation. The act begins with the words,
“the crimes” (in the plural number) “of fornication and adultery,” cte.,
and concludes by enacting “that any person convieted of either of the
aforesaid offenses shall be fined,” ete. An acquittal of one is therefore
not necessarily an aequittal of the other, but the parties may be punished
for that particular grade of the offense of which the jury finds them
euilty.

The Superior Court will render judgment on the convietion.

Prr Crriann Reversed.

Clited: S. v. Lashley. 8 N. C., 756,

AMALEK (. WILLIAMS v. JAMES C. JOHNSTON.

A. contracted to deliver B. 280 logs of timber, to be staked in the river, at or.
near Plymouth, at a place to be designated by C. A. delivered 130 logs and
staked them at a place so designated. He then gave notice that he would
have the other logs there on 7 July, if the weather was favorable. On
7 July the logs were rafted to Plymouth and staked at the same place at
which the other logs had been staked. No notice was given to B. or his
agent that the logs were there. Five days afterwards, the logs were lost
in a violent storm: Held, that this was a sufficient delivery to entitle A. to
recover the price of the timber.

ArreaL from Pearson, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Marrix.
This was an action of assumpsit for the price of 280 logs of timber

sold and delivered. The evidenee was: That in May, 1842, Thompson,
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who was the agent of the defendant at his sawmill in Edenton, and was
engaged in buying timber on the Roanoke and elsewhere, came to the
plaintif’s landing on the river, about 8 miles above Plymouth, and
offered to buy 280 logs then lying at the landing. Thompson measured
the timber, marking each log, and offered $5.50 per hundred. The
plaintiff declined taking that price, but agreed to see Thompson in Eden-
ton during the next month. Accordingly, in the latter part of that
month, the plaintiff went to Edenton and agreed to let Thompson have
the 280 logs at $5.50, as previously measured by him. The timber was
to be rafted by the plaintiff to Plymouth and staked in the river, at such
place as Mr, Maitland should designate, as soon as the plaintiff got home.
The price was to be paid on demand after it was staked. On 1 July the
plaintif’s agent arrived at Plymouth with one raft of 131 logs, called

upon Maitland, who designated the place where the timber should
(234) be staked, which was accordingly done. By a letter, dated 2 July,

to Thompson at Edenton, which was received on the 3d, the plain-
tiff informed Thompson that he had sent down one raft of 131 logs and
staked it in the river according to contract, and would have another raft
containing 149 logs, the balance of the lot, there on 7 July, if the weather
was favorable. On 5 July the plaintiff wrote to Maitland, informing
him that he would send the balance of the timber in a day or two. Mait-
land forwarded this letter to Thompson, who received it on the Tth. On
the 7th the plaintiff’s agent arrived at Plymouth with the 149 logs and
staked them alongside the other 131. On the 11th Thompson wrote to
the plaintiff, informing him that he had.sent Captain Halsey for the
timber; that he had given Halsey the money to be paid to the plaintift
if he was in Plymouth; if not, to be left with Maitland for him if the
timber was at Plymouth, as he hoped it was, and stating the amount. On
the morning of the 12th Halsey arrived at Plymouth. A storm was then
setting in, and by 3 o’clock in the evening was so violent as to do great
damage to the shipping and wharves and carrying off all timber in the
river, among the rest the lot in question.

The defendant’s counsel insisted that the timber was destroyed before
the property vested, contending, first, that as the bargain was for 280
logs, the delivery of 131 was not a compliance, so as to make him liable
for that number unless the whole was delivered; secondly, that as the
defendant had no notice of the fact that the 149 logs were at the place,
and as Maitland had not been called on to designate the place where they
were to be staked, there was not, in law, a delivery, so as to vest the
property. '

The court was of opinion that, taking the facts as stated, the property
had vested in the defendant, and he must bear the loss. The first position
assumed by the defendant’s counsel was correct. The contract being
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entire, a delivery of part was not sufficient. The second position (233)
was not correct. When, by the terms of a contract, the place and
time are fixed, no notice is necessary. If the vendor has the property at
the place at the time, the property vests in the vendee, and may be left
and the price claimed. In this case the place was some point in the river
at Plymouth to be designated by Maitland. It was designated by Mait-
land. 1t was designated when the fivst raft arrived, and the plaintiff was
right in taking it for granted that the other raft was to be staked at the
same place, In the absence of any directions to the contrary, so as to have
the whole lot together, The time being uncertain, the plaintiff was bound
to give the defendant notice; but as to the first raft, sufficlent notice was
admitted. As to the second ratt, the letter informing the defendant that
the first had arvived and the .other would be there on the Tth if the
weathier was favorable, and the letter directed to Maitland on the 5th,
saving the balance would be down in a day or two, with the fact that it
was down on the Tth, was sufficient notice. Notice being vecessary
merely to fix the time, there was no reason why it might not be given
before the article reached the place, and the vendor was not required, as
contended by the defendant’s counsel, to wait until the article got there,
and then give notice. If the purchaser had sent his boat, and the raft
had not arrived, he would have been entitled to damages. To require
notice after the delivery, if the vendee lived at a distance, would put the
vendor to the unnecessary trouble and risk of keeping the article in the
river, as In this case, until the vendec received it and had time to come.
Notice being given on the 3d, the property vested, at all events, prior to
the storm, which took place on the 12th, up to which time the timber was
secure.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff, and a new trial having been
refused and judgment rendered according to the verdict, the defendant
appealed.

Biggs for plaintiff.
Badger and Iredell for defendant.

Daxter, J. First, the fime when the plaintiff was to have the (236)
280 logs of timber at Plymouth was not stated in the contract.
The law. therefore, required him to have them there at a reasonable
time. The entire number of logs were there and staked on 7 July, 1842.
Four davs thereafter, the defendant dispatched a vessel for that place
for the timber; he therefore never pretended to repudiate the contract on
the ground that the plaintiff had not sent the logs at a reasonable time;
nor, as we think, had he a right to have done so on that ground. Secondly,
the defendant contends that the second raft of logs was staked in the river
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at Plymouth at a place which had not been designated by Maitland, and
that he was not liable to pay for any of the logs until the whole had
been staked in the river at that place, which Maitland should designate,
agrecably to the terms of the contract. Tt appears from the case that,
on the arrival of the first raft, Maitland (who was agent for that pur-
pose) did designate the place in the river where the logs were to be staked
and fastened ; he gave no notice at that time of any other place where he
wished the logs to be staked. He did not designate several places for the
different pavcels, but designated the place where all the logs were staked,
and at that place the plaiutiff delivered and staked them, and in so doing
acted rightly. Thirdly, it is said that the notice, on 3 Julv, given to the
defendant’s agent at Edenton, that the entire number of logs would be
at Plymouth on the 7th of the same month, was coupled with a condition,
to-wit, “if the weather was favorable,” and that this condition rendered
the said notice a nullity; and, also, it 1s said that the second notice,
which came through the hands of Maitland, dated the 5th and received
on T July, 1842 was too indefinite, as it only stated that the residue of
the entire number of logs specified in the contract would be started to
Plymouth “in a dax or twe,” and that the defendant’s agent at Edenton
was, in consequence thercof, left in doubt, even up to the 11th day of

July, whether the whole of the logs were at Plymouth or not. The
(237) answer to these arguments, we think, is, that there was no evi-

denee offered that the weather in the intermediate time was
mwifavorable for rafting the timber, and that the Edenton agent had not
a reasonable ground to doubt that the entire lot of timber wounld be at
Plvmouth on 7 July, We know no authority compelling the plaintiff,
first, to stake aud then give notice to the defendant. But even if the
notices to Thompson were liable to the objection taken, we think they
would be removed by the conduet of the defendant’s agent. He did not
decline acting on the notices, nor find fault in any manner with them.
On the contrary, he treated them as proper, and proceeded as if the
property in the timber had vested in the defendant by the staking it in
the river at Plvmouth, so as not to be carvied off by the ordinary current:
for, on 11 July. he actually sent for the fimber, and at the same time he
wrote to the plamtiff that he had done so, and had sent the mouney for it,
to be paid to the plaintiff, if in Plymouth, or if not, to be left with Mr.
Maitland for him, prorided the timber was at Plymouth, as he hoped it
was. Thus, the only thing the party then required was that the timber
should have heen brought to Plymouth and there made fast. No further
notice was required; no further act on the part of the plaintiff was
deemed necessary.  Mr. Thompson considered himself authorized at once
to take the timber if he found it in the river upon the arrival of the

vessel. The plaintiff, then, had left the logs for the defendant, and to be
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taken by him at his will, and the defendant’s agent deemed himsclf enti-
tled to take the logs without further delivery or direction from the plain-
tiff. Payment was not necessary to complete the right, for the money was
not to be duc until demand, after staking the timber in the river. The
parties, therefore, obviously deemed the contract on the part of the plain-
tiff executed by the staking of the logs in the river, and the defendant’s
agent sent for them as being his property, if there, aud they were so
found. The defendant’s vessel had arrived in the port of Ply-
mouth to take away the timber on the morning of 12 July; the (238)
timber, all marked and measured, was then ready to be put aboard ;

a storm arose that day, and by 3 o’clock the timber was lost, in con-
sequence of the storm. Tt is a hard case, but we think that the loss must
fall on the defendant, as hie was then the owner of the property.

Per C'rrian. No error.

REUBLIN FOGGART v. REUBEN BLACKWELLER kT AL

1. An affirmation at the time of the sale of personal property is a warranty, if
it appears from the evidence that the defendant did not mean merely to
express an opinion, but to assert positively the soundness of the article
sold. and that bidders should, upon the faith of that assertion. hid for the
article as sound ; otherwise, it is not a warranty.

2. What wasg the intention is a matter of fact to be left to the jury.

Aevwan from Dattle, J.. at Spring Term. 1844, of (laBarzrs.

Assiempsilt on a parol warranty of sonndness 1n the sale of a negro, of
the name of Matthias. The unsoundness of the negro was proved. This
negro, together with others, was sold at auc¢tion by the defendants as the
administrators of their father; and. as alleged by the plaintiff, when
each negro was offercd by the crier, he was, by the directions of the
defendants, offered as a sound negro, until they came to one who was
injured in one of his feet, and him they directed to be sold as unsound,
which was done.  As to the terms or expressions used at the sale,
there was conflicting testimony. 1lis Ilonor instructed the jury (239)
that where a vendor of personal property used the word “war-
rant,” or “promise,” or any other word or phrase signifying that he
undertook that the property was sound, it was, in law, a warranty, and
it would be the duty of the court so to instruct the jury; but where the
vendor used only words of affirmation that the property was sound, then
it was a warranty, or not, according to the circumstances of the case, and
that it was a question of fact for the jury to say whether the parties
intended a warranty; that if the vendor, in affirming the property to be
sound, intended only to. express an opinion that it was, leaving it to the
purchaser to aseertain us best he might whether the property were sound
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or not, then it was not a warranty; but if the aflirmation were made
under such circumstances as to induce those who heard it to suppose that
something more than a mere expression of opinion was intended, then
it would be a warranty.

The jury found a verdict for the defendants, and the plaintiff’s counsel
moved for a new trial, for misdirection, insisting that the court ought
to have instructed the jury that if theyv collected the defendants did not
mean merely to express an opinion, but to assert positively that the negro
was sound, and that bidders should, upon the faith of that assertion, bid
for the negrocs as sound, then it would amount to a warranty ; otherwise,
not. The court, believing that the charge was equivalent to that required
by the plaintiff’s counsel, refused the new trial, and, judgment being
rendered for the defendants, the plaintiff appealed.

C'aldwell and Hoke for plaintiff.
Orborne for defendants.

Nasu, J. We agree with his Honor that there is no substantial differ-

ence between what it is alleged the judge ought to have told the jury and

what in fact he did say to them; and the only question before us

(240) 1is whether in the instructions so given there was error in law. We

think there was not. Although the charge was not as precise as

it might have been, we believe the law has been substantially stated to
the jury correctly.

It is well settled by numerous adjudications that there is no word or
set form of words required to constitute a warranty in the sale of per-
sonal property; but wherever the words used, taken in connection with
the attendant circumstances, show that 1t was a part of the contract
between the partics that there should be a warranty, they will suflice.
4 Ad. & E., 473, 31 E. C. L., Pown v. Barkham; 5 B. & A.,. 240,
TE. C. L, Shepherd v. Kain; 2 Nev. & Mann., 446, 28 E. C. L., Freeman
v, Baker. These authorities show that every affirmation, made at the
time of the sale of personals, 1s a warranty, provided it appears to have
been so intended by the parties. A bare affirmation, merely expressive
of the judgment or opinion of the vendor, will not amount to a war-
ranty; and the reason is, a warranty subjects the vendor to all losses
arising from its failure, however innocent he may be; and this responsi-
bility the law will not throw upon him by implication, except as to the
title of the property.

As it respects the value or soundness of the article sold, the law implies
no warranty. The leading case in this State upon the subject of the
warranty of personals is Krwin ¢. Maxwell, 7 N. C., 241. In that case
the plaintiff asked the defendant if the horse he was about to let him
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have was sound, to which the latter answered he was. His Honor, Chief
Justice Taylor, in discussing the subject, says: “To make an affirmation
at the time of the sale a warranty, it must appear by evidence to be so
intended, and not to have been a mere matter of judgment or opinion.”
In Ayres v, Parks, 10 N. C., 59, the Court says: “An affirmation at the
time of the sale is a warranty, provided it appears in evidence to have
been so intended. Whether it was so intended is a matter of fact to be
left to the jury.” The last case on this subject is that of Baum v. Ste-
rens, 24 N, C., 411, In its leading features it strongly resembles

this. The case states that the defendant sold at public auction a (241)
number of negroes, among whowm was Jim, the one whose unsound-

ness was the subject of the suit; that when the negro next to Jim was
offered, the defendant declared that lie did not warrant that negro, as he
was unsound; that when Jim was offered, he proclaimed, “Here is a
voung, likely, healthy negro.”” His Honor who tried the cause below, in
the hurry of the trial, laving out of view the attendant eircumstances,
and looking alone to the words of the defendant, uttered at the moment
of offering the negro, held that the words did not amount to a warranty.
His Honor, the Chief Justice, in delivering the opinion of this Court,
refers to Erwin v. Marwell, supra, as establishing the true doctrine in
cases of warranty. In commenting on the case before him, he proceeds,
after stating the facts of the case, to observe: “It might not perhaps be
considered as straining the words beyond their obvious and natural sense,
taking the whole together, to liold that there was a warranty of the latter
negro. But, at the least, it is highly probable that the vendor so meant
to be understood”; and closes by observing, “These, we think, were all
matters properly belonging to the jury, to whom they should have been
submitted, with instructions that if they collected the defendant did not
mean metely to express an opinion, but to assert positively that the negro
was sound, and that bidders should, upon the faith of that assertion, bid
for the negro as sound, then it would amount to a warranty; other-
wise, not.”

We hold that the charge of his Honor below embraces substantially
the prineiples adjudicated in the above cases. The principle with which
the charge closes might have been more clearly expressed, but whatever
doubt might rest upon it is removed by what precedes it. In a previous
part of the charge the judge informs the jury that when it is a matter of
fact for them to decide, before they find there is a warranty, they must
be satisfied the parties so intended. It would be unjust to him,
and false to the rule of sound construction, to separate the parts (242)
of a continuous charge and decide upon isolated portions. With
the facts of the case this Court has nothing to do. Any error into
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which the jury may have fallen was under the sole control of his Honor
below. The judgment rendered below must be affirmed.
Per Crriaw. No error.

Cited: Henson r. King, 45 N. C., 420; RB. R. v. Reid, 64 N. C., 158;
McKinnon v. McIntosh, 98 N. C., 925 Wrenn v. Morgan, 148 N. C., 105;
Robertson v. Halton, 156 N. C., 220; Hodges v. Smith, 158 N. C., 260;
Tomlinson v. Morgan, 166 N. C., 560.

STATE. 1o THE UsE oF ELIZA JUSTIS, v. GEORGE LEDBETTER.

1. In proceedings to charge the reputed father of a bastard child, the examina-
tion of the mother before the justices of the peace must appear on the face
of the proceedings to have heen taken within three years from the birth of
the child ; otherwise, they will he quashed.

o

. If the county court, on motion, refuse to quash the proceedings, the party
may either appeal or obtain a certiorari from the Superior Court.

3. Where the defect for which it is moved to quash the proceedings may, con-
sistently with the truth, be supplied at the instance of the State, it is com-
petent to allow the necessary amendment.

Arrean from Settle, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Burxe.

Proceeding to charge the defendant as the father of a bastard child
of one Eliza Justis. The examination of the mother, as returned by the
magistrates, did not purport to have been taken within three yecars from
the birth of the child, and on that ground the defendant, on the return
of the proceedings, moved the county court to quash them. The motion
was refused. The defendant then appealed to the Superior Court, where
a motion to dismiss the appeal was made and overruled, and it was

ordered that the proceedings be quashed. From this decision the
(243) Solicitor for the State appealed to the Supreme Court.

Attorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendant.

Rurrix, C. J. The opinion of the Court is, that the judgment of the
Superior Court is right. An order of filiation partakes so much of the
nature of summary convictions before inferior tribunals as to make it
necessary that it should not appear to have been founded on incompetent
or insufficient proof. If such defect appear upon the proceedings them-
selves, the order of filiation founded thereon by the county court would
be quashed by the Superior Court upon a certiorari. That is the course
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of the common law in England, and consequently might be pursued here.
An examination is defective which does not appear to have been taken
within three vears, for that is u requisite preseribed 1 the statute, Tt
follows that the county court is not honnd to make an order of filiation
upon such an examination, since in the Superior Court it wonld be set
aside.  But the county cowrt mav, and ought. at ouce, to quash the pro-
ceedings and leave the party to be proceeded against anew. Tf thar conrt
will do that. the party might submit 1o an ovder of filiation 1 the fivss
instanec, and then obtain his cortiomsd to quash the order. But we think,
Likewise, a diveet appeal trom the refuzal of the connty court to quash
is a convenient and proper method of procecding. and in conformity with
our judicial nsages. It is o eourse that has been generally practiced
here. It cannot be denied that this is o defeet on which the accused may
insist, in some fovm or in some stage of the proceedings. The question,
thevefore, ehieflv concerns the mode and period for doing so. Tt 15 most
appropriate that it should be so done ax not to eomplicate this with
other objections of a different nature. but to put the decision disrinetly
on the defect in point of Teeality or sutheiency of the examination on
which the order of filiation was made or moved for. Necordingly,

the Court lield, in N, v, Carson, 10N, CL0368, that if the aceused, (2-4H)
afrer tuking an objection 1o the exaunination whicl was crrone-

ously overruled, proceced wnder the statute to take an issue to the jury,
whether he be the fatlier of the ¢hild or not, the defeer 18 waived, or,
rather, that it might be supplied on the part of the State by other evi-
dence on the trial of the lssue.  The verdier upon tle 1ssuce constirutes
evidence of the parernity, legally complete.  Consequently, the aecused
is precluded from objecting that it the order had been made before the
verdiet. or before lie had asked for the issue on which the verdict was
rendered, it oughit 1o have been quashed as not being sustained by proper
proof.  The ease theve was, indeed, fully made out by the testimony of
the mother on the trial of the issue, und therefore it was suflicient for the
oceasion to say that the procecdings were not rendered erroncous by the
defect in the original examination, without deciding whether that exami-
nation wowld Lave been evidence before the jury, and would have been
aufficient without calling the mother personally.  But it has been since
decided, in S. v, Robeson, 24 N, C., 46, that upon the trial of an 1ssue
taken by the accused, advantage canuot be taken of the defect that the
exutmination does not state it to have been faken within three vears, but
that it is, notwithstanding, comperent evidence, and, of course, prima
facie evidenee to the jury, according to the act. This conclusion was
considered as resulting trom two considerations. One was, that it was
necessary, in order to prevent surprise on the trial of the issuc. The
other, that it deprived the accused of no advantage, masmuch as, if Le
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chose to rely on the objection, he might have taken it by way of a pre-
vious motion to quash, or by declining the issue he would still be entitled
to a certiorari to quash. The act did not mean to compel the accused to
put his case upon an issue as to the truth of the charge as it might be
bound by a jury. This is an additional privilege and security for
(245) the accused, leaving it still open for him to ask, in apt time and
order, that the proceedings should be quashed for intrinsic defects.
If, indeed, the supposed father moves the county court to quash for any
defect which may consistently with the truth be supplied at the instance
of the State, it is competent to allow the necessary amendment. But here
no motion of that sort was made, and there is no ground for supposing
that, in point of fact, this examination was taken within three years
after the birth of the child. As it stands, the examination is insufficient,
and therefore the proceedings were rightly quashed.
Per Curiaw. Affirmed.

Cited: S. v. Ledbetter, post, 246; S. v. Thomas, 27 N. C., 368; S. ».
Lee, 29 N. C,, 267; S. v. Long, 31 N. C, 490; S. v. Higgins, 72 N. C,,
227; 8. v. Ingram, 85 N. C., 516.

STATE, to THE USE oF SUSANNAH JUSTIS, v. GEORGE LEDBETTER.

In the case of a proceeding against a putative father of a bastard child, an
examination of the mother, which does not appear to have been taken on
oath, is radically defective, and the proceedings should be quashed.

Arrvear from Settle, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Burxke.

This was a proceeding to charge the defendant as father of a bastard
child of one Susannah Justis. The examination of the mother did not
purport to have been on oath, nor to have been taken within three years
after the birth of the e¢hild. The defendant was bound to the county
court, and he appeared and moved that the proceedings should be
quashed. That was refused, and he appealed to the Superior Court,
where the motion was allowed, and therefrom the Solicitor for the State
appealed.

(246) .lttorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendant.

Rerrry, C. J. In S. v, Ledbetter, ante, 242, we have given our reasons
for afirming a similar judgment quashing proceedings in bastardy
where the examination did not appear to have been taken in due time.
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The present is still a stronger case, since it is unquestionable that an
examination not appearing to have been taken on oath is radically de-
fective.

Per Crrran Affirmed.

THE STATE v. JAMES HART.

1. A person is indictable for buying from or selling to a slave, on his own
account. even if the owner of the slave has given his permission for that
purpose, unless that permission be in writing.

[

. An authority cannot be given by any person to the slave of another to sell
an article, though that article be the property of the person giving the
permission.

[+

. Where an indictment charges both a selling by a slave and a selling to a
slave in the same count, advantage cannot be taken of this, though not
strictly proper, by a motion in arrest of judgment. After trial, at least,
such a defect in form is cured by our statute of amendment (Rev. Stat.,
chap. 35, sec. 12,

Appearn from Pearson, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of NorTHAMPTON.

The defendant was indicred in one acecount for trading with a slave,
by buving from a parcel of cotton and by selling to him spirituous
liguors, for which the slave had no permission in writing from his owner
or manager.

On the trial the case was, that one Kee, in whose service the (247)
slave In question was, suspected that the defendant induced the
slave to steal his cotton, and traded with him for it; and, with the view
of detecting the defendant. Kee directed the slave, on a particular night,
to take a bag of cotton to the defendant’s house and see if he would trade
for it. and he requested two white persons to watch the defendant’s house,
in order to prove the trading, if it should take place. As directed, the
slave took a bag.of cotton, and he also took an empty jug to the defend-
ant’s house, about two hours before day, in a very dark night. The two
persons whom Kee had engaged to wateh suw the negro within about
30 vards of the house, with the bag of cotton and jug. At that place
those persons stood, and then thev saw the negro go up to the house, and
heard him call the defendant two or three times, when the door wus
opened by some person, but it was so dark that they could not distin-
gnish persons at that distance. After a short time the slave returned to
the men, who were watehing, with his bag empty and with abont oné
quart of spirits in his jug.

Upon this evidence the counsel for the prisoner insisted that as the
trading with the slave wag with the privy and consent of the owner of
the cotton. the defendant ¢ould not be convicted. But the court, leaving
it to the jurs to find whether the defendant bonght the cotton from, and
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sold the spirits to, the slave, instructed them that, supposing those facts
to be true, and that the defendant was ignorant that Kee had sent the
slave, the defendant was guilty, within the meaning of the act of \ssem-
blv, notwithstanding Kee might have directed the slave ro take the cotton,
as stated by the witnesses.

(248) Mtorney General for the State.
Dadger and Bragg for defendant.

Rerrix, €. J. If the position taken for the defendant were true, it
would not entitle him to an acquittal of the charge of selling to the slave
spiritions lHquors, since the owner gave no consent that the slave might
buy spivits, but only that he should carry the cotton for sale to the
defendant.

But we do not think it proper to put the case on that point, since the
opinion of the Court g, that in relation to the dealing for the cotton also
the defendant is <'mlt\' of the offense crcated by the Legislature. The
act (Rev. Stat., chap. 34, sces. 75 and 77) expressly forbids all frading
with slaves for the article of cotton and many others; and then, by way
of proviso, it mo s it lawful in the daytime (Sundays excepted) to buy
this and some other articles from a slave if he have a permission in
writing from his owner or manager to dispose of the same.

It may be remarked here, 1n the first place, that according to the
terms of the instruction prayed for, it is certainly erroncous, since it puts
the right of the defendant to an acquittal on the single ground thav the
owner of the article sold by the slave gave his consent to the sale, wirhont
any reference or regard to the circumstance that the owner of 111(* slave
did or did not give his consent that his slave might make the sale.
Clearly, an authority cannot be given by one person to the slave of
another to sell even the goods of the former, so as to exonerate the pur-
chaser from the slave from the penaliies of the law. One of the evils
of trading with slaves is the temptation to them to leave their owners’
service and breaking their natural rest to become night walkers and
vagabonds. The permission of the owner or maunager is therefore indis-
pensable to the lawful dealing with a slave for any article whatever.

In this case, indeed, the owner of the cotton and the owner of
249) the slave was the same person, and therefore probably the counsel
was not more particular as to the terms in which he prayed the
instruction to the jury. But the Court is of opinion that, even in respeet
to that state of facts, the instructions of his Iounor were correct. The
effect of the construction placed on the act of the defendant would be
virtually to strike from it the words, “in writing.” Those words consti-
tute a substantive provision of the statute, and they cannot therefore he
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disregarded. Although the interest of the owuer of the slave is one of the
matters within the purview of the act, yet it is not the only one. There-
fore, his consent merely will not authorize a person to trade with his
slaves. The unlawful trading is punishable both by indictment and by
a penalty. Even the penalty is not given to the owner, but to anv person
suing for it—oune-half to his own use and the other half to the wardens
of the poor. Ilence it is obvious that the purpose was not merely to pro-
tect the owner from practices which tend to diminish the fidelity and
services of his slave, but also to protect the community from such deal-
ings with those persons as may probably induce them to commit depre-
dations upon others as well as thelr owners, and render their detection
difficulr.  The trading with slaves is an acknowledged common mischief.
Hence, even the consent of the owner in writing is not sufficient to justify
the trading with a slave for a forbidden article in the night-time. So, if
the trading be in the daytime, the permission is distinetly required to be
in writing. The express provision of the aet is decisive of the question.
The policy of the act likewise enforees a literal obedience to it. The
purposes were to remove all doubt in every case npon the question of
fact, whether the owner gave his consent to the particular trading by
requiring it to be expressed in writing, and nothing short of 1t, and also
to facilitate the discovery of auv petty thefts by slaves by the readier
tracing of their dealings as specially authorized by a written per-
mission. It intended to deprive a person trading with a slave of (250)
all pretext of good motives or of Tunocent mistake In supposing

that the slave had the owner’s leave, by laying down ag a plain rule that
such license ean only be given m writing, which is a warning to all who
deal with a slave upon any less authority.

It was said, however, in the argument here, that 1t should have been
left to the jury to sax whether the slave did not inform the defendant
that his owner had sent him to sell and buy for his master, and thence
to infer that he dealt with the slave as the agent of the owner and on the
acconnt of the latter.

It scems otherwise to the Court. For, assuming that the owner may
constitute his slave his agent, orally, and that one may deal with the
slave on the accomnt of the master, vet in this case it was not pretended
on the trial that this was a dealing of that character. No such point was
made in the defense. The hour and darkness of the night, the quantity
of cotton, the barter for spirits, and other circumstances so plainly
pointed to a trading wirh the slave on his own account, and as for cotton
which he elaimed and disposed of as belonging to himself, and not to
his owner, that the defendant could harvdly have expected a favorable
finding by the jury on that point; and therefore he did not make it. On
the contrary, he contended simply that the trading with the slave, even
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on the slave’s own account, was not criminal because the owner’s oral
consent made it lawful. Ilis Honor, therefore, did not err in omitting
to submit to the jury a point of defense which the accused did not set up
for himself, and especially one to which there was no evidence, but rather
the contrary. If, in truth, the dealing, in the absence of the owner, pur-
ported to be for cotton of the slave, or on his (the slave’s) account, as
we must take it to have been, the Court is of opinion that the most direct
consent of the owner, whether known or unknown to the party, will not
justify it unless it be given in writing. We therefore think the convie-
tion proper. .
There was then a motion in arrest of judgment, on the ground of
_ duplicity in the indictment, in charging both the buying of the
(251) cotton and the sale of the spirits in the same count. We should
have more approved of an indictment more direct and simple by
laying those acts in different counts, and we must express our regret that
such experiments and departures from established precedents should be
attempted. But we believe that, although the indictment is not so credit-
able to the pleader as one would have been that conformed to the prece-
dents, it 1s nevertheless substantially sufficient to authorize judgment.
It is laid down by Mr. Archbold (Crim. Plead., 55) that, at common
law, it is extremely doubtful if duplicity can be made the subject of a
motion in arrest of judgment or a writ of error. If so, as a matter of
form, the defect must certainly be cured by our statute of amendments.
Rev. Stat., chap. 35, see. 12. Each charge is here expressed in an intelli-
- gible and explicit manner, and as the defendant went to trial on it, he is
bound by the result. The Court therefore perceives no error.
Prr Curran. No error.

Cited: S.v. Hyman, 46 N. C., 62; 8. v. Honeycutt, 60 N. C., 447.

ELISHA KING ET AL. v. ELIAS E. CANTREL ET AL.

Where A, gave an absolute bill of sale to B, for a horse, with a parol agreement
that A. might redeem the horse, the contract was fraudulent and void as
against the creditors of A.; but if A. subsequently sells the horse to B.,
bona fide and for a valuable consideration, before any lien of the creditors
attaches, this sale is not affected by the previous fraudulent contract, but
is valid against the creditors.

Arrear from Settle, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of HexpERSON.
Trover, brought to recover a horse. On the trial it was proved
(252) that a man by the name of Step, being indebted to the plaintiffs,
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conveyed to them by a deed of sale the horse in dispute. This deed,
though absolute on its face, was accompanied by aparol agreement, giv-
ing to the said Step a right to redeem the horse. The plaintiffs took
possession, and while so in possession came to a new agreement with
Step, as they alleged, for the absolute purchase of. the horse for the sum
of 100, and produced one witness to prove it. The defendant alleged
and proved that the said Step was indebted to the defendant Kimzeyv,
who had reduced his claim to a judgment before a magistrate and taken
out an execution against Step, and that Le had placed this execution in
the hands of the other defendant, Clantrel, who was a constable, and who,
by his direction, levied on the horse iu dispute, and sold it as the prop-
erty of the said Step. It was shown that at the time of the levy the horse
was in the possession of the plaintiffs, and that it was so after the alleged
purchase by the plaintiffs from the said Step. On the part of the de-
fendants it was denied that this new contract for the absolute sale of the
horse had ever taken place, and they produced as a witness Step himself
to prove that he offered to let the plaintiffs have the horse for $100,
which offer they declined, but they expressed a willingness to give $30,
which sum Step would not take, and that no bargain was in fact made.

It was admitted by the parties that the bill of sale was, in law, fraudu-
lent and void as to the ereditors of the said Step, but the plaintiffs rested
their claim to a verdict on the subsequent contract for the purchase of
the horse. The defendants insisted that, as the original contract between
Step and the plaintiffs was, as to the creditors of Step, fraudulent and
void, the subsequent contract, if it did take place, was equally so, but
they denied that any such contract had been made. His Honor instructed
the jury that if the testimony of Step was believed by them, the defend-
ants were entitled to a verdict in their favor. If, however, they believed
from the evidence of the plaintiffs that the subsequent sale did take place,
as they alleged, it was a valid sale, and they should give their verdict
for the plaintiffs. The jury found a verdict for the plaintiffs, and, a new
trial having been moved for and refused, and judgment pro-
nounced pursuant to the verdiet, the defendants appealed. (253)

No counsel for plaintiffs.

Alexander & Hoke for defendants.

Naswz, J. We see no error in the charge of the judge. The bill of sale
made by Step to the plaintiffs, being absolute on -its face, was, in law,
frandulent and void as to the creditors of Step, in consequence of the
private agreement for the redemption of the horse. But the parties were
not forbidden to enter into a new contract for the sale of the horse, and,
if made in good faith and for a valuable consideration, the new contract
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would not be contaminated by the fraud in the first. It could not give
a legal existence to the bill of sale, but was in itself valid. Thus where
securities given upon an usurious loan have been destroyed by mutual
consent, a promise by the borrower to repay the money borrowed with
legal interest is binding. Barnes v. Hedley, 2 Taunt., 184, If real prop-
erty be sold with a view to defeat or delay or hinder the creditors of
the vendor, as to them, it is fraudulent and void, but between the par-
ties the deed is binding, and the fraudulent grantee has a title and a
right to sell; and if he does alienate to a purchaser, ignorant of the
fraud, for a valuable consideration, the innocent vendee will hold against
the creditors of the first vendor. Martin r. Cowles, 18 N. C., 29, The
principles established by the above cases show that although the bill of
sale was void as against the creditors of Step, vet the subsequent con-
tract was valid if made in good faith and before the levying of the exe-
curton by the defendant Cantrel. Such were the instructions of his
Hounor to the jury, in which we think there is
Per Crrian No error.

Cited: Shelton v. [Tampton, 28 N. (', 218; King r. Trice, 38 X. C,,
572 Saunders r. Lee, 101 N, C., 6.

(254)
SARAH HAYS v. SAMUEL SMITH.

When a demand is made for payment of an agent who has collected money,
and he fails to pay, that failure is in law a refusal to pay, <o as to entitle
the principal to his action against the agent.

Arerst from Nettle, /., at Spring Term, 1844, of Buxcouse.

Assumpsit. The declaration contained two counts: First, on special
promise and undertaking, that, in cousideration, the plaintiff would
trust and confide to the defendant’s care a note for $80 agaiust one
Newland, hie, the defendant, would use ordinary diligence in collecting
and paxing over the same; whereupon the said note was puat into his
hands for collection, and he had failed, through gross negligence, to eol-
leet and pay over the same.  The second count was for money had and
received by the defendant to the plaintiff’s nse.  Plea, non assumpsit.

The evidence was that a note against Newland for £S0 was put by the
plaintiff into the hands of the defendant to colleer, and that he under-
took to colleet the same, and that he subsequently acknowledged lie had
received $60 of the money, Tt was also in evidence that the defendant
delivered up this note to the debtor and gave him a receipt for the
amonnt, and that he received from Newland a note of one MeCraw for
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$800, out of which he had collected $640. The plaintiff, by her agent,
demanded of the defendant the money due to her. He failed to pay it,
stating that he had not the money by him.

The court charged the jury upon the first count that if the defendant
omitted to collect the debt from Newland, by failing to use such dili-
gence as a man of common and ordinary prudence would use in the
management of hiz own business, then the plaintff was entitled to
recover. On the second count, the court charged the jurs thar if the
defendant had collected the debr from Newland, or any part of it,
the plaintiff was entitled to recover such part.  And the comrt (255)
charged that the demand which was made on the defendant was
sufficient..

The jury gave a verdiet for the plaintiff for the amount of the note
and interest. Judgment was vendered accordingly, and the defendant
appealed.

No counsel for either party.

Daxier, J. We have examined the whole charge of the judge, and
it seems to ns to be free from any error in law, When the demand was
made, the defendant, it is true, did not deny the debt, but lLe failed to
pay it, and that failure, in law, was a refusal to pay, so as to enable
the plaintiff to commence her action.

The judgment must be afirmed.

Per Crrraar No error.

WILLIAM P. LONG ET ALs. v. JOHN NORCOM ET aLs,

A testator devised certain slaves to three of his daughters and to a child (then
in ventre sa merey, to be divided at a designated period. and then directed.
“And if either of my daughters or the child which my wife now appears
pregnant with, ax aforesaid. should die, after the division. without lawful
issue, it is my will that such part should be equally divided hetween my
wife and my surviving children.” The child afterwards born (a son) died
after the division and without isxue, leaving hix mother and two of the
daughters surviving him: Held, that the limitation over was good as to
the mother and the two surviving daughters, but that it did not extend to
the children of one of the daughters who had died before the sou.

AvreaL from Bailey, J.. at Spring Term, 1844, of Perqriaravs. (236)
Debt upon an adwministration bond executed by the defendant
John Norcom and the other defendants as his sureties for his adminis-
tration on the estate of William Long, deccased, the exeeution of which
was admitred. The breach assigned was the failure 1o pay the relators
their respective distributive shares. The evidence established the follow-
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ing case: In 1817, Thomas Long made his will, and bequeathed several
slaves to three of his daughters, Mary, Sarah, and Harriet, and to the
child or children with which his wife was supposed to be pregnant, to
be divided among them when his daughter, Sarah, arrived to the age of
16 years,.Sarah did arrive to the age of 16 years, and the slaves were
divided among the legatees agreeably to the testator’s will. William, the
defendant’s intestate and the son who was in ventre sa mere at the date
of the will, afterwards died without issue, leaving brothers and sisters
surviving him, the children of the testator. The two relators in this
suit are the children of a brother and sister of William Long, the de-
fendant’s intestate, who died before him.

The testator, Thomas Long, by his will, made the following limitation
of the property bequeathed as above: “And if either of my daughters or
the child which my wife now appears pregnant with, as aforesaid, should
die after the division, without lawful issue, it 1s my will that such part
should be equally divided between my wife and my surriring chaldren.”

The question before the court was, whether the two relators were enti-
tled to have any portion of the slaves which their unele William derived
from his father under the above request. The judge was of opinion that
they were not entitled to any part of the said slaves.

The jury, under the instructions of his Honor, rendered a verdict for
the defendants, and judgment being given accordingly the plaintifl ap-
pealed.

No counsel for plaintiff

Thomas F. Joues for defendants.

(257 Daxnter, J. We concur in opinion with the judge of the Supe-

rior Court. The executory limitation over to the wife and sur-
viving children on the death of his son, William Iong, without issue,
was not ioo remote.  We have heretofore decided in several cases in this
Court that such lmitation was good. Threadgill v. Ingram, 23 N. C.,
5775 Skinner v. Lamb, 25 N. (., 155, and the cases there cited. The
relators are not anv of the surviving children of the testator, Thomas
Long, at the death of William, and therefore they have no interest in the
said legacy, which was given first to William Long and then over to the
surviving childven of the testator.

Per Crriaar. Affirmed.

Cited: (Hbson v, (iibson, 49 N. C., 427,

196



N. C.] JUNE TERM, 1844,

WIIITEHEAD v. POTTER.

JOHN WHITEHEAD v, GILBERT POTTER.
1. Mutual promises constitute a good consideration for a contract.

2. In general, a mere agent who makes a contract in behalf of another cannot
maintain an action thereon in his own name, either at law or in equity.

3. But where the agent who makes a contract has a beneficial interest in its
performance for commissions, etc., as in the case of a factor. a broker or
auctioneer, or a captain of a ship for freight, he may sustain an action in
his own name, although the principal or owner might sue in his own name.

4. The consent of the principal or owner is not necessary to enable the agent
in those cases to sue in his own name—it is implied from the nature of the
agency.

Appeat from Manly, J., at Special January Term, 1344, of NEw
HaxovEr.

Case to recover damages for the failure of the defendant to fulfil an
agreement to deliver certain lnmber specified in a writing signed “Gilbert
Potter,” of whieh the following 1s a copy, viz.:

“Memorandum of lumber for schooner Jane. Captain, John (258)
Whitehead.

5m. 1-inch boards,

5m. 1V4-inch boards,

3m. 1l5-inch boards,

3m. 2-inch boards,

16m. And from 2 to 4m. feet of flooring, or enough to fill up, at 16
dollars,  All to be of the best quality, clear of sap and other defects,
knots, efe., and from 235 to 32 feet loung, greater proportion of latter
length.

“F will furnizl the above order ut 14 dollars. Gieserr Porrer.”

The proof was that the schooner Jane. owned in the West Indies and
sailing for the benefit of Ler owners, caane into the port of Wilmington.
The plaintiff, being the master thereof. consigned to . K. Dickinson, a
merchant of the latter place.  Dickingon being absent from home, his
agent, T. I, Gause, the superintendent of his sawmill, nundertook to aid
the master of the vessel in procuring such a lot of lumber as he wanted.
After some inquiry amoung the owners of sawmills in the place. and a
Tailure to meet with anv offer which it was deemed advisable to aceept,
it was agreed berween the master and Gause, as the agent of Dickinson,
that the latter should furnish the lumber required. While this agree-
ment was being fulfilled, rhe parties understood that the defendant had
declared that he would furnish the lumber on much more advantageous

terms.  Whercupon the master and Gause came to an understanding to
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try the defendant, and if he would furnish the lumber as reported, their
agreement was to be canceled. Gause then wrote the memorandum above
set forth and gave it to the plaintiff, who went to the defendant (Potter)
and returned with it, signed by him. The vessel was then removed from
Dickinson’s wharf to Potter’s, and neither Dickinson nor his agent,

Gause, had any further connection with the transaction, except
(259) that Gause went with the plaintiff to a lawyer’s office, when the

plaintift took counsel about the bringing of this action. After a
few days, and when Potter, through his agent (a man by the name of
Thurston), was sawing lumber to fulfill his engagement, the plaintiff
was taken to the vard and shown a specimen of the lumber. This lum-
ber was not according to the memorandum between the parties, but the
plaintift said, after rejecting some that was exhibited to him, that other
portions with knots uo larger thau a 25-cent piece “would do.” After-
wards, upon a requisition on the part of the plaintiff that he might have
the lumber delivered to him, as agreed, the defendant’s agent, who proved
himself fully authorized for that purpese, went with the plaintiff into
the yard and offered to make a delivery, but the plaintiff refused to pro-
cced unless the defendant himself would come out and superintend it.
In connection with this part of the case, the agent, Thurston, stated that
there was not enough sawed, of the quality in the memorandum, to satis{y
the same, but there was enough (he believed) of a quality cqual to that
which the plaintiff had said “would do,” as above stated, and he was then
proceeding to saw. Afterwards, on the same day, the plaintiff made a
demand of the defendant that he would deliver him the lumber as agreed,
and the defendant replied that “the plaintiff had already bothered him
so much he intended to have nothing ‘more to do with him.” Tt was fur-
ther in proof that lumber of the deseription specified in the memorandum
was worth from $25 to $30 per thousand, instead of $16, and that the
vessel was detained at the wharf of the defendant, waiting for the per-
formanee of his engagement several days, and that from %7 to $8 per diem
was a customary demurrage.

The defendant’s counsel contended that the plaintiff was not entitled
to recover, because the paper-writing exhibited was no evidence of any
contract; that it was a mere proposition on the part of the defendant,

coutaining no evidence of its acceptance by the plaintiff and no
(260) consideration to support it. ITe further contended that there was

no evidence with whom the contract was made; that the counec-
tion in which the words, “Captain John Whitehead,” are inserted in the
paper shows they were used merely as a description of the vessel to which
the Tumber was to be furnished, being the common mode of stating the
name of the master of the vessel to designate and distinguish her from
any other vessel of the same name. He further iusisted that as there
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was no cvidence of an express contract between John Whitchead and the
defendant, the suit should have been brought in the name of the owner,
or owners, of the vessel, and that if the suit could have been brought
the name of the agent it should have been brought in the name of P. K.
Dickinson, the consignee, who, for this business, was the agent of the
owners, and not the captain.  The defendant’s counsel further contended
that the plaintiff could not rvecover, for that, according to the proot, the
defendant made a tender of the lumber, or an offer to deliver it, which
the plamnff refused; further, that the plaintiff had altered the coutract
by stating to the defendant’s agent that lumber of a diffevent quality
would auswer, aud the prootf wus that at the time of the tender the
defendant had ready to deliver a sufficlency of lumber in quantity and
quality such as the plaintiff had said would answer; and, further, that
the defenduant was then ready and protfered to deliver, according to the
usage of the place, the lumber required by the letter of the contract, even
if there had been no alteration; that there was no date to the paper and
no specified time within which the lumber was to have been delivered,
and, according to the usage of the place, he could not be required to
deliver it all at one time, and it was in proof that he was then sawing to
fill the order, or bill; aund, finally, the defendant’s counsel contended that
if entitled to recover at all, the plaintiff could claim nothing more than
nominal damages.

The court instructed the jury to inquire, first, whether there had been
an engagement on the part of the defendant with the plaintiff to furnish
to him the lumber contained in the bill, or memorandum. Tn con-
sidering this point 1t was proper for them not only to take into {261)
view the writing, which of itself imported only a promise to fur-
nish the lumber herein specified for the schooner, Jane, but also other
testimony bearing on the point, such as the conduet and aets of the par-
ties and thelr language when together; that no particular form was
necessury to complete a bargain between two persons and to muke it
binding on both. Tf Whitehead, acting as the agent of the owners, and
Potter agreed together, the latter to furnish and the former to receive, at
a stipulated price, the lnmber in question, it would constitute a contract,
obligators on both parties, and such a contract might be sued upon by
the agent m his own name.  If this point were decided in favor of the
plaintiff, it would then become necessary for the jury to ingquire, in the
sccond place, whether the contracet had been performed by the defendant,
and 1f not, whether his failure was in consequence of a refusal on the
part of the plaintiff to accept the lumber when 1t was tendered to him;
for if the defendant vefused to fulfill his engagement, there being no mis-
conduet on the part of the plaintiff, the plaintiff would have a right to
recover: but if there was no sueh refusal, and the Tamber, according to
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the specifications in the bill, was sawed and tendered, or was being sawed
and supplied, or tendered, with reasonable dispatch, he would not be
entitled to recover. The jury were further informed that it would be in
the power of the parties, upon any consideration of profit or convenience
to the plaintiff, or of inconvenience to the defendant, to alter the agree-
ment and make it less burdensonre to the defendant, and it was for the
jury to inquire how this was. If there was a readjustment of the con-
tract, and lumber, according to this arrangement, was sawed and ten-
dered, or offered to be tendered, and refused by the plaintiff, or if, while
the defendant was going on fairly and with reasonable dispatch to fulfill
such new agreement, the completion of the sawing and delivery was dis-
pensed with by the plaintiff (he refusing to accept it), he would not be

entitled to recover. The jury were also told that it was, in law,
(262) competent for any one to transact business in all its stages through

an agent. ‘The defendant thercfore could not only enter into con-
tracts, through the instrumentality of his agent, Thurston, but could
through the same means reform them and at all times fulfill and discharge
them. For example, it was not necessary that the defendant should, in
person, make a delivery or tender of the lnmber—it was sufficient if he
did so through his agent. Thus, upon the whole case, the jury were told,
the defense depended upon the result of their inquiries as to whether the
contract was fulfilled, and, if not, whether its fulfillment was dispensed
with by the plaintiff. If the contract was made and not performed by
the defendant, and its performance not dispensed with by the plaintiff,
the plaintiff would be entitled to recover; otherwise, not. Upon the
measure of damages the court informed the jury that, should they deter-
mine, nnder the instructions given, that the plaintiff was entitled to a
verdict, 1t would be establishing in substance that he was entitled to the
benefit of his bargain, and it would therefore seem to follow that the
damages should be equal to the difference between the price agreed to be
eiven and the real value of the lumber contracted for, added to such sum
as would be reasonable by way of demurrage for the delay oceasioned to
the plaintiff by the defendant’s conduct. There was a verdiet for the
plaintiff, and after a motion for a new trial, which was overruled, and a
question as to the taxation of costs, which is not distinctly stated in the
case sent up, judgment was rendered for the plaintiff, and the defendant
appealed.

Strange for plaintiff.
No counsel for defendant.

Nasm, J. Tt was objected by the defendant that the paper (recited in
the case) contained no evidence of any contract, but was a mere propo-
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sition on the part of the defendant to supply the lumber, and contained
no evidence of its acceptance by the plaintiff and no consideration

to support it. It was by the presiding judge left to the jury, as (263)
a matter for them to decide, whether, from the paper and the

attendant circumstances, the parties iutended to enter into an agree-
ment, and had done so, for the sale and purchase of the lumber specified
in the contract; if so, that it was a valid contract and upon a sufficient
consideration in law. In this instruction we do not perceive that the
judge erred. The objection admits that the paper contained a proposal
on the part of the defendant to furnish the lumber, and it was properly
left to the jury to say whether it had been accepted by the plaintiff, and
the jury were directed to the attendant circumstances—to the acts of the
parties—to guide them. What were thev? The object of the plaintiff
was to make a contract for the lading of the Jane with lumber. This
paper 1s drawn up for the purpose of informing the defendant of the
quantity and deseription of the lumber required, to see if he would fur-
nish it upon cheaper terms than Gause would. The plaintiff brings it
back with the endorsement signed by the defendant, and the Jane 1s
iminediately removed to the whart of the defendant, where his sawmill s,
These elreumstances were stroug evidence to prove that the proposal
made by the defendant was aceepted by the plaintiff, and of a promise,
i law, upon the part of the plaiuriff to pay the proposed price for the
lumber on its delivery. This constituted a perfect coutract, the mutual
promise being, in law, a sufficient considevation.  Hurlburt . Simpson,
25 N, (., 236. The defendant then insisted that as there was no evidence
of an express contract between the plaintiff and the defendant, the plain-
tiff could not maimtain an action in hix own name, but that 1t ought to
have been brought in the name of the owners of the vessel or of P K.
Dickinsou, to whom she had been consigned. The judge instructed the
jury that if Whitehead, acting as the agent of the unknown owners, made
the contract with the defendant. the action was properly brought in his
name.  We think this nstruetion was proper. It iz true that, in

general. a mere agent who makes a contract in behalf of anorher (264)
cannot maintain an aetion thereon in his own name (Pigolt r

Thompson, 3 Bos. & Pul., 147)—not even in equity.  Jowes . Hait, 1
Men. & Mum., 471, But where an agent has o beneficial interest in the
performance of the coniract for commissions, ete., as in the case of o
factor, a broker, or an anctioncer, or o captain of a chip for freight, he
mav sustain an action in his own name, although the prineipal, or owner.
might sue in Zis own name.  Fecloxton ro Clipsham, 1 Saund., 153, note
1; Anderson v. Martindale, 1 East, 497, Nor is the consent of the prin-
cipal, or owner, necessary to enuble the agent, in those cases, to sue in
his own name. Tt is implied from the nature of the ageney. Sarille .
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Roberts,-1 Ld. Raym., 380. All valid contracts must be mutual. If the
defendant had tendered to the plaintiff the lumber as agreed, or had
actually delivered it on board the schooner, Jane, could he not have
maintained an action against Whitehead for the breach of the contract
in the one case and an assumpsit in another? Lord Mansfield, in Rich @.
Coe, Cowp., 639, says: “Whoever supplies a foreign ship with necessaries
has a treble security— (1) the person of the master; (2) the ship itself;
and (3) the personal security of the owners”; and that the master is per-
sonally liable as making the contract. It follows as a mnecessary con-
sequence, growing out of the nature of a contract, that if he can be sued
for the breach of the contract, he may on his part also suc for a breach.
As to P K. Dickinson, the action could not have been brought by him,
for he was an entire stranger to the contract. It was not made by him,
nor for him, for he had never accepted the consignment of the vessel, and
was therefore not the agent of the owners.

The defendant further contended that the plaintiff had altered the
contract by saying to the defendant’s agent that lumber of different
quality would answer; that the defendant had a sufficiency of lumber,
both in quality and quantity, to fulfill his contract as it had been altered,

and did not tender it to the plaintiff, who refused to receive it;
(265) and, further, if the contract had not been altered, the defendant

was ready and proffered to deliver, aceording to the usage of the
place, the lumber as called for in the original contract; that he was then
sawing ro fulfill the order, or bill, and that he could not, according to the
usage of the place, be required to deliver it all at once, as no time was
specified i the order. Upon these points the judge left it to the jury to
say whether the agreement was altered and a new contract made between
the parties; that they were competent to do so; that if the contract was
altered and lumber according to the new arrangement was sawed and
tendered by the defendant, or offered to be tendered, and was refused by
the plaintiff, or if, while the defendant was going on with reasonable
dispatch to fulfill such new agreement, the completion of the sawing and
delivery was dispensed with by the plaintifl, he could not recover. The
judge charged the jury to the same effeet as to the original contract, and
wound up his charge by stating to the jury as follows: “Thus, upon the
whale case, the defense depended upoun the result of their inquiries as to
whether the contracet was fulfilled, aund, if not, whether its fulfillment was
dispensed with by the plaintiff. If the contract was made, not fulfilled,
and its performance not dispensed with by the plaintiff, he will be entitled
to recover; otherwise, not.” We cannot perceive any error in this part of
the charge. [t was a matter of controversy between the parties, whether
the contract bad been altered, and whether the defendant had in either
shape complied with his obligations, and, if he had not, whether the
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plaintiff had dispensed with his performance. These were all matters to
be inquired of by the jury. And when it is recollected that the defend-
ant’s agent stated that at the time the plaintiff said he would accept the
Jlumber with knots in it, if not larger than a quarter of a dollar, the
defendant had not lumber sawed sufficlent to comply with this new
description; and that when the plaintiff, subsequently, on the same day,
demanded of the defendant a fulfillment of his contract, the defendant
said he would have nothing more to do with it, we are inclined to think
the defendant has no right to complain of the judge’s charge.

The judgment of the court below must be affirmed. (266)

Another question, as to certain witness tickets, is submitted to
the Court, but the statement is so defective that we cannot ascertain what
is the question upon which our opinion is required. We arc therefore
unable to see that there was any error, and the judgment of the court on
this point is also afirmed. .

Prr Crria No error.

HUBBARD. GARDYNER & (0. v. GEORGE WILLIAMSOXN axp N. M. ROANE.

1. A blank endorsement by the payee of a hill or note ix au authority to a bona
fide holder to fill it at any time as an endorsement to himself or any person
or to bearer. and. if not filled up. now considered as making the hill payable
to hearer. '

2. But where there is a first and second endorser in blank. the holder of the hill
cannot support an action against them jointly without filling up the
endorsement of the first endorser, so ax to show an authority in the =econd
endorger to give a title to the plaintiff ax holder. The endorsement may
be filled up. as a matter of course, on the trial, but if not done, the plaintiff
must be nonsuited.

Aprean from Dicl.J. at Spring Term, 1844, of CaswEern.

This was an .action brought by the plainriffs as the endorsces and
holders of a bill of exchange, pavable to the defendant Williamson, and
by him endorsed to Roane, and by Roane to the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs,
under the statute (Rev. Stat., chap. 13, see. 9). brought a joint action
against Roane and Willlamson upon their several endorsements. Tpon
the produetion of the bill at the trial, the endorsements of the defendants
appeared not to be in full, but both of them to be in blank. Upon objec-
tion by the defendants, the court held that the plamtiffs could not
recover in this action wirhont filling up the endorsements, so as to (267)
show on the bill a title to it in the plaintifts; and the plaintiffs,
insisting that they were entitled to recover without filling wp the endorse-
ments, declined to do so, and. in submission to the opinion of the court,

suffered a nonsuit, and appealed to thig Court.
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Palmer for plaintffs.
Norwood and E. GG. Reade for defendants.

Rurrin, C. J. It has long been settled that a blank endorsement by the
payee of a bill or note is an authority to a bona fide holder (as these
plaintiffs appear to be) to fill it up at any time as an endorsement to
himself or any other person, or to the bearer. Such blank endorsement,
1t seems, may now be considered, in itself, as making the bill payable to
bearer. Upon this latter ground, the plaintiffs might have declared as
the holders of the bill; under Williamson’s endorsement, against him or
the acceptor or drawer of the bill, taking no notice of Roane’s endorse-
ment. But the plaintiffs have not so declared. On the contrary, their
suit is against both Williamson and Roane as first and second endorsers,
and imports necessarily that Williamsons’ endorsement was to Roane,
and not to the plaintiff, either specially or as being the bearers of the bill.
Thercfore, it behooves the plaintiffs to fill up Williamson’s endorsement
to Roane, so as to make a title in the latter and enable Roane by his
endorsement to give to the plaintiff an action against Williamson; for
in that way alone does or can any contract arise between Williamson, the
first endorser, and the plaintiffs as the sccond endorsees. The endorse-
ment might, as a matter of course, have been filled up at the bar, pending
the trial, and we cannot imagine what possible reason could have induced
the plaintiff’s counsel to refuse or rather to decline doing so. Under the
present declaration, the plaintiffs cannot recover upon the two endorse-
ments in blank, and therefore the nonsuit was proper, and the plaintiffs
must be left to a new action, in which they may put the endorsement into
a proper state.

Per Curiaa. Affirmed.

(268)
SAMUEL FLEMING v. ABNER HALCOMB ET AL.

In this Court every judgment of the Superior Court is presumed to be right,
unless it appears to be erroneous; and it is the duty of the appellant to
have the matter stated on the record upon which he insists there is error,
else the judgment will be affirmed as a matter of course.

AppeaL from Pearson, J., at Special Term in August, 1843, of Y ax-
CEY.

Debt on a bond for $297, in which the pleas were non est factum and
usury. Upon the issues the jury gave a verdict for the plaintiff, and
assessed his damages by way of interest to $32.62. The defendants
moved the eourt for a new trial, which was refused, and there was then
judgment for the plaintiff for his debt and damages as aforesaid, and
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the defendant appealed therefrom The record contains no bill of excep-
tions to any opinion of the court trying the cause, nor any statement of
the occurrences at the trial, except the verdict and judgment, as just
stated.

Alewander & Hoke for plaintiff.

No counsel for defendants.

Rurrrw, C. J. 1t has often been decided by this Court that every
judgment is presumed to be vight, unless it appear to be erroneous, and
that it is the duty of the appellant to have the matter stated on the record,
upon which he insists there is error, else the judgment must be affirmed
as a matter of course. No error thus appearing to have been committed
at the trial, and none being scen in the pleadings or record, properly so
speaking, we suppose the appeal was merely for delay. At all events,
there seems to be no ground for reversing the judgment, and therefore
it 1s affirmed.

Per Currrsnr. Affirmed.,

Clited: Brown v. Kyle, 47 N. C., 448 ; Turner v. Foard, 83 N. C., 683;
Chasteen v. Martin, 84 N. C., 395; Mott r. Ramsay, 90 N. C., 30.

(269)
JACKSON STEWART v. AMOS L. RAY.

1. An action of trover will not lie against an officer for levying on goods which
he has seized by virtue of an execution, legal in all its forms, issued against
the plaintiff and directed to such officer.

2. A constable is not bound to levy an execution on the property of the principal
in preference to that of the surety, unless the magistrate in his judgment
has declared which is surety and has endorsed such discrimination on the
execution.

3. The magistrate is not bound to make such discrimination, except upon the
application of and due proof by the surety.

Arvear from Settle, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of YaxcEY.

(C'ase in which the plaintiff declared in two counts—(1) trover, in
taking and converting two horses, a bridle and saddle; (2) for wrong-
fully levying upon and seizing the property of the plaintiff, who was the
surety for the stay of execution on a justice’s judgment when the princi-
pal had property liable and sufficient, and the plaintiff offered to show
the property belonging to the principal and pay the expenses, ete. The
plaintiff proved that the defendant seized and sold two of his horses, ete. ;
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that before the sale he proposed to go with the defendant, paying his
expenses, and show him property of one Stanly, whom he considered
primarily liable for the debt which the defendant sought to coerce from
him, which proposition the defendant declined. The defendant, after
showing that he was a duly appointed constable of the county, produced
a warrant and judgment against onc William Stanly and an execution
against the said Stanly and the plaintiff, who, it appeared by an endorse-
ment, on the judgment, was the surety for the stay of execution. The
execution was against Stanly and the plaintiff, without mention-
(270) ing that the latter was a surety. The levy was on the horses, ete.,
of the plaintiff, and the sale was also returned. The plaintiff then
further proved that Stanly, the original defendant in the execution, had,
at the time of the levy made by the defendant, personal property, con-
sisting of a horse, four or five head of cattle, and other property sufficient
to satisfy the exccution. e further proved that on the day of sale
Stanly told the defendant that he would pay him $30 in cash and show
him other property to satisfy the debt (which was about $45), if he
wounld release the property then under execution, which he refused to do.
The plaintiff’s counsel insisted that their client was but a surety, under
the Laws of 1826 (Rev. Stat., chap. 31, secs. 131, 132), and the officer
was therefore liable in this action for selling his property before he
exhausted that of his principal, Stanly. The defendant contended that
he was not liable for selling the property—(1) because the surety for the
stay of an excention does not come within the meaning of the Laws of
1526 and (2) because, if it were otherwise he was not liable in this case,
as 1o endorsement was made on the exeeution showing that he was surety.
His Honor charged the jury that the plaintiff could not recover on the
first count in his declaration. As the officer sold under a valid process,
trover would not lie against him. Tpon the second count, his Houor
informed them that the surety for a stay of execution upon the judgment
of a magistrate was a surety, withiu the provisions of the Laws of 1826,
and although the officer would not be liable upon the second count in the
declaration, if the execution had been 1ssued upon a séparate paper from
the judgment and stay itself, as he could not then be presumed to know
who was principal and who was surety, vet, as in this case the warrant,
judgment, stay, and execution were all on one paper, 1t was not necessary
that any such endorsemeut should be specially made upon the execntion.
The jury returned a verdiet for the plaintiff, and after a motion for
a new trial, which was overruled, judgment was rendered for the plaintiff,
and the defendant appealed.

(271) No counsel for either party.

206



N.C.] JUNE TERM, 1844,

STEWART 7. RAY.

Nasua, . We agree with his Honor below, that the plaintiff could
not recover on the first connt in his declaration.  To maintain an action
of trover, the plamtiff must show that at the time of the conversion he
had either an absolute or special property in the goods, and that he had
either the actual possession or was entitled to immediate possession. He
must then go a step further and show that the defendant has wrongfully
converted the property to his own use. Ilere an execution, legal in all
its forms, had been issued by a single magistrate against the property of
William Stanly and the plaintiff, had come to the hands of the defendant
and been by him levied on the property in question. The defendant,
then, acting nnder the mandate of the law, cannot be said to have wrong-
fully converted the property of the plaintiff. Wearer o, Cryey. 12
N. C., 337,

Tpon the second count the jury were instineted that the plaintiff was
entitled to a verdictr; that he was but a surety and entitled to the benefit
of the act passed for the protection of sureties; that by that aet the prop-
erty of the surety cannuot be taken or sold until that of the principal is
exhausted.  We do not feel onrselves called on in this case 1o decide
whetlier a person who becomes a surety on the stay of execntion is within
the provisions of sections 131 and 132, chapter 31, Revised Statutes,
because we think that if such survety is within its provisions the plaintiff
in this case has not taken the necessary steps to avail himself of it. The
act was passed for the benefit of surveties; thev mayv avail themselves of
its provisions or not, as they think proper. In every contract for the
pavment of monex the parties who sign the instrument are, as to the
individuals possessed of the iuterest in the contraet, principals—cach
bound to pav the whole when by its terms the money 1s due, and ecach
Hable to be sued by himself if the money is not paid; and in such
case he camnot avall himself of those actions in chapter 31 (272)
Daris »v. Sanderlin, 23 N. C.. 389, The act requires that when
the case is tried by a jury they must diseriminate in their verdiet be-
tween the principal and the surety, but if 1t is not brought to their notice
thex cannot render their verdiet according to the act. It is in the power
of the surety to show by evidence that he does not stand in that relation;
if he does not. he loscs the benefit intended for him, and it will be too
late, when exceution is about to be levied or a sale of his property to be
made, to allege he is not the prineipal, and demand of the sheriff to look
after the property of him for whom he is bound.  In like manner, when
a justice gives a judement against a prineipal debtor and his snrety. it
is his duty to diseriminate between them, and the justice issning the
execution shall endorse this disevimination on the execution. When an
individual stavs an exeention before a magistrate, the acknowledement
of the surcty. entered by the magistrate and signed by the party, binds
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the latter and is guasi a judgment, upon which, if not paid when the
stay 1s out, any justice having possession of the papers may issue execu-
tion against the principal and surety. Rev. Stat., chap. 62, sec. 11.
Upon the vendition, then, of such a quosi judgment, 1t 1s the dury of the
magistrate granting it, at the request of the surety, to endorse on it that
he is but the surety and that he craves the benefit of the act. In this case
there 1s no such endorsement on the judgment or exeeution, and the
defendant was not bound to look further thun his exceution. That com-
manded him to make the money out of both the parties defendants in the
exccution, and he was at liberty to make it out of either. Fason r. Pet-
way, 18 N. C., 44.

We think, therefore, there is ervor in this part of the judge’s charge,
and there must be a new trial.

Prr Crrraar New trial.

('ited : Gatewood ¢, Buirns, 99 N, C., 360.

(273 —

THE STATE. To THE USE oF GEORGE W. HARRIS & SON, v. GULIELMUS
C. WIGGINS AND OTHERS.

Where the only evidence of the appointment of a constable is that “A. B. was
appointed constable for the town of Oxford, who, entering into hond for
$4.000, with C. D,, efc., as securities, was duly qualified”: Held. that, in
the absence of any evidence from the records of the court that there was a
vacancy, the County Court has no power to appoint a constable, and a hond
civen under such appointment is void.

ArpEaL from Dick, /., at Spring Term, 1844, of GraxviLLe.

Action upon a bond given by the defendaut Wiggins as a constable
for the county of Grauville, the other defendants being his sureties in
the said bond. The plaintiffs proved the signaturc and seals of the de-
fendants to the bond in question; and 1o show the legal appointment of
the defendant Wiggins as constable and the acceptance of his bond, the
plamtiff offered in evidence the following extracts from the minutes of
the county court, to-wit, first, that seven magistrates were on the bench;;
secondly, that the following order was passed, among many others ap-
pointing constables, to-wit, “a majority of justices being present, G. C.
Wiggins was appointed constable for this town of Oxford, who entered
into bond for $4,000, with John D. Bullock and Daniel A. Paschall
securities, and duly qualified.” The defendant’s counsel then moved
that the plaintiff be nonsuited on the ground that it had not been shown
that G. (. Wiggins Lad been regularly appointed constable and his bond
delivered, and therefore this action could not be supported. The court
directed a nousuit, and the plaintiff appealed.
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E. (. Reade for plaintef]. (274)
No counsel for defendants.

Nasm, J. This is one among many appoinfments of coustables, and
all in the same terms; and by the record it appears that a majority of
the justices were present, making the appointments. There is nothing
in this case to distingnish 1t, in prineiple, from those already decided
by this Court on the same subject. The power of the county court to
appoint constables 1s not an original one, but derivative, given them
only to be exercised on the occurrence of certain events specified in the
act of Assembly. Should the people of the county in their respective
distriets fail to make an appointment, or the person by them cleeted
die, either before or after his qualifyving, or fail or neglect to give bond
and security as required by the law, then and in cach of thesc cases the
county court is to appoint. Rev. Stat., chap. 24, sces. 4, 5. From these
sections, 1t clearly appears that the county court has no power to ap-
point oviginally, but only to fill vacancies. In order, then, to sustain
an appointment made by the county court, it must appear by the record
that there was a vacancy to be filled; and unless there is a vacancy, the
court has no power to act. The case here has not occurred in which
alone, under the statute, they have the legal power to act. The record
states the presence of a majority of the magistrates of the county when
the defendant Wiggins was appointed a constable for the town of Ox-
ford; but it does not show any vacancy to be filled, nor does it exhibit
any statement from which the Court can judicially infer that such was
the fact. We have often liad oceasion to regret the loose and imperfect
manner in which the records of our county courts are made up. It is
very possible that there was a vaeancy in the district of Oxford, and
that the power of the court to make an appointment was full and com-
plete when they, in this instance, exereised it .\s the record now stands
it does not so appear, and the court alone, where the record is, has power
to rectify such omissions or mistakes as may in the hurry of busi- '
ness have occurred by causing the vecord to exhibit the facts as (275)
they were. S. v. McAlpin, ante, 140,

Per Curian. Affirmed.

Cited: DPierce v. Jones, post, 328; S. v. Eskridge, 27 N. C., 412.
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BYRD MOORE v. LITTLETON A. GWYN.

1. Where the question was of a gift or loan by a father to his son-in-law, the
declarations of the father to his daughter (wife of his son-in-law) two
weeks before the delivery of the property, as to the nature and effect of
the delivery he was about to make, were proper evidence in behalf of the
father against the son-in-law, though such declarations were never com-
municated to the latter.

2. A private conversation between a father and his son and the advice of the
latter as to the conduect the father should pursue in relation to the public
sale of property which the father elaimed cannot be given in evidence in
behalf of the father.

Arrrar from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of CaswrrLL.

Detinue to recover three slaves, to-wit, Ann, Mary and her child,
Henry. Tt was admitted by the parties that the plaintiff, prior to 1837,
owned the two slaves Ann and Mary, and that Henry is the child of
Mary, and that the defendant is the administrator of William Dupree,
deceased.

The plaintiff introduced as a witness Mrs. Dupree, the daughter of
the plaintiff and the widow of the defendant’s intestate, who proved that
her father lives in the State of Virginia, and that she intermarried with
the defendant’s intestate, who also lived in Virginia on the last day of
October, 1837 ; that on the day after her marriage, she went home with
her hushand, about 14 or 15 miles from her father’s; that about two or

three weeks after her marriage her father sent to them the slave
(276) Ann and her child James, since dead, and shortly after Christmas,

1837, sent to them the slave Mary; that the slaves remained in her
husband’s possession, in Halifax County, Virginia, until the fall of 1838,
whenr her husband removed to Caswell County, North Carolina, and
brought the slaves with him; that he had them in his possession until
his death, which took place in July, 1842, The plaintiff then proposed
to prove by the same witness that after her intermarriage with the de-
fendant’s intestate, and both before and after the slaves were put into
their possession, certain conversations took place between her and her
father, relative to the putting of the slaves in the possession of her hus-
band, which evidence was objected to by the defendant’s counsel upon
the ground that these conversations were lield in the absence of the hus-
band. TUpon which objection, the eourt asked the witness if the declara-
tions of her father were made at the time he parted with the possession
of the slaves, and whether she had cver communicated these conversa-
tions to her hinsband. to which she replied that the conversation beiween
Ler and her father relative to the character in which the slaves were sent
took place a week or two hefore they were sent, in the absence of her
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husband, and did not at the time the plaintiff parted with the possession,
and that she had never made them known to her hushand. The court
sustained the objection.

Upon cross-examination, the witness stated that in the month of Octo-
ber, 1342, after the qualification of the defendant as administrator, he
set up the slaves to the lowest bidder for the remainder of the vear, when
the plaintiff bid off the slave Ann at the price of three or four dollars
and permitted the witness to retain her, The witness also stated that
at the tinie of her marriage her father owned 30 or 40 slaves, and that
the slave Henry. the child of Mary, was born 1n North Carolina,

The plaintift then introduced his son, Alexander Moore, to prove that
Lie, the plainciff, was advised by the witness not to assert his title or
object to the hirving, and o bid off the slave Jxnn, which evidence
was objected to on the ground that the conversation between the (277)
plaintiff aud his son, in the absence of the defendant, was not
admigsible.  This objection was sustained.

The defendant then introduced a witness, by whom he proved that he
was the crier at the liring of the negroes in October, 1542 that when
the slaves were offered, as enstomary, to be let to the lowest bidder, the
plaintift was present, set up no title so far as the witness heard, and bid
off the slave Ann at some few dollars. The counsel then, by consent,
read the opinion of gentlemen of the legal profession in Virginia, also
the Revised Statutes of Virginia and adjudications in that State on the
subject of parol gifts of slaves.

The court instrueted the jury that if thev believed the evidence, by
the laws of Virginia, parol gifts of slaves, when the donee took posses-
sion, were valid; that the mere possession of a slave by a child after
marriage was too equivocal to presume a gift, but it required more proof
than mere possession; that in this case it was a question for their deter-
mination whether the plaintiff parted with the possession, with a view
of making a gift o1 a mere loan; that in coming to a conclusion on this
point, they were to advert to the evidence m the cause, the long posses-
sion by the defendant’s intestate, the permitting of the slaves to be
brought from Virginia to this State, and the plaintiff’s not objecting to
the slaves being let out at the hiring in 1842, and his becoming the con-
tractor to take one himself. If they should come to the conclusion that
the plaintiff merely intended a loan they should find for him; if, how-
ever, he parted from the possession ax a gift, then they should find for
the defendant.

The jury found their verdict in favor of the defendant. The plaintiff
moved for a new trial upon the ground of the rejection of the evidence
of Mrs. Dupree and Alexander Moore as to the respective points on
which the court refused to receive their testimony. The motion was

11



IN THE SUPREME COURT. [26

MOORE +. GWYN.

overruled, and judgment having been rendered pursuant to the verdiet,
the plaintiff appealed.

(278) Kerr for plaintiff.
J. T. Morehead for defendant.

Rurrix, C. J. The controversy in this case tarned upon the inquiry
whether Dupree received and held the slaves as a gift or a bailment from
the plaintiff. Therefore, although the case does not set forth the par-
ticular declarations of the plaintiff which he proposed to prove by Murs.
Dupree, we collect that the object was to show that a week or two before
the plaintiff sent the slaves to his daughter or to her husband, he in-
formed her of his intention to send them, and at the same time declared
that he did not intend them to be a gift, but a loan. That this is a
just view of the question was admitted in the argument at the bar. This
evidenee was ruled out. The objection to its admissibility taken by the
counsel on the trial was only that the declarations were not made.in the
presence of the son-in-law; but we gather that the court relied on the
further ground that the declarations were not made at the time the pos-
session of the negroes changed, and that they were not communicated to
the son-in-law. :

[t seems to the Clourt, notwithstauding those ebjections, that the evi-
dence was relevant and competent. It is, in substance, the point decided
in Collier r. Poe, 16 N. €., 33. In that case it was held that declara-
tions of the father to his daughter in the absence of the husband, that
the negroes were lent and not intended to be given, rebutted the presump-
tion of a gift and converted the husband into a bailee, and that it was
not material that the husband should have been informed thereof, as
the wife was the meritorious cause of the loan and had knowledge of it,

and he came to the possession as husband. That case, therefore,
(279). is a direct authority in this as to the two grounds, that the father’s

intention was declared to the daughter, and not to the husband,
and that such declaration was never made known to him. It seems to be
likewise opposite to the remaining ground, namely, that the period of the
declarations was not exactly the same with that of the delivery of the
slaves. In the marginal abstract of the case, it wounld appear to have
been understood as that of declarations “accompanying” the delivery, so
as to make a case of res geste in the strictest sense; but the body of the
report shows not so near an union between the declarations and the de-
livery, for there it is said that when the negroes were “about being sent”
the father told his daughter that he lent them to her. But, independent
of the authority of cases, we think it plain that, nothing else appearing,
if a father, “a week or two beforehand,” tell a child that he intends to
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lend her some slaves and to send them to her at a particular time, and
when that time comes the father accordingly sends them, there is a fair
ground of rational inference that the slaves were sent upon the terms
and according to the infention with which the father said he would send
them.

It is admitted that the point of imquiry is, whether at the time of
delivery a gift or a loan was meant. Formerly, in this State, the former
was presumed. In Virginia, it scems the presumption is the other way.
Surely such prima facie presumption of a loan is fortified in a candid
mind by knowing that the father, with a view to an early change ot the
possession, expressly told the child that he intended a loan, and not a
gift, and that, in fact, the possession was changed so soon afterwards
and without any apparent difference in eirecumstances as not to lead to
the supposition of a charge in the father’s mind in the meanwhile. What
the party says at the time of an act, it is well known, is to be heard in
explanation of it, but the rule cannot reasonably be vestricted to the very
moment of the act. It must be sufficient that the previous declara-
tion of intention had a dircet reference to the future act, the (280)
character of which i1s in dispute, showing that the act was then
in the contemplation of the party, and that the declaration was made
with a view of qualifying the act and of informing the person to whom
the declaration was made of the real character of the act whenever it
should be done. There can be no arbitrary rules, therefore, as to the
precise time within which the declarations must be made before the act,
so as to be admissible. The natural import of an act ought not to be
affected by remote general declarations. DBut here the conneetion be-
tween the intention declared by the father and the sending of these slaves
is not dubious, vague or remote, but is dircet, plain and almost imme-
diate. TIe said that in a short time he would send certain slaves to his
daughter, and that they would be sent on loan. In a fortnight he did
send them. Are we not to infer that he sent them on loan, as he had
declared? Tt is upon this prineiple that the declarations of a bankrupt
before the aet of bankruptey are received. They show with what inten-
tion the act was subsequently done.  Robson r. Kemp, 4 Esp.; 233, And
from the cases of Ridley v. (tude, 9 Bing., 349, and Rawson ». Haigh,
2 Bing., 99, it appears that there is no positive rule as to time, provided
the declarations are counected with the aet, by appearing to have been
made with a view to the particular act in question and for the purpose
of marking the intention of the party in the act when it would be done.

If these declarations had been made to the son-in-law himself, every
one would fecl the foree of the presumption that when the father so soon
afterwards sent the negroes to the son-in-law he intended to place them
in the possession of the son-in-law, and the latter to accept them on the
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terms, and no other, on which the parties had previously agreed. The
declarations would be deemed substantially pars res geste, although not
made at the instant of the change of possession, for the change of pos-
session was that very act in reference to which the party had declared
his intention, and, therefore, presumed to have been executed with that
intention.
(281) Now, as before said, a declaration of a father to the daughter
was held, and with plain propriety, in Colleer v. Poe, supra, to be
the same as a declaration to the Liusband as vespeets the point under con-
sideration.  The Court is, therefore, of opinion that there was crror in
rejecting the evidence of Mrs. Dupree.

We think the testimony of the son us to the advice given by him to
the plaintift, not to claim the negroes nor object to the hiring by the
administrator, was properly ruled out. It does not follow that the plain-
tiff acted on the bad adviece of his son and not on his own judement.
It was between themselves and cannot affect the rights of others. It
was likened at the bar to the point ruled in Jones +. Sasser, 18 N, C.,
452, but the cases are essentially different. There the advice was from
the father himself that a conveyance which he proposed to execute to all
his children would not affect one he had before made for some of the
same property to the plaintiff, who was induced thereby not to make
known his title nor oppose the new deed. Those claiming as volunteers
under the second and subsequent deed were properly affected by the con-
duct of their donor. If the present defendant had told the plaintiff that
his claim should not or would not be impaired by his not then making
1t publicly known, the cases would be now nearly parallel. The private
consultations between the father and the son not communicated to the
persons assembled nor to the person who was dealing with the slaves as
his own stand on the same ground with his plaintiff’s own inward
thoughts, or, at least, with his own conclusion, made known to the son,
but adopted on his own judgment and without the concurrence of the
son.

Prr Crriaar. Venire de noro.

Cited: Cowan v. Tucker, 30 N. C., 427,

(282)
JOHN J. WARD, 1o THE Ust or JOHN BURKE, v. HENRY H. HATCH.

As the law will not permit the plaintiff to be a witness for himself, neither will
it permit him to make his own acts and declarations, done or spoken in the
absence of the defendant, evidence for himself to impeach his adversary’s
witnesses, or for any other purpose tending to support his own side of the
issue.
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Arpran from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of CmaTHaM.

Debt upon a bond dated 10 February, 1837. Plea: Payment.

The defendant, in support of his plea, called one Wesley Hanks, who
deposed that some time after the date of the bond, to-wit, on 4 December,
1837, he assisted in making a scttlement between Ward and Hatch, which
he understood to be of all their mutual dealings and accounts; that
among other matters included therein was a sum of $1,285 charged in
the said settlement and account, being the price of a negro man, Jerry,
purchased by them jointly, and which negro had been kept by the de-
fendant IHateh; and the balunce being ascertained, it was paid or set-
tled; and the boud now sued on was not produced nor mentioned by
cither of the parties.

The defendant alleged that the said bond had been given to the plain-
tiff for the one-half of the price of the said negro Jerry, and for the
purpose of proving this he called a witness named Mainor, who deposed
that in February last, in Alabama, he, at the request of the defendant
(who was then in that State, where Ward and the witness had been
residing for several years), went to Ward and asked him for informa-
tion as to this bond; that Ward then told him that the bond was given
for the half of the negro Jerry; that he had left the bond with Mrs.
Joseph Burke to keep for him until he should eall for it; that he
owed Burke nothing, and that the whole was a sham. (283)

The plaintiff then examined as a witness another person who
had aided in making the settlement above mentioned between Ward and
Hatch, and who deposed that he understood that settlement to relate only
to their open accounts, and not to any of their bonds or Lignidated de-
mands on cach other.

The defendant then called Mrs. Joseph Burke, and after she was
sworn, declined to examine her; upon which the plaintiff, for the pur-
pose of discrediting the witness Mainor, proposed to prove by Muys. Burke
that Ward, before he left this State and after 4 December, 1837, did, in
her presence, deliver the said bond to her late husband, Joseph Burke,
declaring at the time it was to be his property in satisfaction of debts
which Ward owed him for board, ete., the existence of which debts she
knew. :

To this evidence the defendant’s counsel objected, because it was
giving in evidence the declarations of the plaintiff, in the absence of the
defendant, to support the plaintiffs case. The judge overruled the
objection, aud the witness being examined gave evidence to the effect
stated.

The jury fonnd a verdiet for the plaintiff, and after an unsuceessful
motion for a new trial, judgment Leing rendered for the plaintiff, the
defendant appealed.
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Badger for plaintff.
J. A Haughton for defendunt.

Daxrer, J. It is argued here for the plaintiff that the evidence of
Mrs. Burke was admissible to prove au act done by the plaintiff, velative
to the bond, variant from what Mainor, the defendant’s witness, proved
that the plaintiff had admitted to him had been done with the said bond.
The evidence was offered and reccived, say the plaintiff’s counsel, to
discredit Mainor; but we think, as the law would not permit the plain-
tiff to be a witness for himself, as he was directly interested in the event

of the suit, neither will it permit him to make his own acts and
(284) deeclarations, done or spoken in the absence of the defendant, evi-

dence for himself to impeach his adversary’s witnesses, or for any
other purpose, tending to support his own side of the issue, to-wit, that
the bond still remained unpaid. ‘

Per Crrraar New trial.

JOSIAH CHEEK v. LINDSEY DAVIS.

1. A debtor who proposes to take the benefit of the insolvent debtor’s act may
at any time after his arrest upon a ca. s¢. and before he files his schedule
transfer any portion of his property bona fide for the payment of any of
his debts contracted before his arrest.

2. A ca. sa. binds nothing but the debtor’s body, and leaves his property free
to he disposed of for any bona fide purpose of discharging other debhts,

Areearn from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Ranporrn.,

In this case the defendant had been arrested on a ca. sw., at the in-
stance of the plaintiff, on 15 February, 1842, and gave bond for his
appearance at the County Court of Randolph at February Term, 1842.
The defendant, on 18 April, 1842, filed his schedule in the office of the
clerk of the county court aforesaid, which schedule was dated 1 April,
1842 ; and at May Term, 1842, the defendant moved the said court to
be discharged from custody under the provisions of the act of the Gen-
cral Assembly for the relief of insolvent debtors.

The plaintiff suggested fraud, and made up an issue with the defend-
ant, which issue was tried in the County Court of Randolph and found
in favor of the defendant, when the plaintiff appealed to the Superior
Court.

On the trial in the Superior Court, the plaintiff proved by a Mr.
Drake that during the week of the Superior Court of Randolph County,
about the last day of March or first day of April, 1842, he paid to the

defendant the sum of $80, which sum had been brought from the
(285) county of Columbus for the defendant by a man of the name of
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Swaim. The plaintiff further proposed to prove by the said witness
that at the time Swaim left the money for the defendant he also left
a Teceipt given by a constable of Columbus County to the defendant
for a note of $24, due by some person in Columbus. This cvidence was
objected to by the defendant’s counsel on the ground that the plaintiff
had not given notice to the defendant to produce the said receipt. The
court sustained the objection and rejected the evidence. The plaintiff
then proved that on 7 March, 1842, the defendant obtained a bond pay-
able to himself for $123, executed by one Asa Godbolt, which bond was
assigned by the defendant to one Close Davis before 18 April, 1842, in
payment of a bona fide debt of the defendant due and owing before he
was arrested on the ca. sa.

It was admitted by the plaintiff on the trial that the $80 paid by
Drake to the defendant, as before stated, had all been paid out to the
defendant before he filed his schedule in the discharge of bone fide debts.
It was further admitted by both parties that a part of the above sum of
$80 was paid out by the defendant in the discharge of his debts between
1 and 18 April, 1842,

The plaintiff’s counsel moved the court to instruet the jury:

(1) That all pavments of debts and transfers of property made by
the defendant after he was arvested on the ca. sa. were a frand upon the
law, and per se fraudulent as to the plaintiff.

(2) That the payment of debts made by the defendant between 1 and
18 April, 1842, were frandnlent, and entitled the plaintiff to a verdict.

The court refnsed the instruetions prayed for, but instructed the jury
that the defendant might pay bona fide debts after his arrest which were
due and owing from him at the time of his arrest, provided such pay-
ment were made before he filed his schedule.  The court further
structed the jury that any pavment of bona fide debts or trans- (2886)
fers of property in the discharge of bona fide debts made by the
defendant before the filing of his schedule on 18 April, 1842, wonld be
lawful, provided thev were satisfied the debt or debts were justly owing
from the defendant, and the payment or transfer was hona fide and for
the sole purpose of discharging the said debts.

The jury found a verdiet for the defendant, and judgment being ren-
dered pursuant thereto the plaintiff appealed.

No counsel for plamntif.
Mendenhall and Iredell for defendant.

Nasn, J. The only question arising nnder the instructions prayed for
is whether the payments made by the defendant after his arrest on the
ca. sa. and before the filing of his schedule were in fraud of the rights

217



IN THE SUPREME COURT. 26

CCARLAND . WATT.

of the plaintiff. We are clearly of opinion that they were not; in other
words, that the law gave the defendant the right to pay any debt which
he justly owed before the filing of his schedule, provided the debt was
due before the arrest.

The Insolvent \ct, as it is called, evidently, by its phraseology, con-
templates that the schedule filed by a defendant shall contain a true
account of all his property as it is at the time of its being filed. Section
4 of the act, in pointing out what measures a debtor who has remained
in close confinement for twenty days shall pursue to obtain his discharge,
preseribes the oath to he taken by him. It is: “I, A. B., in the prescnce
of Almighty God, solemuly swear, profess, and declare that the schedule
now delivered,” ete.  This section emphatically shows that the time to
which the act refers as governing the insolvent’s right to take the oath
1s when the schedule is filed. If at that time he makes a true statement
of his property, and in the meantime “has not directly or indirectly in
any way disposed of any of if, either real or personal, whereby to secure
to himself any profit or advantage or to defraud or deceive any of his

creditors,” the law is content, and he is entitled to his discharge.
(287) A fiert facias binds the property of the debtor from its feste, so

that he caunot alien any portion of it, to the disappointment of
the plaintiff. A ce. su. binds nothing but the body, upon which it is
executed, and leaves the debtor’s property free to be disposed of as he
pleases. When, however, he comes to claim the benefit of the law pro-
vided for him, he must be prepared to bring himself within its pro-
visions.

In this case it 1s admitted that the money in question was appropriated
by the defendant to the payment of debts bona fide and justly due by
him. In paying these debts, he has violated no law, nor been guilty of
any fraud. We think, therefore, there was no error in the charge of the
judge, and the judgment must be affirmed.

Per Crriaar No error.

Cited: King v. Trice, 38 N. C., 573,

JOHN T. GARLAND v. WILLIAM M. WATT. -

A testator, having several children, devised to his two sons W. W. and R. W. a
tract of land, to them and their heirs forever. In a subsequent clause,
after many previous devises, he devises as follows: “I will that if any of
my children die without issue, leaving a wife or husband, it is my will
such wife or husband shall be entitled to one-half of the property, the
other half to be equally divided between my other children or their heirs’ :
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Held, that the contingent limitations over were good, and therefore that
W. W. and R. W. could not convey an absolute and unconditional estate in
fee simple, free from those limitations,

Arresr from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Caswrrr.

Debt upon a bond, with a condition. The following case agreed was
submitted fo the court:

William M. Watt, the defendant, on 24 Mav, 1842, cxecuted to the
plaintiff the obligation declared on. In the condition of this obli-
gation it is recited that previously to that time he had sold and (28%)
conveyed to the plaintiff one undivided half of a tract of land
containing 1,826 acres, lying in the county of Caswell on Dan River,
adjoining John Wilkerson and others, for which the plamntiff had paid
to him the sum of $10,500, and that he had acquired his title to the said
land by devise from his father, the late Abraham Watt, of Rockingham
County, and that a doubt had arisen whether he, the said William, took
an unconditional and perfect fec-simple title to the said land by the last
will of his father. He then obliges himself to pay the plaintiff the said
sum of $10,500 if he should fail, on or before 24 Mav, 1843, to make to
the said Garland a perfect, unconditional fee-simple title to one undi-
vided half of the said tract of land.

Tt is admitted that the defendant las tendered to the plaintiffi a deed
sufficient in form to convey such title, provided lie iz himself possessed
of it under the will of his father.

The following arve the only clauses in Abraham Watt's will above
referred to which are material in this case, viz.:

Ttem 4. “T give to my two song, Willlam Watt and Rufus Watt, the
tract of land I purchased on Dan River, to them and their heirs forever.”

Ttem 11, “T will that if any of my children die without issue, leaving
a wife or a husband, it is my will that such wife or husband shall he
entitled to one-half of the property, the other half to be equally divided
between my other children or their heirs.”

The testator left two sons and two daughters surviving him.

Tt is agreed that if the court shall be of opinion for the plaintiff, a
judgment shall be entered for him for the sum of $10,300, principal
money, to bear interest from 1 May, 1844, and the further sum of
$391.18 for arrears of interest, that being a balance of intercst now due,
after deducting $448.82 for the use of the land for 1843 and 1844
and if the court shall be of opinion for the defendant, a judgment (289)
of nonsuit shall be entered. Tt is also agreed if judgment is rend-
dered for the plaintiff, that he is to veconvey to the defendant all such
title as has been conveved to him by the defendant, upon the payment of
the judgment. and that he is to put the defendant into the possession of
the land on 1 January, next.
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The judge pro forma gave judgment for the plaintiff, and the defend-
ant appealed.

Badger, Norwood, and Kerr for plamntiff.
J. 1. Morehead for defendunt.

Paxten, J. Absalom Watr had four unmarried children, two sous
and two daughters.  He was seized and possessed of a large real and
personal estate; and in the vear 1834 he made his will and devised
and hequeathed lands and personal property to cach of his children.
To his two sons, the defendant aud his brother Rufus Watt, the testator
devised as follows: “I give to my two scns, William Watt and Rufus
Watt, the tract of land I purchased on Dan River, to then and their
heirs forever”” Tn a subsequent part of the will the testator says, “1
will that 1f any of my children die without issue, leaving a wife or hus-
band, it 1s my will such wife or husband shall be entitled to one-half of
the property, the other half to be equally divided between my other
children or their heirs” The word property in this last clause covers
both the real and personal estate given by the will to cach of the fonr
children. By our statute, Rev. Stat., chap. 122, sec. 11, after 15 Jaun-
uary, 1828, “every contingent limitation in any will made to depend
upon the dying without heir or Leirs of the body, or without issue or
1ssues of the body, cte., shall be held and interpreted a limitation to
take effect when such person shall die, not having such heirs or issue,
etc., liviug at the time of his death or born to him within ten months
thereafter, unless the intention of such limitation be otherwise expressly

deelared in the face of the will creating it.” _
(290)  The fee simple which the elause in the will first above men-

tioned gave to the defendant in a molety of the Dan River lands
is, by the second clause of the will as above mentioned, cut down to a
fee conditional, resting upon a contingeney. A good estate in fee in the
same lands may possibly hereafter spring up on the death of the defend-
ant without Issue, leaving a wife, to any such wife and his brothers and
sisters or their heirs. The limitation over of the fee, on the events speci-
fied in the will, is not too remote, and is good by way of executory de-
vise, and it belongs to that class of executory devises which permits a
fee to be limited on a fee, and the leading case on which is Pells ¢.
Brown, Cro. Ja., 590,

The defendant, by the deed he executed, conveyed only the conditional
fee he had; it did not destroy the limitation over. It is unnecessary for
us now to decide the question whether a deed from him and his brothers
and sisters, with warranty binding themselves and their heirs, would
estop them and rebut their heirs, by force of the collateral warranty, to
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enter on the said land. as we are sure that no convevance knowu to the
law can bar the executory devise made in the will of the testator to any
widow the defendant mav leave, in case he should die without 1ssue and
leave a widow. Nor is 1t necessary for us to say who would take the
land on the event that the defendant should die without issue and with-
out leaving a widow, The defendant has not the power to make a clear
title to the fee sitmple,  Therefore the judgment must be
Prr Cruraar, Affiried.

Cited: Galloway oo Carder. 100 N, O 123 Rees oo Willicms, 165
N. C.. 208,

(2071)
Dex X Deae NATHAN A STEDMAN v, RODEIRICK McINTORSIT,

1. Wherever the relation of landlord and tenant exists without any limitation
as to time, such tenancy =hall he from vear to yenr. nor =hall either party
bhe at liberty to put an end to it unless hy a regualar notice,

2. This notice must be given six months hefore and ending with the period at
which the tenancy commenced.

5. There are xeveral cases in which the relation of landlord and tenant may
terminate without any notice to quit. as where, by agreement of the par-
tiex, notice ix waived. or where its determination ix made to depend on
~onie particular event. ax the death of a particular individual. ov fixed by
effluxion of time. it heing to terminate at a particular period.

4. Though courts lean against estates at will. yet estates at will, =trictiy =o
<peaking, may still be created.

5. The question as to notice to quit depends upen the contract hetween the
parties.

6. Where A, contracted with B, that B. should oceupy his house and lor at $14
per annunl, rent to commence on 26 October, 1841, and if 3. should desire
to remove the house before October, 1842, he wag to pay only for the time
he occupied the house: Jield. that thiz wasx not a tenaney from yvear to
vear. but that it terminated at farthest on 26 October, 1842, and that ~ix
months notice to quit was not necessary,

Arrear from Dick, J..at Spring Term, 1844, of Crmarmaae

Ejcetment, commenced 19 November, 1842, On the trial the plaintid
gave 1 evidence an Instrument executed by the lessor of the plaintitfs in
these words:

“I have this dayv agreed with Roderick MeTntosh to let him oceupy
the house now in his occupaney on my lot at the rate of fourteen dollavs
per annum, rent to comwmence on 26 October, 1841, he having settled
with me for the rent up to that time.  In case Mr. Melnrosh should
desire to remove the house before Oetober, 1842, he 1s to pay me
only for the time he oceupies the house while on my lot, at the (292)
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rate above named. T hercby acknowledge T put no claim to the house.
All T contend for is the rent for the land. In witness whereof, I here-
unto set my hand and seal, 9 September, 1841.”

The plaintiff then proved that the defendant was in possession of the
premises owned by him and mentioned in the declaration, being the
same lot referred to in the said Instrument at the time of serving the
declaration, and that in July, 1842, and before 20th of that month, the
lessor of the plaintiff verbally informed the defendant that he wished
him to leave the premises as soon as he could, and that he must leave
at the expiration of his time, to which the defendant veplied that he
was as anxious to get away as the lessor of the plaintiff was to have
him away, and that he would leave as soon as he could.

Upon this evidence the defendant’s counsel moved his Honor to non-
suit the plaintiff, insisting that the said lease constituted between the
parties a tenancy from year to year, and that the plaintiff had not shown
that the said tenancy was by any legal mode terminated at the com-
mencement of the action. The motion was opposed by the counsel for
the plaintiff, contending (1) that the defendant was not a tenant from
vear to year, but a tenant for one year, or for a term ending October,
1842, at which time the tenancy expired without anyv act to be done by
the plaintiff; (2) that if not such a tenancy for a fixed term, it was a
tenancy at will, strictly, and the notice served had terminated the ten-
ancy; and (3) that if a tenancy from year to year, yet the notice given,
coupled with the declaration of the defendant, was sufficient to terminate
the tenancy, which was at an end before the commencement of this suit.

His Honor declared himself of opinion that the plaintiff had made ont
no case and ought to be called. In submission to this opinion, the plain-
tiff suffered judgment of nonsuit to be entered, and appealed.

(293) Badger for plawntiff.
J. H. Haughton for defendant.

Nasi, J. The only question presented in this case is as to the true
construction between the parties. This paper was executed on 9 Septem-
ber, 1841, and the action was brought on 19 November, 1842, the plain-
tiff having given the defendant notice to quit in July preceding. Ou the
trial of the cause it was contended by the defendant that this was a ten-
ancy from year to year, and that the tenancy could not be put an end to
by the lessor without giving to the tenant six months’ notice to quit; and
his TTonor who presided being of this opinion, the plaintiff submitted to
a nonsuit and appealed to this Court. In the opinion of his Honor we
think there was crror. The true inguiry is, not as to the nature of the
estate or interest wiheh the defendant acquired in the premises, but
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whether by the contract the plaintiff could bring this action with- (294)
out a previous notice to quit.  We think he could, or if any notice

was necessary, that which was given was sufficient.  Anelently, where a
man entered into land with the consent of the owner, and no express
time was limited for its termination, it was, by the striet letter of the
law, a tenaney at will, and either party might put an end to it at his
pleasure. This tenaney was fraught with mueh mischief, and its opera-
tion was often oppressive and unjust to the tenant, for he might be
turned out of possession before his erop was fit for harvesting, and
though the law gave him the right to enter and carry off his erop when
ripe, still it subjeeted him to great inconvenience. It was also contrary
to the poliex of the State, which is in nothing more concerned than in
protecting and cherishing the proper eultivation of the soil. Courts of
justice, therefore, early viewed with strictness an estate franght with so
much imjury to the interests of agricultwre. Lord Kenyon, iu Nartin +.
Watts. T Term, 79, suys: “As long ago as the time of the vear-books, it
was held that a general oceupation was an oceupation from year to vear,
and the tenant conld not be turned out without reasonable notice.” Tt
1s now considered as settled law that wherever the relation of landiord
and tenant exists, without any limilalion as to time, such tenaney shall
be from vear to yvear, nor shall either party be at liberty to put an end to
1t unless by a regular notice.  Legg v Strudwich, 2 Salk., 4145 Timmins
r. Rowlinson, Burr., 1608 Martin v. Watts, T Term, 79, And it is also
settled that this notice must be given six months before, and ending with
the period at which the tenaney commenced.  Doe v. Porter, 2 Term, 3.
The courts, therefore, lean against construing leases to be at will, and in
favor of their being from year to vear; aund so strougly has this disposi-
tion been felt that it has been decided 1n a court of very high authority
that at this day a tenaney at will eannot be crveated. 7 Johns., 8. This,
however, is carrving the doctrine too far. Both in England and in

this State it has been held, and is now settled, that an estate at (295)
will, strictly speaking, can be c¢reated (5 Tyrw., 753), and so by

express contract between the parties. Richardson ». Largridge, 4 Taunt.,
1485 Humphries v. [Tumphries 25 N. C.; 363, In this last cage it Is
ruled that, though from policy every occupation of land is, prima facie,
deemed a tenancy from vear to vear, yet the owner may show that it is
only a tenancy at will, or any other tenancy determinable at a particular
time or on a particular cvent by the express agreement of the parties.
In other words, that the contract between the parties must govern and
ascertain their respective rights. In this case the contract sets forth that
the tenaney was to commence on 26 October, 1841, at the ycarly rent of
f14 for one year, and at that rate for auy shorter time; it then stipulates,
in case Mr. MeIntosh shall desire to move the house before October,
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1542, he 1s to pay only for the time he occupies the house or the lot at
the rate of $14 for onc year. We think these stipulations clearly fix a
terminus for the lease, to-wit, 26 October, 1842. There are scveral ways
by which the relation of landlord and tenant may terminate without any
notice to quit, as where, by the agreement of the parties, notice is waived,
or when its determination 1s made to depend upon some particular event,
as the death of a particular individual. Here the death of the individual
is in itself a termination of the lease, and the estate of the lessee ceases.
So, where its determination is fixed by the effluxion of time, as where it is
to terminate at a particular period. In neither of these cases is any
notice to quit necessary, and the lessor may, upon the expiration of the
time specified, or the happening of the particular event, immediately
enter upon the lessee. Cobb . Stokes, S East, 338; Messenger v. Arm-
strong, 1 Term, 54. On behalf of the plaintiff it was urged that this
was a tenancy at will, because, by the terms of the contract, the defendant
had a right to put an end to it at his pleasure, and that the law gave the
lessor of the plaintiff the same right which he had exercised by
(296) giving the defendunt two months’ notice to quit. Whether this
was a fenancy at will, or one whose termination was by the con-
tract fixed and determined, we are of opinion it was not a tenancy from
vear to vear, and that in either case the opinion of his Flonor was crrone-
ous. The plaintiff was entitled to maintain his action, as he did not
commence it before 26 October, 1842, oue vear from the commencement
of his lease. ,
Per Crrraar. Reversed.

Cited : Jewkins oo Utg. Co., 115 No C 3375 Harty oo Harris. 120
N.C,L 4105 Maurrill v, Palmer, 164 N, (1) 53, .

WILLIAM C. STEDMAN qur tam v. WILLIAM BLAND.

1. An action for the penalty under the statute against usury cannot be sup-
ported unless the usurious interest, or some portion of it. has heen actually
received, either in money or money’s worth.

2. A. loaned a sum of money to B. at usurious interest, and to secure the pay-
ment B. conveyed to a trustee a house and lot worth more at the time than
the money borrowed and the usurious interest; afterwards, the property
was sold by the trustee at public auction and purchased by A.. who gave
for it what was then its fair value. but owing to the depreciation of the
property the sum for which it sold did not amount to the principal of A’s
debt: Held, that A. was not liable to the penalty under the statute against
usury.
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AppEar from Dick J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Cmarman.

Debt qui tam, ele., on the statnte of usury. The plah}tiff proved by
H. H. Yeargain that on 22 February, 1839, he (Yeargain) borrowed
from the defendant $50 and gave his bond for $105, payable 12
months after date; that on 23 February, 1839, be borrowed $225 (297)
from the defendant and gave his bond, pavable to the defendant,
for $250, pavable 12 months after date, with interest from date; that on
the said 23 February, 1839, he (Yeargain) exccuted a deed of trust to
one W. Hanks, by which deed he conveved to the said Hanks his dwell-
ing-house and two lots in the town of Pittshoro to secure the payment of
the two aforesaid bonds. On 19 November, 1842, Hanks sold the house
and lots at public sale to the highest bidder, when the defendant, being
the last and highest bidder, at the sum of $400, became the purchaser.
This witness further stated that, previous to 19 November, 1842, he had
execeuted two other bonds to the defendant for borrowed mouey, one bond
for $130 and the other for $77, and executed a second deed of trust to
secure the pavment of the two last-mentioned bonds; that the said ITanks
was also the trustee in this second deed, and that thie sale made on 19
November, 1842, as above mentioned, was under both deeds. This witness
further stated rhat on said 19 November, 1842, after the sale, the defend-
ant delivered to him the same bonds aforesaid and executed to him a
receipt, as follows: “Received of H. I1. Yeargain in full of the amount
due me on acconnt of two deeds of frust made to W. Haunks to secure me
by suid Yeargain., This 19 November, 1842, William Bland.” The wit-
ness further stated that he did not pay the said Bland any money or other
thing of value at the time the above recelpt was given, or at any other
time, in discharge of any of the aforesaid bonds.

The plaintiff then examined W. Tanks, the trustec, who stated that he
sold the house and lots under the two decds of trust aforesaid; that the
sale was public and fair, as far as he knew; that the defendant beeame
the last and highest bidder, for the sum of $400; that %400 was a fair
price for the house and lots in November, 1842, and that the bonds were
delivered up to Yeargain, and, by the consent or direction of Bland,
satisfaction was entered on the deeds of trust. This witness was
then asked by the plaintiff if he had executed a deed conveying (298)
the house and lots to the purchaser, William Bland. This ques-
tion was objected to by the defendant, because the deed was not produced
by the plaintiff, and no notice had been served on the defendant to pro-
duce it. The court sustained the objection and rejected the evidence.
This witness further stated that iu February, 1839, the house and lots
were worth $300. The witness, Yeargain, further stated that, some few
months before the sale, he offered the house and lots to Bland at $800;
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that Bland refused to give that sum, but offered the witness $700, which
the witness refused to take.

The court chiarged the jury that to entitle the plaintiff to recover he
must prove that some part of the usurious interest had been received by
the defendant; that it was proper for them to take into consideration the
receipt in connection with the evidence of the witnesses, and it they
believed the witnesses, and collected from the whole of the testimouny that
usurious interest had been received by the defendant, th plaintiff was
entitled to recover. The court fmrther stated, it was necessary for the
plaintiff to prove that Haunks had conveved the house and lots to Bland
by deed before the title would vest in Bland, and if they believed from
the testimouny that the legal title was still in Hanks, and that Bland had
reccived nothing in any other way, the plaintiff was not entitled to
recover,

The jury found a verdiet for the defendant, and judgment being ren-
dered accordingly, the plaintiff appealed.

George W. Haywood for plaintiff.
(200) JJ. H. Hlaughton for defendant.

Nuasa, J. Several questions of law were made during the trial, and
several objections taken to the judge’s charge. We do not deem it neces-
sary fo notice any of them, for if his ITonor did commit an error in his
directions to the jury, it would do the plaintiff no good to grant him a
new trial.  Upon the case, as it appears before us, it is obvious he cannot
recover. The simple statement is, that the defendant loaned to Yeargain
at different times $482, upon which large usurious interest was reserved,
but that he has actually received no more than $400 in return. So far
from exacting usurious interest, he has not got back that which by law he
might have received, which was the actual sum loaned with 6 per cent in-
terest on it. He has not, therefore, according to the case, taken one cent of
usurious interest, and, of course, has not inenrred the penalty of the law.

The plaintiff's right to a recovery has, before us, been placed on
(300) the ground that, as the house and lot were, at the time they were

conveved to Hanks, worth $800, which is more than the sum
loaned, with legal interest, the defendant has incurred the penalty desig-
nated by the act of the General Assembly by taking the house and lot in
discharge of the bonds. We do not think so. The bonds which were
given, as well as the conveyances, could have been avoided for the usury
if suits had been brought to enforce them, as they were but securities for
the money loaned. But this is an action to recover the penalty inflicted
bx statute for making an usurious loan, which is double the amount of
the money loaned; and before the defendant can be subjected to this
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heavy penalty it must not only be shown that the loan was usurious, but
that the defendant hus reccived the usurious interest or some portion of
it.  And if in this case the house and Jot were worth at the time $300
and had by Yeargain, the borrower, been conveyed to the defendant in
payment of the bonds so given by hlm and by the defendant so received,
it would clearly have been usurious and the penalty incurred; for in
order to complete the usury it is not necessary the usurious interest
should have been received in moncy; 1f received in property it is suf-
ficient, the law looking to the substance, and not to the form, of the trans-
action. That is not the casec here. The house and lot are conveyed to
Hanks, not that he shall convey them to the defendant, but that he shall
sell them, and with the proceeds pay the debt due the defendant. The
trustee, after duc notice, sells the property at publie auction, and the
defendant becomes the purchaser for the sum of $400—a sum the full
value of the property and less than the moneys loaned, and the bonds
are given up and the deeds satisfied. It may be that Yeargain has been
injured by the deterioration of his property, but the loss to the borrower
is not the only ecriterion by which to judge whether a transaction is
usurious. FEhringhaus v. Ford, 25 N. C., 528. If a third person had
purchased the house and lot at the sale, for the price the defendant

bid for them, the loss to Yeargain would have been precisely the (301)
same, yet no one could imagine for a moment that, upon trustee’s
paying over that money to the defendant and his surrendering the bonds,
he would have incurred the penalty of the law. How is the principle
raried by the defendant’s purchasing?

However contaminated the contract was, and unquestionably, accord-
ing to the statement of the case, it was usurious, we are of opinion that
it does not appear that the defendant has received the usurious interest
reserved, or any portion of it, and that he has not incwrred the penalty
of the law.

Prr Crriaar No error.

Cited: Cavaness v. Troy, 32 N. C., 818; Pritchard v. Meckins, 98
N. C,, 247; Rushing v. Bivens, 123 N. C., 275,

WILLIAM W. VASS, ApMmr. oF N. N. SOUTHALL, v. MARY SOUTHALL.

1. A gold watch, worth $100, the gift of a husband to his wife, cannot in our
country be considered as among the paraphernalia of the wife, when the
husband at the time of the gift was a man of limited means or small prop-
erty and afterwards died insolvent.
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2. What <hall he considered as paraphernalia of the wife ix a question for the
court, hut quere, whether a court of law can take notice of it at all”

Arpear from Dick, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of GRANVILLE.

Trover for a gold watch. The cvidence was as follosvs: The defendant
was the widow of the plaintiff’s intestate, N. N, Southall. Tt was in
proof that the said N. N. Southall wus an lunkeeper in the town of
IHenderson; that his circumstances were limited, but he was in good
credit until shortly before his death, and that he did not leave property
sufficient to pay his debts. It was also in proof that the watch, which is

the subject of this suit, and which was proved to be worth about
(302) %100, was what is called a gentleman’s watch; that it was pur-

chased by N. N. Southall some three or four vears before his
death, and that 1t was gencrally worn by the defendaut, but it was
occasionally worn by her husband.  There was 1o evidence of an express
gift to the defendant, but it was proved the defendant had said at one
time, in the presence of her husband, that he had given her the watch
and that at another time the defendant said she had lent her husband
$100 and held the watch in payment of the loan. It was proven that the
defendant had possession of the watch; that a demand was made by the
plaintiff before the action was brought, and the defendant refused to
surrender it.

His Honor charged the jury that even if they should be of opinion
that the plaintiff’s intestate had made a gift of the watch to the defend-
aut, he being insolvent at the time of his death, the plaintiff was entitled
to recover.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff, and judgment being ren-
dered accordingly, the defendant appealed.

No counsel for plaintiff.
L. (i Reade and Tredell for defendant.

Daxtee, J. The articles comprised under the term paraphernalic
include such apparel and ornaments of the wife as are suitable to her con-
dition in life. 2 Blac. Com., 436, What are to be so considered is a
question to be decided by the court, and will depend npon the station and
fortune of the parties. 2 Roper Hus. & Wife., 141. The judge told the
jury that, even if they were of opinion that the plaintiff’s intestate had
made a gift of the watch to defendant, he being insolvent at the time of

his death, the plaintiff was entitled to recover. Without going
(303) into the question whether a court of law now takes any notice of
paraphernalia, we must, however, concur with his Ilonor and sav
that the wwateh in controversy was not paraphernalia, under the cireum-
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stances the husband was in at the first fime he permitted his wife to use
the said watch, and afterwards up to the time of his death. The case
states that the husband was always a man of limited means, which we
must understand a man of but little property, and his estate was found
to be insolvent at his death. Such a watch could not be considered suit-
able to the wife of a man in such cireumstances in our state of society.
Per Corrar. No error.

STATE v. WILLIAM A. J. POLLOK.

Where a gate has been unlawfully erected across a public road, and the pro-
prietor of the land through which the road passes, and on which the gate
has been placed, afterwards sells the land to A., who never actually entered
into the land, but leased it to others, who kept up the gate., A. is not indict-
able for the continuance of the nuisance.

ArpEar from MHanly, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Oxsrow.

The defendant was indicted for obstructing a public road by erecting
and keeping across it a gate, without a license from the County Court.
On “not guilty” pleaded, the jury found a special verdiet: That a former
owner of the land through which the road passes erected the gate in ques-
tion; that, four years before the bill was found, that person sold and
conveyed the land to the defendant, with the gate then stunding; that
the defendant did not at any time actually enter into the land, but that
he leased the same to other persons, who entered and have oeccu-
pied the land ever since as the tenants of the defendant, and have (304)
kept up the gate up to the finding of the bill, and that no license
was ever given by the county ecourt to any person to erect the gate.

On this verdict judgment was given for the defendant, and the Solici-
tor for the State appealed.

Attorney General for the State.
No counsel for defendunt.

Rrrriv, C. J. The person who erected the gate, and those who have
kept it up and used it, are guilty of the offense charged in the indictment.
But the defendant is not responsible for their acts, in which he had no
participation by aiding in or procuring them to be done. Any person
might abate the nuisance erected on the defendant’s land, but he, merely
as owner, is not more under an obligation to do so than any other citizen.
If one cut a tree across the road on another’s land, the owner of the land
is not obliged to remove it, but the overseer of the road. The tenants
who used the gate by keeping it closed and impeding the travel are, no
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doubt, gnilty. But a landlord is not answerable criminaliter for nui-
sances erected or continned by the lessee. To make one guilty of a crime,
some personal agency or delinquency of his own is requisite.

Per Crriaa Affirmed.

Cited: S. v. Hunter, 27 N. C., 370; S. v. Whatfield, 30 N. C., 317.

(305) —
STATE v. WILLIAM A. J. POLLOK axp WHITE HUMPHRILS.

1. In an indictment at common law for a forcible enfry it is sufficient to prove
that the defendant entered with such force and violence as to exceed a
bare trespass.

2. Where a party, entering on land in possession of another, either by his
hehavior or speech, gives those who are in possession just cause to fear
that he will do them some bodily harm if they do not give way to him, his
entry is esteemed forcible, whether he cause the terror by carrying with
him such an unusual number of attendants or by arming himself in such a
manner as plainly to intimate a design to back his pretensions by force, or
by actually threatening to kill, maim, or beat those who continue in pos-
session, or by making use of expressions plainly implying a purpose of
using force against those who make resistance.

Appear from Manly, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Oxsrow.

Indictment for forcible trespass at common law. It appeared on the
trial that the land on which the forcible trespass was alleged to be com-
mitted had been in dispute between the prosecutor, Watson, and the
father of the defendant for some years; that their lands adjoined each
other; that it was finally referred to arbitrators to decide between them,
and that thesc arbitrators decided the question in favor of Watsow, the
prosecutor; that this award was made under an order of court, and
before it was returned to court the alleged trespass took place; that the
order for arbitration was made at March Term, 1841, of Onslow Superior
Court, and the award made at the following Spring Term, to-wit, 1842,
when it was confirmed. It also appeared in evidence that the father of
the defendant, Pollok, had possession of the locus in quo in 1841, and
some years previous, by cultivating the pine trees for turpentine, but
that after the award was made, and before it was returned to court or
made a judgment thereof, Watson, the prosecutor, with his son

(306) aud a slave, in the month of March, 1842, the regular period for
beginning the annual work of getting turpentine, proceeded to cul-

tivate the trees by chopping them, ete., as the defendant’s father had done
the year before; that they had continued to do so, unmolested by the
defendants or either of them, and were beginning the work of the second

99
-



N.C.] JUNE TERM, 1844,

STATE ©. POLLOK.

week, the son and slave being on the premises, when the two defendants,
with five or six negro men, also went on the ground, and the slaves were
ordered by Pollok to go to chipping. Watson forbade the slaves, npon
which a dispute arvose as to their vespective rights to the land, in the
course of which the defendant, Pollok, stated that he kuew the arbitra-
tors had given the land to Watson, but that he intended to keep it, and
would work the trees at the risk of his life, Ife further stated that if
Watson would chip the trees he would dip them. After some further
angry words, the defendant, Pollok, advanced upon Watsou, rolling up
his sleeves, and saying he would whip him and his father, too, when the
defendant, IHumphrey, interposed and told Pollok not to fight. Tt fur-
ther appeared that the defendants, Pollok and Humphrey, were both
informed of the fact that Watson’s hands were on the land, working the
trees, and they had some conversation relative to the propriety of arm-
ing themselves before thev should go there. Watson and his slave went
off and abandoned the land to Pollok, who has continued to work the
trees since. The slave left while the dispnte was going on, and Watson
soon after,

The defendants’ counsel contended that Watson, the prosccutor, never
had such a possession of the premiscs as could be violated by a foreible
entry, because (1) his interference was for too short a time; (2) it was
an unlawful possession; (3) the possession had not been vielded up to
Watson, the prosecutor; (4) that, supposing the possession in Watson to
be complete, there was no evidence that he had been foreibly entered npon
or cjected s that there should be some actual breach of the peace.

The court charged the jury that before the defendants, or either (307)
of them, could be legally convieted, under the indietment, the jury
should be satisfied upon two poiuts—(1) that the prosecutor, Watson,
had by himself or his servunts the actual possession of the premises in
dispute; (2) that the defendants entered upon him and put him out by
foree. In respect to the first point, the jury were instrucied that it was
1ot necessary this actual possession should be continued for any length
of time; 1t was sufficient if the possession had been discontinued by Pol-
lok and there was an actual entry upon and oceupation by Watson of the
premises in the manuer described. Nor was it necessary that this pos-
session should be a lawful one, in any other sense than that it should be
peaceably enjoved by Watson. Nor was it believed to be essential that
DPollok should bave yielded up his possession, provided the jury should
find it was put an end to in any wayv. The true question was, not who
had the Dest right to possess, but who had the actual possession-—the
possessio pedis of the law.  TUpon the second point the court informed
the jury that it was not always casy to define the precise degree of foree
necessary to constitute a forcible trespass. It was believed. however, to
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he unnecessary to go to the extent of showing an actual personal violence.
If there was such a show of force as to ereate a reasonable apprehension
in the minds of the adversary party, that they must yield in order to
avold a breach of the peace, and they did yield without proceeding to
that extremity, 1t would nevertheless be a yielding upon force--such a
force as would constitute it a forcible trespass. But if he yielded, not
m consequence of such necessity, but because of an apprehension that
he might not be able to gather the result of his work, or such a contest
would be unprofitable or vexatious, or for any reason other than the
apprehension above designated, the defendants would not be guilty of
the force necessary to give their acts a criminal character, and they
should be acquitted. The jury were told they might acquit one, or both,
according to the view they might take of the testimony. There
(308) was no question as to whether the occupation of land by working
the turpentine trees thereon be a possession. It was conceded on
both sides that it was.
The jury found the defendant Pollok guilty, and Humphrey not
guilty, and judgment having been rendered against Pollok according to
the verdiet, he appealed to the Supreme Court.

Attorney General for the State.
Jolnw H. Bryan and James W. Bryan for defendant.

Daxter, J. This is an indictment at common law for a foreible entry.
First, the defendant contended that the prosccutor never had such a pos-
session of the locus in quo as could be violated by a forcible entry. The
defendant’s father (under whom, we must take it, he acted) was in the
vear 1841 in the quiet possession of this land, and cultivated the pine
trees thereon in extracting turpentine from them. A dispute as to the
title or boundary of this land having arisen between the prosecutor and
the defendant’s father, they submitted it by rule of court to arbitration.
The arbitrators awarded the land to the prosecutor, but before the award
was returned into court, to-wit, in March, 1842, the usual period for the
beginning of the annual work of getting turpentine, the prosecutor, with
his hands, entered on the said land and proeceded to cultivate the trees
by chipping, etc., as the defendant’s father had done before. The pros-
ecutor and his hands had continued to do so for a week unmolested;
and were beginning the work of the second weck, with another white man
and six slaves, when the defendant came with force and expelled them.
The defendant at the time said that he knew the arbitrators had given
the land to the prosecutor, but that he intended to keep the land and
would work the trees at the risk of his life. The court charged the jury
that if Pollok’s possession had been put an end to in any way, and the
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prosecutor had actually entered upon and oceupied the premises in the
manner described, 1t was a suflicient possession for the purpose of

this indiectment, and that it was not necessary the prosecutor (309)
should show that his possession was held under ¢tit/v in any other

gense than that it was peaccably held and enjoyved by him at the time the
foreible act was done by the defendant. We do not see any error in this
charge. Af common law, it is sufficient to prove that the prosecutor was
possessed of the land and that the defendant entered with such foree and
violence as to exceed a bare trespass. Wilson's case, 8 Term, 3575 Ros,
on Evid., 374,

Secondly, the court charged the jury that personal violence was not
necessary to constitute the offense; that if there was such a show of foree
as to create a reasonable apprehension in the adversary that he must
vield, to avold a breach of the peace, and he does so vield, it would be a
vielding upon force, and such as would constitute it a foreible trespass.
We do not see any error in this part of the charge of his Honor. The
defendant contended that the offense was not complete until some actnal
breach of the peace had been committed. But the law is, where the
party, either by his behavior or speech, at the time of his entry, gives
those who are 1n possession just cause to fear that he will do them some
bodily harm if they do not give way to him, his entry is esteemed forei-
ble, whether he cause the terror by taking with him such an unusual
number of servants, or by arming himself in such a manner as plainly
to indicate a design to back his pretensions by force, or by actually
threatening to kill, maim, or beat those who continue in possession, or
by making use of expressions which plainly lmply a purpose of using
force against those who make resistance. Hawk. P. C.0 b, 1, chap. 64,
sec. 27; Roscoe on Evid., 377.

Per Crrraar Affirmed.

Cited: S. v, Armfleld, 2T N, C., 2115 S. v Jacobs, 94 N €L 9335 8. v,
Bryant, 103 X, C., 438; 8. . Mills, 104 N, C., 9075 N oo Daris, 109
N. (., 811; 8. ». Robbins, 123 N, C., 738; S. ¢, Lawson, ib., 7435 S. ¢,
Leary, 136 X, C., 578 S, v. Darvenport. 156 N. (., 603, 6065 8. r. Jones,
170 N. C., 755.

(3]0)
TURNER BYNUM v. JOHN CARTER.
1. The occupation of pine land by annually making turpentine on it ix such an

actual possession as will oust a constructive possession by one claiming
nierely under a superior paper title.

) )
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2. Where the extent of a wrong-doer's possession is so limited as to afford a
fair presumption that the party mistook his houndaries, or did not intend
to set up a claim within the deed of the other party, it would be a proper
ground for saying that he had not the possession, or that it was not
adverse. But it is otherwise where the possession was willful, open. and
notorious.

3. The entry of an owier upon a trespasser will enable the former to maintain
trespass, but it must be an entry for the purpose of taking possession,
which may be evinced by acts of ownership on the land. ax plowing it,
or the like. or by a formal declaration of the intention accompanying the
entry.,

4. But although such entry he made, yet if the wrong-doer continue his posses-
sion, the deed of the owner, not being made on the land, and such adverse
possession continuing, is not valid to pass a title to the land.

AppEAL from Pearson, J., at Spring Term, 1844, of Epcecomse.

Trespass quare clausum fregit, commenced in May, 1841, The locus
i quo is a slip of land, about half a mile long and from 100 to 150 yards
wide, containing about 26 acres. The plaintiff showed the title to be in
Susan Ilines on 1 September, 1840, as a part of a large tract, containing
about 200 acres, which she sold aud conveyed to the plaintiff by deed,
bearing date 1 September, 1840, and containing a general warranty,
“except as to a small part claimed by Carter,” the defendaut. Miss
Hines was an infaut until a short time before her sale to the plaintiff,
and Richard Hines was her father and gnardian and kept a tenant on

the land from 18283 to the date of the decd, but the tenant oceupied
(311) the upper part of the tract and had no actual possession of any

part of the 26 acres. The pleas were “not guilty” and “liberum
tenementum.”

Ou the trial the defendant showed a patent to one Ellis, issued in 1822,
for 571 acres of land and including the slip of 26 acres, and showed,
further, that in 1334 Ellis placed a tenant on his tract, who lived on a
part of the tract without the Hmits of the 26 acres in dispute, but who
in that year boxed all the pine trees suitable for making turpentine, as
well within the disputed part as on the residue of the tract, and continued
to cultivate the trees in the usual way of making turpentine regularly
every vear up to 1839, inclusive, and that in January, 1840, Ellis sold
and conveyed to the defendant, who entered upon the lands and culti-
vated the same trees during 1840 and 1841. Tt appeared in evidence
that the process of making turpentine is, after the boxes are cut, to begin
operations about 1 April and chip the trees so as to allow the gum to
exude and run into the boxes below, and every § or 10 days, after chip-
ping particular trees, to dip the turpentine collected in the boxes and chip
the trees afresh. This continues until about 1 October, when the gum
ceases to flow, and that which has become hard on the trees during the
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sumnier 1s seraped down, which terminates the enltivation for that year.
The trees then stand until the next spring, when the process is renewed,
and so from year to year, until the trees become exhausted, which may
be, according to the industry with whieh the business of ehipping is plied,
from 5 or 6 to 10 years. No fencing or inclosure around the land is
required.

The slip of 26 acres consists of about 10 acres of old field, grown up
in young pines, and the residue of swamp, excepting a few spots on
which the original growth of pines fit for turpentine stood, amounting
to some 80 or 40, or more. The /ocus in quo is situate on the edge of the
swamp, and no road passes within sight of it.

In August, 1840, Mr. Hines, at the request of his daughter, being in
treaty for the sale of the land to the plaintiff, went on the dis-
puted land and found the defendant there, tending the trees and (312)
making turpentine, and told him he must quit trespassing on the
land or he would be sned. To that the defendant made no answer, but
continned his operations, making two barrels of turpentine that vear on
this piece of land, and also renewing the business of carrving it on the
next year, 1841. The deed from Miss Iines to the plaintiff was not
executed on the land.

The defendant’s counsel insisted that the plaintiff could not recover,
because the defendant was in the actual adverse possession at the time
the deed was executed to the plaintiff, and that the plaintiff never had
such a possession as enabled him to maintain trespass. The plaintiff’s
counsel insisted that, there being no house nor enclosure of the defendant,
the fact of his attending the turpentine trees did not amount to a con-
tinuing possession, but constituted so many distinet trespasses every time
he went on the land, and as Miss Hines had a tenaut on a part of the
tract, and had title, this gave her, in law, the possession of the whole;
and supposing that when the defendant went on her land this disturbed
her possession for the time, still the instant he went off, her constructive
possession took effect again, and there was no proof of an actual posses-
sion by the defendant at the time the deed was delivered. Secondly, that
tending some 30 or 40 turpentine trees in an out-of-the-way place was
not such an open and notorious possession as the law required to divest
the possession of the real owner. Thirdly, that the entry of Mr. Hines,
as his daughter’s agent, in August, 1840, revested the possession, so that
she could then bring trespass or make a deed to the plaintiff and enable
him to bring the action.

The court instructed the jury that, up to the time when Mr. Hines
came on the disputed land, the possession of it was in the defendant by
reason of the regular tending the turpentine trees by himself and
those under whom he claimed; and that if the jury believed that (313)
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the defendant did not abandon his possession after he was forbidden to
trespass further, but remained on the land after Hines left it, and con-
tinued to cultivate the trees that year, and resumed the cultivation the
next, the possession was legally in the defendant and held adversely by
him at the time Miss Hines conveyed to the plaintiff, although the de-
fendant might not in fact have had his foot on the disputed land at the
instant the deed was executed ; and, therefore, that the locus in quo did
not pass by the deed to the plaintiffs, and he had not the title nor the
possession which would enable him to maintain this action.

The jury found the defendant not guilty, and from the judgment ren-
dered, pursuant to this verdict, the plaintiff appealed.

B. I'. Moore and J. II. Bryan for plaintiff.
Badger & Mordecai for defendant.

Rurrrx, C. J.  As the paper titles of Miss Hines and the defendant
both covered the locus in quo, and that of the former was the better title,
the possession of the disputed land was constructively in her, unless the
acts of Ellis and the defendant amounted to actual possession of the locus
in quo, in which case Miss Hines must be deemed to have been onsted of
her possession of that part of the land covered by both conveyances.
Carson v. Burnett, 18 N. C., 546, This brings up the question whether
the making of turpentine without a residence on the land or the enclosing
and cultivating a part of it in crops of grain or the like, constitutes pos-
session, actual and adverse, so as to amount fo a dispossession of the true
owner, The question, though not brought directly inte judgment in this
Court hitherto, is not entirely new, having several times occurred, inci-
dentally, and been often thought of by the profession. We are all of the
same opinion on it with his Honor. That opinion was intimated in
Green v. Harman, 15 N. €., 1538, and was almost necessarily implied in

what was said in Carr . Carr, 20 N. C., 317. The evidence in
(314) this case shows, and every one acquainted with the operation must

be sensible, that there can hardly be a more positive, direct, or
open exercise of continued dominion over land than the making of tur-
pentine from year to year. It oceupies the whole time of those engaged
in it for more than half of every year, and, as yielding a regular annual
crop, the cultivation of the trees is a steady employment through a series
of vears. Nothing can be more striking to the observation than the frees
which are tended for turpentine, being chipped as high as a man can
reach with a round shave, as it is called, on a long handle, and thus be-
coming whitened by the hard turpentine for half their circumference and
to the height of 12 or 15 feet. They cannot fail to attract the attention
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of those who come in view of them, and therefore give to this operation.
as an act of ownership, as much notoriety as perhaps anvthing else cau,
unless 1t may be the actnal residence of the party. And from the nature
of the business and the period requisite for its prosecution, 1t may not
only be seen that the trees are tended, but the owner of the land has
every requisite opportunity of discovering the person who tends them.
In 1ts nature it is not a clandestine, but an overt act of ownership—
not made up of distinet trespasses, but amounting to occupation.

But it was argued that, although it may be true that the making of
turpentine constitutes possession when carried on to a cousiderable
extent and with certainry, visible to the owner, ver thar, here, the trees
were too few and the place too much out of the way to authorize a fair
inference that the owrer knew thereot, and, therefore, that hev possession
canuot be Leld to have been rerminated. We admit there mav be cases in
whicl the possession may be of so minute a part of the disputed land as
not to amownt to an ouster of the owner, being regarded, rather, as an
imadvertent encroachment withour a claim of right, or as permissive and
not adverse. DBut in such cascs the conclusion does not arise from the
supposition that the owner was actnally ignorant of the fact of the pos-
session or of 1fs extent, bur, as was mentioned in (Freen o Har-
man. that the other party did not intend 1o usurp a possession (315)
bevond the boundaries to which he had a good title.  Iu holding
thar making turpentine cousritutes possession, we necessarily hold that
it ix au occupation which by its narure is sutlicicntly notorious to afford
notice to an owner of ordinary attention to his atfaivs, [t therefore, the
extent of the wrong-doer’s possession be so limited—for example, here.

the number of trees so few—az to atford a fair presunption that the party
mistook his boundaries or did uot intend to set up a claim within the
deed of the other party, it would be a proper ground for saving that he
hiad not the possession or that it was not adverse. But in the case before
us there ean be no doubt that the defendant did intend to take possessiow
and to assert a title to the extent of his own deed. Those who went before
hin acrually tended the trees 6 vears betore his purchase. It does not
appear that they or he knew that Miss Hines had a title to the land, and
as soon as he purchased he commenced that use of the land from which
he would derive the most profit.  1lis purpose, therefore, was to enter
into aud elaim the whole, ns must be assumed upon the same prineple on
whieh the courts hold that a possession of a part of the land disputed 1s
the possession of the whole of 1. We do not say, if a person designs and
by contrivance is able to conceal from the owner this occupation of a
minute parcel for the purpose of defeating the better title by a clan-
destine occupartion, that 1t might net make a case of fraud which shonld
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not be allowed to succeed. But if it be so, the intent must be found by
the jury, and no such point was made to the jury upon this trial. This
case 1s, that every tree on the land that was fit for the purpose was boxed
and tended for a erop of turpentine 6 or 7 years by those who had deeds
which covered the land and who claimed 1t under those deeds, and had no
notice of an adverse claim until nearly the seventh year of their posses-
stion. They went as far as they could in taking possession, unless by
' living on the land or enclosing it for a grain crop.
(316) It was further contended that the entry of Mr. ITines revested
the possession of his daughter, so as to enable her to bring trespass
or to convey to the plaintiff, so that he could sue. Tt is not doubted that
the entry of the owner upon a trespasser will enable the former to main-
tain trespass. But it 1s not mercly going on the land in the possession
of another that will have that effect. Tt must be an entry for the purpose
of taking possession, which may be evineed by aets of ownership on the
land, as plowing it, or the like (Butcher v. Butcher, 7 Barn., & Cress.,
399), or by a formal declaration of the intention accompanying the entry.
2 Bl. Com., 312; 3 Bl. Com., 176. It might, perhaps, be questioned
whether Mr. Hines’ entry was of that character, as he merely warned
the defendant that if he continued there he would be sued, which might
have been in ejectment, perhaps, and not in frespass. But admit that
Miss Hines might have brought trespass, or that her deed, if it had been
made on the land, would have been operative (Carson . Burnett, 18
N. €, 354), yet it does not follow that this deed, not executed on the
land, is valid, and therefore that the plaintiff can have this action. We
have already said that we hold the defendant to have been in possession
when Mr. Hines went ou the land. The jury have found that the defend-
ant did not abandon the possession, but continued therc while Hines was
there and after he went away, tending the trees, as before, through that
season. That was, of course, until and after the exccution of the deed to
the plaintiff, which was on 1 September, 1840. At the date of the deed,
therefore, the defendant had the same possession he had all along had,
which was adverse to Miss Hines and prevented her from assigning her
right of entry. His Honor stated to the jury that such would be the law,
even if they should think the defendant was not in person on the land
at the particular juncture of the exceution of the deed. That was going
further than was necessary in the case, since it was for the plaintiff to
show that there was the hiatus in the defendant’s possession,
(317) which both preéxisted and followed the execution of the deed, and
he gave no evidence on the point. Therefore, if there were error
in that respect, it ought not to prejudice the defendant. But we concur
in the opinion as expressed ; for the possessor of a house or field does not
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lose his possession by merelv going out of them, without any intention
of abandonment, but animo revertendi—no other person entering into
possession with a claim to hold it.

The Court therefore approves the instructions to the jury.

Per Curraar No erTor.

Yited : Loftin v. ('obb. 46 N C , 412 White v. Cooper, 53 N, C., 33
W z// lams o, Walluce, 78 N. CL, 3575 Gudger r. Hensley, 82 N. O, 483,
King r. Wells. 94 N. C., 352; U(‘]man oo Smith, 106 N. C., 178 MeLean
oo Smith, 114 N CL, 3655 Hamilton v, Teard, 1b., 5383 Shaffer v. Gaynor,
117 N, C.. 21, Locklear r. Narage, 159 N. C., 238, J[(‘(wus/‘f// r. Lumber
Clo 168 N, O 265 Cross o0 DR 172 N CL 1195 Waldo oo Wilson, 173
N (L, 603,

(318)

THE STATE v. JARVIS MARBLE

1. Where an individual appropriates land for a public highway. muech less time
than 20 vears will suffice to make it a publie road: for it i~ rather the
intention of the owner than the length of time of the user which must
determine the fact of dedication.

2. Where a road has been used by the public as a publiec highway for 20 yvears.
and there is no evidence how this user commenced. a presumption of law
arises that this road has been laid off and established as a public road by
due course of law; but a possession or user by the public for a less time
will not raize this presamption.

MV

Jut a county court eannot dedicate or appoint a public road in any other

manner than as authorized by law,

4. There may he a public road de facto, and the only person who can question
the richt to such a road isx the owner of the land: but the owney can only
he bound hy a proceeding against him according to the law of the land. o
by an user of 20 vears, from which such proceedings will ordinarily be
prexumoed.

5. Ro. also, no presumption of a legal authority to erect a gate across a public

road can arixe in a less time than 20 years flom the actual erection of

the gate,

Arriar from Mandy, J.. at Spring Term, 1844, of Oxsvrow.

The indictmment under which the defendant was tried was for the
obstruetion of a publie highway, by the erection of a gate across it. The
evidence in the case was that the defeudant had creeted a gate across the
road, as luid in the bill of Indictment, about 9 or 10 vears before the
commencement of the prosecution. and that this obstruetion had con-
tinued to the time of the prosccution. [t appeared, also, that the road,
leading between the two points designaied many years ago, had run in a
different divection, but that for the last 25 vears it had not been changed ;
that the present road had been used for all that fime as a publie road,
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(819) and was so traveled and considerced by the neighborhood; that the
county court had uniformly exercised a jurisdietion over i, as
such, by laying it off into road districts and appointing overscers thereof,
It was contended hy the defendant’s counsel that there could be 10
conviction, beeause (1) the road had never been legally laid ont and
established as a public road; (2) that the time which the gare had stood
across the road raised a presumption of « grant of the power 1o ercet it
But the court believed, and so mstructed the jury, that there was no
nceessity for showing any act of legislation. or of the court, laying out
the said road, if the jury believed it had been wsed as a publie road in
the muauner testified by the witnesses, for 20 vears or more. .\ legal
setting apart or allotting of the road to the use of the public would be
presumed. And so, if the county court had assumed a jurisdiction over
the road in question, allotting it into road districts, assigning hands and
appointing overseers for the sume, this would be implied dedication of it
to thie public uses, and no other more formal proceedings would be neces-
sary for that purpose. The road wounld be thus a public voud de facts,
and it would be indictable to obstruct it.

The court Instrueted the jury that the continuance of the obstruction
had not been sufficiently long to warrant any presumption of u grant for
its crection.

The jury, under these instructions, found a verdicr against the defend-
ant, and, judgment being pronounced accordingly, the defendant ap-
pealed.

Attorney Generval for the State.
No counsel for defendant.

Nasn, J. The first nstruetion given by the cowrt is In answer to au
objection made by the defendant’s connscl, “that the detfendant conld not
be convicted, because the road had not been legally luid out orv

{5207 established as a public road,” either by the act of the Legislature,
as in the case of railroads, or by the county court, or by a dedi-

cation of it by the individual owning the land over which it runs. The
judge mstrueted the jury that if they believed the voad had been used
for 20 vears, and upwards, as a public road. as testified by the witnesses,
a legal allotment or setting apart of the road to the public would be pre-
sumed. This instruetion is, we think, erroneous in two particulars. If
it was the meaning of the court to inform the jury that where a road is
established by a dedication of it to the use of the publie, 20 vears user of
it by the public was necessary 1o constitute it o public road, we think he
erred. When such dedication, which is the act of the party, tukes place,
mueh less time will suflice, and the rime may in some cases commence
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with the dedication itself. As, where an individual, owning land in a
town, lays out a strect through it, and lots on the sides, and sells the lots,
the dedication is complete at once; for it is rather the intention of the
owner than the length of time of the user which must determine the fact
of the dedieation. Woolridge on Ways, 11; 11 East, 376, in note, by
Lord Kenyon. Trom the objection taken, however, and the reply to it
by the court, we presume, an allotment or setting apart by the county
court, or the action of the Legislature, was meant, and to that principle
it was the intention of the judge to direct the attention of the jury. In
that view of the charge, we think there is ervor. From the case 1t appears
that the public had had but about 15 or 16 years undisturbed possession;
for it is stated that the gate had been erected 9 or 10 yeurs before this
indictment, and that the right of the defendant to erect and keep it up
had not, during that space of time, been questioned. We are of opinion
that where a road has been used by the public as a public highway for
20 years, and there is no evidence how this user commenced, a presump-
tion in law arises that it has been, by due conrse of law and by the proper
tribunal, laid off and established as a public road or highway. A pos-
session or user by the public for a less time will not raise the presump-
tion. In this case the 20 years had not expired at the time the

gate was erected; for the remainder of the time the public (321)
enjoved the use cum oncre. Geringer v. Swimmers, 24 N. C., 232.

We do not ¢encur with his Honor in the second branch of Lis instruc-
tions. According to the instruetions as given, if the county court should,
without a petition in writing, or the intervention of a jury, or notice to
the party interested, lay out a road through an individual’s land or field,
and appoint an overseer and allot him hands, this road, when opened by
the overseer, would be de facto a public road, and no other more formal
proceedings would be mnecessary, and it would be an indictable offense
to obstruet it. We cannot concur in this view of the law as an un-
qualified proposition. The law requires that to establish a public road
a petition in writing shall be filed in court. and that it shall be made to
appear to the satisfaction of the court that all persons over whose lands
it mayv be intended the road shall pass shall have received 20 days’ notice,
aud the court shall then appoint a jury to lay off the road and assess to
the parties interested the damages they shall sustain by the establishing
of such road. It the iustructions we are now considering he correct, all
these guards to private rights are thrown down, and the owner of the
land 1s deprived of the use of it, and is indictable if he obstruets the
road, even by putting up a gate across it to protect a growing crop. We
do not deny that there may be a publie road de facto.: and the question
whether such a road were properly laid our or not, or whether it was
dedicated by the owner, can only arise between the public and the owner;
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it is binding on all others. And in this case the defendant, though not
stated in the case to be so, we gather from all the facts, was the owner
of the soil over which ’rlm road obstructed runs. These principles are
clearly deduced from the case of Woolard v. McCullough, 23 N. C., 432.
We agree with his ITonor that the length of time during which the
gate had been standing on the road did not authorize the jury to presume
a grant for its erection. This grant could only be made by the
(322) county court, upon a proper application, supposing that the
road was a public road; and the user of the gate for a less time
than that which would authorize the presumption of a laying out of the
road by a proper order of the couuty court will not authorize the pre-
sumption of a grant by the court of the right to erect it.
Upon the whole, the judgment of the court is erroncous.
Prr Crrisa ' Venire de noro.

(ted: S. v. Hunter, 27 N. O., 3705 Welch v. Piercy, 29 N. C., 368;
S. v, Johnson, 33 N. C., 660; S. 1 O(?dwdl, 44 N. C., 248 Tarkington
v. UeRea, 47T N. C., 49 Askew . U ynne, 52 N. C, 24; Crump v. Mims,
64 N. (., 769; S, v, Long, 94 N. C., 899; Tuse v W]Htcﬂn 146 N. (',
376,

PLEASANT JORDAN v. JOHN G. WILSON,

Where A., the plaintiff, had a deed of trust under which he claimed the dehtor’s
property, z1hd, at a sale by execution of the same property, declared that he
objected to the sale unless the purchaser would agree to pay his debt, and
he had a private conversation with the person who afterwards bid off the
property: Held, that the plaintiff had no right, in an action of assumpsit
against the person who purchased property, to recover the amount of his
debt.

ArreaL from Bailey, J., at Spring Teim, 1844, of Herrrorp.
Assimpsit. The evidence was that the plaintiff, the defendant, and
several other persons were prescut at the sale of a house and lot in Mur-
freeshoro belonging to one George Spicrs, sold by virtue of an execution
at the instance of the defendant, tested November Term, 1842. The
plaintiff stated, in the presence and hearing of the persons atrending the
sale, that he had a elaim upon the house and lot by virtue of a
(323) deed in trust exccuted by George Spiers, the defendant in the
execution, conveving to him the house and lot in trust, to pay,
anmong other debts, one to himself for $65, and unless the purchaser,
whoever he might be, would agree to pay him the amount of his debt so
secured by the deed in trust, he would forbid the sale. Mr. L. M. Cowper
then stated that it was true that Jordan, the present plaintiff, held a
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deed in trust, securing to him a debt which Spiers owed him of about $65.
The plaintiff said, further, that if the purchaser would pay his claim
upon the land he wounld make no objection to the sale. A witness testified
that the plaintiff and the defendant got together and had a conversation,
but he did not hear what it was. Several witnesses testified that they
understood, and they supposed all present understood, that the pur-
chaser was to pay the plaintifl’s claim under the trust. It was proved
that George Spiers” interest in the house and lot was =old by the sheriff;
that the defendant beeame the purchaser for the sum of $735, and that
this amount waus entered as a satisfaction on the exeeution.  The plaintiff
having released George Spicrs at the last term, his debtor introduced him
as a witness. 1le stated that he had exeented the deed in trust and was
mdebted to the plaintiff the sum of $65 therein mentioned. The deed of
trust was then offered in évidence. It bore date, 25 November, 1830
was proved 5 Mareh, 18315 was deposited with the rvegister on 25 May,
1831, as appears by his endorsement ou the deed, and was transeribed m
the register’s books on 30 May, 1831. Mr. Spiers stated that he had given
a deed m trust before, conveving the same property to secure the same
debt, but did not kunow what had become of it, but after the 